
CTTYOFSELMA
SPECIAL COIJNCIL MEETING

}0l[ay 6,2019

The special meeting of the Selma City Council was called to order at 5:30 p.m. in the
Council Chambers. Council members answering roll call were: Avalos, Guerra, Trujillo,
Mayor Pro Tem Franco, and Mayor Robertson.

Also present were Assistant City Attomey Casso, Assistant City Manager Moreno, City
Manager Gallavan, Police Chief Gamer and interested citizens.

The notice for this meeting was duly posted in a location visible at all times by the general
public seventy-t'rvo hours prior to this meeting.

CLOSED SESSION: At 5:31 p.m., Mayor Robertson recessed the meeting into Closed
Session to discuss the following:

CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS: Pursuant to Govemment Code
Section 54957.6:

Agency Negotiators: Teresa Gallavan, City Manager
James M. Casso, Assistant City Attomey
Miscellaneous Mid-Management EmployeesEmployee Organizafion:

CONFERENCE WTTH LABOR IYEGOTIATORS: Pursuant to Govemment Code
Section 54957.6:

Agency Negotiators: Teresa Gallavan, City Manager
James M. Casso, Assistant City Attomey
Public Works and Transit Maintenance EmployeesEmployee Organization:

CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS: Pursuant to Govemment Code
Section 54957.6:

Agenry Negotiators: Teresa Gallavan, City Manager
James M. Casso, Assistant City Attomey
Secretarial Technical Clerical AssociationEmployee Organization:

Mayor Robertson reconvened the meeting from closed session at 5:59 p.m

Assistant City Attomey Casso reported that the City Council recessed into closed session
regarding the items described above and stated that direction was given to the agency
negotiators with no final action taken and nothing further to report.

ADJOURNMENT: There being no further business, the meeting was adjoumed at 6:00
p.m.

Respectfu lly submitted,

Reyna Rivera
City Clerk

Scott Robertson
Mayor of the City of Selma

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 1

CITY OF SELMA 
SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING 

May 6, 2019 

The special meeting of the Selma City Council was called to order at 5:30 p.m. in the 
Council Chambers. Council members answering roll call were: Avalos, Guerra, Trujillo, 
Mayor Pro Tern Franco, and Mayor Robertson. 

Also present were Assistant City Attorney Casso, Assistant City Manager Moreno, City 
Manager Gallavan, Police Chief Gamer and interested citizens. 

The notice for this meeting was duly posted in a location visible at all times by the general 
public seventy-two hours prior to this meeting. 

CLOSED SESSION: At 5:31 p.m., Mayor Robertson recessed the meeting into Closed 
Session to discuss the following: 

CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS: Pursuant to Government Code 
Section 54957.6: 

Agency Negotiators: Teresa Gallavan, City Manager 
James M. Casso, Assistant City Attorney 

Employee Organization: Miscellaneous Mid-Management Employees 

CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS: Pursuant to Government Code 
Section 54957.6: 

Agency Negotiators: Teresa Gallavan, City Manager 
James M. Casso, Assistant City Attorney 

Employee Organization: Public Works and Transit Maintenance Employees 

CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS: Pursuant to Government Code 
Section 54957.6: 

Agency Negotiators: Teresa Gallavan, City Manager 
James M . Casso, Assistant City Attorney 

Employee Organization: Secretarial Technical Clerical Association 

Mayor Robertson reconvened the meeting from closed session at 5:59 p.m. 

Assistant City Attorney Casso reported that the City Council recessed into closed session 
regarding the items described above and stated that direction was given to the agency 
negotiators with no final action taken and nothing further to report. 

ADJOURNMENT: There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 6:00 
p.m. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Reyna Rivera 
City Clerk 

Scott Robertson 
Mayor of the City of Selma 

reynar
Typewritten Text
agenda 1.a.



CITYOFSELMA
COI'NCIL REGIJLAR MEETING

May 6,2019

The regular meeting of the Selma City Council was called to order at 6:01 p.m. in the
Council Chambers. Council members answering roll call were: Avalos, Guerra, Trujillo,
Mayor Pro Tem Franco, and Mayor Robertson.

AIso present were Assistant City Aaomey Casso, Assistant City Manager Moreno, City
Manager Gallavan, Community Services Director Ktchner, Fire Chief Petersen, Police
Chief Garner, Acting Public Works Director Ferrell, and interested citizens.

The agenda for this meeting was duly posted in a location visible at all times by the general
public seventy-two hours prior to rhis meeting.

ORAL COMMLTNICATION: Mr. Mark Armenta, Selma Boys and Girls Club of Fresno
County, stepped forward to discuss the upcoming 3-year anniversary event at the club.

RECOGNTTION OF FRESNO COI,JNTY RT,RAL TRANSIT AGENCY,S IM.h

ANNTVERSARY: Mr. Moses Stites, Fresno County Rural Transit Agency ('FCRTA")
General Manager, stepped forward to present Council with a plaque thanking them for their
partnership over the past forty years.

NATIONAL VOLI]NTEER RECOG N MONTH: Community Services Director
Kirchner stated that April was National Volunteer Recognition month, and stated that his

departrnent is extremely fortunate to be able to work with so many dedicated and hard-
working volunteers. At this point in the meeting, Mayor Robertson presented certificates of
recognition to the many volunteers that serve at the Selma Arts Center and the Nick Medina
Senior Center. He thanked everyone for attending and extended an invitation for a short

break to congratulate them fot their service.

RECESS: At 6:27 p.m., Mayor Robertson called for a short break in the meeting. The
meeting then reconvened at 6:40 p.m.

CbNSEI.IT CALENDAR: Mayor Robertson requested that agenda item 1.e. be pulled

from the Consent calendar fol a sepalate discussion. Council member Guerra requested

that agenda item 1.i., be pulled for further discussion. Motion to approve the remainder of
the Consent Calendar as read was made by Council member Avalos and seconded by
Council member Guerra. The motion was carried with the following vote:

IIWOCATION: Pastor Josue Guevara led the invocation.

Mayor Robertson congratulated Mr. Stites and presented him yrith a certificate, on behalf of
all the citizens of Selma in appreciation of their forty years of exceptional service to the
Selma community. He then thanked them for their continued commitment to the citizens of
Selma.

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 2

CITY OF SELMA 
COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

May 6, 2019 

The regular meeting of the Selma City Council was caIled to order at 6:01 p.m. in the 
Council Chambers. Council members answering roll call were: Avalos, Guerra, Trujillo, 
Mayor Pro Tern Franco, and Mayor Robertson. 

Also present were Assistant City Attorney Casso, Assistant City Manager Moreno, City 
Manager GaIlavan, Community Services Director Kirchner, Fire Chief Petersen, Police 
Chief Garner, Acting Public Works Director Ferrell, and interested citizens. 

The agenda for this meeting was du1y posted in a location visible at all times by the general 
public seventy-two hours prior to this meeting. 

INVOCATION: Pastor Josue Guevara led the invocation. 

ORAL COMMUNICATION: Mr. Mark Armenta, Selma Boys and Girls Club of Fresno 
County, stepped forward to discuss the upcoming 3-year anniversary event at the club. 

RECOGNITION OF FRESNO COUNTY RURAL TRANSIT AGENCY'S 40th 

ANNIVERSARY: Mr. Moses Stites, Fresno County Rural Transit Agency ("FCRTA") 
General Manager, stepped forward to present Council with a plaque thanking them for their 
partnership over the past forty years. 

Mayor Robertson congratulated Mr. Stites and presented him with a certificate, on behalf of 
all the citizens of Selma in appreciation of their forty years of exceptional service to the 
Selma community. He then thanked them for their continued commitment to the citizens of 
Selma. 

NATIONAL VOLUNTEER RECOGNITION MONTH: Community Services Director 
Kirchner stated that April was National Volunteer Recognition month, and stated that his 
department is extremely fortunate to be able to work with so many dedicated and hard
working volunteers. At this point in the meeting, Mayor Robertson presented certificates of 
recognition to the many volunteers that serve at the Selma Arts Center and the Nick Medina 
Senior Center. He thanked everyone for attending and extended an invitation for a short 
break to congratulate them for their service. 

RECESS: At 6:27 p.m. , Mayor Robertson called for a short break in the meeting. The 
meeting then reconvened at 6:40 p.m. 

, . 
CONSENT CALENDAR: Mayor Robertson requested that agenda Item I.e. be pulled 
from the Consent calendar for a separate discussion. Council member Guerra requested 
that agenda item l.i. , be pulled for further discussion. Motion to approve the remainder of 
the Consent Calendar as read was made by Council member Avalos and seconded by 
Council member Guerra. The motion was carried with the following vote: 

reynar
Typewritten Text
agenda 1.a.



City of Selma
Regular City Council Meeting
Mal 6, 2019
Page 2

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

Avalos, Guerra, Trujillo, Franco, Robertson
None
None
None

b

l. a. Approved Consideration of the minutes of the April 15, 2019 , Council
Meeting.

Approved Consideration of the minutes of the April 23, 2019, Council
Meeting.

e

c. 2019-15R Consideration ofa Resolution approving the project list for Senate Bill
(SB) I Funding for Fiscal Year 2019 -2020.

d. 2019-16R Consideration of a Resolution in Support of a Fund Allocation for
Rockwell Pond Park through the 2019-20 State Budget Process.

Pulled Consideration of a Resolution in Support of a Funding Allocation
for Public Safety, Capital and Infrastructure Improvements
through the2019-20 State Budget Process.

f. 2019-18R Consideration of a Resolution in Support of a Funding Allocation
for Safe and Clean Drinking Water for the Southem Cenral Vafley
through the 2019-20 State Budget Process.

Approved Consideration ofthe purchase ofseated audience risers for the
Selma Cultural Arts Center.

Approved Consideration of the appointment of a representative and an altemate
altemate to serve as a member of the Kings Water Basin Authority
Board

i. Pulled Consideration ofthe check register dated April 30,2019.

AGENDA 1.e. CONSIDERATION OFARESOLUTIO N IN SUPPORT OF A

h.

FUNDING ALLOCATION FOR PIJBLIC SAFETY. AND
CTURE THROUGH THE 2019-20 S BUDGET

PROCESS: After discussion and clarification, motion to applove RESOLUTION NO.
2OI9.I7R., A RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF A FLINDING ALLOCATION FOR
PUBLIC SAFETY, CAPITAL AND INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS
THROUGH THE 2019-20 STATE BUDGET PROCESS with corrections to the square

footage and the funding shortfall was made by Council member Avalos and seconded by
Mayor Pro Tem Franco. Motion carried with the following vote:

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 3

City of Selma 
Regular City Council Meeting 
May 6, 2019 
Page 2 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT: 

Avalos, Guerra, Trujillo, Franco, Robertson 
None 
None 
None 

1. a. Approved Consideration of the minutes of the April 15, 2019, Council 
Meeting. 

b. Approved Consideration of the minutes of the April 23 , 2019, Council 
Meeting. 

c. 2019-15R Consideration of a Resolution approving the project list for Senate Bill 
(SB) I Funding for Fiscal Year 2019 - 2020. 

d. 2019-16R Consideration ofa Resolution in Support ofa Fund Allocation for 
Rockwell Pond Park through the 2019-20 State Budget Process. 

e. Pulled Consideration of a Resolution in Support of a Funding Allocation 
for Public Safety, Capital and Infrastructure Improvements 
through the 2019-20 State Budget Process. 

f. 2019-l8R Consideration ofa Resolution in Support ofa Funding Allocation 
for Safe and Clean Drinking Water for the Southern Central Valley 
through the 2019-20 State Budget Process. 

g. Approved Consideration of the purchase of seated audience risers for the 
Selma Cultural Arts Center. 

h. Approved Consideration of the appointment of a representative and an alternate 
alternate to serve as a member of the Kings Water Basin Authority 
Board 

1. Pulled Consideration of the check register dated April 30, 2019. 

AGENDA ITEM I.e. CONSIDERATION OF A RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF A 
FUNDING ALLOCATION FOR PUBLIC SAFETY, CAPITAL AND 
INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS THROUGH THE 2019-20 STATE BUDGET 
PROCESS: After discussion and clarification, motion to approve RESOLUTION NO. 
2019-17R, A RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF A FUNDING ALLOCATION FOR 
PUBLIC SAFETY, CAPITAL AND INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS 
THROUGH THE 2019-20 STATE BUDGET PROCESS with corrections to the square 
footage and the funding shortfall was made by Council member Avalos and seconded by 
Mayor Pro Tern Franco. Motion carried with the following vote: 



AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

Avalos, Franco, Guerra, Trujillo, Robertson
None
None
None

AGENDA ITEM 1.i. CONSIDERATION OF TIIE CHECK REGISTER DATED
2019: After discussion, motion to approve CHECK REGISTER DATEDAPRIL 30

APRIL 30, 2019 was made by Mayor Robertson and seconded by Council member Guerra
Motion carried with the following vote:

2 Approved Consideration of a Memorandum of Understanding with Tutelian &
Co., Inc. Regarding Potential Development of Community Park
Infrastruchre in Rockwell Pond

City Manager Gallavan reported on the matter for Council

Mayor Pro Tem Franco motioned to table the matter for future discussion to allow more
time to reyiew the Memorandum of Understanding ("MOU"). The motion was seconded
by Council member Trujillo but did not carry.

At this point in the meeting, City Manager Gallavan continued to discuss the proposed
MOU between Tutelian & Company Inc. and the City.

Mr. Clif Tutelian, Tutelian & Co., Inc. stepped forward to provide background information
on the area as well as the request to coordinate efforts. He discussed his commitment to the
City and the need to provide synergy with the potential park on the perimeter of Rockwell
Pond.

After discussion, motion was made by Council member Avalos and seconded by Council
member Guerra to approve the Memorandum of Understanding with Tutelian & Co., Inc.
Regarding Potential Development of Community Park amenities around or at Rockwell
Pond. Motion was carried by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

Avalos, Guerra, Robertson
Trujillo, Franco
None
None

City of Selma
Regular Citt Council Me€ting
May 6, 2019
Page 3

AYES: Robertson, Guerra, Avalos, Trujillo, Franco
NOES: None
ABSTAIN: None
ABSENT: None

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 4

City o/Selma 
R egular City Council Meeting 
May 6, 2019 
Page 3 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT: 

Avalos, Franco, Guerra, Trujillo, Robertson 
None 
None 
None 

AGENDA ITEM l.i. CONSIDERATION OF THE CHECK REGISTER DATED 
APRll. 30, 2019: After discussion, motion to approve CHECK REGISTER DATED 
APRIL 30, 2019 was made by Mayor Robertson and seconded by Council member Guerra. 
Motion carried with the following vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT: 

2. Approved 

Robertson, Guerra, Avalos, Trujillo, Franco 
None 
None 
None 

Consideration of a Memorandum of Understanding with Tutelian & 
Co., Inc. Regarding Potential Development of Community Park 
Infrastructure in Rockwell Pond 

City Manager Gallavan reported on the matter for Council. 

Mayor Pro Tern Franco motioned to table the matter for future discussion to allow more 
time to review the Memorandum of Understanding ("MOU"). The motion was seconded 
by Council member Trujillo but did not carry. 

At this point in the meeting, City Manager Gallavan continued to discuss the proposed 
MOU between Tutelian & Company Inc. and the City. 

Mr. CliffTutelian, Tutelian & Co., Inc. stepped forward to provide background information 
on the area as well as the request to coordinate efforts. He discussed his commitment to the 
City and the need to provide synergy with the potential park on the perimeter of Rockwell 
Pond. 

After discussion, motion was made by Council member Avalos and seconded by Council 
member Guerra to approve the Memorandum of Understanding with Tutelian & Co., Inc. 
Regarding Potential Development of Community Park amenities around or at Rockwell 
Pond. Motion was carried by the following vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT: 

Avalos, Guerra, Robertson 
Trujillo, Franco 
None 
None 



City of Selma
Regular City Cowrcil Meaing
May 6, 2019
Page 4

Aporoved Consideration of Professional Services Agreements with QK Inc. and
Rincon Consultants, Inc. for On-call Planning Services

City Manager Gallavan reported that staffissued request for proposals (RFP) on March l,
2019, for on-call planning services and received five responses. She stated that after a panel
review and references checking, staff is recommending contracts with both QK and Rincon.

QK would be the primary for day+o-day services with Rincon providing on-call support
when needed.

Mr. Steve Brandt and Ms. Kira Noguera, regesenting QK stepped forward to introduce
themselves to Council.

After Council discussion, Council member Trujillo moved to approve the agreements and
authorize the City Manager to execute the agreements for On-call Planning Services with
QK. Inc. and Rincon Consultants. The motion was seconded by Council member Avalos,
and carried with the following vote:

4. Aoproved Consideration of a Professional Services Agreement with National
Demographics Corporation for services related to district elections;
and Appropriation ofFunds from the General Fund

City Manager Gallavan reported that at the request of Council, staff contacted three fums
for proposals to assist the City with districting services. She further reported that National
Demographics Corporation provided a responsive proposal and recommended that Council
approve the professional services agreement not to exceed $t14,750.00.

After discussion, motion was made Council member Trujillo and seconded by Council
member Guerra to AUTHORIZE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A PROFESSIONAL
SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH NATIONAL DEMOGRAPHICS CORPORATION
NOT TO EXCEED W,750 TO PROVIDE A WORKSHOP ON DISTRICT
ELECTIONS AND POTENTIAL DEMOGRAPHIC AND DISTRICTING SERVICES.
Motion carried with the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

Trujillo, Avalos, Guerra, Franco, Robertson
None
None
None

Trujillo, Guerra, Avalos, Franco, Robertson
None
None
None

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 5

City o/Selma 
Regular City Council Meeting 
May 6, 2019 
Page 4 

3. Approved Consideration of Professional Services Agreements with QK Inc. and 
Rincon Consultants, Inc. for On-call Planning Services 

City Manager Gallavan reported that staff issued request for proposals (RFP) on March 1, 
2019, for on-call planning services and received five responses . She stated that after a panel 
review and references checking, staff is recommending contracts with both QK and Rincon. 
QK would be the primary for day-to-day services with Rincon providing on-call support 
when needed. 

Mr. Steve Brandt and Ms. Kira Noguera, representing QK stepped forward to introduce 
themselves to Council. 

After Council discussion, Council member Trujillo moved to approve the agreements and 
authorize the City Manager to execute the agreements for On-call Planning Services with 
QK. Inc. and Rincon Consultants. The motion was seconded by Council member Avalos, 
and carried with the following vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT: 

4. Approved 

Trujillo, Avalos, Guerra, Franco, Robertson 
None 
None 
None 

Consideration of a Professional Services Agreement with National 
Demographics Corporation for services related to district elections; 
and Appropriation of Funds from the General Fund 

City Manager Gallavan reported that at the request of Council , staff contacted three firms 
for proposals to assist the City with districting services. She further reported that National 
Demographics Corporation provided a responsive proposal and recommended that Council 
approve the professional services agreement not to exceed $44,750.00. 

After discussion, motion was made Council member Trujillo and seconded by Council 
member Guerra to AUTHORIZE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH NATIONAL DEMOGRAPHICS CORPORATION 
NOT TO EXCEED $44,750 TO PROVIDE A WORKSHOP ON DISTRICT 
ELECTIONS AND POTENTIAL DEMOGRAPHIC AND DISTRICTING SERVICES. 
Motion carried with the following vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT: 

Trujillo, Guerra, Avalos, Franco, Robertson 
None 
None 
None 



City of Selma
Regular City Coarnil Meeting
May 6, 2019
Page 5

DEPARTMENT REPORTS: City Managff Gallavan reported that the memo regarding
the planning project list would be issued on a monthly basis. Assistant City Attomey Casso
also discussed the project list and the due process rights for any projects placed on the
memo.

Mayor Robertson inquired on the ambulance programs. Assistant City Manager Moreno
stated that he would provide information regarding the mandated ambulance program to
Council.

Acting Public Works Diredor Ferrell thanked everyone for attending the ribbon cutting for
the transit bus shelter and discussed the status ofthe Ringo park restroom project.

Fire Chief Petersen reported on the health and wellness program participation. He also
discussed upcoming training and the request from the City of Kingsburg for a shared
services agreement for the fire marshal position.

Police Chief Gamer discussed the security during the Raisin Festival.

Community Services Director Kirchner thanked Council for recogrrizing the volunteers and
reported on grants for recreation.

COIJNCIL REPORTS: Council member Trujillo reported on attending the National Day
of Prayer and thanked Chief Gamer for the information requested regarding the
preventative violence program.

Council member Guerra reported on attending the following: United Health Care Gala,
transit bus shelter and Bell's Kenpo Karate ribbon cuttings, and National Day of Prayer.

Council member Avalos reported on attending the transit bus shelter ribbon cutting, recent
Democratic dhner event, and T-Mobile meeting in Kingsburg. He also discussed the
upcoming Selma Kingsburg Fowler County Sanitation ('SKF") District meeting. Council
requested a rate workhop from SKF staff at a future meeting.

Mayor Pro Tem Franco reported on an upcoming Kings Water Basin Authority Board
meeting and attending a recent Five Cities meeting.

Mayor Robertson reported on attending the following: transit bus shelter and Bell's Kenpo
Karate ribbon cuttings, meeting with County Board of Supervisor Mendes, Chamber mixer,
United Health Center fundraiser, T-Mobile meeting in Kingsburg, Chamber queen

coronation ceremony, Fresno WiId Life and Rehabilitation fundraiser, Cog meeting, and
volunteering at Second Chance Animal Shelter and rabies vaccination clinic. He inquired
about a community rally, an abandoned house, and debris on Golden State Boulevard.

Assistant City Manager Moreno discussed the received 2077 -TS lntergovemmental Transfer
("IGT) program payments and a new mandated ambulance program for Council.

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 6

City of Selma 
Regular City Council Meeting 
May 6, 2019 
Page 5 

DEPARTMENT REPORTS: City Manager Gallavan reported that the memo regarding 
the planning project list would be issued on a monthly basis. Assistant City Attorney Casso 
also discussed the project list and the due process rights for any projects placed on the 
memo. 

Assistant City Manager Moreno discussed the received 2017-18 Intergovernmental Transfer 
("IGT") program payments and a new mandated ambulance program for Council. 

Mayor Robertson inquired on the ambulance programs. Assistant City Manager Moreno 
stated that he would provide information regarding the mandated ambulance program to 
Council. 

Acting Public Works Director Fertell thanked everyone for attending the ribbon cutting for 
the transit bus shelter and discussed the status of the Ringo park restroom project. 

Fire Chief Petersen reported on the health and wellness program participation. He also 
discussed upcoming training and the request from the City of Kingsburg for a shared 
services agreement for the fire marshal position. 

Police Chief Gamer discussed the security during the Raisin Festival. 

Community Services Director Kirchner thanked Council for recognizing the volunteers and 
reported on grants for recreation. 

COUNCIL REPORTS: Council member Trujillo reported on attending the National Day 
of Prayer and thanked Chief Gamer for the information requested regarding the 
preventative violence program. 

Council member Guerra reported on attending the following: United Health Care Gala, 
transit bus shelter and Bell's Kenpo Karate ribbon cuttings, and National Day of Prayer. 

Council member Avalos reported on attending the transit bus shelter ribbon cutting, recent 
Democratic dinner event, and T-Mobile meeting in Kingsburg. He also discussed the 
upcoming Selma Kingsburg Fowler County Sanitation ("SKF") District meeting. Council 
requested a rate workshop from SKF staff at a future meeting. 

Mayor Pro Tern Franco reported on an upcoming Kings Water Basin Authority Board 
meeting and attending a recent Five Cities meeting. 

Mayor Robertson reported on attending the following: transit bus shelter and Bell's Kenpo 
Karate ribbon cuttings, meeting with County Board of Supervisor Mendes, Chamber mixer, 
United Health Center fundraiser , T-Mobile meeting in Kingsburg, Chamber queen 
coronation ceremony, Fresno Wild Life and Rehabilitation fundraiser , Cog meeting, and 
volunteering at Second Chance Animal Shelter and rabies vaccination clinic. He inquired 
about a community rally, an abandoned house, and debris on Golden State Boulevard. 



City of Selma
Regular City Council Meaiq
May 6, 2019
Page 6

ORAL COMMUMCATIONS: Mr. Bob Allen, Selma District Chamber of Corrmerce
Executive Director, stepped forward to extend an invitation to the upcoming mixer and
ribbon cuning. He also thanked Council for thet support during the Raisin Festival.

ADJOITRNMENT: There being no further business, the meeting was adjoumed at 8:54
p.m.

Respectfully submined,

Reyna Rivera
City Clerk

Scott Robertson
Mayor of the City of Selma

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 7

City of Selma 
Regular City Council Meeting 
May 6. 2019 
Page 6 
ORAL COMMUNICATIONS: Mr. Bob Allen, Selma District Chamber of Commerce 
Executive Director, stepped forward to extend an invitation to the upcoming mixer and 
ribbon cutting. He also thanked Council for their support during the Raisin Festival. 

ADJOURNMENT: There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 8:54 
p.m. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Reyna Rivera 
City Clerk 

Scott Robertson 
Mayor of the City of Selma 



CITY MANAGER'S/STAIryS REPORT
CITY COI,JNCIL MEETING:

ITEMNO:

SLJBJECT: Consideration of a Resolution approving the updated Fresno County Multi-
Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan to enable the plans final approval in accordance with
the requirements of the Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000

BACKGROIJND: The Disaster Mitigarion Act of 2000 @ublic Law 106-390) and the
implementing regulations set forth by the Interim Final Rule published in the Federal
Register on February 26,2002, (44 CFR $201.6) and furalized on October 31, 2007, require
that a Local Hazard Mitigation Plan ("LHMP") be prepared before a disaster to guide risk
reduction activities prior to an event.

The City participated in the originat planning process in 2007 -2008 with Council adopting
Resolution No. 2009-60R, approving the Fresno County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard
Mitigation Plan and City of Selma Local Hazatd Mitigation Plan Annex on October 5,

2009.

DISCUSSION: The purpose of hazard mitigation is to reduce or eliminate long-term risk to
people and property from hazards. Fresno County along with other participating
jurisdictions developed this multi-jurisdictional LHMP to make the County and its residents

less vulnerable to furure hazard events. This plan was prepared pusuant to the

requirements of the Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000, so that Fresno County would be

eligible for the Federal Emergency Management Agency's ("FEIUI") Hazard Mitigation
Assistance Grants, including Pre-Disaster Mitigation a11d Hazard Mitigation Grant
programs as well as lower flood insurance premiums (in jurisdictions that participate in the

National Flood Insurance Program's Community Rating System).

The local plan was originally developed in 2007-2008 and FEMA approved in 2009. The
plan was comprehensively updated :di,2017-2018 with FEMA approval February 2019. The

County followed a planning process in aligrrment with FEMA guidance during its original
development and update, which began with the formation of a hazard mitigation planning

committee comprised of key county, city, and district representatives and other

stakeholders. The City was represented on the committee by an Administrative Analyst and

Police Lieutenant along with the support of other city staff.

City staff conducted a risk assessment that identified and profiled hazards that pose a risk to
the City, assessed the City's vulnerability to these hazards, and examined the capabilities in
place to mitigate them. The City, along with Fresno County is vulnerable to several hazards

that are identified, profiled, and analyzed in this plan. Floods, severe weather, &ought, and

agricultural hazards are among the hazards that can have a significant impact on the City.
The local findings are represented as part ofthe overall hazard mitigation plan.

Information in this plan will be used to help guide and coordinate mitigation activities and

decisions for local land use policy in the future. Proactive mitigation planning will help

reduce the cost ofdisaster response and recovery to communities and their residents by
protecting critical community facilities, reducing liability exposule, and minimizing overall

June 3, 2019

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 8

CITY MANAGER'S/STAFF'S REPORT 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING: 

ITEM NO: 

June 3, 2019 

SUBJECT: Consideration of a Resolution approving the updated Fresno County Multi
Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan to enable the plans final approval in accordance with 
the requirements of the Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 

BACKGROUND: The Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 (public Law 106-390) and the 
implementing regulations set forth by the Interim Final Rule published in the Federal 
Register on February 26, 2002, (44 CFR §201.6) and finalized on October 31 , 2007, require 
that a Local Hazard Mitigation Plan ("LHMP") be prepared before a disaster to guide risk 
reduction activities prior to an event. 

The City participated in the original planning process in 2007-2008 with Council adopting 
Resolution No. 2009-60R, approving the Fresno County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard 
Mitigation Plan and City of Selma Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Annex on October 5, 
2009. 

DISCUSSION: The purpose of hazard mitigation is to reduce or eliminate long-term risk to 
people and property from hazards. Fresno County along with other participating 
jurisdictions developed this multi-jurisdictional LHMP to make the County and its residents 
less vulnerable to future hazard events. This plan was prepared pursuant to the 
requirements of the Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000, so that Fresno County would be 
eligible for the Federal Emergency Management Agency's ("FEMA") Hazard Mitigation 
Assistance Grants, including Pre-Disaster Mitigation and Hazard Mitigation Grant 
programs as well as lower flood insurance premiums (in jurisdictions that participate in the 
National Flood Insurance Program's Community Rating System). 

The local plan was originally developed in 2007-2008 and FEMA approved in 2009. The 
plan was comprehensively updated in 2017-2018 with FEMA approval February 2019. The 
County followed a planning process in alignment with FEMA guidance during its original 
development and update, which began with the formation of a hazard mitigation planning 
committee comprised of key county, city, and district representatives and other 
stakeholders. The City was represented on the committee by an Administrative Analyst and 
Police Lieutenant along with the support of other city staff. 

City staff conducted a risk assessment that identified and profiled hazards that pose a risk to 
the City, assessed the City's vulnerability to these hazards, and examined the capabilities in 
place to mitigate them. The City, along with Fresno County is vulnerable to several hazards 
that are identified, profiled, and analyzed in this plan. Floods, severe weather, drought, and 
agricultural hazards are among the hazards that can have a significant impact on the City. 
The local findings are represented as part of the overall hazard mitigation plan. 

Information in this plan will be used to help guide and coordinate mitigation activities and 
decisions for local land use policy in the future. Proactive mitigation planning will help 
reduce the cost of disaster response and recovery to communities and their residents by 
protecting critical community facilities , reducing liability exposure, and minimizing overall 

reynar
Typewritten Text
1.B.



community impacts and disruptions. The Fresno County planning area has been affected
by hazards in the past and is committed to reducing future impacts fromhazard events and
becoming eligible for mitigation-related federal funding.

In the plan, the City is identified as Annex J. Within this annex are general details about
the City, specific data and review ofidentified hazards, and mitigation capabilities. This
plan will also need to be adopted by reference into the Safety Element of the General Plan
2035 in accordance with the requirements of AB2140, the Planning and Zoning Law that
requires a city to include a safety element in the General Plan.

RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Resolution approving the updated Fresno County Multi-
Jurisdictional Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Dated May 2018, including the City of Selma
LocalHazardMitigation Plan as set forth in Annex J.

Robert Petersen, Fire Chief

.14/1a4A,7L

Date

s-et-/?
Teresa Gallavan, City Manager Date

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 9

community impacts and disruptions. The Fresno County planning area has been affected 
by hazards in the past and is committed to reducing future impacts from hazard events and 
becoming eligible for mitigation-related federal funding. 

In the plan, the City is identified as Annex J. Within this annex are general details about 
the City, specific data and review of identified hazards, and mitigation capabilities. This 
plan will also need to be adopted by reference into the Safety Element of the General Plan 
2035 in accordance with the requirements of AB2140, the Planning and Zoning Law that 
requires a city to include a safety element in the General Plan. 

RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Resolution approving the updated Fresno County Multi
Jurisdictional Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Dated May 2018, including the City of Selma 
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan as set forth in Annex J. 

Robert Petersen, Fire Chief Date 

c:11ueaoa;<- S-B/-/9 
Teresa Gallavan, City Manager Date 

reynar
Typewritten Text
/s/							05/31/2019



RESOLUTION 2OI9- 

-R
ARESOLUTION OF TIIE CITYCOI.'NCIL OF TI{E CITY OF SELMA,
CALTFORNTA, ADOPTING TIIE FRESNO COUNTY MLJLTT-JURTSDTCTTONAL
IIAZARD MITIGATTON PLAN, INCLUDING THE CITY OF SELMA LOCAL
HAZARD MIIIGATION PLAN, AS SET FORTII IN ANNEX J

WIIEREAS, the United States Congress passed the Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000
("Disaster Mitigation Act") emphasizing the need for pre-disaster mitigation of potential
hazards; and

WIIEREAS, the City recognizes the consequences of disasters and the need to
reduce the impacts of natural and human caused hazards; and

WHEREAS, underaking hazard mitigation actions will reduce the potential for
harm to people and property from future hazard occurrences; and

WIIEREAS, the County of Fresno, as the lead agel:,cy, n2017-2018 updated the

Fresno County Multi-Jurisdictioral HazardMitigation Plan; and

'WIIEREAS, adoption of the Federal Emergency Management Agency ("FEMA")
approved Local Hazard Mitigation Plan ('LHMP) establishes eligibility for the City to
pursue hazard mitigation gant funding.

NOW, TIIEREFORE, THE CITY COT'NCIL OF THE CITY OF SELMA
DOES HEREBYRESOLVE AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 2. The City Council hereby adopts the Fresno Counry Multi-
Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan and City of Selma Local Hazatd Mitigation Plan

Annex J, attached hereto as Exhibit A, and incorporated herein by reference.

SECTION 3. The provisions of this Resolution are severable and if any provision,

clause, sentence, word or part thereof is held itlegal, invalid, unconstitutional, or
inapplicable to any person or circumstances, such illegality, invalidity, unconstitutionality,
or inapplicability shall not affect or impair any of the remaining provisions, clauses,

sentences, sections, words or parts thereof of the Resolution or their applicability to other
persons or circumstances.

SECT ION 4. That the City Clerk shall certiff to the adoption ofthis Resolution and

that the same shall be in full force and efifect.

SECTION 1. The above recitals are true and correct and are incorporated herein by

reference.

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 10

RESOLUTION 2019-_R 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SELMA, 
CALIFORNIA, ADOPTING THE FRESNO COUNTY MUL TI-JURlSDICTIONAL 
HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN, INCLUDING THE CITY OF SELMA LOCAL 
HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN, AS SET FORTH IN ANNEX J 

WHEREAS, the United States Congress passed the Disaster Mitigation Act of2000 
(HDisaster Mitigation Act") emphasizing the need for pre-disaster mitigation of potential 
hazards; and 

WHEREAS, the City recognizes the consequences of disasters and the need to 
reduce the impacts of natural and human caused hazards; and 

WHEREAS, undertaking hazard mitigation actions will reduce the potential for 
harm to people and property from future hazard occurrences; and 

WHEREAS, the County of Fresno, as the lead agency, in 201 7-2018 updated the 
Fresno County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan; and 

WHEREAS, adoption of the Federal Emergency Management Agency (HFEMA") 
approved Local Hazard Mitigation Plan (HLHMP") establishes eligibility for the City to 
pursue hazard mitigation grant funding. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SELMA 
DOES HEREBY RESOL VB AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. The above recitals are true and correct and are incorporated herein by 
reference. 

SECTION 2. The City Council hereby adopts the Fresno County Multi
Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan and City of Selma Local Hazard Mitigation Plan 
Annex J, attached hereto as Exhibit A, and incorporated herein by reference. 

SECTION 3. The provisions of this Resolution are severable and if any provision, 
clause, sentence, word or part thereof is held illegal, invalid, unconstitutional, or 
inapplicable to any person or circumstances, such illegality, invalidity, unconstitutionality, 
or inapplicability shall not affect or impair any of the remaining provisions, clauses, 
sentences, sections, words or parts thereof of the Resolution or their applicability to other 
persons or circumstances. 

SECTION 4. That the City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this Resolution and 
that the same shall be in full force and effect. 



PASSED, APPROYED AND ADOPTED this 3'd day of June,2019, by the following
vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

COUNCILMEMBERS:
COUNCILMEMBERS:
COI.'NCIL MEMBERS:
COIJNCIL MEMBERS:

Scott Robertson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Reyna Rivera, City Clerk

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 11

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 3rd day of June, 2019, by the following 
vote: 

AYES: COUNCIL MEMBERS: 
NOES: COUNCIL MEMBERS: 
ABSTAIN: COUNCIL MEMBERS: 
ABSENT: COUNCIL MEMBERS: 

Scott Robertson, Mayor 

ArrEST: 

Reyna Rivera, City Clerk 



CO

RE

Fresno County Multi-J urisd ictional
Hazard Mitigation Plan

May 2018

I

Ir
amec
foster
wheeler

rT:!F IA
,atI

'*"1.
i

L-

'ra>-

t &:.
, ,I

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 12

Fresno County Multi-Jurisdictional 
Hazard Mitigation Plan 

May 2018 

amec 
foster 
wheeler 



Fresno County M u lti-J urisd ictional
Hazard Mitigation Plan

May 2018

amec
foster
wheeter

LzreottlELon.l.d'an, IlEArmchn.E&|d.. Fu.tt mchatrexglo..Lcdlcalifsnia/saaarational-torcst
S2n J.aqlih Vall.y Agricultu.l Lands. Lmdei.. buys 757 acr.s of orchards h sah ..loaquh valley, srafi Repo.t, Thursday. Dec.mb.r 3. 2015, htrpi//wy
a.6-ot-dch.rdiin€n-icquiMlley/
Clovi. Fro.dinA. AAC 30 Ns. htto: //ab.30.cm/.ews/oap-udespread-noodinr.eported-on-the+as1-s.deot-l.esno-ad{tw':/1699/91
Wildt.., Si.rra Ns Online. https://sieanewsdlin. com/*rrdfr.'injres.o-.ounty-promptsneafth€utrd-/

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 13

Fresno County Multi-Jurisdictional 
Hazard Mitigation Plan 

Cover Photo Credtts' 

May 2018 

amec 
foster 
wheeler 

Lake of the Lone IndIan. The ArmchaIr Explorer. _w.thearmcha,rexplore r.com/ cahfonlla/s'erra-naIJonal-lores t 

San .JoaquIn VaUey Agnculturallimds. L,mone"a buys 757 acres of orchards In San Joaquin Valley. Staff Report. Thursday. December 3. 2015. hltps;/l_w.pacblztlmes.com/ 2:015/12/ 03/Iimonelfil·buys-757-
ilcres-of-Ofchards-tn-san-joaqum-valleyl 

Clo .... s Flooding, ABC 30 News, http.llatx:30.com/ne .... s/map-wodespread-floodmg-reported·oo-the-east·slde-of-lre!NIo'and-c!ol/ls/16994 71 

Wildfire. Sierra News Online. https:/ls,erranewsonline.com/ wlktfire-In·fresno-counly-prompls-health-cautlOnl 
Fresno County Line. Geocachrng, https:lI_w.geocach,n8.com/ geocache/GC22XSQ_fresno-monterer-co-I,ne-pt,est-yalley-ouadr angle ?gu.d=9bc54552-7fc5-48ac-ad4a-23e5851c90b9 



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The purpose of hazard mitigation is to reduce or eliminate long-term risk to people and property
from hazards. Fresno Counlr and the other participating jurisdictions developed this multi-
jurisdictional hazard mitigation plan to make the County and its residents less !,ulnerable to
future hazard events. This plan was prepared pursuant to the requirements of the Disaster
Mitigation Act of 2000 so that Fresno County would be eligible for the Federal Emergency
Management Agency's (FEMA) Hazard Mitigation Assistance Grants. including Pre-Disaster
Mitigation and Hazard Mitigation Grant programs as well as lower flood insurance premiums (in
jurisdictions that participate in the National Flood Insurance Program's Community Rating
System).

Based on the risk assessment. the HMPC identified goals and objectives for reducing the

County's lulnerability to hazards. To meet identified goals and objectives, the plan recommends

a number of mitigation actions that include actions specific to each participating jurisdiction.

This plan has been formally adopted by the County and the participating jurisdictions and will be

updated every five years at a minimum.

MultiJurisdictional Ha"rrd Mitigalion Plan

The plan was originally developed in 2007-2008 and FEMA approved in 2009. The plan was

comprehensively updated in 2017-2018. The County followed a planning process in alignment
with FEMA guidance during its original development and update. which began with the
formation of a hazard mitigation planning committee (HMPC) comprised of key county. city,
and district representatives and other stakeholders. The HMPC conducted a risk assessment that
identified and profiled hazards that pose a risk to Fresno County, assessed the County's
vulnerability to these hazards, and examined the capabilities in place to mitigate them. The

County is wlnerable to several hazards that are identified. profiled, and analyzed in this plan.

Floods, wildfires. severe weather, drought, and agricultural hazards are among the hazards that

can have a significant impact on the County.

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 14

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The purpose of hazard mitigation is to reduce or eliminate long-term risk to people and property 
from hazards. Fresno County and the other participating jurisdictions developed this multi
jurisdictional hazard mitigation plan to make the County and its residents less vulnerable to 
future hazard events. This plan was prepared pursuant to the requirements of the Disaster 
Mitigation Act of 2000 so that Fresno County would be eligible for the Federal Emergency 
Management Agency' s (FEMA) Hazard Mitigation Assistance Grants. including Pre-Disaster 
Mitigation and Hazard Mitigation Grant programs as well as lower flood insurance premiums (in 
jurisdictions that participate in the National Flood Insurance Program's Community Rating 
System). 

The plan was originally developed in 2007-2008 and FEMA approved in 2009. The plan was 
comprehensively updated in 2017-2018. The County followed a planning process in alignment 
with FEMA guidance during its original development and update, which began with the 
formation of a hazard mitigation planning committee (HMPC) comprised of key county, city, 
and district representatives and other stakeholders. The HMPC conducted a risk assessment that 
identified and profiled hazards that pose a risk to Fresno County, assessed the County ' s 
vulnerability to these hazards, and examined the capabilities in place to mitigate them. The 
County is vulnerable to several hazards that are identified, profiled, and analyzed in this plan. 
Floods, wildfires, severe weather, drought, and agricultural hazards are among the hazards that 
can have a significant impact on the County. 

Based on the risk assessment, the HMPC identified goals and objectives for reducing the 
County 's vulnerability to hazards. To meet identified goals and objectives, the plan recommends 
a number of mitigation actions that include actions specific to each participating jurisdiction. 
This plan has been formally adopted by the County and the participating jnrisdictions and will be 
npdated every five years at a minimum. 

Fresno County 
Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan 



Chapters

I Introduction
l.l Purpose
1.2 Backgrou[d and Scope

1.3 Plan Organization
I ll I Jurisdictioial Annexes

2 Communilv Profile
2.1 History
2.2 Ceograph!, and Climate
2.3 Ecoltomy
2.4 Populatioo
2.5 Developmcni Trends

3 Planning Process
3.1 Background otr Ntitigrtiotr Phnning in Fresno Colttr(v

3.2 rfr'hat's New ir the Plan Update
3.3 Local Governmert Prrticipation
3.4 The l0-Step Planning Process

3.4.1 Phase l: Or-sanize Resources

3.4.2 Phasc 2: Assess fusks

3.4-3 Pha-se 3: Develop the Ntitigation Plan

3.2.4 Phasc .l: lmplement the Plan and Monitor Progrcss

4 Risk Assessment
4-l Hezrrd ldentificetion: Neturel Eezards

4.1. t Methodology and Results

4.I .2 Disast€r Declaration History

4.2 Hrzard Profiles
4.2. I Agricultural Hazards

4.2.2 Avalanche

4.2.3 Dam Failure

4.2.4 Drought

4.2.5 Earthquake

4.2.6 Flood
4.2.7 Human Healrh Hazards: Epidcmic/Pandemic

4.2.8 Human Health Hazards: West Nile Virus

4.2.9 Landslide
4.2.10 Soil Hazards

4.2.1| Soil Hazards: Expansive Soils
4.2.t 2 Soil Hazards: Land Subsidence

4 2- 13 Severe weather: General

4.2.14 Severe Weather: Extreme TemPeralures

4.2.15 Severe Weathsr: Fog

4.2.I6 Severe Weather: Heary Rain/Thunderstorm/Hail/Lightning^ ind

4 2- 17 Severe Weather: Winter Slorm

4.2.18 Severe Weather: Tomado

4.2-19 Volcano

l.l
t.t
t.l
t.3
1.,1

2.1
2.1

2.2

2.2

2.6

2.7

3.t
3.t
l.l
3.4

1.6
i.7

,1. l7
l. l8
l.t9

4.1
1.2
4.2
4.5

4.t
4.t0
4.r 5

4.16
4.ll
4.32
4.48
4.'7',1

4.81

4.84
4.88
4.95

4.98

4.102

4.t05
4.1t3
.l.l I8
4.l]9
4.t l2
4.t36

\rukr-Jurisdicttunrl HaTard MitiBadon Plan

l

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 15

Chapters 

I Introduction 
1.1 Purpose 

1.2 Background a nd Scope 
1.3 Plan Organization 

1.3.1 Jurisdictional Annexes 

2 Community Profile 
2.1 History 

2.2 Geography and C1imare 
2.3 [conomy 

2.4 Population 

2.5 Development Trends 

3 Planning Process 
3. 1 Ba ckground on Mitigation Planning in Fresno County 
3.2 What 's New in the Plan Update 
3.3 Local Government Participation 
3..1 The IO-Step Planning Process 

3.4. 1 Phase 1: Organize Resources 
3.4.2 Phase 2: Assess Risks 

3.4.3 Phase 3: Develop the Mitigation Plan 

3.2.4 Phase 4 : rmplement the Plan and Monitor Progress 

4 Risk Assessment 
4.1 Hazard Identification: atural Hazards 

4. 1. 1 Melhodology and Results 

4 . 1.1 Disaster Declaration History 
4.2 Hazard Profiles 

4 .2.1 Ah'Ticulnlral Hazards 

4 .2.2 Avalanche 

4 .2.3 Dam Failure 

4 .2.4 Drouglu 
4 .2.5 Eanhquake 

4 .2.6 Flood 

4 .1.7 lIuman Health Hazards: Epidemic/Pandemic 
4 .2.8 Human Health Hazards: \Vest Nile Virus 

4 .2.9 Landslide 
4 .2.10 Soil Hazards 

4 .2. 11 Soil Hazards: Expansi"e Soils 
4 .2. 12 Soil Hazards: Land Subsidence 
4 .2. 13 Severe Weather: General 
4 .2.14 Severe Weather: Extreme Temperatures 

4.2.15 Severe Weather: Fog 
4.2. 16 Severe Wealher: (·Ieavy RainrrhunderstomlfHailllighming/\Vind 
~ . 2.17 Severe Weather: Winter 510nn 
4.2. 18 Sl.!vt!re Weather: Tornado 
4.2. 19 Volcano 

Fres no County 
\l ulu·JurisdicllunJ.l rl J.7J.rd \1 itigal1on Plan 

1.1 
1.1 

1.1 
1.3 

1.3 

2.1 
2.1 
2.2 

2.2 
2.6 
2.7 

3.1 
3.1 

3.1 
3.4 

3.6 
3.7 

3.17 
3.1 
3. 19 

4.1 
4.2 

4 .2 

4.5 
4.8 

4. 10 
4. 15 

4.16 

4.13 
4.32 

4.48 
4.77 

4 .8 1 
4 .84 

4 .88 

4 .95 
4.98 

4.102 

4 .105 
4.113 
4.118 

4 .119 
4 .132 
4 .136 



4.2.20 Wildfire
4.3 Vulnerability Assessment

4.3. I Fresno County Vulnerabiliry and Assets at R isk
4.3.2 Vuherabilitl ofFresno Couuy to Specific Hazards

4.4 Human-Crused Hrz.rds
4.4. I Hazard Identification and Profiles: Human-Causcd Hazards
4..1.2 Asser Inventory and Vulnerability ,Assessment

.1.5 Fresno Countv's ltlitigation Capabilities
4.5.1 Fresno County's Regulatory Mitigation Capabilities
4.5.2 Fresno County's Administrative,Technical Mitigation Capabilities
4.5.3 Fresno Counry's Fiscal lUiligation Capabilities

5 Mitigation Strategy
5.1 Goals and Objectives
5.2 ldentilication and Aralysis ofNlitigation Actions

5.2. I Prioritization Process

5.3 Mitigation Action Plan
5.3.1 Progress on Previous Mitigation Actions
53.2 Llpdated Mitigalion Action Plan

6 Plan Adoption

7 Plan Implementation and Maintenance
7.1 lmplementation

7.I .l Role of Hazard Mitigation Planning Committee in Implementation and Maintenance

7.2 Maintenance^lonitoring
7.2. I Maintenance/Monitorirg Schedule

7.2.2 Maintelance Evaluation Process

7.2.1 lncorporatioo into Existing Planning Mechanisms

7.2.4 Continued Public Involvement

Annexes

4.143

4.r55
4.156

4.189

1.248
4.248

1.262
4.266
4.266
4.290
4.296

5.1
5.1

5.4

5.6

5.7
5.8

5.10

6.1

1.t
7.1

1.2

7.3

7.3

f.i
7.5

7.6

Annex A: Cit-v of Clovis
Annex B: City of Coalinga
Annex C: Cit_v of Firebaugh
Annex D: Cit-v of Fowler
Annex E: Citl of Fresno
Annex F: City of Kerman
Annex G: City of Kingsburg
.A.nnex H: Cit-v of Mendota
Annex I: Cit-v of Sanger
Annex J: Cilv of Selma
Annex K: City of Reedley
Annex L: Cilv of San Joaquin
Annex M: Fresno Metropolitan Flood Control District

vukr-Jurisdicrional tla2ard Nf itigarion Plan

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 16

4.2.20 Wildfire 

4.3 Vulnerabil it)' Assessment 
4.3 . 1 Fresno County Vulnerabi li ty and Assets at Risk 

4.3.2 Vulnerability of Fresno County 10 Specific Hazards 
4.4 Huma n-Caused Hazards 

4.4. 1 Hazard Identification and Profiles: Human-Caused Hazards 

4.4.2 Asset Inventory and Vulnerability Assessment 
4.5 Fresno Co unty ' s Mitigation Capa bilities 

4.5.1 Fresno Coun ty's Regulatory Mitigation Capabil ities 
4 .5.2 Fresno County's Adm inistrati ve/Technical Mitigation Capabilities 
4 .5.3 Fresno County 's Fiscal Mitigation Capabi li ties 

5 Mitigation Strategy 
5.1 Goals and Objectives 

5.2 Identification and Analysis of Mitigation Actions 
5.2. 1 Prioritization Process 

5.3 Mitigation Action Plan 
5.3. I Progress on Previous Mitigation Actions 
53 .2 Updated Mitigation Action Plan 

6 Plan Adoption 

7 Plan r mplementation and Maintenance 
7. 1 Implementation 

7.1.1 Role of Hazard Mitigation Plann ing Committet: in Implementation and Maintenance 
7.2 Maintenance/Monitoring 

7.2. 1 MaintenancelMonitoring Schedule 
7.2.2 Maintenance Evaluation Process 

7.2.3 Incorporation into Existing Planning Mechanisms 
7.2.4 Continued Publ ic Involvement 

Annexes 

Annex A: City of Clovis 
Annex B: City of Coalinga 
Annex C: City of Firebaugh 
Annex D: City of Fowler 
Annex E: City of Fresno 
Annex F: City of Kerman 
Annex G: City of Kingsburg 
Annex H: City of Mendota 
Annex I: City of Sanger 
Annex J: City of Selma 
Annex K: City of Reedley 
Annex L: City of San Joaquin 
Annex M: Fresno Metropolitan Flood Control District 

Fresno County 
Multi-Jurisdicthmal I-razard Mitigation Plan 

4.143 

4.155 
4 . 156 

4 .189 

4.248 
4 .248 

4.262 

4.266 
4 .266 

4 .290 

4.296 

5.1 
5.1 

5.4 
5.6 
5.7 
5.8 

5.10 

6.1 

7.1 
7. 1 

7. 2 
7.3 
7.3 

7.3 

7.5 
7.6 

3 



Annex N: Lower San Joaquin Levee District
Annex 0: Kings River Conservation District
Annex P: Sierra Resource Conservation District
Annex Q: !I'estlands Water District

Appendices
Appendix A: Adoption Resolutions
Appendix B: Hazard Mitigation Planning Committee
Appendix C: Mitigation Categories, Alternatives, and Selection Criteria
Appendix D: References
Appendix E: Planning Process

Fresno Countv
Multi-Jurisdicrioual Hazard Mitigation Plan

-l

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 17

Annex N: Lower San Joaquin Levee District 
Annex 0: Kings River Conservation District 
Annex P: Sierra Resource Conservation District 
Annex Q: Westlands Water District 

Appendices 
Appendix A: Adoption Resolutions 
Appendix B: Hazard Mitigation Planning Committee 
Appendix C: Mitigation Categories, Alternatives, and Selection Criteria 
Appendix D: References 
Appendix E: Planning Process 

Fresno County 
\Iulti-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan 



1 rrutnooucrtoN

1.1 Purpose

Fresno County, along wirh l7 participating jurisdictions, prepared this local multi-jurisdictional

hazard mitigation plan to better protect the people and property ofthe Counry from the effects of
hazard events. This plan underwenl a comprehensive update in 2017-2018 building upon the plan

that was originally developed in 2009. This plan demonstrates the community's commitment to

reducing risks fiom hazards and serves as a tool to help decision makers direct mitigation

activities and resources. This plan was also developed to make Fresno County and participating

jurisdictions eligible for certain federal disaster assistance, specifically. the Federal Emergency

Management Agency's (FEMA) Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP). Pre-Disaster

Mitigation (PDM) program. and Flood Mitigation Assistance (FMA). This plan also meets the

planning requirements of the National Flood Insurance Program's Community Rating System

(cRS), in order to earn points under cRS Activity 510, which could lower flood insurance

premiums in CRS communities.

1.2 Background and ScoPe

Each year in the United States, natural disasters take the lives of hundreds of people and injure

thousands more. Nationwide, taxpayers pay billions of dollars annually to help communities,

organizations, businesses, and individuals recover from disasters. These monies only partially

reflect the true cost of disasters, because additional expenses to insurance companies and

nongovemmental organizations are not reimbursed by tax dollars. Many natural disasters are

predictable, and much of the damage caused by these events can be alleviated or even eliminated

through planned mitigation.

Hazard mitigation is defined by FEMA as "any sustained action taken to reduce or eliminate

long-term risk to human life and property from a hazard event." The results of a three-year'

congressionally mandated independent study to assess future savings from mitigation activities

p.ouid., evidence that mitigation activities are highly cost-effective. on average, each dollar

ipent on mitigation saves society an average of$4 in avoided future losses in addition to saving

lives and preventing injuries (National Institute of Building Science Multi-Hazard Mitigation

Council 2005). An update to this report in 2017 (Nanual Hazard Mitigation Saves:2017 Interim

Report) indicates that mitigation $ants funded through select federal govemment agencies, on

ur.ruga, .un r"r" the nation $6 in future disaster costs. for every sl spent on hazard mitigation.

Hazard mitigation planning is the process through which hazards that threaten communities are

identified, likely impacts of those hazards are determined. mitigation goals are set' and

appropriate strategies to lessen impacts are determined, prioritized, and implemented. This plan

d*urrl"rrts Fresno Counry's hazard mitigation planning process, identifies relevant hazards and

Fresno Counry
yul{i-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan

ll

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 18

1 INTRODUCTION 

1.1 Purpose 

Fresno County, along with 17 participating jurisdictions, prepared this local multi-jurisdictional 
hazard mitigation plan to better protect the people and property of the County from the effects of 
hazard events. This plan underwent a comprehensive update in 2017-2018 building upon the plan 
that was originally developed in 2009. This plan demonstrates the community's commitment to 
reducing risks from hazards and serves as a tool to help decision makers direct mitigation 
activities and resources. This plan was also developed to make Fresno County and participating 
jurisdictions eligible for certain federal disaster assistance. specifically. the Federal Emergency 
Management Agency's (FEMA) Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP), Pre-Disaster 
Mitigation (PDM) program, and Flood Mitigation Assistance (FMA). This plan also meets the 
planning requirements of the ational Flood Insurance Program's Community Rating System 
(CRS), in order to eam points WIder CRS Activity 510, which could lower flood insurance 
premiums in CRS communities. 

1.2 Background and Scope 

Each year in the United States, natural disasters take the lives of hundreds of people and injure 
thousands more. Nationwide, taxpayers pay billions of dollars annually to help communities, 
organizations, businesses, and individuals recover from disasters. These monies only partially 
reflect the true cost of disasters, because additional expenses to insurance companies and 
nongovernmental organizations are not reimbursed by tlLX dollars. Many natural disasters are 
predictable, and much of the damage caused by these events can be alleviated or even eliminated 
through planned mitigation. 

Hazard mitigation is defined by FEMA as "any sustained action taken to reduce or eliminate 
long-term risk to human life and property from a hazard event." The results of a three-year, 
congressionally mandated independent study to assess future savings from mitigation activities 
provides evidence that mitigation activities are highly cost-effective. On average, each dollar 
spent on mitigation saves society an average of $4 in avoided future losses in addition to saving 
lives and preventing injuries (National Institute of Building Science Multi-Hazard Mitigation 
Council 2005). An update to this report in 2017 (Natural Hazard Mitigation Saves: 2017 Interim 
Report) indicates that mitigation grants funded through select federal govemment agencies, on 
average, can save the nation $6 in future disaster costs. for every S I spent on hazard mitigation. 

Hazard mitigation planning is the process through which hazards that threaten communities are 
identified, likely impacts of those hazards are determined. mitigation goals are set. and 
appropriate strategies to lessen impacts are determined, prioritized. and implemented. This plan 
documents Fresno County's hazard mitigation planning process, identifies relevant hazards and 

Fresno County 1.1 
Multi-lurisdiclional HOlZard Mitigalion Plan 



wlnerabilities, and provides strategies the County and parricipating jurisdictions will use ro
decrease vulnerability and increase resiliency and sustainability in Fresno County.

The Fresno County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan is a multi-jurisdictional plan that
geographically covers er.erything within Fresno County's jurisdictional boundaries (hereinafter
referred to as the planning area). Unincorporated Fresno County and the follorving communities
and special districts participated in the planning process; an asterisk '*' indicates jurisdictions
added to the plan during the 2017-2018 update:

. Ciry" of Clovis

. Cit_v of Coalinga

. Cit) of Firebaugh*

. City of Fowler+

. City of Fresno

. City of Kerman

. Cit-y of Kingsburg

. City of Mendota
o City of Reedley*
. City of San Joaquin*
. City of Sanger

. City of Selma

. Fresno Men'opolitan Flood Control District

. Lower San Joaquin Levee District

. Siera Resource Conservation Districr Highu'ay 168 Fire Safe Council
o Kings River Consen'ation District*
. Westlands Water District*

This plan was prepared pursuant to the requirements of the Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000

(Public Law 106-390) and the implementing regulations set forth by thc Interim Final Rule

publishcd in the Federal Regrsrer on February 26. 2002. (44 CFR Q201.6) and finalized on

October 31. 2007. (Hcrea{ler. these requircments and legulations rvill be referred to collectively

as the Disaster Mitigation Act.) While the act emphasized the need for mitigation plans and more

coordinated mitigation planning and implementation efforts, the regulations established the

requirements that local hazard mitigation plans must meet in order for a local jurisdiction to be

eligible 1br certain federal disaster assistance and hazard mitigation tirnding under the Robert T.

Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency Act (Public Larv 93-288). Because the Fresno County

planning area is subject to many kiuds of hazards. access to these programs is vital.

Inlbnnation in this plan will be used to help guide and coordinate mitigation activities and

decisions fbr local land use policy in the future. Proactive mitigation planning will help reduce

the cost of disaster response and recovery to communities and their residents by protecting

clitical communiry facilities, reducing liability exposure. and minimizing overall community

Vulti-JurisdrcrioDal Hazlrd Mariga.ion Plan

tl

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 19

vulnerabilities, and provides strategies the County and panicipating jurisdictions will use to 
decrease vulnerability and increase resiliency and sustainability in Fresno County. 

The Fresno County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan is a multi -jurisdictional plan that 
geographically covers everything within Fresno County's jurisdictional boundaries (hereinafter 

referred to as the planning area). Unincorporated Fresno County and the following communities 
and special districts participated in the planning process; an asterisk .• ' indicates jurisdictions 
added to the plan during the 20 I 7-20 I 8 update: 

• City of Clovis 

• City of Coalinga 

• City of Firebaugh' 

• City of Fowler' 

• City of Fresno 

• City of Kcrrnan 

• City of Kingsburg 

• City of Mendota 

• City of Reedley' 

• City of San Joaquin' 

• City of Sanger 

• City of Selma 

• Fresno Metropolitan Flood Control District 

• Lower San Joaquin Levee District 

• Sierra Resource Conservation DistrictlHighway 168 Fire Safe Council 

• Kings River Conservation District' 

• Westlands Water District' 

This plan was prepared pursuant to the requirements of the Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 

(Public Law 106-390) and the implementing regulations set forth by the Interim Final Rule 
published in the Federal Register on Febmary 26. 2002. (44 CFR §20I.6) and finalized on 

October 3 I. 2007. (Hereafter, these requirements and regulations will be referred to collectively 
as tbe Disaster Mitigation Act.) While the act emphasized the need for mitigation plans and more 
coordinated mitigation planning and implementation efforts, the regulations established the 

requirements that local hazard mitigation plans must meet in order for a local jurisdiction to be 
eligible for certain federal disaster assistance and hazard mitigation funding under the Robert T. 
Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency Act (Public Law 93-288). Because the Fresno County 
planning area is subject to many kinds of hazards. access to these programs is vital. 

Infonnalion in this plan will be used to help guide and coordinate mitigation activities and 
decisi ons for local land use policy in the future . Proactive mitigation planning will help reduce 
the cost of disaster response and recovery to communities and their residents by protecting 
critical community facilities , reducing liability exposure, and minimizing overall community 

Fr.:sno County 1.2 
\Iulti-lunsdtctlonal IIazard Mitigation Plan 



impacts and disruptions. The Fresno County planning area has been affected by hazards in the

past and is thus committed to reducing furure impacts from hazard events and becoming eligible

for mitigation-related federal funding.

1.3 Plan Organization

Thc Frcsno Count)- Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan is organized as follows

o Chapter 2: Community Profile
o Chapter 3: Planning Process

. Chapter 4: Risk Assessment

. Chapter 5: Mitigation Strategy

. Chapter 6: Plan Adoption

. Chapter 7: Plan lmplementation and Maintenance

o JurisdictionalAnnexes
. Appendices

1.3.1 Jurisdictional Annexes

Each jurisdiction participating in this plan developed its own armex, which provides a more

detailed assessment of the jurisdiction's unique risks as well as their mitigation strategy to reduce

long-term losses. Each jurisdictional annex contains the following:

. CommuniU profile summarizing geography and climate, history, economy. and population:

. Hazard risk information for geographically specific hazards or unique vulnerabilities;

. Hazard map(s) at an appropriate scale for the jurisdiction, ifavailable:

. Number and value ofbuildings, critical facilities. and other community assets located in

hazard areas. if available;

. Vulnerability information in terms of future glowth and development in hazard areas;

. A capabiliry assessment describing existing regulatory. administrative, technical, and fiscal

resources and tools as well as outreach efforts and partnerships and past mitigation projecs;

and

o Mitigation actions specific to the jurisdiction.

Vuki-Jurisdrctional Hazard Miligation PIan

li

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 20

impacts and disruptions . The Fresno County planning area has been affected by hazards in the 

past and is thus committed to reducing future impacts from hazard events and becoming eligible 
for mitigation-related federal funding . 

1.3 Plan Organization 

The Frcsno County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan is organized as follows : 

• Chapter 2: Community Profile 

• Chapter 3: Planning Process 

• Chapter 4: Risk Assessment 

• Chapter 5: Mitigation Strategy 

• Chapter 6: Plan Adoption 

• Chapter 7: Plan Implementation and Maintenance 

• Jurisdictional Annexes 

• Appendices 

1.3.1 Jurisdictional Annexes 

Each jurisdiction participating in this plan developed its own annex. which provides a more 

detailed assessment of the jurisdiction's unique risks as well as their mitigation strategy to reduce 
long-tenn losses. Each jurisdictional annex contains the following: 

• Community profile ummarizing geography and climate. history, economy. and population: 

• Hazard risk infomlation for geographically specific hazards or unique vulnerabilities: 

• Hazard map(s) at an appropriate scale for the jurisdiction, if available: 

• umber and value of buildings, critical facilities. and other community assets located in 
hazard areas. if available: 

• Vulnerability information in tenns of future growth and development in hazard areas; 

• A capability assessment describing existing regulatory. administrati ve. technical, and fiscal 
resources and tools as well as outreach effol1S and partnerships and past mitigation projects; 

and 

• Mitigation actions specific to the jurisdiction. 

Fr .. -sno Count) 
\l ulu-Junsdlctlonal HaLard tvllu gallon Plan 

u 



ANNEX J: CITY OF SELMA

Figure J. I displays a map and the location within Fresno County of the City of Selma and its

Sphere of Influence.

Selma

",t

J.1.1 Geography and Climate

The City of Selma is located in the central San Joaquin Valley in Fresno County and is about 20

miles west of the Sierra Nevada Mountains. Selma is l9 miles south of the City of Fresno at the

crossroads ofstate Highways 99 and 43. A major. busy railroad line runs diagonally through the

City and parallet to State Highway 99. Neighboring communities include Kingsburg (5 miles

south), Fowler (8 miles northwest), and Reedley ( I 2 miles northeast). The City and its Sphere of
Influence occupy an 8.1 94-acre area: the City alone comprises 3,316 acres. Over the past decade

the city's boundaries have changed minimally, with only a small annexation of land in the

southwestem ponion of the City's Sphere oflnfluence. The landscape is generally flat.

A

l-:rt-

3

Fresno County (Sclma)

Muki-Jurisdictional Hazard Mhi8alion Plan

J.1 Community Profile

Figure J.1: The City ot Selma

-

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 21

ANNEX J: CITY OF SELMA 

J.1 Community Profile 

Figure 1.1 displays a map and the location within Fresno County of the City of Selma and its 
Sphere of Influence. 

Figure J .1: The City of Selma 

Selma 

; 

L. 

............ 

-L ..... --.s IIIltII1 
4lIIj ....., tor ...... ,...,.- OIWt 

'!- 0- _ F-..'Oc......., -
J.1.1 Geography and Climate 

. " 

n 
I ,..-

o-~~ 

!'r----
~~ 

---..... 
' ,.. ...... ~-.,I -- ... ~.,. 
~i CJ SftM 

r CJ~ 
I ...... s,n... 01 ........... 

N 

A 

The City of Selma is located in the central San Joaquin Valley in Fresno County and is about 20 
miles west of the Sierra Nevada Mountains. Selma is 19 miles south of the City of Fresno at the 
crossroads of State Highways 99 and 43. A major. busy railroad line runs diagonally through the 
City and parallel to State Highway 99. eighboring communities include Kingsburg (5 miles 
south). Fowler (8 miles northwest), and Reedley (12 miles northeast). The City and its Sphere of 
Influence occupy an 8, I 94-acre area; the City alone comprises 3,316 acres. Over the past decade 
the City' s boundaries have changed minimally, with only a small annexation ofland in the 
southwestern portion of the City 'S Sphere of Influence. The landscape is generally flat . 

Fresno County (Selma) Annc:\ J.l 
Multi -Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigalion Plan 



The climate is mild year-round rvith average sumrner daytime highs in the 90s and winter
daytime lows in the.l0s- The summer months are very dry, while the winter months get the most

rainfall and moisture. Selma's average yearly rainfall is approximately I1.2 inches.

J.1.2 History

Sehna was founded in 1893 as an incorporated. agricultural-based city because of the area's rnild
and temperate climate aud the presence ofa Southent Pacific Railroad line.

J.1.3 Economy

Much of the area's economy is agriculturally based. The City of Selma is known as the Raisin

Capital of the World because the area has numerous vineyards that produce raisins and

supporting packing companies. Other local produce includes tree fruits such as peaches. The

retail industry in the City of Selma is growing. The leaders in retail sales include large car

dealerships. building material and farming implement establishments, and other general retailers

The retail sales increase is due to population growrh, Selma's incorporation into the Fresno

metropolimn area, and the volume ofpeople that pass through the City on its major highways.

Select estimates of economic characteristics for the City of Selma are shown in Table J.l .

Table J.1 : City of Selma's Economic Characteristics, 2016

Characteristic City of Selma

Families below Poverty Level 20.90/o

All People below Poverty Level 23.1%

Median Family lncome $45.30s

Median Household lncome $41,086

Per Capita lncome $15,686

Population in Labor Force 10,430

Population Employed" 9.195

Unemployment 11 .60/0

Number of Companies 7,100

Source: U.S. Census Bureau American Community Survey 20'12_2016 s-Year Estimates. www.census.gov/

'Excludes armed forces

Tables J.2 and J.3 shorv hou' the City of Selma's labor force breaks down by occupation and

industry based on estimates from the 2016 American Community Sun'ey.

Frcsno Count) (Scl'na)

\lulri-Iunsdictr,'n!l Hrzlrrl \litigation Plan

.\nn.\ J l

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 22

The climate is mild year-round with average summer daytime highs in the 90s and winter 

daytime lows in the 40s. The summer months are very dry. while the winter months get the most 
rainfall and moisture. Selma's average yearly rainfall is approximately 11 .2 inches. 

J.1.2 History 

Selma was founded in 1893 as an incorporated. agri cu ltural -based c ity because of the area's mild 
and temperate climate and the presence ofa Southern Paci fi c Rai lroad line . 

J.1.3 Economy 

Much of the area's economy is agricultura ll y based. The City of Selma is known as the Raisin 
Capital of the World because the area has numerous vineyards that produce raisins and 

support ing packing companies. Other local produce incl udes tree fruits such as peaches. The 
retai l industry in the City of Selma is growi ng . The leaders in retail sales include large car 

dealerships. building material and falming implement establishments, and other general retailers. 
The retail sales increase is due 10 population growth, clma's incorporation into the Frcsno 
metropolitan area, and the volume of people that pass through the City on its major highways. 

Select estimates of economic cbaracteristics for the City of Selma are shown in Table 1. I . 

Table J.1: City of Selma's Economic Characteristics , 2016 

Characteristic City of Selma 

Families below Poverty Level 20.9% 
All People below Poverty Level 23.1% 
Median Family Income $45.303 
Median Household Income $41 ,086 

Per Capita Income $15.686 
Population in Labor Force 10,430 
Populalion Employed' 9,195 

Unemployment 11.6% 

Number of Companies 7,100 
Source: U.S. Census Bureau Amencan Community Survey 2012-2016 5-Year Estimates. www.census.gov/ 
·Excludes armed forces 

Tab les 1.2 and 1.3 show how the City ofSehna ' s labor force breaks down by occupation and 
industry based on estimates from the 20 I 6 American Community Survey. 

Frc:' l1o Cuunt} (Selma) 
\lulti-JuriMiiclilm.tl l lal'..anJ \fitigalion Plan 

.\ nn(,,. 1 2 



Table J.2: City of Selma's Employment by Occupation, 2016

Source: U.S. Census Bureau American Community Survey 2012-2016 tyear Estimates, www.census.gov/

Occupation #Employed % Employed
Natural Resources. Construction. and l\.4aintenance Occupations 2.203
Sales and Oftice Occupations 1.957 21.3
Service Occupations 1.776 19.3
Production, Transportation. and Material Moving Occupations 1.700 1 8.5
Management, Business Science, and Arts Occupations '1,559 17.O

Total 9,195 100.0

Table J.3: City of Selma's Employment by lndustry, 20'16

Source: lJ.S. Census Bureau American Community Survey 2011-2015 tYear Estimates, www.census-gov/

J.1 .4 Population

The population was estimated at 24,597 in 2016 with a population densiry of -1,758 people per

square mile. Select demographic and social characteristics tbr the City of Selma from the 2016

American Community Sun ey are shown in Table J.4.

Table J.4: City of Selma's Demographic and Social Characteristics, 2016

Characteristic City of Selma
Gender/Age

l\,4a le 50.0$

Female 50.0%

Median age 30.7

Under 5 years 8.0%

Under 18 years 30.40/.

65 years and over 11 .40/o

Race/Ethnicity*
White 73.70/a

lndustry # Employed Employed
Educational Services. and Health Care and Social Assistance 1.752 19.1
Ag.iculture, Forestry. Fishing and Hunting, and [4ining 1 .392 '15.1

Retail Trade I ,024
N,4anufacturing 925 10.1

Arts, Entertainment, and Recreation, and Accommodation, and Food Services 7.9
Public Administration 7.1

Wholesale Trade

Professional, Scientific, and Mgmt., and Administrative and Waste Mgmt. Services 497 5.4
Transportation and Warehousing, and Utilities 386
Finance and lnsurance, and Real Estate and Rental and Leasing 322

Other Services, Except Public Administration 317 3.4
lnformation 95 1.0

Total 9,195 100.0

Frcsno Count) (Sclma)
\Iulti-Jruisdicrn,nil Hr2ard Nlirigatun PIan

24.0

11 .1

723

649
Construction 573

540

4.2

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 23

Table J.2: City of Selma's Employment by Occupation, 2016 

Occupation # Employed % Employed 
Natural Resources, Construction. and Maintenance Occupations 2,203 24.0 
Sales and Office Occupations 1,957 21 .3 
SelVice Occupations 1,776 19.3 
Production, Transportation, and Material Moving Occupations 1,700 18.5 
Management, Business, Science, and Arts Occupations 1,559 17.0 
Total 9,1 95 100 .0 

Source. U.S. Census Bureau Amencan Commumty Survey 2012·2016 5-Year Estimates, www.census.gov/ 

Table J.3: City of Selma's Employment by Industry, 2016 

% 
Industry # Employed Employed 

Educational Services, and Health Care and Social Assistance 1,752 19.1 
Agriculture, Forestry, Fishing and Hunting, and Mining 1,392 15.1 
Retail Trade 1,024 11.1 
Manufacturing 925 10.1 
Arts , Entertainment, and Recreation, and Accommodation, and Food Services 723 7.9 
Public Administration 649 7.1 
Construction 573 6.2 
Wholesale Trade 540 5.9 
Professional, Scientific, and Mgmt., and Administrative and Waste Mgmt. Services 497 5.4 
Transportation and Warehousing, and Utilities 386 4.2 
Finance and Insurance, and Real Estate and Rental and Leasing 322 3.5 
Other Services, Except Public Administration 317 3.4 
Information 95 1.0 
Total 9,195 100.0 

Source: u.S. Census Bureau Amencan Commumty Survey 2011-2015 5-Year EstImates, www.census.gov/ 

J.1.4 Population 

The population was estimated at 24,597 in 201 6 wi th a population density of 4, 758 people per 
square mile. Select demographic and social characteristics for the City of Selma from the 2016 
American Community Survey are shown in Table 1.4. 

Table J .4: City of Selma's Demographic and Social Characteristics, 2016 

Characteristic 
Gender/Age 

Male 

Female 

Median age 

Under 5 years 

Under 18 years 

65 years and over 

Race/Ethnicity· 

White 

Fresno County (Sel ma ] 
\-Iulti-Juri~dicti,mall-Iazard ~'f itigalion Plan 

City of Selma 

50.0$ 
50.0% 

30.7 
8.0% 

30.4% 

11.4% 

73.7% 

Annex 1.3 



Asian 5.20/o

Black or African American 0.40/o

American lndian/Alaska Native 0.8%

Hispanic or Latino (of any race) 80.7./"

Education
High school g.aduate or higher 61.110

Disability Status
Population 5 years and over with a disability 9.7yo

Source: U.S. Census Bureau American Community Survey 2012_2016 lYear Esf mates, wtsrv.census.gov/

'Of the 95.7% reporling one race

Frcsno Cdunty (Suhnal

\luhi-Jurisdictir)nal H^2 ard Vid8arion Plan

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 24

Asian 5.2% 
Black or African American 0.4% 

American Indian/Alaska Native 0.8% 
Hispanic or Latino (of any race) 80.7% 

Education 

High school graduale or higher 61 .1% 

Disability Status 

Population 5 years and over with a disabi lity 9.7% 
Source. U.S. Census Bureau Amencan Community Survey 2012-2016 5-Year Estimates, www.census.gov/ 
·Of the 95.7% reponing one race 

Frc:.no County (Sdma) 
\lulu-Jumd,cth)nal 1faLard \1iligalion Plan 

Anne )!. JA 



J.2 Hazard ldentification and Summary

Selma's planning team identified the hazards thal affect the City and summarized their tiequency
ofoccurrence. spatial extent. potential magninude, and significance specific to Selma (see Table
J.5). In the context olthe plan's planning area. there are no hazards that are unique to Selma.

Table J.5: City of Selma-Hazard Summaries

Hazard Geographic
Extent

Probability ot Future
Occurrences

Magnitude/
Severity

Aqricultural Hazards Limited Hiohly Likely Critical Medium
Avalanche N/A N/A N/A N/A
Danr Failure Extensive Occasional Critical l\,4ediUm

Drought Significant Likely Limited Hiqh
Earthquake Significant Occasional Calastrophic N,ledium

FIood/Levee Failure Extensive Unlikely Medium
Hazardous Materials lncident Significant Likely Critical High

Epidemic/Pandemic Exteflsive Occasional Catastrophic Medium
West Nile Virus Limited Highly Likely Negligible

Landslide Limited Limited Low
Severe Weather

Extreme Cold/Freeze Significant Highly Likely Neqliqible Medium

Extreme Heat Extensive Highly Likely Limited Medium
Fog Likely Negligible Medium

Heavy Rain/Thunderstorm/
Hail/Lightning Extensive Highly Likely Limited [.4edium

Tornado Unlikely Neqligible
Windstorm Likely Limited [redium
Winter Storm Highly Likely Negligible Low

Soil Hazards

Erosion No Data Likely No Data

Expansive Soils No Data Occ-asional No Data

Land Subsidence Limited Occasional No Data

Volcano Extensive Unlikely Negligible

Wildrire Extensive Highly Likely Critical
Geographic Extent
Limited: Less than 10% of planning area
Sagnificant 10-50% of planning area
Extensivei 50-100% of planning area

Magnitude/Seve,ity
Catastrophic-More than 50 percent of property severely damaged:
shutdown of facil,ties for more than 30 days; and/or rnultiple deaths
Critical-2150 perc€nt of property severely damaged; shutdown of
facilities for at least two weeksi and/or injunes and/or illnesses result in
permanent disability
Limited-l0-25 percent of property severely damaged; shutdown of
facilities for more than a week; and/or injudes/illnesses treatable do not
result in permanent disability
Negligible-Less than 10 percent of property severely damaged, shutdown
offacilities and services for less than 24 hours; and/or injuriesllllnesses
treatable with first aid

Probabilittr of Future Occurences
Highly Likely: Near 100o/o chance of occunence in
nexl year, or happens every year.
Likely: Between '10 and 10070 chance of occurrence
in next year, or has a recurrence inietual of '10 years
or less.
Occasional: Between 1 and 10% chance of
occurrence in the next year, or has a recurrence
inteNal of 1'l to 100 years.
Unlikely: Less than 1% chance ofoccunence in next
100 years, or has a recunence interval of greater than
every 100 years.

Significance
Low: minimal potential impact
I\redium: moderate potential impact
High; widespread potential impact

Fresno Count] (Sclma)
\{ulti-Jurisdicftmrl Hazard M{iga on Plan

Significance

Critical

Human Health Hazards:

Occasional

Extensive

Extensive

Extensive

Extensive

Low

Low

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 25

J.2 Hazard Identification and Summary 

Selma's planning team identified the hazards that affect the City and summarized their frequency 

of occurrence, spatial extent. potential magnitude, and significance specific to Se lma (see Table 
1.5). In the context of the plan 's planning area, there are no hazards that are unique to Selma. 

Table J.5: City of Selma-Hazard Summaries 

Hazard Geographic Probability of Future Magnitude/ 
Significance Extent Occurrences Severity 

Agricultural Hazards limited Highly likely Critical Medium 
Avalanche N/A N/A N/A N/A 
Dam Failure Extensive Occasional Critical Medium 
Drought Significant likely Limited High 
Earthquake Significant Occasional Catastrophic Medium 
Flood/Levee Failure Extensive Unl ikely Critical Medium 
Hazardous Materials Incident Significant Likely Critical High 
Human Health Hazards: 

Epidemic/Pandemic Extensive Occasional Catastrophic Medium 
West Nile Virus Limited Highly likely Negligible Low 

Landslide Limited Occasional limited Low 
Severe Weather 

Extreme Cold/Freeze Significant Highly Likely Negligible Medium 

Extreme Heat Extensive Highly Likely Limited Medium 

Fog Extensive Likely Negligible Medium 

Heavy RainfThunderstorml 
Hail/Lightning Extensive Highly Likely Limited Medium 

Tornado Extensive Unlikely Negligible Low 

Windstorm Extensive Likely Limited Medium 

Winter Storm Extensive Highly Likely Negligible Low 

Soil Hazards: 

Erosion No Data Likely No Data Low 

Expansive Soils No Data Occasional No Data Low 

Land Subsidence limited Occasional No Data Low 

Volcano Extensive Unlikely Negligible Low 

Wi ldfire Extensive Highly Likely Critical Low 

Geographic Extent Magnitude/Severity 
Limited: Less than 10% of planning area Catastrophic- More than 50 percent of property severely damaged: 
Significant: 10-50% of planning area shutdown of facilities for more than 30 days; andlor multiple deaths 
Extensive: 50-100% of plann ing area Critical-25-50 percent of property severely damaged; shutdown of 

facilities for at least two weeks; andlor injuries andlor illnesses result in 
Probability of Future Occurrences permanent disability 
Highly Likely: Near 100% chance of occurrence in Limited- 10-25 percent of property severely damaged; shuldown of 
next year, or happens every year. facilities for more than a week; andlor injurieslil1nesses treatable do not 
Likely: Between 10 and 100% chance of occurrence result in permanent disability 
in next year, or has a recurrence interval of 10 years Negligible-Less than 10 percent of property severely damaged, shutdown 
or less. of faci lities and services for less than 24 hours: and/or injurieslillnesses 
Occasional: Between 1 and 10% chance of treatable with first aid 
occurrence in the next year, or has a recurrence 
interval of 11 to 100 years. Significance 
Unlikely: Less than 1% chance of occurrence in next Low: minimal potential impact 
100 years, or has a recurrence interval of greater than Medium: moderate potential impact 
every 100 years. High: widespread potential impact 

Fresno County (Sdmal Annex J.5 
\lul ti-lurisdictiunal Hazard Mitigation Plan 



. agricultural hazards

. dam failure

. drought

. earthquake

. flood'lcr ce failure

. hazardous mat!'rials incidents

o hunran health hazards: epidemic, pandemic+

. severe weather: extreme cold: ertrenre heat: tbg: healy rain/thunderstoft"-hail1'lightning:

u'indstonn*

Fr6no Count, {S.lmar
\tulti-Junsdicfimal Hazard Mirigarion Plan

J.3 Vulnerability Assessment

The intent of this section is to assess Selma's wlnerabiliry separate fiom that of the planning

area as a uhole, which has already been assessed in Section 4.3 Vulnerability Assessment in the

main plan. This lulnerability assessment analyzes the population, ploperry, and other assets at

risk to hazards ranked of medium or high significance that may vary from other parts of the

planning area.

The information to support the hazard identification and risk assessment for this Amex was

collected through a Data Cotlection Guide, u-hich was distributed to each participating

municipality or special district to complete during the original outreach process in 2009.

Information collected was analyzed and summarized in order to identifo and rank all the hazards

that could impact anywhere within the County, and used to rank the hazards and to identift the

related vulnerabitities unique to each jurisdiction. In addition. the City of Selma's HMPC team

members were asked to validate the matrix that was originally scored in 2009 based on the

experience and perspective ofeach planning team member relative to the City of Selma.

Each participating jurisdiction was in support ofthe main hazard summary identitled in the base

plan (See Table 4.1). However. the hazard summary rankings for each jurisdictional annex may

vary slightly due ro specific hazard risk and vulnerabilities unique to that jurisdiction (See Table

J.5). Identifuing these differences helps the reader to diflbrentiate the jurisdiction's risk and

vulnerabilities from that of the overall County.

Note: The hazard "Significance" reflects the overall ranking for each hazard, and is based on the

City of Selma's HMPC member input from the Data Collection Guidc and the risk assessment

developed during the planning process (see Chapter 4 of the base plan), which included a more

detailed qualitative analysis with best available data.

The hazard summaries in Tabte J.5 reflect the hazards that could potentially affect the City.

Those of Medium or High significance for the City of Setma are identified below. The discussion

of wlnerability related information for each of the following hazards is located in Section J.3-2

Estimating Potential Losses. Based on this analysis the priority hazards (High Significance) for

mitigation include drought and hazardous materials incidents.

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 26

J.3 Vulnerability Assessment 

The intent of this section is to assess Selma's vulnerability separate from that of the planning 

area as a whole, which has already been assessed in Section 4.3 Vulnerability Assessmenl in the 

main plan. This vulnerability assessmenl analyzes the population, property, and other assets at 

risk to hazards ranked of medium or high significance that may vary from other parts of the 
planning area . 

The infonnation to support the hazard idcnlification and risk assessmenl for this Annex was 

collected through a Data Collection Guide, which was distributed to each participating 
municipality or special district to complete during the original outreach process in 2009. 

[nfonnation collected was analyzed and summarized in order to identify and rank all the hazards 
that could impact anywhere within the County, and used to rank the hazards and to identify the 

related vulnerabilities unique to each jurisdiction. In addition. the City of Selma's HMPC team 
members were asked to validate the matrix that was originally scored in 2009 based on the 
experience and perspective of each planning team member relative to the City of Selma. 

Each participating jurisdiction was in support of the main hazard summary identified in the base 

plan (See Table 4 . I). However. the hazard summary rankings for each jurisdictional annex may 
vary slightly due to specific hazard risk and vulnerabilities unique to that jurisdiction (See Table 

1.5). Idenlifying these differences helps the reader to differenliate the jurisdiction's risk and 
vulnerabilities from that of the overall County. 

Note: The hazard "Significance" reflects the overall ranking for each hazard, and is based on the 
City of Selma's HMPC member input from the Data Collection Guide and the risk assessmenl 
developed during the planning process (sec Chapter 4 of the base plan), which included a more 

detailed qualitative analysis with best available data . 

The hazard summaries in Table 1.5 reflect the hazards that could potenlially affect the City. 
Those of Medium or High significance for the City ofSehna are identified below. The discussion 

of vulnerability related infonnation for each of the following hazards is located in Section 1.3.2 
Estimating Potential Losses. Based on this analysis the priority hazards (High Significance) for 

mitigation include drought and hazardous materials incidents. 

• agriculrural hazards 

• dam failure 

• drought 

• earthquake 

• floodllcvcc failure 

• hazardous materials incidenls 

• human health hazards : epidemic/pandemic* 

• severe weather: extreme cold; extreme heat; fog ; heavy rain/ thunderstonnihai lllightning; 

windstonn* 

Fresno Count)' (Selma) Ann~"{ J 6 
\lulti·Jumdicli,)nal lI azard \ -l itigalion Plan 



*Note: Epidemic/pandemic and windstorm are considered Medium priority hazards by the City
of Selma but are not unique to the City in the context of the full planning area. See Chapter 4
Risk Assessment for details on lulnerabilitv to these lrazards.

Other Hazards

Hazards assigned a Signit'icance rating of Low and which do not dilTer sigrificantly from the

County ranking (e.9.. Lov vs. High) are not addressed further in this plan, and are not assessed

individually fbr specitic lulnerabilities in this section. In the City of Selma. those Low' priority
hazards are as follows:

Notex: Wildfire is of High significance fol the County, but is of Low significance to thc City
because there are no structures within the City or its Sphere of Influence that are at risk to any

fire ser,erity zones. For more information about how wildfire affects the County as a wholc. see

Chapter 4 Risk Assessment in the main plan.

Additionally, the City's planning team decided to rate several hazards as Not Applicable (NrA)
to the planning area due to a lack of exposure. vuherability, and probability of occurrence.

Avalanche is considered not applicable to the City of Selma.

J.3.1 Assets at Risk

This section considers Selma's assets at risk. including values at risk: critical tacilities and

infrastructure: historic, culhrral, and natural resources; and grouth and development trends.

The following data on property exposur€ is derived from thc'Fresno County 2017 Parcel and

Assessor data. This data should only be used as a guideline to overall values in the Ciry, as the

information has some limitations. The most significant limitation is created by Proposition 13.

Instead of adjusting properry values annually, the values are not adjustcd or assessed at fair
market value until a property transfer occurs. As a result. overall value information is likely lou'
and does not reflect current market value of propenies. It is also important to note that in the

event of a disaster. it is generally the \'alue of the infrastructure or improvements to the land that

FE-sno Count) asclma)
\f ulti-Jurisdictional Hnzard Mitigation Plan

. human health hazards: West Nile Virus

. landslide
o severe weather: tornado; winter storm
o soil hazards

. volcano

. wildfire*

Values at Risk

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 27

*Note: Epidemic/pandemic and windstorm are considered Medium priority hazards by the City 
of Selma but are not unique to the City in the context of the full planning area. See Chapter 4 
Risk Assessment for details on vulnerability to these hazards. 

Other Hazards 

Hazards assigned a Significance rating of Low and which do not differ significantly from the 
County ranking (e.g. , Low vs. High) are not addressed funher in this plan , and are not assessed 
individually for specific vulnerabilities in this section. In the City of Selma, those Low priority 
hazards are as follows: 

• human health hazards: West Nile Virus 

• landslide 
• severe weather: tornado; winter stann 

• soil hazards 

• volcano 

• wildfire* 

Note*: Wildfire is of High significance for the County, but is of Low significance to the City 
because there are no structures within the City or its Sphere of Influence that are at risk to any 
fire severity zones. For more infonnation about how wildfire affects the County as a whole, see 
Chapter 4 Risk Assessment in the main plan. 

Additionally, the City's planning team decided to rate several hazards as Not Applicable (N/A) 
to the planning area due to a lack of exposure, vulnerability, and probability of occurrence. 
Avalanche is considered not applicable to the City of Selma. 

J.3.1 Assets at Risk 

This section considers Selma's assets at risk, including values at risk ; critical facilities and 
infrastructure; historic, cultnral, and natnral resources; and growth and developmem trends. 

Values at Risk 

The following data on propeny exposure is derived from the Fresno County 2017 Parcel and 
Assessor data. This data should only be used as a guideline to overall values in the City, as the 
infOlmation has some limitations. The most significant limitation is created by Proposition 13. 
lnstead of adjusting propeny values annually, the values are not adjusted or assessed at fair 
market value until a propeny transfer occurs. As a result, overall va lue information is likely low 
and does not reflect current market value of propenies. It is also imponant to note that in the 
event of a disaster, it is generally the value of the infrastructnre or improvements to the land that 

Fresno County (Selma) Ann.::x J.7 
:\ Iultl-Jurisdictjunal Hazard Mitigation Plan 



is of concem or at risk. Generally. the land itself is not a loss. Table J.6 shorvs the 201 7 values at

risk broken do*'n by property type for the City of Selma.

Source: Fresno County 2017 Parcel and Assessor data

Critical Facilities and lnfrastructure

A critical facility may be defined as one that is essential in providing utility or direction either

during the response to an emergency or during the recovery operation. An inventory of critical

facilities in the city of Selma from Fresno County GIS is provided in Table J.7 and mapped in

Figurc'J.2. This is the information that was used for mapping and analysis purposes.

Table J.7: City of Selma's Critical Facilities

Number
Critical Facilities Type

CaIARP 2

Colleges & Universities 1

Fire Station 2

2

Nursing Home
,1

Police 1

School 11

Sheritf T

Urgent Care 1

Total
Source: Fresno County. HIFLD 2017

Property Type
Parcel
Count

Building
Count

lmp.oved Value Content Value TotalValue

Aqricultural 3 2 $2.381.240

Commercial 351 590 $152,581,224 s152,581,224 s305,162,448

Exempt 30 89 $0 SO $0

lnduskial 134 $28.998.925 s43,498.388 $72.497.313

lrultr-Residential 407 838 $66.139.922 s33.069.961 $99,209,883

Residential 4,903 5,796

Total 5,789 7,449 $770,773,863 $49r,867,089 $1,262,640,9s2

Frcsno Counv.. (Sclmal
\tulti-Jurisdicd)nal Hazaril Mitigarion Plan

Table J.6: 2017 Property Exposure for the City of Selma by Property Type

$2.381,240 54,762,480

s520,672.552 $260,336.276 $781,008,828

Health Care

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 28

is of concern or at risk. Generally. the land itself is not a loss. Tablc 1.6 shows the 2017 values at 

risk broken down by property type fo r the City of Selma. 

Table J .6: 2017 Property Exposure for the City of Selma by Property Type 

Property Type 
Parcel Building 

Improved Value Content Value Total Value 
Count Count 

Agricultural 3 2 $2 ,381.240 52 ,381 ,240 $4,762,480 

Commercial 351 590 5152,581 ,224 $152,581 ,224 $305 ,162,448 

Exempt 30 89 $0 SO $0 

Industrial 95 134 528,998,925 $43.498.388 $72,497,313 

Multi-Residential 407 838 $66,139,922 533,069,961 $99 ,209,883 

Residential 4,903 5,796 5520 ,672 ,552 $260 ,336,276 $781 ,008,828 

Total 5,789 7,449 $770,773,863 $491 ,867,089 $1 ,262,640,952 
Source. Fresno Counry 2017 Parcel and Assessor data 

Critical Facilities and Infrastructure 

A critical facility may be defined as one that is essential in providing utility or direction either 

during the response to an emergency or during the recovery operation. An inventory of critical 

facilities in the City of Selma from Fresno County GIS is provided in Table 1.7 and mapped in 

Figure 1.2. This is the information that was used for mapping and analysis purposes. 

Table J.7 : City of Selma's Critical Facilities 

Number 
Critical Facilities Type • 
CalARP 2 

Colleges & Universities 1 

Fire Station 2 

Health Care 2 

Nursing Home 1 

Police 1 

School 11 

Sheriff 1 

Urgent Care 1 

Total 22 
Source. Fresno County, HIFLD 2017 

Fresno COUnl) (Selma) Amll''I J 8 
\lulti·Junsdic\lllnal Hazard Mitigation Plan 



c.2:JFigure

:

.
2bg5
a,q39;R:5

9e i5
3d I6

=.sor

*,.

I

o

\

!
a! !. g;
i i " !.* !
.EEP;5;.

6rsqeg iy'srtined q fl3i

-:! E !9
'rilE:E!i6iSirt

!

a?

critical facilities and other

E

I

a
o)
.:
'6
ou
(!
o
.C

o
o
E
q)
a

Table J.8 lists
planning team as

Selma Planning Team

Name of Asset
Located next to a railroad track. which

1,700,000Police Department 51 toa line also.
'1,400.000 6 on dutyFire Station 2

FrEsno County (Sclma)
Vuld-Jurisdictional Hazard MiliSation Plan

a

E

o
o

,/.

Table J.8: Specifrc Cdtical Facilities and Othe+ Community Assets ldentifi€d by City of

lnfoHazard

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 29

Figure J.2: C 

a 
~-

i 
ja 

• I 
• • • . .. I! 

• •••••••••••••••••••• : t ~ 

en 
Q) 

:e 
.(3 
CO u.. 
CO 
U 

:;::: 
·c 
() 

CO 
E 
Q) 
(/) 

I 
i L __ 

! ___ .J 

• 
: .... a , .. _._j _ .. __ , 
• 1 '""",,- _. r 'O

-: l. o . I . . !--.J j i o ! . • • • • •• _ '-___ -.J. 'III L..J 
. ! '. ~ 

~ .. j • • 
• 
• 
• • • 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 

i.. • ~ ... 
! ,. 

f1J 
---' 
i 
L, r-..... - .-- .., 

I 
1.''' i " . . 
I II L-J 

__ l .§: •••••• : . 
• 
• 
• 
• • • • • .-. . 

• ~ + • .... ~ . : ~ . 
• "'o;.t;, : · '.... . .... ...... 

< • g ~ 
c ~ • E ~ '" ~ " • 

.l: > 
<:l cS • ~ 

• • E 
0 • , 

0 r 8 ~ ,l! .. £ 

~ 
, 

& .l! z 

• 
• 
• .... 

• · • ~ 

0 • f " • • .. ~ " 

i 
g 
~ 

Table J.8 lists panicula critical facili ties and other <lpUJ'~lil¥ a-s~e isl~lified 

. 
~ 

• ; 
~ ~ ~ 0 .:! '" 

, 

• 
• 

• < 

l! 
~ 
< 

-< 

• • 

• u 
< 

J 
.E 
"0 
• i 
£ 

.:t 
b~ rfilja;' 

. .J .. ...J • planning team as imponaht..Io.ipu:~:WIUI~=::IU..of:""':lka.tet.---------~=~~ 

Table J.B: Specific-Critical Facilities-and Other-Community-Assets Identified by City-of
Selma Planning Team 

Replacement Occupancyl 
Name of Asset Value (S) Capacity # Hazard Specific Info 

Police Department 1.700.000 51 Located next to a railroad track, which 
is parallel to a Qas line also. 

Fire Station 2 1.400.000 6 on duty 

Fresno Coumy (Selma) Annex J.9 
Multi·Jurisdiclional Hazard Mitigation Plan 

o 



21 Iolal

Fire Station 1
Located within half a block of a
railroad track and a qas line.

Selma Community Hospital 45.000.000 500 Hazardous materials located within

City Hall 4,500,000
74 seated/

159 standing
Located within a block of a railroad
track and a gas line

Fire Administration Bldq 544.246
Senior Center 1.200.000 232

Public Works Yard 1,500,000 16 Hazardous materials located within

The City has four major medical facilities: Selma Community Hospital has 60 beds (inctuding a

l5-bed emergency u{ng), Kaiser Permanente Medical Clinical has an outpatient treatment

facility, Bethel Lutheran Home has 87 beds, and Selma Convalescent Home has 34 beds.

The City is planning to build a new police headquarters and u'ill remodel the fire station #2 to
accommodate more employees within the next tllree to five years.

Historic, Cultural, and Natural Resources

There are no registered state or t'ederal historical sites in the City. although Pioneer Village is a

historically based village wlrere many community events are held. Tlte Ciry of Selma has some

environmentally sensitive areas, which include Rockwell Pond and the Young Ponding area.

Growth and Development Trends

Selma is growing at a rapid pace and is likely to continue this tlend for many yeals. Figrre I.3

shorvs the location ofnew development in the City. Table J.9 illustrates how the City has grou'n

in terms ofpopulation and number ofhousing units between 2010 and 2015.

Table J.9: City of Selma's Change in Population and Housing Units, 2010-2015

2010
Population

2015
Population
Estimate

Estimated
Percent

Change 2010-
2015

2000 # of
Housing Units

2007 Estimated #
of Housing Units

23.219 24,017 3.44 6.813 6.984 2.51

Source: Amencan Community Survey 2011-20'15 s-Year Estimates, U.S. Census Bureau 2010 Decennial Census

Frcsno Count) {S.lma)
\IuhLJ nsdictional Hazard Nfitigation Plan

1.400,000 4 on duty

50

Estimated
Percent Change

2010-2015

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 30

21 total 

Fire Station 1 1,400,000 4 on duty 
Located within half a block of a 
railroad track and a gas line. 

Selma Community Hospital 45,000,000 500 Hazardous materials located within 

City Hall 4,500,000 74 seated! Located within a block of a railroad 
159 standina track and a qas line 

Fire Administration Bldg . 584,246 50 

Senior Center 1,200,000 232 

Public Works Yard 1,500,000 16 Hazardous materials located within 

The City has four major medical facilities: Selma Corrununity Hospital has 60 beds (including a 
15-bed emergency wing), Kaiser Permanente Medical Clinical has an outpatienr treatmenr 
facility, Bethel Lutheran Home has 87 beds, and Selma Convalescent Home has 34 beds. 

The City is planning to build a new police headquarters and will remodel the fire station #2 to 
accommodate more employees within the next three to five years. 

Historic, Cultural, and Natural Resources 

There are no registered state or federal historical sites in the City, although Pioneer Village is a 
historically based village where many community events are held. The City of Selma has some 
environmenrally sensitive areas, which include Rockwell Pond and the Young Ponding area. 

Growth and Development Trends 

Selma is growing at a rapid pace and is likely to continue this trend for many years. Figure 1.3 
shows the location of new development in the City. Table 1.9 illustrates how the City has grown 
in terms of population and number of housing units between 2010 and 2015. 

Table J,g: City of Selma's Change in Population and Housing Units, 2010-2015 

Estimated 
2015 Percent Estimated 

2010 Population Change 2010- 2000 # 01 2007 Estimated # Percent Change 
Population Estimate 2015 Housing Units 01 Housing Units 2010-2015 

23.219 24 ,017 3.44 6,813 6,984 2.51 
Source. Amencan Community Survey 2011-2015 5-Year EstImates, U.S. Census Bureau 2010 Decennial Census 

Fresno Count} (Sdma) Annex J. \0 
\lulti ·Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigalion Plan 



I
: i. ;i i E i

Ei :* 59:i .i :

i:!, 
'iEt 

*!;g*Ei;**!g; -iil:3;
I r I ! r i- f

!
3

i-,

a3tt

Figure J.3: P , i,
-t tj
;a 18t^ ar

IiH;E;itl
iiri
'i!i'f!iTI

a+)

oc)atr

i9
o

\, l-.1

cJ oJ

=a(-) o
i

" Errl

-t:lii!
' €ai;

Fresm County (Sclma)
Muki-Jurisdictional Hazrd Mirigalion Plan

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 31

Figure J .l: P 

Fresno County (Selma) 

Vl ....... 
"'OC 
Q)Q) 

Vl E 
0 0. 
0. 0 0 -
I.... Q) 

0...> 
Q) 

"'O Q 
C_ 
(Ij (Ij 

~ '';:: 
C C 
Q) Q) 
1...."'0 
1.....-
~ Vl 

U Q) 

~ 

Multi·Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigalion Plan 

j 
H 
l~ 
.ltu 

H 
II 

=!. }! j" • 
f!~ . i l~ a ~ a~ ~ 
I I 

Annex J.11 



Cunently, there are no manufactured housing developments in Selma and there are no planned

housing developments that would be located in specified flood hazard areas or in areas with
unstable soil. One possible development ofconcem may be the Tutelian Commercial Project that

is located adjacent to the Rockwell Pond. which accepts stornwater runoff from the City.

Horvever, the grading and drainage plan will mitigate any localized flooding issues or other

issues associated with Rockwell Pond.

More general information on gro*th and development in Fresno County as a whole can be found

in "Growth and Development Trends" in Section 4.J.1 Fresno County Vulnerability and Assets

at Risk oithe main plan.

J.3.2 Estimating Potential Losses

Note: This section details rulnerabiliry to specific hazards, where quantifiable' and/or where

(through HMPC member input) it differs from that of the overall County.

Table J.6 above shorvs Selma's exposure to hazards in tenns of number and value of sfuctures.

Fresno County's assessor's data rvas used to calculate the improved value of parcels. The most

wlnerable structures are those in the floodplain (especially those that have been flooded in the

past). unreinforced masonry buitdings. and buildings built prior to the introduction of modem

day building codes. Impacts of past events and rulnerability to specific hazards are further

discussed belorv (see Section 4.1 Hazard Identification for more detailed information about these

hazards and their impacts on Fresno County).

Agricultural Hazards

Although there is not much agriculture in the City limits, the surrounding areas are mostly

agricultural land. The Ciqv of Selma is greatly affected by any agricultural hazard, because the

economy is largely based on this industry. Besides the obvious extreme neather hazards. such as

drought, flood and heavy rains. and extreme heat, other agricultural hazards could be a major

impact on Selma. Hazards such as pests on certain crops could be a major issue for the economy.

Past pests on crops have cost millions ofdollars in damage and have included the glassy-winged

sharpshooter, olivc fruit fly. and red imported fire ant. Other hazards frorn agriculture itself

includc air pollution, water shortages. and hazardous materials spills.

Fresno County is one of the top counties in the nation in poor air quality. Often, citizens of the

County have a higher chance of having respiratory problems, including asthma in children. than

others in the United States. Each year. air quality is also responsible for crop losses. Water

shortages are becoming a problem in the area, and crop irrigation. which is necessary to support

the industry and thus the economy, adds to the problem. Agriculnrral sites that store hazardous

materials rhar are close to the City could affect the City directly in the event of a spill or

explosion.

Dam Failure

F.csno Count) (Schnal
\lulu-Jurisdicti.ml Haznrij Vitigarion Plirn

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 32

Cun'ently, there are no manufactured housing developments in Selma and there are no planned 
housing developments that would be located in specified flood hazard areas or in areas with 
unstable soil. One possible development of concenl may be the Tutelian Commercial Project that 
is located adjacent to the Rockwell Pond. which accepts stormwater runoff from the City. 
However. the grading and drainage plan will mitigate any localized flooding issues or other 
issues associated with Rockwell Pond. 

More general infonllation on growth and development in Fresno County as a whole can be found 
in "Growth and Development Trends" in Section 4.3.1 Fresno County Vulnerability and Assets 
at Risk of the main plan . 

J.3.2 Estimating Potential Losses 

ote: This section details vulnerability to specific hazards. where quantifiable, and/or where 
(through I-fMPC member input) it differs from that of the overall County. 

Table J.6 above shows Selma's exposure to hazards in tenns of number and value of structures . 
Fresno County 's assessor' s data was used to calculate the improved value of parcels . The most 
vulnerable structures are those in the floodplain (especially those that have been flooded in the 
past) , unrein forced masonry buildings. and buildings built prior to the introduction of modern 
day building codes. Impacts of past events and vulnerability to specific hazards are further 
discussed below (see Section 4.1 Hazard Identification for more detailed information about these 
hazards and their impacts on Fresno County). 

Agricultural Hazards 

Although there is not much agriculture in the City limits, the surrounding areas are mostly 
agricultural land. The City of Selma is greatly affected by any agricultural hazard, because the 
economy is largely based on this industry. Besides the obvious extreme weather hazards. such as 
drought. flood and heavy rains, and extreme heat, other agricultural hazards could be a major 
impact on Selma. Hazards such as pests on certain crops could be a major issue for the economy. 
Past pests on crops have cost millions of dollars in damage and have included the glassy-winged 
sharpshooter, olive fruit fly. and red imported fire ant. Other hazards from agriculture itself 
include air pollution, water shortages. and hazardous materials spills . 

Fresno County is one of the top counties in the nation in poor air quality . Often. citizens of the 
County have a higher chance of having respiratory problems, including asthma in children. than 
others in the United States. Each year. air quality is also responsible for crop losses . Water 
shortages are becoming a problem in the area. and crop irrigation. which is necessary to support 
the industry and thus the economy, adds to the problem. Agricultural sites that store hazardous 
material s that are close to the City could affect the City directly in the event of a spill or 
explosion. 

Dam Failure 

Fresno Count) (Sdmal 
\lulu-JuriMilctlllnallb.7.:arJ \.Iitigalion Pl:ln 

"nn.,:,\: J 12 



Drought

Drought would mostly aft'ect the economy of Selma by limiting water resources available tbr the

agriculrural sector and human consumption. The agricultural sector would need more irrigated

tvater than normal. During drought periods, surface water allocations are reduced which Ieads to

higher groundwater pumping fiom an already limited aquifer and thereby lowers the water table.

Low water levels and water conservation for the area are already an issue. so a drought could

impact Selma and its economy greatly.

Previous droughts happened between t987 and t992, which was statewide. and 1998-2004

(more ofa dry spell than an actual drought;. In 2007, there was an attempt to have a local state of
emergency declared because of water supply shortages, especially for local farmers. There was

also concem for an increase in West Nile virus because the breeding grounds were moving to

urbarr areas with water due to the dry cortditions in the rural areas.

The period benveen late 201I and 2014 was the &iest in Califomia history since record-keeping

began. The drought led to Govemor Jerry Brown's instituting mandatory 25 percent $ater

restrictions in June 2015. Subsequently, the winter of 2016-17 tumed out to be the wettest on

record in Northem Califomia. surpassing the previous record set in 1982-83.

Earthquake

The City of Selma is located in Seismic Zone 3. The planning tean identified 15 to 25

unreinforced masonry buildings in town, primarily retail buildings in downtorvn. Specifically,

rhe team identified City Hall and the Police Department as critical facilities that may be

lulnerable to seismic events. Although from a historical perspective. the potential for secondary

hazards caused by earthquakes have been considered minimal and rare in the Selma area, the

potential for liquefaction and ground settlement instabilities are not rvell known.

There has been some minimal struch.u.al damage in the past from earthquakes. in particular the

1983 Coalinga earthquake. which was felt in Selma. The damage done to an unreinforced

masomy building u'as absorbed by the building's owner.

Flood/Levee Failure

Frcsflo Count, (Sclmat
lluki-Jurisdictl,mal Hazard Mitigalion Plm

\nnc\ J ll

According to the City's l99l Safety Element, information from the U.S. Anny Corps of
Engineers. Califomia Office of Emergency Sen'ices. and Fresno County indicated that Setma

rvould be in extrerne danger in the event of a complete dam failure at Pine Flat Dam at a time

that the facility is at full capacity. This rvould be a worst-case scenario and Selma would be

located in the center of a floodway approximately 17 miles wide and 8 to l0 feet deep within
three hours of the failure. No projections of a lesser extent have been made for this hazard and

there has not been a reported past event ofdam failure at Pine Flat Dam.

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 33

According to the City's 1991 Safety Element, infomlation from the U.S. Anny Corps of 
Engineers. Califomia Office of Emergency Services. and Fresno County indicated that Selma 
would be in extreme danger in the event of a complete dam failure at Pine Flat Dam at a time 

that the facility is at full capacity. This would be a worst-case scenario and Selma would be 

located in the center of a floodway approximately 17 miles wide and 8 to 10 feet deep within 
three bours of the failure. I 0 projections of a lesser extent have been made for this hazard and 
there has not been a reported past event of dam failure at Pine Flat Dam. 

Drought 

Drought would mostly affect the economy of Selma by limiting water resources available for the 
agricultural sector and human consumption. The agricultural sector would need more irrigated 

water than normal. During drought periods, sUlface water allocations are reduced which leads to 
higher groundwater pumping from an already limited aquifer and thereby lowers the water table. 
Low water levels and water conservation for the area arc already an issue. so a drought could 

impact Selma and its economy greatly. 

Previous droughts happened between 1987 and 1992. which was statewide. and 1998-2004 
(more of a dry spell than an actual drought). In 2007, there was an attempt to ha,'e a local state of 
emergency declared because of water supply shortages, especially for local farmers. There was 

also concem for an increase in West Nile virus because the breeding grounds were moving to 
urban areas with water due to the dry conditions in the rural areas. 

The period between late 2011 and 2014 was the driest in California history since record-keeping 
began. The drought led to Governor Jerry Brown's instituting mandatory 25 percent water 
restrictions in June 2015. Subsequently, the winter of 2016-17 turned out to be the wettest on 

record in orthern California. surpassing the previous record set in 1982- 83 . 

Earthquake 

The City of Selma is located in Seismic Zone 3. The planning team identified 15 to 25 

unreinforccd masonry buildings in town , primarily retail buildings in downtown. Specifically, 
the team identified City Hall and the Police Department as critical facilities that may be 
vulnerable to seismic events. Although from a historical perspective. the potential for secondary 

hazards caused by earthquakes have been considered minimal and rare in the Selma area, the 
potential for liquefaction and ground settlement instabilities are not well known. 

There has been some minimal structural damage in the past from earthquakes. in particular the 
1983 Coalinga earthquake. which was felt in Selma. The damage done to an unrein forced 
masonry building was absorbed by the building 'S owner. 

Flood/Levee Failure 

Fresno Count} (Selma I ,\nn~" 1.13 
\Iulu-l urisdiclhmal Hazard \f itigation Plan 



Selma has not historically been subject to significant flooding. The mapped flood hazard area for

a 10O-year event includes one small area in the northwestern pan of the City. The special flood

hazard area contains l8 homes.

There is often localized flooding during healy rain events due to the sheer amount of
precipitation and the limited capacity of storm drainage system facilities, capacity issues, or

failed operation of storm drain pumps. The City of Selma received American Recovery and

Reiltvesrment Act ( ARR.A,) tunding to take a majority of the pumps off line and divert runot]'

tiom the Consolidated Irrigation District's (CID) canal system to Rockwell pond. The City is

also currently working to divert the remaining pump stations to master planned retention basins.

The Cit-v has prepared emergency response action plans for the remaining pump stations still

active. Areas ollocalized flooding are illustrated in Figure J.4.

According to FEMA',s 2016 Flood Insurance study (FIS), the flood history of Selma is not well

documented, but flooding reponedly occurred in the area in 1950, 1958, 1967.1969, and 1978.

In March 1958, nearly two inches of rain in less than a day clogged storm sewers and caused

flooding in the central part of the City. In other floods, water has entered basements. sewer lines

have backed up, and water has ponded in commercial and residential areas. Streets, lawns, and

basements have been damaged; traffic has been disrupted: businesses have closed temporarily:

and flood fighting has been necessary. Flooding has generally been short in duration (ponded

areas being exceptions) and most damage has been considered minor.

More recently there has been major damage and some localized flooding from storms:

. May 200S-Drainage ditch almost overflowed; localized street flooding occurred'

. January 2006-Heavy rain caused much damage to homes and businesses in Selma'

Values at Risk

Following the methodology described in Section ,1.3.2 Vulnerability of Fresno County to

Specitic Hazards, a flood map for the City of Selma was created (see Figure J.5). Table J.l0

summarizes the values at risk in the City's 1O0-year floodplain as well as loss estimates flor the I

percent annual chance flood event.

Figure J.4: City of Selma Hazard Mitigation Flooding lntersections

Frcsno Coun$ {Sclma,
Vuhi-Jurisdictional Hazard Miliga on Plan

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 34

Selma has not historically been subject to significant fl ooding. The mapped flood hazard area for 
a I OO-yea r e\'ent includes one small area in the northwestern part of the City, The special flood 
hazard area contains 18 homes, 

There is often localized fl ooding during heavy rain events due to the sheer amount of 
precipitation and the limi ted capacity of storm drainage system facilities, capacity issues, or 
failed operation of storm drain pumps, The City of Selma received American Recovery and 
Reinvestment Act (ARRA) funding to take a majority of the pumps off line and divert runoff 
from the Conso lidated Irrigation District's (CID) canal system to Rockwell pond, The City is 
also cUlTently working to divert the remaining pump stations to master planned retention basins, 
The City has prepared emergency response action plans for the remaining pump stati ons still 
active, Areas of localized flooding are illustrated in Figure 1.4. 

According to FEMA's 2016 Flood Insurance Study (FIS), the fl ood history of Selma is not well 
documented, but fl ooding rcpolledly occurred in the area in 1950, 1958, 1967, 1969, and 1978, 
In March 1958, nearly two inches of rain in less than a day clogged storm sewers and caused 
fl ooding in the central pall of the City, In other fl oods, water has entered basements. sewer lines 
have backed up, and water has ponded in commercial and residential areas. Streets, lawns, and 
basements have been damaged; traffic has been disrupted: businesses have clo ed temporarily: 
and flood fighting has been necessary, Flooding has generally been short in duration (ponded 
areas being exceptions) and most damage has been considered minor. 

More recently there has been major damage and some localized fl ooding from storms: 

• May 200- Drainage ditch almost overflowed; localized street flooding occurred, 

• January 2006-Heavy rain caused much damage to homes and businesses in Selma. 

Values at Risk 

Following the methodology described in Section 4,3.2 Vulnerability of Fresno County to 
Specitic Hazards, a flood map for th e City of Selma was created (see Figure 1.5), Table 1, I 0 
summari zes the va lues at risk in the City's 100-year fl oodplain as well as loss estimates for the I 
percent annual chance flood event. 

Figure J ,4: City of Selma Hazard Mitigation Flooding Intersections 

Frc~no Count} (Selma ) 
\l ulll·)uri!><hcti,lnalll3zaru \ 'Iitigation Plan 

\ nn~" J. J.I 



City of Selma
Hazard Mitigation

Flood i ng I ntersections

i

-n

t

.. a

a

a.'-, .
I

,. .
a'

L-
--_--;-!'._1 .

*t?
-l t-

r
.-1

;-a

a

Selma City Limits

Streels
Union Pacific RR

Flooding Areas
Elementary Schools
iiliddle School
High Schools

+-

Figure J.5: City of Selma's '100-Year Floodplains

Frcsno Counry (Sclma)

}lulti-Jtlrisdiclional Hazard Mitigarion Plan

Anncr J.l5

--
I

tl

t__

:

I

i

!

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 35

City of Selma 
Hazard Mitigation 

Flooding Intersections 

~I -. -I 

------, Selma City Limits 
Streets 
Union Pacific RR 

• Flooding Areas 
Elementary Schools 
Middle School 
High Schools 

- , 

Figure J.S: City of Selma's 1 DO-Year Floodplains 

Fresno County (Se lma) 
Multi·Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan 

. 

- . . - . 

'_. 
I • • ,-
= -=--, 

'- -
, .• .t ' .. . ~ 

" 

-

I 

, /, 
, .,' \.,-

/ - -1 
, 

• I 

I----- ~ 
II 

, -. 

Annex 1.15 



3

;., 2.
IE5-! I -E6!E ! i o !.: e
3* i E 3 E: E i

il rilli:
a

-, t

0l
It

I Annual Hazard by

lmproved Value Content Value Total Value Loss EstimatePraperty Type

Residential s1.953.999 5977,000 5732,75018

18 51,953,999 S977,OOO s2,930,999 s712,75O16Total

!

a
!
o
N(!
I
!oo
Lt

tu
LJ-

o
E
oa

€.
lrs

"35iiEei
:E-!€
iE"Ei
5E 5:
d! l>
!E3H

..9
Table J.10: of

Fresno 201 and Assessor data; 2009

Based on this analysis, the City of Selma does have assets at risk to the 100-year flood. There are

t6 improved parcels located in the 100-year flood hazard area for a total value of roughly $2-9

million. There are no additional improved parcels in the 500-year floodplain.

Fr6no Count-'" ( Sclma)
Vulti-Junsdictional Hazard Mitigadon PIan

Anncx J.l6

E

q
:

;

E

t

Type

Building
CountCount

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 36

en 
"E 
C1l 
N 
C1l 
I 
"'C 
o 
o 

LL 
<{ 
~ 
W 
LL 
C1l 
E 
Q) 

Cf) 

Table J.10: City of 

Property Type 

• ~ 
~ ~ ~ ~ 

~ " ~ ! ~ 

~ I 
.. 

I'. • ! 
~ 

~ 

. 
~ 
0 or 

• • • • • • 

~ 
J • < E · ~ .. 

• • • ~ j ~ • < ~ .. ~ ~ r ~ r-, f-, 
• L.,j L.J • 

· . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• •••••• • 

• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• • • 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 

FEMA 1% Annual 

'"\ • • . .J · ~-
~~ 

• 
• 
• 
• 
• • 
• 
• • · -~~ : · ~ . . . . . . " ... 

~ 

\ 

• 

Improved Value Content Value 

• 

\ 

, 

Total Value Loss Estimate 

Based on this analysis, the City of Selma does have assets at risk to the I DO-year flood. There are 
16 improved parcels located in the I DO-year flood hazard area for a total value of roughly $2.9 
million . There are no additional improved parcels in the SOD-year fl oodplain. 

Fresno County (Selma) Annex 1.16 
\ 1ult;·jurisdiclil)nal Hazard Miligalion Plan 

z ....;;( 



Applying the 25 percent damage factor as described in Section 4.3.2. there is a I percent chance

in any given year of a 1O0-year (or 500-year) flood causing roughly $732.750 in damage in the

City of Selma.

Limitations: This model may include struchrres in the floodplains that are elevated at or above

the level of the base-flood elevation. which will likely mitigate flood damage. Also. the assessed

values are well below the actual market values. Thus. the actual value of a^ssets at risk may be

sigrrificantly higher than those included herein.

lnsurance Coverage, Claims Paid, and Repetitive Losses

The City of Selma has a flood insurance rate map but is not currently participating in the

National Flood Insurance Program. According to the FEMA Community Infonnation System

accessed 9ll7l20l8 there are no Repetitive Loss or Severe Repetitive Loss properties located in

the jurisdiction.

Population et Risk

Using parcet data from the County and the digital flood insurance rate map. population at risk

was calculated for the 100-year and 500-year floods based on the number of residential

properties at risk and the average number of persons per household (3.17). The following are at

risk to flooding in the City of Selma:

o 10O-year flood-51 people

o 500-year flood--{ people

o Total flood-51 people

Critical Facilities at Risk

Critical facilities are those community components that are most needed to withstand the impacts

of disaster as prer.iously described. According to data from Fresno County GIS and the digital

flood insurance rate map, there are no critical facilities in Selma's flood hazard area.

Hazardous Materials lncident

Two major transportation aneries of statewide significance travcrse Selma-a main line of the

Southem Pacific Raitroad and State Highw,ay 99. These routes are both heavily used and arc

frequentty used to transport hazardous materials that could represent a risk to the community if
involved in a transportation accident. Land uses along the transportation routes are diverse. Of
specific concem is the Police Department. which is located just a few feet from the railroad line

and is the old train depot. One of the two fire stations is located one street way. Other areas of
concem related to train derailment include the buried pipes and utilities that run along the tracks,

poor crossings, and grade separation. Another transportation hazard is a small. two runway,

Frcsno Counry (S.lma)
vulli-Jurisdictbnal flazar,l Mirig.tion Plan

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 37

Applying the 25 percent damage factor as dcscribed in Section 4.3.2. there is a I percent chance 
in any given year of a I ~O-year (or SOD-year) nood causing roughly $732.750 in damage in the 
City of Selma. 

limitations: This model may include stntctures in the noodplains that are elevated at or abO\'e 
the level of the base-nood elevation. which will likely mitigate nood damage. Also. the assessed 
values are well below the actual market va lues. Thus. the actual value of assets at risk may be 
significantly higher than those included herein. 

Insurance Coverage, Claims Paid, and Repetitive Losses 

Thc City of Selma has a nood insurance rate map but is not currently parnclpatll1g in the 
ational Flood Insurance Program. According to the FEMA Community Information System 

accessed 911 7/20 I 8 there are no Repetitive Loss or Sevcre Repetitive Loss properties located in 
the jurisdiction. 

Population at Risk 

Using parcel data from the County and the digital nood insurance rate map. population at risk 
was calculated for the I DO-year and SOD-year noods based on the number of residential 
properties at risk and the average number of persons per household (3 . I 7). The following are at 
risk to nooding in the City of Selma: 

• I DO-year flood-51 people 

• SOD-year nood-{) people 

• Total flood-51 people 

Critical Facilities at Risk 

Critical facilities are those community components that are most needed to withstand the impacts 
of disaster as previously described. According to data from Fresno County GIS and the digital 
nood insurance rate map. there are no critical facilities in Selma 's flood hazard area. 

Hazardous Materials Incident 

Two major transportation arteries of statcwide significance traverse Selma- a main line of thc 
Southern Pacific Railroad and State Highway 99. Thesc routes are both heavily uscd and arc 
frequently used to transport hazardous materia ls that could represent a risk to the community if 
involved in a transportation accident. Land uses along the transportation routes are diverse. Of 
specific concern is the Police Department. which is located just a few feet from the railroad line 
and is the old train depot. One of the two fire stations is located one street way . Other areas of 
concem related to train derailment include the buried pipes and utilities that run along the tracks, 
poor crossings, and grade separation. Another transportation hazard is a small. two runway, 

Fresno County (Sd ma ) Ann!.!x J.17 
\l ulti ·Jurisdictional IIa ... .aru Mitigal ion Pl an 



privately owned airport located mro miles northwest of Selma that provides service to private

planes.

The planning team identified two plane crashes and two major transponation-related hazardous

materials spills in the pa-st:

January 1991-Three big tnrcks, one loaded with toxic chemicals, collided on Highway 99

in Selma. This collision caused an explosion that closed down the highrvay and killed two

people and injured a third. A nearby elementary school was closed the day atier the accident.

October 1996-A tieight train carrying household paint. baneries. compressed gas

cylinders. and pesticides derailed nonh of Selma spilling t00 gallons of diesel fuel. There

were no injuries: five area residerrts rvere evacuated.

November 2000-A plane crash at the Selma Airport resulted in one death and critically

injured one person.

January 2008-A single plane crash on the edge of the City limits resulted in one death.

There are rwo CaIARP hazardous materials facilities located in the City of Selma. As identified

in Table J.11. there are five critical facilities in Selma located within a half mile of a CaIARP

facility.

Table J.11: Critical Facilities within % mile of CaIARP Facility: City of Selma

Cntacal Facility Type Count
Fire Station 1

Nursing Home 1

1

Sheriff 1

Urgent Care 1

Total 5

Source: Fresno County. HIFLD 2017

Severe Weather: Extreme Cold/Freeze

The City of Selma experiences freezes that mosdy affect the agricultural economy of Selma.

Extreme cold also increases the energy demand. poses a threat to human health. and can cause

damage to underground water piping throughout the City. Past freezcs occurred in, I 990, I 991 '
1998, and 2007. Warming centers were opened up for many ofthese freezes to help the public.

l99l and 1990-These freczes caused catastrophic damage to the crops in the San Joaquin

Valley and received presidential disaster declarations.

December f998-A freezc, accompanied by black ice and snow, causcd numerous vehicle

accidents in the area and required response liom Selma's public safety services. The freeze

Frcsno count, {selma)
yoki-Jurildicrional Hazard Mitigariofl Plan

\nnc\ J.lS

Police

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 38

privately owned airpon locatcd two miles nonhwest of Selma that providcs service to private 
planes. 

The planning team identified two plane crashes and two major transponation-related hazardous 
materia ls spills in the past: 

• January 1991- Three big tmcks, one loaded with toxic chemica ls, collided on Highway 99 
in Selma. This collision caused an explosion that closed down the highway and killed two 
people and injured a third . A nearby elementary school was closed the day after the accident. 

• October 1996--A freight train carrying household paint. batteries, compressed gas 
cylinders. and pesticides derailed nonh of Selma spilling 100 gallons of diesel fuel. There 
were no injuries; five area residents were evacuated. 

• November 2000--A plane crash at the Selma Airpon resulted in one death and critically 
injured one person. 

• January 2008--A single plane crash on the edge of the City limits resulted ill one death . 

There are two CalARP hazardous materials facilities located in the City of Selma. As identified 
in Table J.II. there are five critical faci lities in Selma located within a ha lf mile of a CalARP 
facility. 

Table J.11 : Critical Facilities within Y, mile of CalARP Facility: City of Selma 

Critical Facility Type I Count 
Fire Station 1 

Nursing Home 1 

Police 1 

Sheriff 1 

Urgent Care 1 

Total 5 
Source. Fresno County, HIFLD 2017 

Severe Weather: Extreme Cold/Freeze 

The City of Selma experiences freezes that mostly affect the agricultural economy of Selma. 
Extreme cold also increases the energy demand. poses a threat to human health. and can cause 
damage to underground water piping throughout the City. Past freezes occurred in, 1990, 1991 , 
1998, and 2007. Warming centers were opened up for many of these freezes to help the public. 

• 1991 and 1990--These freezes caused catastrophic damage to the crops in the San Joaquin 
Va ll ey and received presidential d isaster declarations. 

• December 1998-A freeze, accompanied by black ice and snow, caused numerous vehicle 
accidents in the area and required response from Selma's public safety services . The freeze 

Fresno Count} (Selma) o\nn~ 't J.lS 
\lulti-Junsdicli o.>nal Hazard Mitigation rl:m 



was also devastating to the valley's agricultural sector and resultcd in a presidential disaster

declaration.

January f I-17,2007-This fieeze, u'hich received a presidential disaster declaration. had a

huge economic impact on the City of Selma and many human service resources were used

throughout the rest ofthe year. Impacts included crop damage and unemployment.

December 2016-{alifomia growers spent over S25 million in December to protecl their

crops from a post-rain cold snap. Though it was cold in the San Joaquin Valley - down to

23 degrecs in parts of theof the Valley, according to the National Weather Senice - it
wasn't the ice-box along the eastern foothills t'rom Fresno County to Kem County.

Severe Weather: E*reme Heat

Extreme heat events are primarily an issue of human health in Selma, particularly for the

homeless. senior citizens, agricultural workers. people with decreased health status. and lower

income citizens. Along with the extreme heat comes worsened air quality tbr the Central Valley

region, which increases the chances of respiratory emergencies. Other rnajor impacts of extreme

heat events are agriculoral losses, which atl'ect the local economy in Selma. and increased water

and energy demand, which results in increased operating costs.

The City operates cooling centers and uses the Connect CTY. a computerized telephone and e-

mail notification system. to notiry people ofthe issue and locations ofthe centers. The City also

provides a transit system that can take citizens to the cooling centers. Summer temperatures in

Selma can exceed 105.F and usually occur for a few days in a row, which is when cooling

cenrers are opened. The Senior Center keeps a list of older adults to check up on. which is very

helpful during this type of emergency as well as others.

cooling centers were opened for extreme heat in selma in 2007 and 2005. other extreme heat

years include 2016. 2015, 2014, 2003. 2002. and 1999. ln mid-July 2006, a stretch of days with

l00oF plus temperatures damaged crops, especially tomatoes, tree fruit. and grapes. It also led to

a sharp increase in the number of mosquitoes infected with West Nile virus in the valley. The

time period ofJanuary 2016 through December 2016 was the 3rd warmest year on record for

California. according to NOAA's National Centers for Environmental hrformation (NCEI).

California saw 201.1 as the warmest year on record.

Severe Weather: Fog

Fog is a yearly occurrence around Selma and is a hazatd that the City of Selma has learned to

respond to. The City itself has fog that reduces visibiliry and can cause vehicle accidents. In

addition, Selma's public safety personnel often have to respond to major accidents on the

highways around Selma. This drains the [oca[ resources arvay from the City.

To try to combat this issue, the Selma Unified School system is on a "foggy day" schedule,

which entails starting school later in the moming after a fog has lifted. Also, the Califomia

Frcsno Count) {schu)
\lulti-Jurisdiclional Hrard ]\lhigarion Pl.n

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 39

was also devastating to the valley's agricultural scctor and resultcd in a presidential disaster 
declaration. 

• January 11 -1 7,2007- This freeze. which received a presidential disaster declaration. had a 
huge economic impact on the City of Selma and many human service rcsources were used 
throughout thc rest of the year. Impacts included crop damage and unemployment. 

• December 20 16--Califomia growers spent over S25 million in December to protect their 
crops from a post-rain cold snap. Though it was cold in the San Joaquin Valley - down to 
23 degrccs in pans of the of the Valley, according to the ational Weather Service - it 
wasn' t the ice-box along the eastern foothills from Fresno County to Kern County. 

Severe Weather: Extreme Heat 

Extreme heat events are primarily an Issue of human health in Selma, particularly for the 
homeless. senior citizens, agricultural workers. people with decreased health status. and lower 
income citizens. Along with the extreme heat comes worsened air quality for the Central Valley 
region, which increases the chances of respiratory emergencies. Other major impacts of extreme 
heat events are agricultural losses, which affect the local economy in Selma. and increased water 
and energy demand, which results in increased operating costs. 

The City operates cooling centers and use thc Connect CTY, a computerized telephone and e
mail notification system, to notify people of the issue and locations of the centers. The City also 
provides a transit system that can take citizens to the cooling centers. Summer temperatures in 
Selma can exceed 105°F and usually occur for a few days in a row, which is when cooling 
centers are opened. The Senior Center keeps a list of older adults to check up on, which is very 
helpful during this type of emergency as well as others. 

Cooling centers were opened for extreme heat in Selma in 2007 and 2005. Other extreme heat 
years include 2016, 2015, 2014. 2003. 2002. and 1999. In mid-July 2006. a stretch of days with 
lOO°F plus temperatures damaged crops. espec ially tomatoes. tree fruit. and grapes. It also led to 
a sharp increase in the number of mosquitoes infected with West ile virus in the valley. The 
time period of January 2016 through December 2016 was the 3rd warmest year on record for 
California. accordi ng to OAA's National Centers for Environmental In fDlmation ( CEI). 
California saw 20 14 as the warmest year on record. 

Severe Weather: Fog 

Fog is a yearly occurrence around Se lma and is a hazard that the City of Selma has learned to 
respond to . The City itself has fog that reduces visibility and can cause vehicle accidents. In 
addition, Selma's public safety personnel often havc to respond to major accidents on the 
highways around Selma. This drains the local resources away from the City. 

To try to combat this issue, the Selma Unified School system is on a "foggy day" schedule, 
which entails starting school later in the morning after a fog has lifted. Also, the California 

Fresno Count} (Selma) \nn~'( J.19 
\lu lli·Juris<iiclilmal ~la7.ard Mitigation Plan 



Highway Patrol and Califomia Department of Transportation work together on public education,

press releases, pace cars, and signs for safer highway driving.

Some major accidents in the area attributed to fog include the following:

o November 26, f 989-21 vehicle pileup on Highway 99 near Selma, l4 people injured

o January 23, 1990---60+ vehicle pileup on Highrvay 99 north of Selma. five deaths

. February 7, l99l-Multiple vehicle pileup on Highway 99 between Selma and Fresno.

three deaths. 30 people injured
. January 1994-56 vehicle pileup on Highway 99 near Selma, trvo deaths. 42 people injured

o November 1998-74 vehicle pileup on Highway 99, ru'o deaths, 5l people injured

o November 200G-Small private plane crash, I death. I critically injured person

. Februar.v 2002-87 vehicle pileup on Highway 99 near Selma, three deaths, 5l people

injured
o November 2007-102 vehicle pileup on Northbound Highway 99, nryo deaths, over 30

people injured

. January 2017-At least 40 vehicles rvere involved in multiple crashes in dense fog on

Highway 198 in Kings County

Severe Weather: Heavy Rain/Thunderstorm/Hail/Lightning

There has been maior damage and some localized t)ooding from storms during February 1992.

February l998..April 1999, May 2005, January and March of 2006, and January and February of
20 | 7(see also Flood section above).

o February 1992-The City of Selma's ambulance resources were used to respond to four

accidents in a chain-reaction on Highway 99 due to healy rain and hail. There were 12

vehicles involved in these near Fowler with only minor injuries to l2 people and no deaths.

. Februar-v 1998-A storm downed trees and power lines. damaged cars and homes, and

caused power outages.

. April 1999-A week of cold, wet, and windy weather with hail caused some crop damage in

the area.

. lllay 200$-A ditch almost overflowed, localized street flooding was reported. and houses

were struck by lightning.
r January 2006-Heavy rains caused much of the damage to homes and businesses.

r March 2006-Extreme winds caused much of the damage, especially to a mobile home

Park.

. Jan[ary 2017-In Fresno County, rvest of Selma. the intersection of Clovis Avenue and

Conejo intersection flooded with several inches of water all across the road.

Frcsno Countr (s.lma)
\lulti-lurisdicrionrl Hazard Mrtigarion Plan

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 40

Highway Patrol and California Department of Transportation work together on public education, 
press releases, pace cars, and signs for safer highway driving . 

Some major accidents in the area attributed to fog include the following: 

• November 26, \989- 2 I vehicle pileup on Highway 99 near Selma, 14 people injured 

• January 23, 1990-----<i0+ vehicle pileup on Highway 99 north of Selma, five deaths 

• February 7, 1991- Multiple vehicle pileup on Highway 99 between Selma and Fresno. 
three deaths. 30 people injured 

• Jan uary 1994- 56 vehicle pileup on Highway 99 near Selma, two deaths. 42 people injured 

• November 1998- 74 vehicle pileup on Highway 99, two deaths, S I people injured 

• November 2000-Small private plane crash, I death. I critically injured person 

• February 2002- 87 vehicle pileup on Highway 99 near Selma, three deaths. 5 I people 
injured 

• ovember 2007- 102 vebicle pileup on Northbound Highway 99, two deaths, over 30 
people injured 

• Janua ry 2017- At least 40 vehicles were involved III mUltiple crashes III dense fog on 
Highway 198 in Kings County 

Severe Weather: Heavy RainfThunderstorm/Hail/Lightning 

There has been major damage and some localized flooding from storms during February 1992. 
February 1998. April 1999, May 2005. January and March of2006, and January and February of 
20 I 7(see also Flood section above). 

• February 1992-The City of Selma's ambulance resources were used to respond to four 
accidents in a chain-reaction on Highway 99 due to heavy rain and hail. There were 12 
vehicles involved in these near Fowler with only minor injuries to 12 people and no deaths. 

• February 1998- A stonn downed trees and power lines. damaged cars and homes, and 
caused power outages. 

• April 1999-A week of cold. wet, and windy weather with hail caused some crop damage in 
the area. 

• May 2005--A ditch almost overflowed. localized street flooding was reported. and houses 
were struck by lightning. 

• January 2006-Heavy rains caused much of the damage to homes and businesses. 

• March 2006-Extreme winds caused much of the damage, especially to a mobile home 
park. 

• January 2017- ln Fresno County . west of Selma. the intersection of Clovis Avenue and 
Conejo intersection flooded with several inches of water all across thc road. 

Fresno County (Selmal 
\l ulti-Jurisdictillnal llal.arJ Mitigalion Illan 

Ann.:x J.20 



February 2017-Heavy, persistent rainfall across northem and central California created

substantial property and infrastructure damage from tlooding, landslides and erosion

J.4 Capability Assessment

Capabilities are the programs and policies currently in use to reduce hazard impacts or that could

be used to implement hazard mitigation activities. This capabilities assessment is divided into

five sections: regulatory mitigation capabilities, administrative and technical mitigation

capabilities. fiscal mitigation capabilities, mitigation outreach and pannerships. and other

mitigation efforts.

To develop this capability assessment, the jurisdictional planning representatives used a matnx

of commorr mitigation activities to inventory which of these policies or programs were in place.

The team then supplemented this inventory by reviewing additional existing policies,

regulations, plans, and programs to determine if they contributed to reducing hazard-related

losses.

During the plan update process. this inventory was reviewed by the jurisdictional planning

representatives and Amec Foster Wheeler consultant team staff to update information where

applicable and note ways in which these capabilities have improved or expanded. Additionally,
in summarizing current capabilities and identifuing gaps, the jurisdictional planning

representatives also considered their ability to expand or improve upon existing policies and

programs as potential neu' mitigation strategies. The City of Sclma's updated capabilities are

summarized below.

J.4.1 Regulatory Mitigation Capabilities

Table J.12 lists regulatory rnitigation capabilities, including planning and land management

tools. typically used by local jurisdictions to implement hazard nritigation activities and indicates

those that are in place in Selma.

Regulatory Tool Yes/No Comments
General plan Yes 20'10. cunenlly being updated

zoning ordinance Yes N,larch 2008, cunently being updated

Subdivision ordinance No

Site plan review requirements Yes Title Xl, chapter 20.1

Growlh management ordinance No

No

Other special purpose ordinance (storm water,
water conservation, wildfi re)

Yes Water conservation ordinance adopted but
cannot enforce
Title Vlll. cha I

Building code Yes 2016 Califomia Building Standards Code

Fresno County (sehn:)
Vul Jurisdicrional tl.Iz,rni Mitigation Pl.n

Table J.12: City of Selma's Regulatory Mitigation Capabilities

Floodplain ordinance

Anfl.1l.:l

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 41

• February 20 17- Heavy, persistent rainfall across northern and central California created 
substantial property and infrastructure damage from flooding, landslides and erosion 

J.4 Capability Assessment 

Capabilities are the programs and policies cun-ently in use to reduce hazard impacts or that could 

be used to implement hazard mitigation activities. This capabilities assessment is divided into 
five sections: regulatory mitigation capabilities, administrative and technical mitigation 
capabilities. fiscal mitigation capabilities, mitigation outreach and partnerships. and other 
mitigation efforts. 

To develop this capability assessment. the jurisdictional planning representatives used a matrix 

of common mitigation activities to inventory which of these policies or programs were in place. 
The team Ihen supplemented this inventory by reviewing additional existing policies, 
regulalions, plans, and programs to detennine if they contributed to reducing hazard-related 
losses . 

During the plan update process. this inventOlY was reviewed by the jurisdictional planning 
representatives and Amec Fostcr Wheeler consultant tcam staff to update infonnation where 

applicable and note ways in which these capabilities have improved or expanded. Additionally, 

in summarizing cun-ent capabilities and identiJYing gaps, the jurisdictional planning 
representativcs also considered their ability to expand or improve upon existing policies and 
programs as potential new mitigation trategics. The City of Selma 's updated capabi lities are 
summarized bclow. 

J.4.1 Regulatory Mitigation Capabilities 

Table 1.12 lists regulatory mitigation capabilities, including planning and land management 
tools. typically used by local jurisdictions to implement hazard mitigation activities and indicates 

those thai are in place in Selma. 

Table J .12: City of Selma's Regulatory Mitigation Capabilities 

Regulatory Tool YesINo Comments 
General plan Yes 2010, currently being updated 

Zoning ordinance Yes March 2008, currently being updated 

Subdivision ordinance No 

Site plan review requirements Yes T ille XI, chapter 20 .1 

Growth management ordinance No 

Floodplain ordinance No 

Other special purpose ordinance (stann water, Yes Water conservation ordinance adopted but 
water conservation, wiktfire ) cannot enforce 

Title VIII, chaater 9 
Building code Yes 2016 Califomia Building Standards Code 

Fresno Count}' (Sdmll) o\nno:'( 1 : I 
\ lulti-Juri:-dictl0nal Ila.r.arJ Mitigalion Plan 



Fire department ISO rating Yes Rating;3

Erosion or sediment control program No

Storm water manaqement program TiUe lX. chapter I
Sometimes cannot keep up with the large
volumes that come with winter storms. especially
if electricity is lost-

Capital improvements plan Yes TiUe lX

Economic development plan Yes 2003

Local emergency management plan Yes 1989

Flood lnsurance Study or other engineering
study for streams

Yes FEMA Flood lnsurance Study, 2016

Elevation certificates No

City of Selma General Plan, 2010

The City of Selma's General Plan guides the City's development and groivth. The Safety,

Consenation and Open Space, and Sat'ety. Public Sen'ices. and Facilities elements contain goals

and policies related to rnitigation. These mitigation-related goals and policies are included below.

Safety Element

The Safety Element was adopted to provide for the protection of residents of the Selma

community from natural and manmade hazards. It identifies a range of hazards to life and

property to which the City and its residents are subject. The goals for protection of life and

property are conmon to each hazard and are, therefore, presented as the overall goals of the

Safety Element.

Goals

. To prevent loss of life and serious injury, resulting from natural or manmade hazards, to the

residents of the City of Selma.

. To prevent serious structural damage to critical facilities and structures where large numbers

of people are expected to congregate aI one time.

o To ensure the continuity ofvital services to the Selma area in case ofdisaster.

o To provide a leadership role in education on public safety.

Hazard Specific Objectives and Policies

Se is m i c Safe g O bj e ct i ve s

o Identifu risks to the City of Selma from seismic hazards.

o Establish and maintain a ptan to minimize identified risks from seismic hazards.

o Establish and maintain a plan for responding to seismic disaster and for the provision of
emergency services.

o To adopt a Seismic Impact Transportation Plan reflecting primary and secondary disaster

access routes and designating appropriate evacuation routes.

Sei:'n i( Srtlb,r PoIi. ies

Frc:sno County lSdlmat
vulti-Juridict,rnal Hazrd Mitigafon Plan

\nnt\ l:l

Yes

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 42

Fire department ISO rating Yes Rating:3 

Erosion or sediment control program No 

Storm water management program Yes Title IX, chapter 9 
Sometimes cannot keep up with the large 
volumes that come with winter storms, especially 
if electricity is lost. 

Capital improvements plan Yes Title IX 

Economic development plan Yes 2003 

Loca l emergency management plan Yes 1989 

Flood Insurance Study or other engineering Yes FEMA Flood Insurance Study, 2016 
study for streams 
Elevation certificates No 

City of Selma General Plan, 2010 

The City of Selma's General Plan guides the City's de\'elopment and growth. The Safety, 
Conservation and Open Space, and Safety, Public Services. and Facilities elements contain goals 
and policies related to mitigation. These mitigation-related goals and poli cies are included below. 

Safety Element 

The Safety Element was adopted to provide for the protection of residents of the Selma 
community from natural and manmade hazards . [t identifies a range of hazards to life and 
propelty to which the City and its rcsidents are subject. The goals for protection of li fe and 
property arc common to each hazard and are, therefore, presented as the overall goals of the 
Safety Element. 

Goals 

• To prevent loss of life and serious injury, resulting from natural or manmade hazards, to the 
residents of the City of Selma. 

• To prevent serious structural damage to critical fac ilities and structures where large numbers 
of people are expected to congregate at one time. 

• To ensure the continuity of vital services to the Selma area in case of disaster. 

• To provide a leadership role in education on public safety. 

Hazard Specific Objectives and Policies 

Seismic Safetv Objeclil'es 

• Identify risks to the City of Selma from seismic hazards. 

• Establish and maintain a plan to minimize identified risks from seismic hazards. 
• Establish and maintain a plan for responding to seismic disaster and for the provision of 

emergency services. 
• To adopt a Seismic Impact Transportation Plan reflecting primary and secondary disaster 

access routes and designating appropriate evacuation routes. 

Seismic Safel)" Policies 

Fresno Count> (Sdmal Ann~'{ J.22 
\luhl-Jurisdiclh.mal Hazard \I iligation Plan 



. The Safety Element shall be reviewed and updated periodically. Upon adoption of the

lnterim Safety Element, the City should review and update the plan within one year and

every five years thereafter.

r The City shall develop and adopt an Emergency Operations Plan which shall include action

plans in the event ofan earthquake disaster. Emergency evacuation routes should be included

in thr"' plan.

r The City shall maintain and continue to update. with the County of Fresno and other

agencies, an Emergency Sewices Plan. Included in the plan should be:

- Provision for control and direction ofemergency operations.

- Provision for continuity ofgovernmental services.

- Program to coordinate the repair and restoration of essential systems and services.

- Coordination ofemergency operations with other jurisdictions,

o The City should establish an inspection program to identify and inventory all existing

unreinforced masonry structures in the City.
o The City should implement a program to abate all identified dangerous buildings.

. Emergency comrnunication centers, fire stations, and other emergency service or critical

facilities should be examined to determine earthquake resistance. A program to mitigate

deficient facilities should be established.

. Emergency procedures should be identified for public and private utiliry districts.

. Primary and secondary hazards from seismic activity should be evaluated in all

environmental assessment and reporting processes.

. The list of critical facilities for the City of Selma in Appendix D of the Summary and Policy

Recommendations of the Five County Seismic Report, shall be reviewed and updated.

r Critical facitities shall be designed to the standards established by the Uniform Buildilg
Code for such facilities. Critical facilities means essential facilities as provided in the

Uniform Building Code.

o The City shall continue to adopt current issues of the Uniform Building Code and implement

the seismic design standards provided by the Code.

r Seismic safery information should be made available to the general public. School districts

and agencies related to aged, handicapped, and seismically susceptible industries should be

encouraged to develop education programs for seismic awareness.

o The Technical Report of the Five County Seismic Study should be made available to

planning projects in the City of Selma.

o The Seismic Impact Transportation Plan designates the following disaster transportation

routes.

Geol ogica l SaJen O b i e ct ive s

. To provide a safe environment for buildlng construction through knowledge and

undcrstanding of soil and land rcsources.

GeoIogicaI Salen PoIit'ies

Frcsno Coun*- (Selma)

\lulti-Jurisdictionai Hazard }lirigarion Plan

{nn.\ J.:,r

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 43

o The Safety Element shall be reviewed and updated periodically. Upon adoption of the 
Lnterim Safety Element. the City should review and update the plan within one year and 
every five years thereafter. 

o The City shall develop and adopt an Emergency Operations Plan which shall include action 
plans in the event of an earthquake disaster. Emergency evacuation routes should be included 
in the plan. 

o The City shall maintain and continue to update. with the County of Fresno and other 
agencies, an Emergency Services Plan. Included in the plan should be: 

Provision for control and direction of emergency operations. 

Provision for continuity of governmental services. 

Program to coordinate the repair and restoration of essential systems and services. 

Coordination of emergency operations with other jurisdictions, 

o The City should establish an inspection program to identi fy and inventory all existing 
unrein forced masonry stmctures in the City. 

o The City should implement a program to abate all identified dangerous buildings. 

o Emergency communication centers, fire stations. and other emergency service or critical 
facilities should be examined to determine earthquake resistance. A program to mitigate 
deficient facilities should be established. 

o Emergency procedures should be identified for public and private utility districts. 

o Primary and secondary hazards from seismic activity should be evaluated III all 
environmental assessment and reporting processes. 

o The list of critical facilities for the City of Selma in Appendix D of the Summary and Policy 
Recommendations of the Five County Seismic Report. shall be reviewed and updated . 

o Critical facilities shall be designed to the standards established by the Unifonn Building 
Code for such facilities . Critical facilities means essential facilities as provided in the 
Unifoml Building Code. 

o The City shall continue to adopt current issues of the Uniform Building Code and implement 
the seismic design standards provided by the Code. 

o Seismic safety information shou ld be made available to the general public. School districts 
and agencies related to aged, handicapped. and se ismically susceptible industries should be 
encouraged to develop education programs for seismic awareness . 

o The Technical Report of the Five County Seismic Study should be made available to 
planning projects in the City of Selma. 

o The Seismic Impact Transponation Plan designates the following disaster transportation 

routes. 

Geological Safety Objectives 

o To provide a safe environment for building constmction through knowledge and 
understanding of soil and land resources. 

Geological Safety Policies 

Fn."Sno Count) (Selma) 
\l uili·)uri«dicu<)nalll:lLard \1it;gal;on Plan 

Ann..:" 1.23 



Detailed mapping and analysis ofidentified areas ofgeologic hazard shall be provided. Areas

identified with a "severe" rating for allowable soil pressures or high corrosivity soil

characteristics should be mapped for City staff use in new development project

consideration.

Continue to enforce the Uniform Building Code in all matters related to soil preparation and

foundation requirements.

F I ood Safe4, Obj e ct ive s

. Minimize the hazards of localized sheet flooding resulting from prolonged rainfall and

stormwater nrnoff.
. Promote and become instrumental in coordinating the inclusion of a dam failure component

to a regional disaster plan.

Flood Safeo Policies

o The CiV of Selma shall evaluate territories within its sphere of influence to identify areas of
potential localized flood hazards.

o In areas identified as being potentially subject to flooding, where the exact area and depth of
flooding is uncertain, the applicant or developer of an annexation or development proposal

shall be responsible for the preparation ofa civil engineering repon evaluating the flooding
potential.

o The City of Selma shall continue to implement and administer the Master Plan for Storm

Drainage as a means ofoffsetting increased storm water runoff from urbanization.
. The City of Selma shall seek and petition the County of Fresno, Council of Fresno County

Govemments. and other agencies and cities impacted by potential dam failure to panicipate

in the completion ofa disaster plan dealing with dam failure.

. The City shall prepare a local emergency evacuation plan responding to the complete failure

of Pine Flat Dam at peak capacity. The evacuation plan shall be coordinated with other

responsible and impacted jurisdictions.

Tra n spo rt a ti o n S alb 4' O bj e cti v e s

r To maintain a responsive City stafftrained in hazardous materials incidents.

. To maintain a safe relationship beween major transportation routes and urban land uses

o To provide for land use safety in areas influenced by airports.

Transportatio n SaJ-en' Po licies

o The Ciry shall consider the impacts of potential transportation hazards upon adjacent land

uses when considering proposals fbr new or charrged urban uses.

. New public use buildings, such as, schools and hospitals. should be located a minimum of
1.000 feet from mainline rail or freewav routes.

Frcsno Counr) lSchna)
\lulri-Jurisdicdonrl Hazard Mitigation Plan

\nnc.( J.:.1

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 44

• Detailed mapping and anal ysis of identified areas of geologic hazard shall be provided. Areas 
identified with a "severe" rating for allowable soil pressures or high cOlTosivity soil 
characteristics should be mapped for City staff use in new development project 
consideration. 

• Continue to enforce the Uniform Building Code in all matters related to soil preparation and 
foundation requirements. 

Flood Safety Objectives 

• Minimize the hazards of localized sheet flooding resulting from prolonged rainfall and 
stormwater runoff. 

• Promote and become instrumental in coordinating the inclusion of a dam failure component 
to a regional disaster plan. 

Flood Safety Policies 

• The City of Selma shall evaluate territories within its sphere of influence to identify areas of 
potential localized flood hazards. 

• In areas identified as being potentially subject to flooding, where the exaet area and depth of 
flooding is uncertain, the applicant or developer of an annexation or development proposal 
shall be responsible for the preparation of a civil engineering report evaluating the flooding 
potential. 

• The City of Selma shall continue to implement and administer the Master Plan for Storm 
Drainage as a means of offsetting increased stoml water runoff from urbanization . 

• The City of Selma shall seek and petition the County of Fresno, Council of Fresno County 
Govemments. and other agencies and citie impacted by potential dam failure to participate 
in the completion of a disaster plan dealing with dam failure. 

• The City shall prepare a local emergency evacuation plan responding to the complete failure 
of Pine Flat Dam at peak capacity. The e"acuation plan shall be coordinated with other 
responsible and impacted jurisdictions. 

Transportation Safeo ' Objectives 

• To maintain a responsive City staff trained in hazardous materials incidents. 

• To maintain a safe relationship between major transportation routes and urban land uses. 

• To provide for land use safety in areas influenced by airports. 

Transportation Safetv Policies 

• The City shall consider the impacts of potential transportation hazards upon adjacent land 
uses when considering proposals for new or changed urban uses. 

• New public use buildings, such as. schools and hospitals, should be located a minimum of 
1.000 feet from mainline rail or freeway routes. 

Ffc:.no COlL",Y (Sdma) Ann\!'( J.24 
\lulti·Jurisdicti \lnal Hazard Mitigation Plan 



. The City shall continue to staff. train. and equip an emergency response team to respond and

coordinatc public safety activities. The Selma Fire Department is designated as the City's

emergcncy response team for hazardous materials incidents.

. The City shall continue to implement the airport land use plan for the Selma Aerodome.

o Nerv public use buildings should not be located within the flight path or approach zone of
airports.

Adopted new speed survey

Hazardous M ateri als Safely O bj ectires

. To reduce and contol the effects of hazardous wastes so as to promote the public health and

welfare of the Selma community.

Ha:ardous Materials Safeg, Policies

. To coordinate and cooperate with other local, state, and federal agencies with expertise and

responsibility for all aspects of hazardous wastes.

. To educate the public on the subject of hazardous wastes.

. To ensure that disaster planning for the City of Selma includes policies appropriate to

problems associated *'ith hazardous wastes.

ConseMation and Open SPace Element

This element provides guidance through policies, plans, and programs on the location and design

ofopen space in the community and in the conservation and usage ofnatural resources.

Goals

. Protect the environment.

. Provide for the usage of natural resources without causing their premaore depletion.

. Preserve prime agricultural land.

o Preserve groundwater quality and reduce overdraft conditions.

. Eliminate potential for soil erosion or degradation of its agricultural productivity.

r Limit potential threats to human health and property, which may result t'rom natural

environmental hazards.

Areas with high erosion porential or soil instability which cannot be mitigated shall be

designated for open space land uses.

Channel and slope modification shall be discouraged where they increase the rate of surface

runoff and increase the potential for erosion.

The City shall endeavor to mitigate, to the fullest extent possible, activities which will

exacerbate groundwater overdraft .

Policies

Frcsno County {selmat
Uullr-Juisdicrional Hazard Mitigation PIan

\nn.r J.l5

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 45

o The City sha ll continue to staff. train, and equip an emergency response team to respond and 
coordinatc public safety activi ties. The Selma Fire Department is designated as the City's 
emergency response team for hazardous materials incidents. 

o The City shall continue to implcment the airport land use plan for the Selma Aerodome. 

o New public use buildings should not be located within the flight path or approach zone of 
airports. 

o Adopted new speed survey 

Hazardous Malerials Safely Objectives 

o To reduce and control the effects of hazardous wastes so as to promote the public health and 
welfare of the Selma communi ty. 

Ha=ardous Malerials SafelY Policies 

o To coordinate and cooperate with other local , state, and federal agencies with expertise and 
responsibility for a ll aspects of hazardous wastes. 

o To educate the public on the subj ect of hazardous wastes. 

o To ensure that disaster planning for the City of Selma includes policies appropriate to 

problems associated with hazardous wastes. 

Conservation and Open Space Element 

This element provide guidance through policies, plans, and programs on the location and design 
of open space in the community and in the conservation and usage of namral resources. 

Goals 

o Protect the environment. 

o Provide for the usage of namral resources wi thout causing their premamre depletion. 

o Preserve prime agriculmral land. 

o Preserve groundwater quality and reduce overdraft conditions. 

o Eliminate potemial for soil erosion or degradation of its agricultural productivity. 

o Limit potential threats to human health and property, whic h may result from natural 
environmental hazards. 

Policies 

o Areas with high erosion potential or soil instability which cannot be mitigated shall be 
designated for open space land uses. 

o Channel and slope modification shall be discouraged where they increase the rate of surface 
runoff and increase the potential fo r erosion. 

o The City shall endeavor to mitigate. to the fullest extent possible. activities which will 
exacerbate groundwater overdraft. 

Fresno County (Sehnal " nnex 1.:25 
\lulti-Jurisdiclitlnal II ..ILard 'A lligation Plan 



To the fullest degree possible, prime agricultural land shall be presen'ed for agricultural uses

only.
Maintain Rockwell Pond as both a resource management area (water recharge) and

community open space.

Require correction of local stofinwater ponding conditions prior to development in such

areas, either through off-site improvements provided by land developers, or through

community storm drain facility capital improvement projects.

Require soil studies in localized areas kno['n to have expansive ot unstable soils.

Safety, Public Seruices, and Facilities Element

Goals

o Reduce the threat to persons and property resulting from natural and manmade hazards

including fire, crime, and flooding.
r Provide a safe and sanitary physical environment.

r Undertake required improvements ofthe sewer and storm drainage systems.

Policies

. Capital improvements shall be undertaken to eliminate existing flooding problems.

o The adopted Urbanizing Area Master PIan for Storm Drainage shall be utilized to determine

adequate facilities for new development.

o All new developments shall be required to have community sewer, water. and stormwater

systems-

Water Conservation Ordinance

The purpose of the Water Consewation Ordinance of the City of Selma is to minimize outdoor

water USe, contrOl UnnecesSary water consumption, and to conSen'e water in landscaping tO

presen e the available potable water supply of the City. It prohibits waste of water as defined in

the ordinance, sets water conservation stages for outdoor water use, and establishes design

criteria for watcr conservation in landscaping.

City of Selma Emergency Operations Plan, 1989

The City of Selma Emergency Operations Plan Emergency provides guidance for City response

to extraordinary emergency situations associated rvith natural disasters, technological incidents,

and nuclear defense operations. The Basic Plan provides an overview of operational concepts,

identifies components of the City Emergency Management Organization, and describes the

overall responsibilities of federal. state, County. and City entities. Response and recovery

functious, as well as specific guidelines for accomplishing these functions, are contained in the

Functional Annexes.

City of Selma Storm Drain Master Plan

Fr6no County (Sclmal
Vulti-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigarion Plan

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 46

• To the fullest degree possible, prime agricultural land shall be preserved for agricultural uses 
only. 

• Maintain Rockwell Pond as both a resource management area (water recharge) and 
community open space. 

• Require correction of local stormwater ponding conditions prior to development In such 
areas. either through off-site improvements provided by land developers, or through 
community storm drain facility capital improvement projects. 

• Require soil studies in locali zed areas known to have expansive or unstable soi ls. 

Safety, Public Services, and Facilities Element 

Goals 

• Reduce the threat to persons and property resulting from natural and manmade hazards 
including firc , crime, and flooding . 

• Provide a safe and sanitary physical envi ronment. 

• Undertake required improvements of the sewer and storm drainage systems. 

Policies 

• Capital improvements shall be undertaken to eliminate existing flooding problems. 

• The adopted Urbanizing Area Master Plan for Stotm Drainage shall be util ized to determine 
adequate facilities for new development. 

• All new developments shall be required to have communi ty sewer. water. and stonmvater 
systems. 

Water Conservation Ordinance 

The purpose of the Water Conservation Ordinance of the City of Selma is to minimize outdoor 
water use. control unnecessary water consumption, and to conserve water in landscaping to 
preserve the avai lable potable water supply of the City. It prohibits waste of water as defined in 
the ordinance, sets water conservation stages for outdoor water use, and establishes design 
cri teria for water conservation in landscaping. 

City of Selma Emergency Operations Plan, 1989 

The City of Selma Emergency Operations Plan Emergency provides guidance fo r City response 
to extraordinary emergency situations associated with natural disasters, technological incidents, 
and nuclear defense operations. The Basic Plan provides an ovetv iew of operat ional concepts, 
identifies components of the City Emergency Management Organization. and describes the 
overall responsib ilities of federal. state. County. and City entities. Response and recovery 
functions. as well as specific guidelines for accomplishing these functions. are contained in the 
Functional Annexes. 

City of Selma Storm Drain Master Plan 

Fresno Coumy (Selma) \ nno:'{ J.~6 

\l ulti·lurisdiclional I-Iazard \-l itigation Plan 



+
!

; 6@

=6'{-uJ;e+
5i==.iBU
E\;<

Figure J.6: Ci!

I

d

J.4.2 Admi nistrativelTechnicffivl ilities

Table J.l3 identifies the personnel respon SIble activities related to

prevention in Selma.

.:

=,

26'
-oa

(o

d
'o

E
o
U)

o
a
(o

8

I
E

a
e]

(tro
E
oa

iii=!.;; 1i ;l
::ii:;t: .= ;il
::i;=:li ":. i-:a::-;:r -:. 9i:
5;E, r::i :'l ;:;=-.

i,@E,qrd siE'

a

,/

Lf, ig
(1

l:-

ati

Table J.13: City of Selma's Administrative and Technical Mitigation Capabilities

Personnel Resources Yes/No DepartmeruPosition Comments
Planner/Engineer with knowledge of land
developmenVland manaqement practices

Yes Community Development
Department

Cunently hiring senior and
principle planners

Fresno Counr, (Selma)

Muki-Jurisdictional Hazard Midgarion Plan

The City of Sel

is illustrated in

w
,1

Anncx J.:7

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 47

The City of Sel 
is illustrated in . 

Figure J .6: Ci~ 

E 
~ 

0 -(j) 
~ 

Q) -CJ) 

CO 
~ 

CO 
E 
Q) 
(j) 

C 
CO CJ 

C .-
CO 
~ 

0 

Table 1.13 identifies the personnel 
prevention in Selma. 

• 

0 

Table J.1l: City of Selma's Administrative and Technical Mitigation Capabilities 

Personnel Resources 
PlannerlEnglneer with knowledge of land 
develoomentlland manaqement practices 

Fresno County (Selma) 
Multi-lurisdiclional Hazard Mitigation Plan 

Yes/No 
Yes 

Department/Position 
Community Development 
Department 

Comments 
Currently hiring senior and 
principle planners 

Annex 1.27 

~ 

~ 

~ 

~ 

~ 

~ 

~ 



Engineer/Professional trained in
construction practices related to buildings
and/or infrastructure

Yes Public Works
DepartmenVEngineer

Planner/Engineer/Scientist with an
understandinq of natural hazards

Yes Public Works
DepartmenYEngineer

Personnel skilled in GIS Yes GIS Coordinator

Full time building official No Communaty Development
Departmeni; Citv M4naqer

Floodplain Manager No

Emergency Manager Yes Fire and Polic€ Deparlments Low staffing

Grant writer Yes AdministrativeAnalyst

Other personnel Multiple roles are covered by
city staff

Waming Systems/Services
(Reverse $'11, outdoor waming signals)

Yes Everbridge

In Selma, the public is served by a seven department City govemment, which includes full+ime
Fire and Police departments. The City is also served by supporting gtoups of reserv'e firefighters

and "volunteers in policing" that can be used in emergencies or major events. The Selma Fire

Department provides ambulance services for the City and outside the City limits, encompassing a

total of 150 square miles.

The Ciry of Selma has a mapped Special Flood Hazard Area but does not participate in the NFIP

and has been sanctioned since 1975. After weighing the limited number of homes subject to the

l-percent-annual-chance flood hazard against the high cost of being a member of the National

Flood Insurance Program (NFIP), City Council detennined that it is not in the City's best interest

to participate in the NFIP.

J.4.3 Fiscal Mitigation Capabilities

Table J.l4 identifies tinancial tools or resources that rhe Ciry could potentially use to help fund

mitigation activities. There are currently no specilic funding sources for hazard mitigation.

Table J.14: City of Selma's Fiscal Mitigation Capabilities

J.4.4 Mitigation Outreach and Partnerships

Financial Resources
Accessible/Eligible

to Use (Yes/No) Comments

Community Development Block Grants Yes

Capital improvements project funding Yes

Authority to levy taxes for specific purposes Yes

Fees for water. sev/er. gas, or electric services Pnvate or other agencies/ggygqlglE

lmpact fees for new development Yes

lncur debt through general obligation bonds Yes

lncur debt through specialtax bonds Yes

lncur debt thro h private activities No

Withhold spending in hazard prone areas No

Frcsno Counlr_ (Schnr)
\lulti-Ju.isdic(ional Hazard vitiEaron Plan

\nnc\ J:3

Yes

No

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 48

Engineer/Professional trained in Yes Public Works 
construction practices related to buildings DepartmenVEngineer 
and/or infrastructure 
Planner/Engineer/Scientist with an Yes Publ ic Works 
understanding of natural hazards Department/Engineer 
Personnel skilled in GIS Yes GIS Coordinator 

Full time building official No Community Development 
Decartment; City Manaaer 

Floodplain Manager No 

Emergency Manager Yes Fire and Police Departments Low staffing 

Grant writer Yes Administrative Analyst 

Other personnel Yes Multiple roles are covered by 
city staff 

Waming Systems/Services Yes Everbridge 
(Reverse 9-11 , outdoorwamina sianals) 

In Selma, the public is served by a seven depal1mcnt City government, which includes full-time 
Fire and Police departments. The City is also served by supporting groups of reserve firefighters 
and "volunteers in policing" that can be used in emergencies or major events. The Selma Fire 
Department provides ambulance selvices for the City and outside the City limits, encompassing a 
total of 150 square miles . 

The City of Selma has a mapped Special Flood Hazard Area but does not participate in the NFIP 
and has been sanctioned since 1975. After weighing the limited number of homes subject to the 
I-percent-annual -chance flood hazard against the high cost of being a member of the ational 
Flood Insurance Program (NFIP). City Council determined that it is not in the City 's best interest 
to participate in the NFIP. 

JA_3 Fiscal Mitigation Capabilities 

Table 1.14 identifies financial tools or resources that the City could potentially use to help fund 
mitigation activities. There are currently no specific funding sources for hazard mitigation. 

Table J.14: City of Selma's Fiscal Mitigation Capabilities 

AccessiblelEligible 
Financial Resources to Use (YesINo) Comments 
Community Development Block Grants Yes 

Capital improvements project funding Yes 

AuthOrity to levy taxes for specific purposes Yes 

Fees for water, sewer, gas, or electric services No Private or other agenCies/governments 

Impact fees for new development Yes 

Incur debt through general obligation bonds Yes 

Incur debt through special tax bonds Yes 

Incur debt through private activities No 

Withhold spending in hazard prone areas No 

JAA Mitigation Outreach and Partnerships 

Fr-.-sno County (Sdma) Ann..:>.: J.18 
\lulti·JurisdicthJnal lI uard Mitigal ion Plan 



The Selma Fire Department provides fire safety education and overall firc prevention. Thc City
of Sehna is also developing a public disaster preparedness program that should be functional
rvithin the next three to four years.

Existing streugths in the City of Selma are that community and local businesses are very

generous in meeting the needs and,ror votunteering themselves for community outreach programs

and events.

J.4.5 Other Mitigation Efforts

The City of Selma is involved in some targeted mitigation efflorts, these include the tbllowing:

o The City is currently working on its Disaster Management Plan, education and

implementation of the plan throughout City govemment, and an educational outreach

program fbr the citizens of Selma. This is estimated to take three to four years.

. The City is working on getting a new police headquarters building, which will move the

police leadership team away from the railroad tracks, which will hopefully mitigate the

impacts that some of the manmade hazards could have on police response resources.

Construction is expected to begin within the next three to five years.

. The City has placed secondary points of connection and pads for emergency generators at

strategic locations to pump stormwater during a city'lvide power failure.

. The Ciry is requiring new housing developments to put in better stormwater systems than

what was previously required to minimize localized street flooding in those areas.

J.4.6 Opportunities for lmprovement Enhancement

Based on the capabilities assessment, the Ciry of Selma has several existing mechanisms in place

that will help to mitigate hazards. In addition to these existing capabilities, there are also

opportunities to expand or improve on these policies and programs to further protect the

community. The opportunities for enhancement ofthe City's existing mitigation program are

listed below.

r Develop a Drought Contingcncy Plan that rvill help to create a fiamervork for drought

response and mitigation in the City of Selma.

J.5 Mitigation Strategy

J.5.1 Mitigation Goals and Oblectives

The City of Selma adopts the hauard mitigation goals and objectives developed by the HMPC

and described in Chapter 5 Mitigation Strategy.

lncorporation into Existing Planning Mechanisms

FrL:sno Counrr (Sclmat
\{ulti Jurisdictidnal Huard Mitigarion Plan

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 49

The Selma Fire Department provides fire safety education and overall fire prevention. The City 
of Selma is also developing a public disaster preparedness program tbat should be functional 
within the next three to four years . 

Existing strengths in the City of Selma are that corrumll1ity and local businesses are vety 
generous in meeting the needs and/or volunteering themselves for community outreach programs 
and events . 

J.4.S Other Mitigation Efforts 

The City of Selma is involved in some targeted mitigation efforts, these include the following: 

• The City is currently working on its Disaster Management Plan, education and 
implementation of the plan throughout City government, and an educational outreach 
program for the citizens of Selma. This is estimated to take three to four years. 

• The City is working on getting a new police headquarters building, which will move the 
police leadership team away from the railroad tracks, which will hopefully mitigate the 
impacts that some of the manmade hazards could have on police response resources . 
Construction is expected to begin within the next three to five years. 

• The City has placed secondary points of connection and pads for emergency generators at 
strategic locations to pump stormwater during a citywide power failure. 

• The City is requiring new housing developments to put in better stormwater systems than 
what was previously required to minimize localized street flooding in those areas. 

J.4.6 Opportunities for Improvement Enhancement 

Based on the capabilities assessment, the City of Selma has several existing mechanisms in place 
that will help to mitigate hazards. In addition to these existing capabilities, there are also 
opportunities to expand or improve on these policies and programs to further protect the 
community. The opportunities for enhancement of the City's existing mitigation program are 
listed below. 

• Develop a Drought Contingency Plan that will help to create a framework for drought 
response and mitigation in the City of Selma. 

J.S Mitigation Strategy 

J.S.1 Mitigation Goals and Objectives 

The City of Selma adopts the hazard mitigation goals and objectives developed by the HMPC 
and described in Chapter S Mitigation Strategy. 

Incorporation into Existing Planning Mechanisms 

Fresno Count}' (Sd mal 
\l ulti·lurisdictillnall1:lLard Mitigafion Plan 

Ann.:,\; 1.19 



The information contained within this plan, including results from the Vulnerability Assessment,

and the Mitigation Strategy will be used by the Ciry to help inform updates and the development

of local plans. proerrams and policies. All divisions within the Community Development

Department. (Building. Planning and Housing) may utilize the hazard information rvhen

revierving site plans or building permit applications. The Parks Division may utilize the hazard

intbrmation to better understand the City's l'ulnerability to drought and how to better maintain

the City's parks and landscaped medians in a way that will not exacerbate the effects of drought

on the commuuity. The City will also incorporate this LHMP into the Safety Element of their

General Plau, as recommended by Assembly Bill (AB) 2140.

As noted in Chapter 7.0 Plan Implementation, the HMPC representatives tiom Selma will repon

on etlbns to integrate the hazard mitigation plan into local plans, programs and policies and will
report on these efforts at the annual HMPC plan review meeting.

J.5.2 Completed 2009 Mitigation Actions

The City of Selma has not completed any mitigation actions identified in the 2009 plan.

Horvever. rhe City will carry forward, with some revisions. several actions that were deferred

due to funding constraints and incorporate them into the mitigation strategy of this plan.

There is one action from the City of Selma's 2009 mitigation strategy that the City has decided

not to carry forward and recommend for implementation in this plan. This deleted action and the

reason for its deletion is as follows:

. Construct a Railroad Crossing Underpass - project no longer planned by City

J.5.3 Mitigation Actions

The planning team for the City of Selma iderrtified and prioritized the following mitigation

actions based on the risk assessment. Background information and infomration on holv each

action rvill be implemented and administered, such as ideas for implementation. responsible

office, partners, potential funding, estimated cost. and schedule are included.

In addition to implementirrg the mitigation actions below the Ciry of Selma will be participating

in the county-wide, multi-jurisdictional action of developing and conducting a multi-hazard

seasonal public awareness program. The county-wide project will be led by the County in

partnership u'ith all municipalities and special districts. The City agrees to help disseminate

information on hazards provided by the County. More information on the action can be found in

the base plan Chapter 5 Mitigation Strategy (see Section 5.3.3 Multi-Jurisdictional Mitigation

Actions, Action #1. Devclop and Conduct a Multi-Hazard Seasonal Public Arvareness Program).

1. lnstitute a Disaster Preparedness Education Program for the Public

Hazard(s) Addressed: Multi-Hazard: dam failure. drought. earthquake. human health hazards.

flood, severe weather, wildfire, hazardous materials

Frcsno County (Sclha)
vulrFJurisdictk)nal Haard Mnigarion Plan

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 50

The information contained within this plan, including results from the Vulnerability Asscssmcnt, 

and the Mitigation Strategy will be used by the City to help inform updates and the development 
of local plans. programs and policies. All divi ions within the Community Deve lopment 

Depanment, (Building. Planning and Housing) may utilize the hazard information when 
reviewing site plans or building permit applications. The Parks Division may utilize the hazard 
information to better understand the City's vulnerability to drought and how to better maintain 

the City's parks and landscaped medians in a way that will not exacerbate the effects of drought 
on the community. The City will also incorporate this LHMP into the Safety Element of their 
General Plan, as recommended by Assembly Bill (AB) 2140. 

As noted in Chapter 7.0 Plan Implementation, the HMPC representatives from Selma will repon 
on effons to integrate the hazard mitigation plan into loca l plans, program and policie and will 

report on these efforts at the annual HMPC plan review meeting. 

J.S.2 Completed 2009 Mitigation Actions 

The City of Selma has not completed any mitigation actions identified in the 2009 plan. 
Howevcr. thc City will carry forward. with ome revisions. several actions that were dcfcrred 
due to funding constraints and incorporate them into thc mitigation strategy of this plan. 

There is one action from the City of Selma's 2009 mitigation strategy that the City has decided 

not to carry forward and recommend for implementation in tbis plan. This deleted action and the 
reason for its deletion is as follows: 

• Construct a Railroad Crossing Underpass - project no longer planned by City 

J.S.3 Mitigation Actions 

The planning team for the City of Selma identified and prioritized the following mitigation 
actions based on the risk assessment. Background information and infonllation on how each 

action will be implemented and admi nistered, such as ideas for implementation. responsible 

office. panners. potential funding, estimated cost, and schedule are included. 

In addition to implementing the mitigation actions below the City of Se lma will be participating 
in the county-wide, multi-jurisdictional action of developing and conducting a multi-hazard 

seasonal public awareness program. The county-wide project will be led by the County in 
partnership with all municipalities and special districts. The City agrees to help disseminate 
information on hazards provided by the County. More information on the action can be found in 
the base plan Chapter 5 Mitigation Strategy (see Scction 5.3 .3 Multi-Jurisdictional Mitigation 
Actions, Action # 1. Develop and Conduct a Multi-Hazard Seasonal Public Awareness Program) . 

1. Institute a Disaster Preparedness Education Program for the Public 

Hazard(s) Addressed : Multi-Hazard: darn failure. drought. eanhquake. human health hazards. 
flood , severe wcather. wildfire, hazardous materials 

Fn."Sno County (S~[ma) 
~rultL·JUI;sdicthll1al ll alard i\llitigalion Plan 

Ann.;x J,30 



Issue/Background: The public of Selma does not have any City-issued disaster preparedness

education. Any knowledge they possess is from other sources, such as federal and state

govemment agencies. Special populations targeted for this education are non-English speaking

residents, senior citizens. and citizens living at or below the poverry level.

Other Alternatives: Adding a smaller disaster preparedness education progranr onto the already

strong fire prevention programi parricipation in Section 5.3.3 Multi-Jurisdictional Mitigation
Actions, Action # I . Develop and Conduct a Multi-Hazard Seasonal Public Awareness Program

Responsible Oflice: City of Selma Fire and Police depanments

Priori(v (High, Medium, Low): High

Cost Estimate: 56.500 per year

Potential Funding: The program will be kicked offby an AmeriCorps volunteer (rvhich rvill not

cost the City, monetarity), and the actual program will be funded by donations and some

budgeted money from the City of Selma.

Benefits (Avoided Losses): By educating the public in disaster preparedness, the citizens u'ill be

better prepared during an actual disaster. This individual preparedness will help save lives and

propert-v. This also removes some of the constraints on the City's emergency sen-ices. enabling

them to do more for residents in the event ofa disaster.

Schedule: Within rwo years (201 tt-2020)

Status: 2009 project, implementalion not yet started

2. lnstall Back-up Power fot Storm Drain Pumps

Hazard(s) Addressed: Multi-Hazard: drought, flood. severe weather, earthquake

Issue/Background: Most ofthe City of Selma's storm drain pumps do not have back-up power

sources. This causes localized flooding rvhen there is heavy rain and power outages, which tend

to go hand and hand during major storms. To alleviate this problem, the City can make use of
portable generators for the purnping stations.

Other Alternatives: No action

Responsible Office: City of Selma Public Works Department

Priorit-v (High, Medium, Low): High

Cost Estimete: $27,540 per generator; the cost of three generators would be $82,620 (not

including fees and taxes)

Fresno Counr) iSclmal
Vuhi-Jurisdicrtunal Hrzard Mitigarion PIan

Ann.x J.ll

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 51

IssuelBackground: The public of Sclma does not havc any City-issued disaster preparcdness 
education. Any knowledge they possess is from other sources, such as federal and state 
government agencies. Special populations targeted for this education are non-English speaking 
residents, senior citizens. and citizens living at or below the poverty level. 

Other Alternatives : Adding a smaller disaster preparedness education program onto the already 
strong fire prevention program; participation in Section 5.3.3 Multi-Jurisdictional Mitigation 
Actions, Action # 1. Develop and Conduct a Multi -Hazard Seasonal Public Awareness Program 

Responsible Office: City of Selma Fire and Police departments 

Priority (High, Medium, Low): High 

Cost Estimate: S6,500 per year 

Poten tial Funding: The program will be kicked off by an AmeriCorps volunteer (which will not 
cost the City, monetarily), and the actual program will be funded by donations and some 
budgeted money from the City of Selma. 

Benefits (Avoided Losses): By educating the public in disaster preparedness, the citizens will be 
better prepared during an actual disaster. Th is individual preparedness wi ll help save lives and 
propelty. This also removes some of the constraints on the City's emergency sen·ices. enabling 
them to do more for residents in the event of a disaster. 

Schedule: Within two years (2018-2020) 

Status : 2009 project, implementation not yet started 

2. Install Back-up Power for Storm Drain Pumps 

Hazard(s) Addressed : Multi-Hazard: drought. flood. severe weather, earthquake 

IssuelBackground : Most of the City of Selma ' s storm drain pumps do not have back-up power 
sources. This causes localized flooding when there is heavy rain and power outages, which tend 
to go hand and hand during major stonns. To alleviate this prob lem, the City can make use of 
portable generators for the pumping stations. 

Other Alternatives: 0 action 

Responsible Office: City of Selma Public Works Department 

Priority (High, Medium, Low): High 

Cost Estimate: 527,540 per gcnerator: the cost of three generators would be 582,620 (not 
including fees and taxes) 

Fresno County (Sdmal Ann!';'\: 1.3 1 
\lulti-lurisdiclhm .. 1 llazard Mitigation Plan 



Potential Funding: City budget, grants

Benefits (Avoided Losses): By having back-up power sources, the stonn drain pumps will be

able to operate, to avoid localized flooding, in the event of a power failure. This could prevent

propert_v darnage. including dama-ee to cars parked on the streets. Damage costs could range

greatly. but an estimate is S2.000-S3.000 per storm without power.

Schedule: Within 3{ years

Strtus: 2009 project, implementation not yet started

3. Sheridan Street Pump Station Bypass and Retention Basin

Hazard(s) .\ddressed: Flood

Issue/Background: There is often localized flooding throughout the City of Selma during large

storms. The area that is particularly affected is dou'ntown from Young St. to Highway 99, which

starts at Rose Ave. and continues to Second St. (please refer to the localized flooding map in

Figure J.4.). There are major intersections arrd areas that flood during storms with intense rains.

This occurs because during rain events when storm water in this area flows into an under,qround

storm drain systenl that ends up at a pumping station on Sheridan Street. The tributary area also

contains a large section of State Highrvay 99 ruuoff. This drainage system does not currently

hale sufficient capacity to handle maximum storm flows. By not having enough capacity. this

creates clogging and backflow in the area which causes major localized tlooding, includittg

surrounding citizens' properties. This project will bypass the existing pump stalion and graviry

t'eed runoflinto a new master planned retention basin south of Valley View Avenue.

Other Alternatives: No Action

Existing Planning Mechanism(s) through which project will be implemented: The Ciry of
Selma Stonnwater Master Plan

Responsible Oflice: Public Works & Caltrans

Prioritv (High, Medium, Lorr): Hi-eh

Potential funding: City Budget, Storm drain impact fees. Caltrans,

Benelits (avoided Losses): The city can dccrcase damage caused by localized flooding during

every single hcaly rain stomr. The average potential monetary loss could reach $9,000 per heavy

rain storm rvhich could equal out to more than $45,000 per year in damages. If an extremely

Frcsno Counry- (S.lna)
\tuki-Jurisdicdonal Haard Miti garion Plan

{nncx J.ll

Cost Estimate: $4,200,000 total possible. which is comprised of land acquisition, excavation of
the retention basin and piping.

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 52

Potential Funding: City budget, grants 

Benefits (Avoided Losses): By having back-up power sources, the storm drain pumps will be 

able to operate, to avoid localized flooding, in the event of a power failure. This cou ld prevent 

property damage, including damage to cars parked on the streets . Damage costs could range 
greatly, but an estimate is $2,000-53.000 per storm without power. 

Schedule: Within 3-4 years 

Status: 2009 project, implementation not yet started 

3. Sheridan Street Pump Station Bypass and Retention Basin 

Hazard(s) Addressed: Flood 

IssuefBackground: There is often localized flooding throughout the City of Selma during large 

storms. The area that is particularly affected is downtown from Young St. to Highway 99, which 
starts at Rose Ave. and continues to Second SI. (please refer to the localized flooding map in 
Figure J.4.). There are major intersections and areas that flood during storms with intense rains. 

This occurs because during rain events when storm water in this area flows into an underground 
storm drain system that ends up at a pumping station on Sheridan Street. The tributaty area also 

contains a large section of State Highway 99 runoff. This drainage system does not currently 
have sufficient capacity to handle max imum storm flows . By not ha,·iug enough capacity, this 

creates clogging and backflow in the area which causes major localized flooding, including 
surrounding citizens' properties. This project will bypass the existing pump station and gravity 
feed runoft-into a new master planned retention basin south of Valley View Avenue . 

Other Alternatives : 0 Action 

Existing Planning Mecha nism(s) through which project will be implemented: The City of 

Selma Stonnwater Master Plan 

Responsible Office: Public Works & Caltrans 

Priority (High , Medium, Low): High 

Cost Estimate: S4,200,000 tota l possible, which is comprised of land acquisition, excavation of 
the retention basin and piping. 

Potential fundin g: City Budget, Stolm drain impact fees. Caltrans, 

Benefits (avoided Losses): The city can decrease damage caused by localized flooding during 
every single heavy rain storm. The average potential monetary loss could reach S9.000 per heavy 
rain storm which could equal out to morc than $45.000 per year in damagcs. I f an extremely 

Fresno Count> (Sl:lm:1) Ann..:x J.32 
\luhi·Jurisdicti~ma l Hazard Mitigation Plan 



heavy rain rvere to occur more than the average amount of rain. the extent and cost of damages

would be nruch greater and could reach an uprvards to 5700.000 because 35 buildings (mostly

homes) have flooding potential damage (up to 520.000 per building) and another possible

575,000 in other propeffy damages. Examples of possible yearly damages include citizens'
vehicles parked in the streets and on properties, vehicles trying to get through the flooded areas,

and other private properry. These estimates also do not take into account the large amount of
resources used in attempting to stop this localized flooding that could be used in other problems

during these stoms.

Schedule: Within 3-5 years

Status; 2009 project. implementation not yet started

4. Construct New Police and Fire Depart nent Headquarters

Hazard(s) Addressed: Hazardous Materials

Issue/Background: Besides needing to update space and facilities for both departmcnts. the

police station is located directly next to the railroad line that runs through the City (it is acnrally

the old train depot). There is also a pressurized narural gas line that runs along the tracks by the

police station that is considered a hazard.

Other Alternetives: No action

Responsible Oflice: City of Selma Police department

Priority (High, Medium, Low): High

Cost Estimate: 58 million

Poteutial Funding: 50% firnded via State Funding Allocation and 50% fiuded via voter

approved G.O. Bond

Benefits (.{voided Losses): Moving the police station away from the railroad line u'ill reduce

the impacts of a disaster, which could panially or completely destroy 50 percent of the City's
emergency sen'ices response capabilities. lt would also reduce the threat posed to the Ciry's
dispatch communications, which dispatches both police and fire sen'ices.

Schedule: Within the next 3 years (201ti-202 I )

Status: 2009 project, revised. implementation not yet staned

5. Sustainab/e Groundwater Management Act Compliance including Groundwater
Sustainability Planning and lmplementation

Hazard(s) Addressed : Dlought

Frcsno Count) (Sclmat
\lukr-Jurisdicrl(hal Hazard Mnigarion Plan

rnnc:( J.li

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 53

heavy rain were to occur more than the average amount of rain, the extent and cost of damages 
would be much greater and could reach an upwards to S700.000 because 35 buildings (mostly 
homes) have flooding potential damage (up to 520.000 per building) and another possible 
S75.000 in other property damages . Examples of possible yearly damages include citizens' 
vehicles parked in the streets and on properties, vehicles trying to get through the fl ooded areas, 
and other private property. These estimates also do not take into account the large amount of 
resources used in attempting to stop this locali zed flooding that could be used in other problems 
during these storms. 

Schedule: Within 3-5 years 

Status: 2009 project, implementation not yet started 

4. Construct New Police and Fire Department Headquarters 

Hazard(s) Addressed : Hazardous Materials 

IssuelBackgr ound : Besides needing to update space and facilities for both departmcnts. the 
police station is located directly nex t to the railroad line that runs through the City (it is actually 
the old train depot). There is also a pressurized natural gas line that runs along the tracks by the 
police station that is considered a hazard. 

Other Alternatives : No action 

Responsible Office: City of Selma Pol ice department 

Priori ty (High, Medium, Low): High 

Cost Estimate: S8 million 

Potential Funding: 50% funded vta State Funding Allocation and 50% funded via voter 
approved G.O. Bond 

Benefits (Avoided Losses): Moving the police station away from the railroad line will reduce 
the im pacts of a disaster. which could partially or completely desu'oy 50 percent of the City's 
emergency services response capabilities. It would also reduce the threat posed to the Ci ty 's 
dispatch commullications, which di spatches both police and fire services. 

Schedule: Within the next 3 years (2018-202 1) 

Status: 2009 project, revised. implementation not yet started 

5. Sustainable Groundwater Management Act Compliance including Groundwater 
Sustainability Planning and Implementation 

Hazard(s) Addressed : Drought 

Fresno COUnl} (Selma) 
\fulll·Juri~lcll,m;Jl ll azard Miligalion Plan 

Ann.:'( J.33 



Issue/Background: The Kings subbasin underlays the City of Selma and like many ground*'atcr
basins throughout the State, this subbasin is in overdraft condition u,ith underground aquifers
adversely impacted by overuse. Such impacts include significant decline in rvater storage and

rvater levels, degradation of water quality, and land subsidence resulting in the permanent loss of
storage capacity. The Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA) provides for the

establishment of local Groundwater Sustainability Agencies (GSAS) to manage ground'* ater

sustainability within -eroundwater subbasins defined by the Califomia Department of Water

Resources (DWR). The City of Selma is rvithin the boundaries of the Central Kings Grounduater
Sustainability Agency (CSA). The Central Kings GSA is comprised of local agencies including
County of Kings. County of Fresno and County of Tulare. as well as a memorandum of
understanding (MOU) with Consolidate Irrigation District. As a communiry that is within the

boundaries of the Central Kings GSA, the City of Selma will participate as a stakeholder in the

planning process by anending meetings during the development of the Central Kings
Groundwater Sustainabiliry Plan (GSP) which must be completed no later than January 3 l, 2020,

to ensure a sustainable yield of groundwater. without causing undesirable results. Failure to
comply with that requirement could result in the State asserting its power to manage local
groundwater resources. Active paticipation in the development and implementation of the

Central Kings GSP will allow the City to maintain sustainable groundwatcr supplies while
providing insurance against periods of long-term drought, a high significance hazard for the City
of Se lma.

Other Alternatives: None. Not participating in the development and implementation of the GSP

that is within the boundaries of the City will put the community at risk of not having sustainable

groundwater supplies during periods of long-term drought.

Responsible Office: City Engineer and Central Kings GSA

Priorit-v (High, Medium, Low): High

Cost Estimate: None

Potential Funding: N/A

Benefits (Avoided Losses)3 Active participation in the implementation of the GSP by the

Central Kings GSA will result in the management of groundwater in a manner that is sustainable

and avoids undesirable results, as defined by the Califomia State Depanment of Water

Resources, for the City of Selma.

Schedule: GSAs must complete and submit the required GSP to DWR by January 3t. 2020.

rvhich is to be fully implemented and result in sustainabiliry of the groundwater basin. u'ith no

undesirable effecs. by the year 2040.

Status: Ner project in 2018

Fr.sno CounB (Schnat
\lulti-hnsdicrn'nal lhzard Mirigarion Plan

\nn.\ J.l.l

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 54

IssuefBackground: The Kings subbasin underlays the City of Selma and like many groundwatcr 
basins throughout the State, this subbasin is in overdraft condition with underground aquifers 
adversely impacted by overuse. Such impacts include significant decline in water storage and 
water leve ls, degradation of water quality. and land subsidence resulting in the pernlanent loss of 
storage capacity. The Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA) provides for the 
establishment of local Groundwater Sustainability Agencies (GSAs) to manage groundwater 
sustainability within groundwater subbasins defined by the California Depanment of Water 
Resources (DWR). The City of Selma is within the boundaries oftbe Central Kings Groundwater 
Sustainability Agency (GSA). The Central Kings GSA is comprised of local agencies including 
County of Kings. County of Fresno and County of Tulare, as well as a memorandum of 
understanding (MOU) with Consolidate lrrigation District. As a community that is within the 
boundaries of the Central Kings GSA, the City of Selma will panicipate as a stakeholder in the 
planning process by attending meetings during the development of the Central Kings 
Groundwater Sustainability Plan (GSP) which must be completed no later than January 31,2020, 
to ensure a sustainable yield of groundwater. without causing undesirable results. Failure to 

comply with that requirement could result in the State asserting its power to manage local 
groundwater resources. Active participation in the development and implementation of the 
Central Kings GSP will a llow the City to maintain sustainable groundwater supplies whi le 
providing insurance against periods of long-tetm drought, a high significance hazard for the City 
of Selma. 

Other Alternatives: None. Not participating in the development and implementation of the GSP 
that is within the boundaries of the City will put the community at risk of not having sustainable 
groundwater supplies during periods of 10ng-tell1l drought. 

Responsible Office: City Engineer and Central Kings GSA 

Priority (High, Medium, Low): High 

Cost Estimate: None 

Potential Funding: / A 

Benefits (Avoided Losses): Active paltlclpation in the implementation of the GSP by the 
Central Kings GSA will result in the management of groundwater in a manner that is sustainable 
and avoids undesirable results, as defined by the California State Department of Water 

Resources, for the City of Selma. 

Schedule : GSAs must complete and submit the required GSP to DWR by January 31. 2020. 
which is to be fu lly implemented and result in sustainabi li ty of the groundwater basin. with no 
undesirable effects. by the year 2040. 

Status: ew project in 20 18 

Fresno County (Sdma) 
\fulti-Juris.dicliunal l-laz3rJ Mitigation Plan 

Ann~'( lH 



CITY MANAGER'S/STAIF'S REPORT
CITY COUNCIL MEETING: June 3.2019

ITEMNO:

SUBJECT: Consideration of an Agreement with the City of Fresno for continued
Crime Analyst services.

BACKGROLTND: When the State was required to reduce the prison population due to
budget cuts and the loss of a federal lawsuit, ABl09 resulted. With the reduction of prison
population most communities saw a significant rise in the amount of time spent dealing
with the ABl09 population. Through numerous conversations by the Califomia Police
Chiefs Association, we were able to convince the Govemor that criminals who previously
would have fallen under the control of the Califomia Department of Corrections were
causing a large workload on Municipal Police Departrnens, including ours. Beginning in
Fiscal year 2012 -2013, the Govemor authoiaed $24 million to be distributed to Municipal
Police Departrnents throughout the state. The money was guaranteed for three fiscal years,

with the belief that it will be continued for many years into the future. Each county was
given a set amount, and Fresno County's allocation was $1,019,594. Municipal Police
Departments were encouraged to use the money in a collaborative manner.

The Police Chiefs of Fresno County decided to use part of the money to fund Crime
Analysts so each of us could direct resources to the most prolific criminals in each of our
communities. If we could incarcerate our criminals who commit most of the crime in our
communities, we could have safer communities for our residents to live in. The State

funding did not continue beyond the initial estimated time, requiring individual agencies

wishing to maintain the Crime Analyst services, to cover the costs of those services. Those

services include the use of predictive software to proactively address crime, statistical
information to identi$ trends in criminat activity, and interaction with multiple agencies in
collaboration with other crime analysts.

The City of Fresno, who employs the Crime Analyst originally funded by State funding, has

agreed to contract the services ofthe Analyst, for lO-hours per week (25% for the work
week) to agencies wishing to do so. The l0-hours per week provided sufficient services to
accomplish the basic crime analytic function, while avoiding the cost of an in-house, full-
time analyst. This would be the second year we have funded these services.

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 55

CITY MANAGER'S/STAFF'S REPORT 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING: 

ITEM NO: 

June 3. 2019 

SUBJECT: Consideration of an Agreement with the City of Fresno for continued 
Crime Analyst services. 

BACKGROUND: When the State was required to reduce the prison population due to 
budget cuts and the loss ofa federal lawsuit, AB109 resulted. With the reduction of prison 
population most communities saw a significant rise in the amount of time spent dealing 
with the ABI09 population. Through numerous conversations by the California Police 
Chief's Association, we were able to convince the Governor that criminals who previously 
would have fallen under the control of the California Department of Corrections were 
causing a large workload on Municipal Police Departments, including ours. Beginning in 
Fiscal year 2012-2013, the Governor authorized $24 million to be distributed to Municipal 
Police Departments throughout the state. The money was guaranteed for three fiscal years, 
with the belief that it will be continued for many years into the future. Each county was 
given a set amount, and Fresno County's allocation was $1,019,594. Municipal Police 
Departments were encouraged to use the money in a collaborative manner. 

The Police Chiefs of Fresno County decided to use part of the money to fund Crime 
Analysts so each of us could direct resources to the most prolific criminals in each of our 
communities. Ifwe could incarcerate our criminals who commit most of the crime in our 
communities, we could have safer communities for our residents to live in. The State 
funding did not continue beyond the initial estimated time, requiring individual agencies 
wishing to maintain the Crime Analyst services, to cover the costs of those services. Those 
services include the use of predictive software to proactively address crime, statistical 
information to identifY trends in criminal activity, and interaction with multiple agencies in 
collaboration with other crime analysts . 

The City of Fresno, who employs the Crime Analyst originally funded by State funding, has 
agreed to contract the services of the Analyst, for lO-hours per week (25% for the work 
week) to agencies wishing to do so. The lO-hours per week provided sufficient services to 
accomplish the basic crime analytic function, while avoiding the cost of an in-house, full
time analyst. This would be the second year we have funded these services. 

reynar
Typewritten Text
1.C.



COST: @ntet co* of item to bc prchacd in bor
bclott)

BUDGET IMPACT: (Entel a,rrount this
non-budgded item will impad this yean' budga
in box bclow - if bdgeted, entet NONE).

$2s,000.00 None

FUNDING: (Entel thc funding eurcc fol this
itzttr itr box below - iffuld cti*s, etter the bahacc
in thc fiind).

ON-GOING COST: (E,tter thc s,nou,rt
that will reed n be budgaed cach year in bos
below - if onc-time coi, entet NONE).

Funding Source:

Fund Balance:

None

RECOMMENDATION: Approve the agreement with the City of Fresno and authorize
the City Manager to execute same.

Greg Gamer, Police Chief

S-3-,?
Teresa Gallavan, City Manager Date

Date

.++il/,,*

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 56

COST: (Enter cost of item to be purc!wsed in box BUDGET IMPACT: (Enter amount this 
below) non-budgetd item will impact this years' budget 

in box below - ifbudgeted, enter NONE). 

$25,000.00 None 

FUNDING: (Enter the funding source for this ON-GOING COST: (Entertheamount 
item in box below - iffund exists, enter the balance t!wt will need to be budgettd each year in box 
in the fund). below - if one-time cost, enter NONE). 

Funding Source: None 

Fund Balance: 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve the agreement with the City of Fresno and authorize 
the City Manager to execute same. 

Greg Gamer, Police Chief Date 

Teresa Gallavan, City Manager 

reynar
Typewritten Text
/S/								05/31/2019



AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY OF FRESNO
AND

THE CITY OF SELMA

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into effective the 1st day of July, 2019, by and
between the City of Selma, California, a municipal corporation, and the City of Fresno,
California, a municipal corporation, (hereinafter called the City.)

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the City has provided law enforcement crime analysis services within
the jurisdiction of the City of Selma through grant funding; and

WHEREAS, the grant funding for this service is no longer available; and

WHEREAS, the City of Selma desires to continue receiving crime analysis services
from the City; and

WHEREAS, the parties desire to enter into this Agreement that provides terms and
conditions where under the City of Selma shall reimburse the City for additional law
enforcement crime analysis services provided by City and related activities; and

WHEREAS, performance of the services by City will be of benefit to City and in the
public interest.

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREAFTER, in consideration of the above recitals, which recitals are
contractual in nature, the mutual promises herein contained, and for other good and
valuable consideration hereby acknowledged, it is mutually agreed as follows:

1. Scope of Services

City agrees to provide the following law enforcement services in accordance with and
pursuant to this Agreement, subject to all applicable Constitutional and local law
requirements:

a) Twelve hours of law enforcement crime analysis services will be provided
by one Specialist (Crime Analyst) to the City of Selma's Police Department
each week.

Based on the twelve work hours per week, a prorated portion consisting of $25,000 which
comprises 29o/o of the crime analyst's yearly work hours will be billed to the City of Selma.

b) Law enforcement services will be provided through parttime assignment
of one (1) crime specialist on site at the Selma Police Department for one
(1) full day each week (8, 10 or 12 hour shift). Any remaining hours of
support may be provided by the crime specialist at the Selma Police
Department or other work locations including Fresno Police Department
sites. Services will be provided for the funded period not to exceed twelve
months commencing July 1, 2019, and ending June 30, 2020. The

1661Y3v2 / 18621.0m1 - 1-

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 57

AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY OF FRESNO 
AND 

THE CITY OF SELMA 

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into effective the 1st day of July, 2019, by and 
between the City of Selma, Californ ia, a municipal corporation, and the City of Fresno, 
California, a municipal corporation , (hereinafter called the City.) 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the City has provided law enforcement crime analysis services within 
the jurisdiction of the City of Selma through grant funding; and 

WHEREAS, the grant funding for th is service is no longer available; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Selma desires to continue receiving crime analysis services 
from the City; and 

WHEREAS, the parties desire to enter into th is Agreement that provides terms and 
cond itions where under the City of Selma shall reimburse the City for additional law 
enforcement crime analysis services provided by City and related activities; and 

WHEREAS, performance of the services by City will be of benefit to City and in the 
public interest. 

AGREEMENT 

NOW, THEREAFTER, in consideration of the above recitals , which recitals are 
contractual in nature, the mutual promises herein contained , and for other good and 
valuable consideration hereby acknowledged, it is mutually agreed as follows: 

1. Scope of Services. 

City agrees to provide the following law enforcement services in accordance with and 
pursuant to this Agreement, subject to all applicable Constitutional and local law 
requirements: 

a) Twelve hours of law enforcement crime analysis services will be provided 
by one Specialist (Crime Analyst) to the City of Selma's Police Department 
each week. 

Based on the twelve work hours per week, a prorated portion consisting of $25,000 which 
comprises 29% of the crime analyst's yearly work hours will be billed to the City of Selma. 

b) Law enforcement services will be provided through part-time assignment 
of one (1) crime specialist on site at the Selma Police Department for one 
(1) full day each week (8, 10 or 12 hour shift). Any remaining hours of 
support may be provided by the crime specialist at the Selma Police 
Department or other work locations including Fresno Police Department 
sites. Services will be provided for the funded period not to exceed twelve 
months commencing July 1, 2019, and ending June 30, 2020. The 

1661S43v2/18621.0001 - 1 -



c)

2. Office Facilities.

a)

(D Prepare a variety of reports such as crime information and patrol
bulletins, monthly and quarterly activity summaries, and specific
statistical/research reports as needed.

(ii) Research and analyze complex law enforcement data; identify and
interpret criminal activity, patterns, and trends; and forecast trends
to aid in staffing and deployment of police personnel.

(iii) Make written and oral presentations, using maps, charts, and
graphs, to inform police ofiicers, detectives, investigators and
commanders of emerging or existing crime series, patterns, and
trends, as well as suspect and victim profiles.

(iv) Develop and produce crime maps using geographic information
systems (GlS) applications and conduct spatial analysis of crime
data.

(vi) Analyze known offenders' MO's and establish timelines to perform
suspect / crime correlation in order to provide suspect leads and
targets for surveillance or directed patrol.

(vii) Prepare and publish crime analysis bulletins to keep personnel
updated on crime trends on a regular basis.

(viii) Attend briefings, detective and crime analyst meetings to provide and
receive information on crime series and trends, wanted suspects and
major cases. Share information gleaned at such meetings as
relevant to department personnel for increased awareness,
response planning or investigative support.

(ix) Provide crime summaries, bulletins, maps, crime series worksheets,
and other information to support and coordinate the efforts of the
investigation.

(x) Use graphing and automated solutions to mapping methods (link
analysis, event flow analysis, activity charting) to highlight criminal
activities and prepare analytical crime reports. Utilize computer
mapping software and other complex statistical tools to track activity
and perform ad-hoc analysis of crime and intelligence information.

(xi) Provide timely and actionable information and intelligence regarding
past, present and future crimes and crime trends.

The City of Selma agrees to provide a secure office at the Selma Police
Department for use by the Crime Specialist. The office shall be equipped

1661s43v2 / 18621.0001 -2-

assigned days of the week and schedule may be flexible and will be
determined through mutual agreement and approval of the Selma Police
Chief and Fresno Police Department Patrol Division Commander (Deputy
Chief).

Specific duties for law enforcement analysis services to be performed by
the crime specialist under this Agreement, include the following:

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 58

assigned days of the week and schedule may be flexible and will be 
determined through mutual agreement and approval of the Selma Police 
Chief and Fresno Police Department Patrol Division Commander (Deputy 
Chief) . 

c) Specific duties for law enforcement analysis services to be performed by 
the crime specialist under this Agreement, include the following : 

(i) Prepare a variety of reports such as crime information and patrol 
bulletins, monthly and quarterly activity summaries, and specific 
statistical/research reports as needed. 

(ii) Research and analyze complex law enforcement data; identify and 
interpret criminal activity, patterns, and trends; and forecast trends 
to aid in staffing and deployment of police personnel. 

(iii) Make written and oral presentations, using maps, charts, and 
graphs, to inform police officers, detectives, investigators and 
commanders of emerging or existing crime series, patterns, and 
trends, as well as suspect and victim profiles. 

(iv) Develop and produce crime maps using geographic information 
systems (GIS) applications and conduct spatial analysis of crime 
data. 

(vi) Analyze known offenders' MO's and establish timelines to perform 
suspect / crime correlation in order to provide suspect leads and 
targets for surveillance or directed patrol. 

(vii) Prepare and publish crime analysis bulletins to keep personnel 
updated on crime trends on a regular basis. 

(viii) Attend briefings, detective and crime analyst meetings to provide and 
receive information on crime series and trends, wanted suspects and 
major cases. Share information gleaned at such meetings as 
relevant to department personnel for increased awareness, 
response planning or investigative support. 

(ix) Provide crime summaries, bulletins, maps, crime series worksheets, 
and other information to support and coordinate the efforts of the 
investigation. 

(x) Use graphing and automated solutions to mapping methods (link 
analysis, event flow analysis, activity charting) to highlight criminal 
activities and prepare analytical crime reports. Utilize computer 
mapping software and other complex statistical tools to track activity 
and perform ad-hoc analysis of crime and intelligence information. 

(xi) Provide timely and actionable information and intelligence regarding 
past, present and future crimes and crime trends. 

2. Office Facilities. 

a) The City of Selma agrees to provide a secure office at the Selma Police 
Department for use by the Crime Specialist. The office shall be equipped 

1661543v2/ 18621 .0001 - 2 -



b)

with a telephone, computer and access to restroom facilities for the
respective analyst's use.
For the aforementioned services, the City of Selma agrees to reimburse City
for costs incurred by City hereunder, in an amount not to exceed $25,000
for the period beginning July l, 2019, and ending June 30, 2020.

The amount of $25,000 is the City of Selma's prorated share of the City's
costs. The aggregate cost are as follows:

. Salary and fringe benefits for one (1) Crime Specialist,
$87,605.60

The City will bill the City of Selma on a quarterly basis consisting of four (4)
invoices of $6,250 each.

c)

3- Term

The term of this Agreement shall commence on July l, 2019, and shall end on
June 30, 2020, subject to earlier termination as provided herein.

4. Termination.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Agreement may be terminated immediately by either
the City of Selma or City, upon the other party's failure to comply with the requirements
set forth in the Scope of Services, that is not cured within 30 days of receiving written
notice thereof, by giving written notice to the other party of the termination. Such
termination shall be subject to obligations due and owing on the date of termination.

5. Compliance with Governinq Law.

The services provided by the City under this Agreement are over and above the City's
budgeted positions. The parties agree that Operating Fund dollars shall not be used to
replace funds of, or positions, othenrise funded by the City.

As applicable, costs and expenditures must be allowable in accordance with OMB
Circular A-87, Cost pincipals for state, local and lndian Tibal Govemments. Operating
Funds are subject to the Single Audit Ac1 Amendments of 1996 and the OMB Circular, A-
133, Audits of state, local govemment and non-proffi organizations.

6. Capacitv of Citv.

ln rendering the aforesaid services, it is mutually understood and agreed that the City, its
agents and employees, shall at all times be acting and performing independently and not
as employees of the City of Selma. The Crime Specialist shall at all times be under the
direction and control of and must report to the Chief of Police of the City of Fresno Police
Department. Nothing in this Agreement and nothing in the course of dealings between
the City of Selma and City shall be deemed to create any fiduciary relationship, trust,
partnership, joint venture, agency or employment relationship. City, and City's employees
and agents, shall not be treated by the City of Selma as employees of the City of Selma
for any purpose including, but not limited to, laws providing for Social Security taxes and

31661543v2/ 18521.00O1

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 59

with a telephone, computer and access to restroom facilities for the 
respective analyst's use. 

b) Forthe aforementioned services, the City of Selma agrees to reimburse City 
for costs incurred by City hereunder, in an amount not to exceed $25,000 
for the period beginning July 1, 2019, and ending June 30, 2020. 

c) The amount of $25,000 is the City of Selma's prorated share of the City's 
costs. The aggregate cost are as follows: 

• Salary and fringe benefits for one (1) Crime Specialist, 
$87,605.60 

The City will bill the City of Selma on a quarterly basis consisting of four (4) 
invoices of $6,250 each. 

3. Term. 

The term of th is Agreement shall commence on July 1, 2019, and shall end on 
June 30, 2020, subject to earlier termination as provided herein. 

4. Termination. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, th is Agreement may be terminated immediately by either 
the City of Selma or City, upon the other party's fa ilure to comply with the requirements 
set forth in the Scope of Services, that is not cured within 30 days of receiving written 
notice thereof, by giving written notice to the other party of the termination. Such 
termination shall be subject to obligations due and owing on the date of termination. 

5. Compliance with Governing Law. 

The services provided by the City under th is Agreement are over and above the City's 
budgeted positions. The parties agree that Operating Fund dollars shall not be used to 
replace funds of, or positions, otherwise funded by the City. 

As applicable, costs and expenditures must be allowable in accordance with OMS 
Circular A-87, Cost principals for state, local and Indian Tribal Governments. Operating 
Funds are subject to the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and the OMS Circular, A-
133, Audits of state, local government and non-profit organizations. 

6. Capacity of City. 

In rendering the aforesaid services, it is mutually understood and agreed that the City, its 
agents and employees, shall at all times be acting and performing independently and not 
as employees of the City of Selma. The Crime Specialist shall at all times be under the 
direction and control of and must report to the Chief of Police of the City of Fresno Police 
Department. Nothing in this Agreement and nothing in the course of dealings between 
the City of Selma and City shall be deemed to create any fiduciary relationship, trust, 
partnership , joint venture, agency or employment relationship. City, and City's employees 
and agents, shall not be treated by the City of Selma as employees of the City of Selma 
for any purpose including, but not limited to, laws providing for Social Security taxes and 

1661543v2 / 18621.0001 - 3 -



benefits, state or federal unemployment compensation taxes, state or federal income tax
withholdings or worker's compensation benefits. City agrees that it has sole responsibility
to pay Social Security, State Disability lnsurance, Worker's Compensation lnsurance and
all other wages and benefits applicable to its employees. City further agrees to hold the
Selma Police Department harmless for any and all claims made with regard to such
matters.

7. lndemnification and lnsurance.

a) To the fullest extent of the law, City shall indemnify, hold harmless and
defend the City of Selma and each of its officers, officials, employees,
agents and volunteers from any and all loss, liability, fines, penalties,
forfeitures, costs and damages (whether in contract, tort or strict liability,
including but not limited to personal injury, death at any time and property
damage) incurred by the City of Selma, City or any other person, and from
any and all claims, demands and actions in law or equity (including
attorney's fees and litigation expenses), arising or alleged to have arisen
directly or indirectly from the negligent or intentional acts or omissions, or
willful misconduct of City or any of its officers, officials, employees, agents
or volunteers in the performance of this Agreement; provided nothing herein
shall constitute a waiver by City of governmental immunities including
California Government Code section 810 ef seq. This paragraph shall be
construed such that City will indemnify the City of Selma in the event the
City of Selma is named in a lawsuit against Fresno Police Department
personnel arising or alleged to have arisen directly or indirectly from the
negligent or intentional acts or omissions, or willful misconduct, of Fresno
Police Department personnel in the performance of this Agreement
Provided nothing herein shall constitute a waiver by City of governmental
immunities including California Government Code section 810 et seq.

To the fullest extent of the law, the City of Selma shall indemnify, hold
harmless and defend City and each of its officers, officials, employees,
agents and volunteers from any and all loss, liability, fines, penalties,
forfeitures, costs and damages (whether in contract, tort or strict liability,
including but not limited to personal injury, death at any time and property
damage) incurred by the City, the City of Selma or any other person, and
from any and all claims, demands and actions in law or equity (including
attorney's fees and litigation expenses), arising or alleged to have arisen
directly or indirectly from the negligent or intentional acts or omissions, or
willful misconduct of the City of Selma or any of its officers, officials,
employees, agents or volunteers in the performance of this Agreement;
provided nothing herein shall constitute a waiver by the City of Selma of
governmental immunities including California Government Code section
810 ef seg.

ln the event of concurrent negligence on the part of City or any of its officers,
officials, employees, agents or volunteers, and the City of Selma or any of

1661543v2/ 18621.0001 - 4'

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 60

benefits, state or federal unemployment compensation taxes, state or federal income tax 
with holdings or worker's compensation benefits. City agrees that it has sole responsibility 
to pay Social Security, State Disability Insurance, Worker's Compensation Insurance and 
all other wages and benefits applicable to its employees. City further agrees to hold the 
Selma Police Department harmless for any and all claims made with regard to such 
matters. 

7. Indemnification and Insurance. 

a) To the fullest extent of the law, City shall indemnify, hold harmless and 
defend the City of Selma and each of its officers, officials, employees, 
agents and volunteers from any and all loss, liability, fines, penalties, 
forfeitures, costs and damages (whether in contract, tort or strict liability, 
including but not limited to personal injury, death at any time and property 
damage) incurred by the City of Selma, City or any other person, and from 
any and all claims, demands and actions in law or equity (including 
attorney's fees and litigation expenses), arising or alleged to have arisen 
directly or indirectly from the negligent or intentional acts or omissions, or 
willful misconduct of City or any of its officers, officials, employees, agents 
or volunteers in the performance of this Agreement; provided nothing herein 
shall constitute a waiver by City of governmental immunities including 
California Government Code section 810 et seq. This paragraph shall be 
construed such that City will indemnify the City of Selma in the event the 
City of Selma is named in a lawsuit against Fresno Police Department 
personnel arising or alleged to have arisen directly or indirectly from the 
negligent or intentional acts or omissions, or willful misconduct, of Fresno 
Police Department personnel in the performance of this Agreement 
Provided nothing herein shall constitute a waiver by City of governmental 
immunities including California Government Code section 810 et seq. 

To the fullest extent of the law, the City of Selma shall indemnify, hold 
harmless and defend City and each of its officers, officials , employees, 
agents and volunteers from any and all loss, liability, fines, penalties, 
forfeitures, costs and damages (whether in contract, tort or strict liability, 
including but not limited to personal injury, death at any time and property 
damage) incurred by the City, the City of Selma or any other person, and 
from any and all claims, demands and actions in law or equity (including 
attorney's fees and litigation expenses) , arising or alleged to have arisen 
directly or indirectly from the negligent or intentional acts or omissions, or 
willful misconduct of the City of Selma or any of its officers, officials, 
employees, agents or volunteers in the performance of this Agreement; 
provided nothing herein shall constitute a waiver by the City of Selma of 
governmental immunities including California Government Code section 
810 et seq. 

In the event of concurrent negligence on the part of City or any of its officers, 
officials, employees, agents or volunteers, and the City of Selma or any of 

1661543v2/ 1862U X)()1 - 4-



b)

its officers, officials, employees, agents or volunteers, the liability for any
and all such claims, demands and actions in law or equity for such losses,
fines, penalties, forfeitures, costs and damages shall be apportioned under
the State of California's theory of comparative negligence as presently
established or as may be modified hereafter.

This subsection (a) shall survive termination or expiration of this
Agreement.

It is understood and agreed that City and the City of Selma maintain
insurance policies or self-insurance programs to fund their respective
liabilities. The parties agree that such respective programs or policy
coverage for Workers' Compensation shall contain a waiver of subrogation
as to the other pafi and each of its officers, officials, agents, employees
and volunteers. Evidence of lnsurance, Certificates of lnsurance or other
similar documentation shall not be required of either party under this
Agreement.

The fact that insurance is obtained by the City Selma shall not be deemed
to release or diminish the liability of the City of Selma, including, without
limitation, liability under the indemnity provisions of this Agreement. The
duty to indemnify City shall apply to all claims and liability regardless of
whether any insurance policies are applicable. The policy limits do not act
as a limitation upon the amount of indemnification to be provided by the City
of Selma. Approval or purchase of any insurance contracts or policies shall
in no way relieve from liability nor limit the liability of the City of Selma, its
principals, officers, agents.

8. Attorney's fees

lf either party is required to commence any proceeding or legal action to enforce or
interpret any term, covenant or condition of this Agreement, the prevailing party in such
proceeding or action shall be entitled to recover from the other party its reasonable
attorney's fees and legal expenses.

9. Notices.

Any notice required or intended to be given to either party under the terms of this
Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to be duly given if delivered personally
or deposited into the United Stated mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid,
addressed to the party to which notice is to be given at the party's address set forth on
the signature page of this Agreement or at such other address as the parties may from
time to time designate by written notice.

1661543v2 / 18621.0001 -5-

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 61

its officers, officials, employees, agents or volunteers, the liability for any 
and all such claims, demands and actions in law or equity for such losses, 
fines , penalties, forfeitures, costs and damages shall be apportioned under 
the State of California's theory of comparative negligence as presently 
established or as may be modified hereafter. 

This subsection (a) shall survive termination or expiration of this 
Agreement. 

b) It is understood and agreed that City and the City of Selma maintain 
insurance policies or self-insurance programs to fund their respective 
liabilities. The parties agree that such respective programs or policy 
coverage for Workers' Compensation shall contain a waiver of subrogation 
as to the other party and each of its officers, officials, agents, employees 
and volunteers. Evidence of Insurance, Certificates of Insurance or other 
similar documentation shall not be required of either party under this 
Agreement. 

The fact that insurance is obtained by the City Selma shall not be deemed 
to release or diminish the liability of the City of Selma, including, without 
limitation, liability under the indemnity provisions of this Agreement. The 
duty to indemnify City shall apply to all claims and liability regardless of 
whether any insurance policies are applicable. The policy limits do not act 
as a limitation upon the amount of indemnification to be provided by the City 
of Selma. Approval or purchase of any insurance contracts or policies shall 
in no way relieve from liability nor limit the liability of the City of Selma, its 
principals, officers, agents. 

8. Attorney's fees. 

If either party is required to commence any proceeding or legal action to enforce or 
interpret any term, covenant or condition of this Agreement, the prevailing party in such 
proceeding or action shall be entitled to recover from the other party its reasonable 
attorney's fees and legal expenses. 

9. Notices. 

Any notice required or intended to be given to either party under the terms of this 
Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to be duly given if delivered personally 
or deposited into the United Stated mail , return receipt requested , with postage prepaid, 
addressed to the party to which notice is to be given at the party's address set forth on 
the signature page of th is Agreement or at such other address as the parties may from 
time to time designate by written notice. 

1661543v2 / 18621.(X)Ql - 5 -



10. Bindinq.

Once this Agreement is signed by the parties, it shall be binding upon, and shall inure to
the benefit of, the parties, and each party's respective heirs, suc@ssors, assignees,
transferees, agents, servants, employees and representatives.

'11. Assiqnment.

There shall be no assignment by either party or its rights or obligations under this
Agreement without the prior written approval of the other party. Any aftempted
assignment by a party, its successors or assignees, shall be null and void unless
approved in writing by the other party.

12. Waiver.

The waiver by either party of a breach by the other of any provision of this Agreement
shall not constitute a continuing waiver or a waiver of any subsequent breach of either
the same or different provision of this Agreement.

No provisions of this Agreement may be waived unless in writing and signed by all parties
to this Agreement. Waiver of any one provision herein shall not be deemed to be a waiver
of any other provision herein.

13. Governinq Law and Venue.

This Agreement shall be governed by, and construed and enforced in accordance with,
the laws of the State of California. Venue for purpose of the filing of any action regarding
the enforcement or interpretation of this Agreement and any rights and duties hereunder
shall be Fresno, California.

14. Headings.

The section headings in this Agreement are for convenience and reference only and shall
not be construed or held in any way to explain, modify or add to the interpretation or
meaning of the provisions of this Agreement.

15. Severabilitv.

The provisions of this Agreement are severable. The invalidity or unenforceability of any
one provision in this Agreement shall not affect the other provisions.

16. lnterpretation.

The parties acknowledge that this Agreement in its final form is the result of the combined
efforts of the parties and that, should any provision of this Agreement be found to be
ambiguous in any way, such ambiguity shall not be resolved by construing this Agreement
in favor or against any party, but rather by construing the terms in accordance with their
generally accepted meeting.

156193v2 / 18621.0001 -5-

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 62

10. Binding. 

Once this Agreement is signed by the parties, it shall be binding upon, and shall inure to 
the benefit of, the parties, and each party's respective heirs, successors, assignees, 
transferees, agents, servants, employees and representatives. 

11 . Assignment. 

There shall be no assignment by either party or its rights or obligations under this 
Agreement without the prior written approval of the other party. Any attempted 
assignment by a party, its successors or assignees, shall be null and void unless 
approved in writing by the other party. 

12. Waiver. 

The waiver by either party of a breach by the other of any provision of this Agreement 
shall not constitute a continuing waiver or a waiver of any subsequent breach of either 
the same or different provision of this Agreement. 

No provisions of this Agreement may be waived unless in writing and signed by all parties 
to this Agreement. Waiver of anyone provision herein shall not be deemed to be a waiver 
of any other provision herein. 

13. Governing Law and Venue. 

Th is Agreement shall be governed by, and construed and enforced in accordance with , 
the laws of the State of California . Venue for purpose of the filing of any action regarding 
the enforcement or interpretation of th is Agreement and any rights and duties hereunder 
shall be Fresno, California. 

14. Headings. 

The section headings in this Agreement are for convenience and reference only and shall 
not be construed or held in any way to explain , modify or add to the interpretation or 
meaning of the provisions of this Agreement. 

15. Severability. 

The provisions of this Agreement are severable. The invalidity or unenforceability of any 
one provision in this Agreement shall not affect the other provisions. 

16. Interpretation. 

The parties acknowledge that this Agreement in its final form is the result of the combined 
efforts of the parties and that, should any provision of th is Agreement be found to be 
ambiguous in any way, such ambiguity shall not be resolved by construing this Agreement 
in favor or against any party, but rather by construing the terms in accordance with their 
generally accepted meeting. 

1661543\12 / 1862l.(XXl l - 6-



ISTGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOWI

166t543v2 / lA62LO@r -7 -

17. No Third Party Beneficiaries.

The rights, interests, duties, and obligations defined within this Agreement are intended
for the specific parties hereto as identified in the preamble of this Agreement.
Notwithstanding anything stated to the contrary in this Agreement, it is not intended that
any rights or interests in this Agreement benefit or flow to the interest of any third parties.

18. Exhibits.

Each exhibit and attachment referenced in this Agreement is, by reference, incorporated
into and made a part of this Agreement.

19. Entire Aqreement.

It is mutually understood and agreed that the foregoing constitutes the entire agreement
between the parties for law enforcement services from the Fresno Police Department.
There are no further portions of this agreement, whether prior or contemporaneous,
express or implied, written or oral other than as set for in the provisions of this agreement.
Any modifications or amendments to this agreement must be in writing and signed by
both parties.

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 63

17. No Third Party Beneficiaries. 

The rights, interests, duties, and obl igations defined within this Agreement are intended 
for the specific parties hereto as identified in the preamble of this Agreement. 
Notwithstanding anything stated to the contrary in this Agreement, it is not intended that 
any rights or interests in this Agreement benefit or flow to the interest of any third parties. 

18. Exhibits. 

Each exhibit and attachment referenced in this Agreement is, by reference, incorporated 
into and made a part of this Agreement. 

19. Entire Agreement. 

It is mutually understood and agreed that the foregoing constitutes the entire agreement 
between the parties for law enforcement services from the Fresno Police Department. 
There are no further portions of this agreement, whether prior or contemporaneous, 
express or implied, written or oral other than as set for in the provisions of this agreement. 
Any modifications or amendments to this agreement must be in writing and signed by 
both parties. 

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW] 

1661S43v2 / 18621.0001 - 7 -



lN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused their authorized agents to
execute this Agreement at Fresno, California the day and year first above written.

CITY OF FRESNO
A California municipal corporation

By:

CITY OF SELMA,
A California municipal corporation

By
Teresa Gallavan,
City Manager
City of Selma

APPROVED AS TO FROM
BIANCA SPARKS ROJAS
City Attorney

By:
Bianca Sparks Rojas
Date
City Attorney

ATTEST:
REYNA RIVERA,
City Clerk

Jerry Dyer, Date
Chief of Police
Fresno Police Department

Date

APPROVED AS TO FROM:
DOUGLAS T. SLOAN
City Attorney

By:
Tracy N. Parvanian Date
Senior Deputy City Attorney

ATTEST:
WONNE SPENCE, MMC
City Clerk

By:
Deputy

Address:
City of Fresno Police Department
Attention: D.C. Lydia Carrasco
Patrol Division
P.O. Box 1271
Fresno, CA.93715-1271

Reyna Rivera, City Clerk Date

Address:
Selma Police Department
Attention: Chief Greg Garner
Chief of Police
1935 Front St
Selma, CA 93662

Date By:

81661543v2 / 18621.0@1

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 64

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused their authorized agents to 
execute this Agreement at Fresno, California the day and year first above written . 

CITY OF FRESNO 
A California municipal corporation 

By: 
Jerry Dyer, Date 
Chief of Police 
Fresno Police Department 

APPROVED AS TO FROM: 
DOUGLAS T. SLOAN 
City Attorney 

By: 
Tracy N. Parvanian Date 
Senior Deputy City Attorney 

ATTEST: 
YVONNE SPENCE, MMC 
City Clerk 

By: 
Deputy 

Address: 
City of Fresno Police Department 
Attention : D.C. Lydia Carrasco 
Patrol Division 
P.O. Box 1271 
Fresno, CA 93715-1271 

1661543v2 / 18621.oool 

Date 

CITY OF SELMA, 
A California municipal corporation 

By: ~~ __ ~~ ________ ~~ 
Teresa Gallavan, Date 
City Manager 
City of Selma 

APPROVED AS TO FROM: 
BIANCA SPARKS ROJAS 
City Attorney 

By: ~~ __ ~~~~ ______ ___ 
Bianca Sparks Rojas 
Date 
City Attorney 

ATTEST: 
REYNA RIVERA, 
City Clerk 

By: ~~ __ ~~~~ __ ~~ ___ 
Reyna Rivera , City Clerk Date 

Address: 
Selma Police Department 
Attention: Chief Greg Garner 
Chief of Police 
1935 Front St 
Selma, CA 93662 

- 8-



CITY MANAGER'S/STAFF'S REPORT
CITY COT'NCIL MEETING:

June 3, 2019

SUBJECT:
Consideration of a Memorandum of Understanding (MOII) between
the City of Selma and the Selma Unified School District for a School
Partner Program

DISCUSSION:

Students who participate in this program must be 16 years of age or older' Workers
Compensation and liability coverage are provided under Selma Unified School District
policy. AII program participants will also be required to sigrr a waiver, releasing the City of
any liability, prior to participation.

RECOMMENDATION:

Approve the MOU between the City and the Selma Unified School District for a School

Partner Program, and authorize the City Manager to execute the MOU.

5--3 ?
Robert Petersen, Fire Chief Date

Date

Teresa allavan, City Manager Date

g- 3t4q

ITEMNO:

This MOU will provide for a cooperative agreement between the Selma Unified School
District and the City to collaborate on a School Partner Program. The program will allow
the Selma Fire Department and the Selma Police Department to provide students from the
Selma Valley ROP program with meaningful work-based leaming experience.

Students who have completed the Urban/Rural Fire Fighting class, or the Administration of
Justice class, will ride along with Selma Firefighters/Selma Police Officers respectively for a
period beginning in June 2019 and lasting through August 2019. This ride along time will
provide them with work-based experience to enhance what they have leamed throughout
the duration of their class.

Greg Gamer, Police Chief

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 65

CITY MANAGER'S/STAFF'S REPORT 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING: 

ITEM NO: 

June 3, 2019 

SUBJECT: 
Consideration of a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between 
the City of Selma and the Selma Unified School District for a School 
Partner Program 

DISCUSSION: 

This MOU will provide for a cooperative agreement between the Selma Unified School 
District and the City to collaborate on a School Partner Program. The program will allow 
the Selma Fire Department and the Selma Police Department to provide students from the 
Selma Valley ROP program with meaningful work-based learning experience. 

Students who have completed the Urban/Rural Fire Fighting class, or the Administration of 
Justice class, will ride along with Selma Firefighters/Selma Police Officers respectively for a 
period beginning in June 2019 and lasting through August 2019. This ride along time will 
provide them with work-based experience to enhance what they have learned throughout 
the duration of their class. 

Students who participate in this program must be 16 years of age or older. Workers 
Compensation and liability coverage are provided under Selma Unified School District 
policy. All program participants will also be required to sign a waiver, releasing the City of 
any liability, prior to participation. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve the MOU between the City and the Selma Unified School District for a School 
Partner Program, and authorize the City Manager to execute the MOU . 

.s:-3D-17 
Robert Petersen, Fire Chief Date 

Greg Gamer, Police Chief Date 

0- 3.1-/9 
Date 

reynar
Typewritten Text
1.D.

reynar
Typewritten Text

reynar
Typewritten Text
/S/								05/31/2019



Memorandum of Understanding
Between Selma Unified School District and lndustry Partner for School Partner Program.

SUSD agrees to:
o Provide work-readiness training to support skill building and professionalism '

. lnform high school students of all rules, regulations, of SUSD and training site.

. Correlate the job-related classroom instruction with the learning experiences ofthe training site.

. Assist in the resolution of the student's school or site-related problems that are affecting the site-

related performance of the student.

o Provide the site with a training plan.

. Verify training plan, class relationship, and community site activities.

o Accept the responsibility and status as the legal employer of all students placed in job sites on a non-

paid status.

r Provide and maintain worker's compensation coverage forthe high school and/or adult students'

instructional program. Under no circumstances shall the lndustry Partner be considered the employer

of high school and/or adult students participatinB in the School Partner Program.

lndustry Partner agrees to:
o Provide a meaningful work-based learning experience for youth, including the acquisition of work

readiness and job skills as appropriate.

o provide specific training before allowing student to embark on any task. Continually supervise student'

o Have shift mentor or supervisor complete a skills assessment during and at the end of each student's

job shadow or internship or the equivalent.

. Adhere to all applicable federal, state and local laws concerning interns as well as state and federal

child labor laws.

. Treat youth at all times as interns as opposed to employees and not allow student to take the place of

an employee.

1,

This Memorandum of Understanding ("MOU") provides for a cooperative agreement between Selma Unified School

District ("SUSD") and the City of Selma ("lndustry Partne/') to collaborate on the School Partner Program.

Whereas SUSD and this lndustry Partner wish to collaborate to provide youth with a meaningful work-based learning

experience for program participants, SUSD and this lndustry Partner enter into the following MOU for the period of

June Xx. 2019 to Auqust xx, 2019

SUSD agrees that all students will:
. Be 16 years of age or older and enrolled in a career technical education class.

. Conform to the program rules and regulations established by the school and training site.

. Maintain regular attendance and punctuality in school and on-the-site training.

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 66

Memorandum of Understanding 
Between Selma Unified School District and Industry Partner for School Partner Program. 

This Memorandum of Understanding ("MOU") provides for a cooperative agreement between Selma Unified School 

District ("SUSD") and the City of Selma ("Industry Partner") to collaborate on the School Partner Program. 

Whereas SUSD and this Industry Partner wish to collaborate to provide youth with a meaningful work-based learning 

experience for program participants, SUSD and this Industry Partner enter into the following MOU for the period of 

June XX. 2019 to August XX, 2019. 

SUSD agrees to: 
• Provide work-readiness training to support skill building and professionalism. 

• Inform high school students of all rules, regulations, of SUSD and training site. 

• Correlate the job-related classroom instruction with the learning experiences of the training site. 

• Assist in the resolution of the student's school or site-related problems that are affecting the site-

related performance of the student. 

• Provide the site with a training plan. 

• Verify training plan, class relationship, and community site activities. 

• Accept the responsibility and status as the legal employer of all students placed in job sites on a non

paid status. 

• Provide and maintain worker's compensation coverage for the high school and/or adult students' 

instructional program. Under no circumstances shall the Industry Partner be considered the employer 

of high school and/or adult students participating in the School Partner Program. 

Industry Partner agrees to: 
• Provide a meaningful work-based learning experience for youth, including the acquisition of work 

readiness and job skills as appropriate. 

• Provide specific training before allowing student to embark on any task. Continually supervise student. 

• Have shift mentor or supervisor complete a skills assessment during and at the end of each student's 

job shadow or internship or the equivalent. 

• Adhere to all applicable federal, state and local laws concerning interns as well as state and federal 

child labor laws. 

• Treat youth at all times as interns as opposed to employees and not allow student to take the place of 

an employee. 

SUSD agrees that all students will: 
• Be 16 years of age or older and enrolled in a career technical education class. 

• Conform to the program rules and regulations established by the school and training site. 

• Maintain regular attendance and punctuality in school and on-the-site training. 

1 



. Regularly attend the site-related classroom instruction.

. Report to site properly groomed and dressed appropriately for the site.

. Report any conflicts, problems or anticipated schedule changes to the SUSD instructor.

o Be informed that there is no guarantee of a job at the completion of this training.

. Report immediately any unsafe conditions or injuries to the SUSD instructor and lndustry Partner.

Class: ll rba n/ Ru ra I Fi rcfiohtina

Students participating in the Urban/Rural Firefightint Program may engage in the following activities:

. Participate in ride-along with Fire Department

. Learn about the laws & regulations with-in the Fire Department

. Lear and ldentify Tools and equipment used

o Shadow Fire Fighters on calls and in the Stations

r Work in different divisions within the Fire Department

Class: Polr'ce Ofiicet Troining

Students participating in the Police Officer Training Program may engage in the following activities:

. Participate in ride-along with Police Department

. Learn about the laws & regulations with-in the Police Department

o Lear and ldentify Tools and equipment used

o Shadow Police Officers on calls and in the Stations

. Work in different divisions within the Police Department

RELEASE, HOID HARMI,TSS AND INDEMNIFICATION

(A) SUSD shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless lndustry Partner, its elected and appointed officers,

officials, agents, contractors, consultants, employees and volunteers from and a8ainst any and all claims,

damages, demands, liability, costs, losses and expenses, including without limitation court costs and reasonable

attorneys' fees, arising out of or in connection with the School Partner Program or its negligent failure to comply

with any of its obligations contained in this MOU (collectively "Claims"), except such loss or damage which was

caused by the sole negligence, or willful misconduct of the lndustry Partner. Acceptance by the lndustry Partner

of insurance certificates and endorsements required under this Agreement does not relieve SUSD from liability

under this indemnification and hold harmless clause. This indemnification and hold harmless clause shall apply

to any Claims whether or not such insurance policies shall have been determined to apply.

(B) SUSD releases the lndustry Partner, its officers, officials, agents, and employees of any and all claims,

damages, demands, liability, costs, losses and expenses, including without limitation court costs and reasonable

attorney's fees, arising out of or in connection with the School Partner Pro8ram.

2

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 67

• Regularly attend the site-related classroom instruction. 

• Report to site properly groomed and dressed appropriately for the site. 

• Report any conflicts, problems or anticipated schedule changes to the SUSD instructor. 

• Be informed that there is no guarantee of a job at the completion of this training. 

• Report immediately any unsafe conditions or injuries to the SUSD instructor and Industry Partner. 

Class: Urban/Rural Firefightinq 

Students participating in the Urban/Rural Firefighting Program may engage in the following activities: 

• Participate in ride-along with Fire Department 

• Learn about the laws & regulations with-in the Fire Department 

• Lear and Identify Tools and equipment used 

• Shadow Fire Fighters on calls and in the Stations 

• Work in different divisions within the Fire Department 

Class: Police Officer Training 

Students participating in the Police Officer Training Program may engage in the following activities: 

• Participate in ride-along with Police Department 

• Learn about the laws & regulations with-in the Police Department 

• Lear and Identify Tools and equipment used 

• Shadow Police Officers on calls and in the Stations 

• Work in different divisions within the Police Department 

RELEASE, HOLD HARMLESS AND INDEMNIFICATION 

(A) SUSD shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless Industry Partner, its elected and appointed officers, 

officials, agents, contractors, consultants, employees and volunteers from and against any and all claims, 

damages, demands, liability, costs, losses and expenses, including without limitation court costs and reasonable 

attorneys' fees, arising out of or in connection with the School Partner Program or its negligent failure to comply 

with any of its obligations contained in this MOU (collectively "Claims"), except such loss or damage which was 

caused by the sole negligence, or willful misconduct of the Industry Partner. Acceptance by the Industry Partner 

of insurance certificates and endorsements required under this Agreement does not relieve SUSD from liability 

under this indemnification and hold harmless clause. This indemnification and hold harmless clause shall apply 

to any Claims whether or not such insurance policies shall have been determined to apply. 

(B) SUSD releases the Industry Partner, its officers, offiCials, agents, and employees of any and all claims, 

damages, demands, liability, costs, losses and expenses, including without limitation court costs and reasonable 

attorney's fees, arising out of or in connection with the School Partner Program. 

2 



SUSD acknowledges and expressly waives the benefit of California Civil Code Section 1542, which is set forth
below, and specifically agrees that the release contained in this MOU shall extend to all claims arising out of
transactions which the parties do not know or expect to exist in their favor at this time, and which rise out of or

are connected the School Partner Program. California Civil Code Section 1542 provides:

A GENERAT RETEASE DOES NOT EXTEND TO CTAIMS THAT THE CREDITOR OR

RELEASING PARTY DOES NOT KNOW OR SUSPECTTO EXIST IN HIS OR HER FAVOR

ATTHETIME OF EXECUTING THE RETEASE AND THAT, IF KNOWN BY HIM OR HER,

WOUTD HAVE MATERIALLY AFFECTED HIS OR HER SETTTEMENT WITH THE

DEBTOR OR RETEASED PARTY.

lndustry Partner's lnitials SUSD's lnitials

SUSD acknowledges that the facts and law in relation to this matter and the claims released by the terms ofthis
MOU may turn out to be different from or in addition to the facts or law as now known to each party or its
counsel. SUSD therefore expressly agrees that the release so given shall be and remain in effect as a full and

complete release of the persons and entities released thereby notwithstanding any possibility of new or

different facts or law.

(C) By execution ofthis MOU, SUSD acknowledges and agrees to the provisions of this Section and that it is

a material element of consideration.

lnsurance

General Aggregate: S2,000,000.00

Products and Completed Operations: S1,000,000.00

Personal & Advertising lnjury: S1,000,000.00

Each Occurrence Limit: S1,000,000.00

Fire Damage (Any one Fire): S100,000.00

Medical Payments (Any one Person): 55,000.00

lndustry Partner and its elected and appointed officers, employees, agents, and volunteers shall be named

as additional insureds with respect to each of the insurance policies required underthis MOU.

waiver

All School Partner Program participants shall execute the waiver attached hereto as Exhibit A, and

3

Duringtheterm of this MOU, SUSD shall, at its sole costs and expense, carry, maintain, and keep in full force

and effect insurance ofthe types and in the amounts as set forth below:

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 68

SUSD acknowledges and expressly waives the benefit of Californ ia Civi l Code Section 1542, which is set forth 
below, and specifically agrees that the release contained in this MOU shall extend to all cla ims arising out of 
transactions which the parties do not know or expect to exist in their favor at this time, and which rise out of or 
are connected the School Partner Program. California Civil Code Section 1542 provides: 

A GENERAL RELEASE DOES NOT EXTEND TO CLAIMS THAT THE CREDITOR OR 
RELEASING PARTY DOES NOT KNOW OR SUSPECT TO EXIST IN HIS OR HER FAVOR 
ATTHE TIME OF EXECUTING THE RELEASE AND THAT, IF KNOWN BY HIM OR HER, 
WOULD HAVE MATERIALLY AFFECTED HIS OR HER SETTLEMENT WITH THE 
DEBTOR OR RELEASED PARTY. 

Industry Partner's Initials SUSD's Initials 

SUSD acknowledges that the facts and law in relation to this matter and the claims released by the terms of this 
MOU may turn out to be different from or in addition to the facts or law as now known to each party or its 
counsel. SUSD therefore expressly agrees that the release so given shall be and remain in effect as a full and 
complete release of the persons and entities released thereby notwithstanding any possibility of new or 
different facts or law. 

(C) By execution of this MOU, SUSD acknowledges and agrees to the provisions of this Section and that it is 

a material element of consideration. 

Insurance 

During the term of this MOU, SUSD shall, at its sole costs and expense, carry, maintain, and keep in full force 
and effect insurance of the types and in the amounts as set forth below: 

General Aggregate: $2,000,000.00 

Products and Completed Operations: $1,000,000.00 

Personal & Advertising Injury: $1,000,000.00 

Each Occurrence Limit : $1,000,000.00 

Fire Damage (Anyone Fire): $100,000.00 

Medical Payments (Anyone Person): $5,000.00 

Industry Partner and its elected and appointed officers, employees, agents, and volunteers shall be named 
as additional insureds with respect to each of the insurance policies required under this MOU. 

Waiver 

All School Partner Program participants shall execute the waiver attached hereto as Exhibit A, and 

3 



incorporated herein by reference, prior to participating in the Program. Said waiver shall be provided to
the lndustry Partner, with a copy to SUSD.

Termination

This MOU may be terminated at any time in writing by any party for any reason with three days' notice.

This MOU also may be terminated immediately by any party if there is a failure to comply with the terms

and conditions outlined in this MOU.

Miscellaneous

This MOU constitutes the entire MOU and understanding between the parties, and supersedes all offers,

negotiations and other MOUs concerning the subject matter contained herein. There are no

representations or understandings of any kind not set forth herein. Any amendments to this MOU must be

in writing and executed by all parties.

4

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 69

incorporated herein by reference, prior to participating in the Program. Said waiver shall be provided to 

the Industry Partner, with a copy to SUSD. 

Termination 

This MOU may be terminated at any time in writing by any party for any reason with three days' notice. 

This MOU also may be terminated immediately by any party if there is a failure to comply with the terms 

and conditions outlined in this MOU. 

Miscellaneous 

This MOU constitutes the entire MOU and understanding between the parties, and supersedes all offers, 

negotiations and other MOUs concerning the subject matter contained herein. There are no 

representations or understandings of any kind not set forth herein. Any amendments to this MOU must be 

in writing and executed by all parties. 

4 



PARTY SIGNATURES TO MOU

I have read all of the provisions outlined in this MOU, and agree to comply with every provision

listed herein. I certify that I am authorized to sign agreements on behalf of my

business/agency/organization.

Any changes to this contract must be made in writing, and be signed by representatives of both
SUSD and lndustry Partner.

"lndustry Partner"

City of Selma

By:

Teresa Gallavan, City Manager

Attest:

By:

Reyna Rivera, City Clerk

Approved as to form:

Bianca Sparks Rojas, City Attorney

'susD"

Selma Unified School District

By:

Tanya A. Fisher, Ed.D., Superintendent

By:

5

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 70

PARTY SIGNATURES TO MOU 

I have read all of the provisions outlined in this MOU, and agree to comply with every provision 
listed herein. I certify that I am authorized to sign agreements on behalf of my 
business/agency/organization. 

Any changes to this contract must be made in writing, and be signed by representatives of both 
SUSD and Industry Partner. 

"Industry Partner" "SUSD" 

City of Selma Selma Unified School District 

By: ___________ _ By: _________ _ 

Teresa Gallavan, City Manager Tanya A. Fisher, Ed.D., Superintendent 

Attest: 

By: ____________ _ 

Reyna Rivera, City Clerk 

Approved as to form: 

By: ____________ _ 

Bianca Sparks Rojas, City Attorney 

5 



t,

WAIVER, RELEASE, HOLD HARMLESS AND AGREEMENT NOT TO SUE

(FULL NAME OF STUDENT), fully understand that my
participation in the School Partner Program with the City of Selma (hereinafter "Program")
exposes me to the risk of personal injury, death or property damage. I hereby acknowledge
that I am voluntarily participating in this evenUclass and agree to assume any such risks.

I hereby release, discharge and agree not to sue the City of Selma, its elected and appointed
offlcers, officials, agents, contractors, consultants, employees and volunteers for any injury,

death or damage to or loss of personal property arising out of, or in connection with, my
participation in the Program from whatever cause, including the active or passive negligence
of the City of Selma, its elected and appointed officers, officials, agents, mntractors,
consultants, employees and volunteers or any other participants in the Program. The parties

to this agreement understand that this document is not intended to release any party from any
act or omission of "gross negligence," as that term is used in applicable case law and/or
statutory provision.

ln consideration for being permitted to participate in the Program, I hereby agree, for myself,
my heirs, administrators, executorc and assigns, that I shall indemnify and hold harmless the
City of Selma, its elected and appointed officers, officials, agents, contractors, consultants,
employees and volunteers from any and all claims, demands actions or suits arising out of or
in connection with my participation in the Program.

I HAVE CAREFULLY READ THIS RELEASE, HOLD HARMLESS AND AGREEMENT
NOT TO SUE AND FULLY UNDERSTAND ITS CONTENTS. I AM AWARE THAT IT IS A
FULL RELEASE OF ALL LIABILITY AND SIGN IT ON MY OWN FREE WILL.

Date

Name

Signature
(Requires signature of parenUguardian if student is under the age of 18)

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 71

WAIVER, RELEASE, HOLD HARMLESS AND AGREEMENT NOT TO SUE 

I, (FULL NAME OF STUDENT), fully understand that my 
participation in the School Partner Program with the City of Selma (hereinafter "Program") 
exposes me to the risk of personal injury, death or property damage. I hereby acknowledge 
that I am voluntarily participating in this event/class and agree to assume any such risks. 

I hereby release, discharge and agree not to sue the City of Selma, its elected and appointed 
officers, officials, agents, contractors, consultants, employees and volunteers for any injury, 
death or damage to or loss of personal property arising out of, or in connection with, my 
participation in the Program from whatever cause, including the active or passive negligence 
of the City of Selma, its elected and appointed officers, officials, agents, contractors, 
consultants, employees and volunteers or any other participants in the Program. The parties 
to this agreement understand that this document is not intended to release any party from any 
act or omission of "gross negligence," as that term is used in applicable case law and/or 
statutory provision. 

In consideration for being permitted to participate in the Program, I hereby agree, for myself, 
my heirs, administrators, executors and assigns, that I shall indemnify and hold harmless the 
City of Selma, its elected and appointed officers, officials, agents, contractors, consultants, 
employees and volunteers from any and all claims, demands actions or suits arising out of or 
in connection with my participation in the Program. 

I HAVE CAREFULLY READ THIS RELEASE, HOLD HARMLESS AND AGREEMENT 
NOT TO SUE AND FULLY UNDERSTAND ITS CONTENTS. I AM AWARE THAT IT IS A 
FULL RELEASE OF ALL LIABILITY AND SIGN IT ON MY OWN FREE WILL. 

Date 

Name 

Signature 
(Requires signature of parent/guardian if student is under the age of 18) 



CITY MANAGER'S/STAIF'S REPORT
CITY COI.INCIL MEETING:

June 3, 2019

ITEMNO:

SUBJECT Consideration of a Professional Services Agreement with Gateway
Engineering for Preliminary Engineering on Paving Various
Unpaved Alleys Project LSTMP607

BACKGROUND: Congestion Mitigation Air Quality (CMAQ) funding has been allocated
to proceed with engineering services for the above listed project. The CMAQ funds
available for prelirninary engineering @E) are listed below:

$43,600

An E-76 (Request for Authorization for Engineering) from Caltrans must be submitted to
Caltrans in order to secure the funding. Desigr & Engineering is scheduled to begin in FY
19 /20. Plans would advertise for construction towards the end ofFY l9l20.

Plans, Specification and Estimate (PS&E):

DISCUSSION: A proposal was received from Gateway Engineering for the design &
engineering @E phase) for the CMAQ - LSTMP607 Project in the City of Selma.

The City of Selma was recently awarded CMAQ funding for paving various un-paved alleys

in the Ciry of Selma. The areas lie within the city blocks bounded by Floral Avenue,
McCall Avenue, Chestnut Street & Logan Street & within city block bounded by Arrans
Street, Cleveland Street, Rose Avenue & Shaft Street.

Toll credis will be used in lieu of a local match for the desigrr phase and the construction
phases of the project.

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 72

CITY MANAGER'S/STAFF'S REPORT 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING: 

ITEM NO: 

June 3, 2019 

SUBJECT: Consideration of a Professional Services Agreement with Gateway 
Engineering for Preliminary Engineering on Paving Various 
Unpaved Alleys Project LSTMP607 

BACKGROUND: Congestion Mitigation Air Quality (CMAQ) funding has been allocated 
to proceed with engineering services for the above listed project. The CMAQ funds 
available for preliminary engineering (PE) are listed below: 

Plans, Specification and Estimate (PS&E): $43,600 

DISCUSSION: A proposal was received from Gateway Engineering for the design & 
engineering (PE phase) for the CMAQ - LSTMP607 Project in the City of Selma. 

The City of Selma was recently awarded CMAQ funding for paving various un-paved alleys 
in the City of Selma. The areas lie within the city blocks bounded by Floral Avenue, 
McCall Avenue, Chestnut Street & Logan Street & within city blocks bounded by Arrants 
Street, Cleveland Street, Rose Avenue & Shaft Street. 

An E-76 (Request for Authorization for Engineering) from Cal trans must be submitted to 
Caltrans in order to secure the funding. Design & Engineering is scheduled to begin in FY 
19120. Plans would advertise for construction towards the end ofFY 19120. 

Toll credits will be used in lieu of a local match for the design phase and the construction 
phases of the project. 

reynar
Typewritten Text

reynar
Typewritten Text
1.E.



COST: (Enter cost of item to be

parchased)

s43,600 None

FUNDING: (Enter the fundhg souce

for this item - iffund exists, entel the
balance in the fund)

ON-GOING COST: (Enter the
amount that will need to be budgeted each

yar - if one-time cost, enter NONE).

None

RECOMMENDATION: Authorize City Manager to execute Professional Service
Agreement with Gateway Engineering to proceed with
preliminary engineering on alley paving project.

Isaac Moreno, Assistant City Manager Date

Teresa Gallavan, City Manager Date

BUDGET IMPACT: (Enter amount
this not-budgeted item *ill impact this
years' budget - d badgeted, enter NONE).

Funding $surg5 CMAQ + Toll Credits
(No local match)

Fund Balance:

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 73

COST: (Enter cost of item to be BUDGET IMP ACT: (Enter amount 
purchased) this non-budgeted item will impact this 

years' budget - ifbudgeted, enter NONE). 

$43,600 None 

FUNDING: (Enter the funding source ON-GOING COST: (Enter the 
for this item - if fund exists, enter the amount that will need to be budgeted each 
balance in the fund). year - if one-time cost, enter NONE). 

Funding Source CMAQ + Toll Credits None 

(No local match) 

Fund Balance: 

RECOMMENDATION: Authorize City Manager to execute Professional Service 
Agreement with Gateway Engineering to proceed with 
preliminary engineering on alley paving project. 

Isaac Moreno, Assistant City Manager Date 

Teresa Gallavan, City Manager Date 

reynar
Typewritten Text
/S/							05/31/19

reynar
Typewritten Text
/S/							05/31/19



AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
BETWEEN

THE CITY OF SELMA
AI\D

GATEWAY ENGINEERING, INC,
(Congestion Management and Air Quality Improvement Program: Un-paved City Alleys)

RECITALS

WHEREAS, Gateway currently serves as the City Engineer for the City of Selma, and

such services are govemed by an Agreernent for Professional Services ("Master Agreement");
and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Master Agreement between the City and Gateway, master
planning and design ofcapital improvement and grant funded projects related to public

infrastructure and improvements, including, but not limited to, roadways, water distribution

systems, sewer collection systems, storm drain systems, and sewer and storm water lift stations

are to be performed as supplemental engineering services under separate contracts, to be

approved by the City Manager or his,/her designee; and

WHEREAS, the City was awarded Congestion Management and Air Quality C'CMAQ)
Improvement Program grant funding for paving various un-paved alleys throughout the City
("Alley Project"); and

WHEREAS, the City desires to utilize the services of Gateway for survey, engineering.

and construction engineering services for the grant funded Alley Project.

NOW, TIIEREFOR-E, in consideration of the mutual covenants set forth herein and for
such good and valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which is hereby

acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows:

AGR"E,EMENT

l. Term: This Agreement shall commence on the Effective Datg and shall remain and

continue in effect until tasks described herein are completed, but in no event later *ran INSERT

COMPLETIONDATE.

2. Scope of Services: Gateway shall do, perform, and carry ou! in a satisfactory and

property manner, the following Services:

a. Perform topographic surveys of the alley locations with the City blocks bounded by Floral

Avenue, McCall Avenue, Chestnut Street & logan Stree! and within City blocks bounded

by Arrants Street, Cleveland Street, Rose Avenue and Shaft Street

1

This Agreement (the "Agreanent") is made and entered into this 3 day of June, 2019
("Effective Date") by and between the City of Selma, a general law city (herein "City") and

Gateway Engineering, Inc., a Califomia corporation (herein "Gateway'').

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 74

AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
BETWEEN 

THE CITY OF SELMA 
AND 

GATEWAY ENGINEERING, INC. 
(Congestion Management and Air Quality Improvement Program: Un-paved City Alleys) 

This Agreement (the "Agreement") is made and entered into this 3 day of June, 2019 
("Effective Date") by and between the City of Selma, a general law city (herein "City") and 
Gateway Engineering, Inc. , a California corporation (herein "Gateway"). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, Gateway currently serves as the City Engineer for the City of Selma, and 
such services are governed by an Agreement for Professional Services ("Master Agreement"); 
and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Master Agreement between the City and Gateway, master 
planning and design of capital improvement and grant funded projects related to public 
infrastructure and improvements, including, but not limited to, roadways, water distribution 
systems, sewer collection systems, storm drain systems, and sewer and storm water lift stations 
are to be performed as supplemental engineering services under separate contracts, to be 
approved by the City Manager or hislher designee; and 

WHEREAS, the City was awarded Congestion Management and Air Quality ("CMAQ") 
Improvement Program grant funding for paving various un-paved alleys throughout the City 
("Alley Project"); and 

WHEREAS, the City desires to utilize the services of Gateway for survey, engineering, 
and construction engineering services for the grant funded Alley Project. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants set forth herein and for 
such good and valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which is hereby 
acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows : 

AGREEMENT 

I. Term: This Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date, and shall remain and 
continue in effect until tasks described herein are completed, but in no event later than INSERT 
COMPLETION DATE. 

2. Scope of Services: Gateway shall do, perform, and carry out, in a satisfactory and 
property manner, the following Services: 

a. Perform topographic surveys of the alley locations with the City blocks bounded by Floral 
Avenue, McCall Avenue, Chestnut Street & Logan Street; and within City blocks bounded 
by Arrants Street, Cleveland Street, Rose Avenue and Shaft Street 

1 



b. Prepare plans and cost estimates for design of the improvements within the various alleys.

c. Coordinate with city stafffor the CMAQ allocation request and obtain E-76 for construction

from Caltrans

d. Prcpareconstructionspecifications

e. Perfonn constuction administration services

f. Perform oonstruction staking and construction engineering

g. Perform constuction testing and inspection services

h. The following are specifically excluded from the Services:

a- Preparation of Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan

b. Bidding performed under City Engineering Services

3. Compensation. Gateway shall be paid by the following rates for the Services:

Topographic and Boundary Surveys:
Plans and Specifications:
Construction Staking and Engineering:
Construction lnspection and Testing:

s8,600.00
$35,000.00
$ 14,500.00
$ 14,500.00

Gateway shall invoice monthly, based upon an estimated percentage of
completion.

4. Ind ontractor. Gateway is and shall perform said services under this
Agreement as an independent contractor. Gateway shall follow the standards ofpractices of
Gateway's profession to make findings, provide opinions, make factual presentations and provide
professional advice and recommendations consistent with said standards and practices. Gateway

is engaged to render the Services described herein to City and any payments made by the City
are compensation solely for the services rendered. Neither Gateway nor its officers, ernployees,

agents, contractors or representatives shall obtain any right to retirement or any other benefits
that accrue to City employees.

5. Data to Be Fumished to Gatewav. All existing available information, date,

reports, records and maps in the possession or control of City which may assist Gateway in the
performance of the Services shall be fumished to Gateway without charge by City. City agrees to
cooperate with Gateway as necessary for Gateway to perform the Services.

6. Possession of Materials Under This Aaeement. It is agreed that all
finished or unfinished documents, dat4 studies, surveys, drawings, maps, models, photographs,

and reports prepared by Gateway under this Agreement, including electronically stored finished
or unfinished documents, data, studies, surveys, drawings, maps, models, photographs, or reports
prepared by Gateway, on or upon termination of this Agreement for any reason, be tumed over to

2

a.

b.
c.

d.

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 75

b. Prepare plans and cost estimates for design of the improvements within the various alleys. 

c. Coordinate with city staff for the CMAQ allocation request and obtain E-76 for construction 
from Caltrans 

d. Prepare construction specifications 

e. Perform construction administration services 

( Perform construction staking and construction engineering 

g. Perform construction testing and inspection services 

h. The following are specifically excluded from the Services: 

a Preparation of Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan 

b. Bidding performed under City Engineering Services 

3. Compensation. Gateway shall be paid by the following rates for the Services: 

completion. 

a. 
b. 
c. 
d. 

Topographic and Boundary Surveys: 
Plans and Specifications: 
Construction Staking and Engineering: 
Construction Inspection and Testing: 

$8,600.00 
$35,000.00 
$14,500.00 
$14,500.00 

Gateway shall invoice monthly, based upon an estimated percentage of 

4. Independent Contractor. Gateway is and shall perform said services under this 
Agreement as an independent contractor. Gateway shall follow the standards of practices of 
Gateway's profession to make findings, provide opinions, make factual presentations and provide 
professional advice and recommendations consistent with said standards and practices. Gateway 
is engaged to render the Services described herein to City and any payments made by the City 
are compensation solely for the services rendered. Neither Gateway nor its officers, employees, 
agents, contractors or representatives shall obtain any right to retirement or any other benefits 
that accrue to City employees. 

5. Data to Be Furnished to Gateway. All existing available information, date, 
reports, records and maps in the possession or control of City which may assist Gateway in the 
performance of the Services shall be furnished to Gateway without charge by City. City agrees to 
cooperate with Gateway as necessary for Gateway to perform the Services. 

6. Possession of Materials Prepared Under This Agreement. It is agreed that all 
finished or unfinished documents, data, studies, surveys, drawings, maps, models, photographs, 
and reports prepared by Gateway under this Agreement, including electronically stored finished 
or unfinished documents, data, studies, surveys, drawings, maps, models, photographs, or reports 
prepared by Gateway, on or upon termination of this Agreement for any reason, be turned over to 

2 



the City provided that Gateway may, at no additional expense to City, make and retain such

copies thereof as desired.

8. Entire Agreement / Amendment. This Agreement contains the entire

understanding and agreement between the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof
and supersedes all previous communications, negotiations and agreements, whether oral or
written, between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof. No change, addition, or
modification or waiver ofany ofthe provisions ofthis Agreernent shall be binding on either

party unless made in writing and executed by Gateway and a duly authorized agent of City.

Hold Harmless and Insurance.
Insurance. Gateway shall maintain during the term of this Agreement the

foll

b. All such insurance (except professional liability) shall name City, its officers,
officials and employees, as an additional insured. Within fourteen (14) days after Gateway's
execution of this Agreement, Gateway shall provide City with a Certificate of Insurance

establishing that all insurance required hereunder is in full force and effect. Such insurance shall

also require the insurance carrier to provide City with thirty (30) days prior notice ofany
termination or cancellation ofany insurance required hereunder.

9
a

3

To City:
City of Selma
1710 Tucker Street
Selma, CA 93662
Attn: City Manager
Telephone: (559) 891-2200

To Gateway:
Gateway Engineering, Inc.
581I E. Princeton Ave.
Fresno, CA 93727
Attn: Daniel K. Bond
Telephone: (5 59) 320-03 44

$1,000,000 Combined Single Limit
$2,000,000 Aggregate

$1,000,000 Combined Single Limit

Limits

Statutory Limit

$1,000,000 Per Claim
$2,000,000 Aggregate

Workers Compensation and Employer
Liability

Coverage Commercial General Liability
including bodily injury and broad form
blanket contractual liability property damage

Automobile Liability: Owned, not owned,
hired

Professional Liability

Coveraqe

7 . CommunicationsA.{otices. All communications and notices permitted or required

by this Agreement shall be as follows:

mlnlmum rnsurance:

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 76

the City provided that Gateway may, at no additional expense to City, make and retain such 
copies thereof as desired. 

7. CommunicationslNotices. All communications and notices permitted or required 
by this Agreement shall be as follows: 

To City: 
City of Selma 
1710 Tucker Street 
Selma, CA 93662 
Attn: City Manager 
Telephone: (559) 891-2200 

To Gateway: 
Gateway Engineering, Inc. 
5811 E. Princeton Ave. 
Fresno, CA 93727 
Attn: Daniel K. Bond 
Telephone: (559) 320-0344 

8. Entire Agreement / Amendment. This Agreement contains the entire 
understanding and agreement between the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof 
and supersedes all previous communications, negotiations and agreements, whether oral or 
written, between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof. No change, addition, or 
modification or waiver of any of the provisions of this Agreement shall be binding on either 
party unless made in writing and executed by Gateway and a duly authorized agent of City. 

9. Hold Harmless and Insurance. 
a. Insurance. Gateway shall maintain during the term of this Agreement the 

following minimum insurance: 
Coverage 

Workers Compensation and Employer 
Liability 

Coverage Commercial General Liability 
including bodily injury and broad form 
blanket contractual liability property damage 

Automobile Liability: Owned, not owned, 
hired 

Professional Liability 

Limits 

Statutory Limit 

$1 ,000,000 Combined Single Limit 
$2,000,000 Aggregate 

$1 ,000,000 Combined Single Limit 

$1,000,000 Per Claim 
$2,000,000 Aggregate 

b. All such insurance (except professional liability) shall name City, its officers, 
officials and employees, as an additional insured. Within fourteen (\ 4) days after Gateway's 
execution of this Agreement, Gateway shall provide City with a Certificate of Insurance 
establishing that all insurance required hereunder is in full force and effect. Such insurance shall 
also require the insurance carrier to provide City with thirty (30) days prior notice of any 
termination or cancellation of any insurance required hereunder. 

3 



c. Indemnity. Except to the extent of City's negligence or willful misconduct, and to
the fullest extent permitted by law, Gateway agrees to indernniff and hold harmless the City and

City's employees, City Council, agents, representatives and contractom from claims, causes of
action, liability, losses, costs and damages arising out ofor related to any act, omission, or
negligence of Gateway or Gateway's agents, employees, representatives, contractors, or arising

from or related to Gateway's use ofor activities on or about property owned or controlled by
City, including any claims related to the services provided by Gateway under this Agreement.

10. Assimability. Neither this Agreement nor any other rights or obligations
hereunder may be assigned or otherwise transferred by either party, nor shall this Agreement

inure to the benefit ofa trustee in bankruptcy, receiver or creditor of either party, whether by
operation oflaw or otherwise, without the prior written consent ofthe other party. Any attempt

to so assign or transfer this Agreernent or any rights or obligations hereunder without such prior
written consent shall be null and void and ofno force and effect and shall constitute a material

breach of this Agreement.

I l. Termination. Either party may terminate this Agreement by giving the other party

thirty (30) days written notice of intent to terminate the Agreement.

12. Govemins Law. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws ofthe State of
Califomia and jurisdiction for any action related to this Agreement shall be in the Superior Court
of Califomia, County of Fresno.

13. Attomey's Fees. In the event that either party hereto shall commence any legal

action or proceeding against the other party to enforce any right or obligation under this

Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to and recover, in addition to its costs,

reasonable attomey's fees to be fixed by the court, and such recovery shall include costs and

attomey's fees on appeal, if any.

14. Waiver. The waiver by either party of any breach or other violation of any

provision ofthis Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any breach or violation ofany
other provision nor any subsequent breach or violation ofthe same or any other provision. The

acceptance ofany monies that become due hereunder shall not be deemed to be a waiver ofany
pre-existing or concurrent breach or violation by either party ofany provision of this Agreement.

15. Severabili tv. If any of the provisions contained in this Agreement shall, for any

reason, be held invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respec! such invalidity, illegality or
unenforceability shall not affect any other provision ofthis Ageement and this Agreanent shall

be construed as ifsuch invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision had not been contained in this
Agreement.

4

(SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE)

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 77

c. Indemnity. Except to the extent of City's negligence or willful misconduct, and to 
the fullest extent pennitted by law, Gateway agrees to indemnifY and hold hannless the City and 
City's employees, City Council, agents, representatives and contractors from claims, causes of 
action, liability, losses, costs and damages arising out of or related to any act, omission, or 
negligence of Gateway or Gateway' s agents, employees, representatives, contractors, or arising 
from or related to Gateway's use of or activities on or about property owned or controlled by 
City, including any claims related to the services provided by Gateway under this Agreement. 

10. Assignability. Neither this Agreement nor any other rights or obligations 
hereunder may be assigned or otherwise transferred by either party, nor shall this Agreement 
inure to the benefit of a trustee in bankruptcy, receiver or creditor of either party, whether by 
operation oflaw or otherwise, without the prior written consent of the other party. Any attempt 
to so assign or transfer this Agreement or any rights or obligations hereunder without such prior 
written consent shall be null and void and of no force and effect and shall constitute a material 
breach of this Agreement. 

II . Tennination. Either party may tenninate this Agreement by giving the other party 
thirty (30) days written notice of intent to tenninate the Agreement. 

12. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of 
California and jurisdiction for any action related to this Agreement shaH be in the Superior Court 
of California, County of Fresno. 

13. Attorney's Fees. In the event that either party hereto shall commence any legal 
action or proceeding against the other party to enforce any right or obligation under this 
Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to and recover, in addition to its costs, 
reasonable attorney's fees to be fixed by the court, and such recovery shall include costs and 
attorney's fees on appeal, if any. 

14. Waiver. The waiver by either party of any breach or other violation of any 
provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any breach or violation of any 
other provision nor any subsequent breach or violation of the same or any other provision. The 
acceptance of any monies that become due hereunder shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any 
pre-existing or concurrent breach or violation by either party of any provision of this Agreement. 

15. Severability. If any of the provisions contained in this Agreement shall , for any 
reason, be held invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality or 
unenforceability shall not affect any other provision of this Agreement and this Agreement shall 
be construed as if such invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision had not been contained in this 
Agreement. 

(SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE) 

4 



tl-

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have entered into this Agreement as of the Effective Date.

CITY OF SELMA GATEWAY ENGINEERING, INC.

Teresa Gallavan, City Manager
By:-
Daniel K. Bond, President

ATTEST:

By
Reyna Rivera, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Bianca Sparks Rojas, City Attomey

5

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 78

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have entered into this Agreement as of the Effective Date. 

CITY OF SELMA 

By:--::-c::----=:----:-c:--
Teresa Gallavan, City Manager 

ATTEST: 

By ___ --,_-,---,-
Reyna Rivera, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Bianca Sparks Rojas, City Attorney 

GA TEW A Y ENGINEERING, INC. 

By: _____ --,_ 
Daniel K. Bond, President 

5 



CITY MANAGER'S/STAIryIS REPORT
CITY COUNCIL MEETING:

June 3, 2019

ITEMNO:

SUBJECT: Consideration of a Professional Services Agreement with Aramark for
Uniform Services

DISCUSSION: G&K Services has provided uniform seryices to the City since October
2011. As of May 2018, G&K consolidated with the Cintas Corporation. Since this change,
the City has not executed any additional contracts but service has continued as previously
provided.

In September 2018, the City began a new contract with Fresno County Rural Transit
Authority for mechanic services. This contract required the City to develop a new
enterprise fund and bring on additional staffing. Since there is no contract with Cintas, the
company would not allow the City to add additional services over and above what they
were already providing. Due to this, in January 2019 staff requested price quotes from the
following local companies :

. Aramark

. Mission

. Cintas

. Prudential

By providing the details of the services that v/ere currently being provided (quantity of
uniform, number of mats, etc.) each vendor submitted a cost proposal. After conducing a

financial analysis, it was determined that Aramark would deliver the lowest overall rate per
month. The scope of services is as follows:

. Provide a uniform and laundry services weekly

. Supply and launder custom dust control mats

. Provide fust Aid kit, towels and other supplies

In addition, staff will receive new uniforms with this new contract

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 79

CITY MANAGER'S/ STAFPS REPORT 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING: 

ITEM NO: 

June 3, 2019 

SUBJECT: Consideration of a Professional Services Agreement with Aramark for 
Uniform Services 

DISCUSSION: G&K Services has provided uniform services to the City since October 
201l. As of May 2018, G&K consolidated with the Cintas Corporation. Since this change, 
the City has not executed any additional contracts but service has continued as previously 
provided. 

In September 2018, the City began a new contract with Fresno County Rural Transit 
Authority for mechanic services. This contract required the City to develop a new 
enterprise fund and bring on additional staffing. Since there is no contract with Cintas, the 
company would not allow the City to add additional services over and above what they 
were already providing. Due to this , in January 2019 staff requested price quotes from the 
following local companies: 

• Aramark 
• Mission 
• Cintas 
• Prudential 

By providing the details of the services that were currently being provided (quantity of 
uniform, number of mats, etc.) each vendor submitted a cost proposal. After conducting a 
financial analysis , it was determined that Aramark would deliver the lowest overall rate per 
month. The scope of services is as follows: 

• Provide a uniform and laundry services weekly 
• Supply and launder custom dust control mats 
• Provide first Aid kit, towels and other supplies 

In addition, staff will receive new uniforms with this new contract. 

reynar
Typewritten Text
1.F



COST: (Enter cos of item to be purchased) BWGET IMPACT: @nta amowi this ron-
budgaed itcm *ill impact this years' bulga - if
bdgeted, errte/ NONE),

FLJNDING: @ er the funding sowce for this
item - iffud exisis, mter the balance in the fud),

ON-GOING COST: (Efier the amowi
that will need n be budgaed each year - if one-

time cost, mter NONE),

Funding Source: General and Strees Fund,
and Internal Services

Fund Balance: Fiscal Year End 2017-18:
General-$2,763,856
Streets-$ 194,283
Building and Ult-527 5,544

RECOMMENDATION: Approve and authorize the City Manager to execute the
agreement with Aramark for uniform services.

Isaac Moreno, Assistant City Manager

Teresa Gallavan, City Manager Date

Not to exceed $50.000 in 3 years

Date

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 80

COST: (Enter cost of item to be purchased) BUDGET IMP ACT: (Enter amount this nan-
budgeted item will impact this years' budget - if 
budgeted, enter NONE). 

Not to exceed $50,000 in 3 years 

FUNDING: (Enter the funding source for this ON-GOING COST: (Entertheamount 
item - if fund exists, enter the balance in the fund). that wiff need ta be budgeted each year - if one-

time cast, enter NONE). 

Funding Source: General and Streets Fund, 
and Internal Services 

Fund Balance: Fiscal Year End ZOI7-18: 
General-$Z,763,856 
Streets-$194,Z83 
Building and Ult-$Z75 ,544 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve and authorize the City Manager to execute the 
agreement with Aramark for uniform services. 

Isaac Moreno, Assistant City Manager Date 

Teresa Gallavan, City Manager Date 

reynar
Typewritten Text
/S/							05/31/19

reynar
Typewritten Text
/S/							05/31/19



CIry OF SELMA

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

This PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT ("Agreement"), is made and effective
as of June 3, 2019 ("Effective Date"), between the City of Selma, a municipal
corporation ("City") and Aramark Uniform & Career Apparel Group, lnc. a Delaware
corporation ("Consultant"). The City and Consultant are hereinafter collectively referred
to as the "Parties".

WHEREAS, City desires to engage Consultant to perform the services described
herein, and Consultant desires to perform such services in accordance with the terms
and conditions set forth herein.

1. TERM

This Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date, and shall remain and
continue in effect until tasks described herein are completed, but in no event later than June
3,2022, unless sooner terminated pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement.

2. SERVICES

(a) Consultant shall perform the tasks ("Services") described and set forth in
Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein as though set forth in full. ("Scope of
Services"). Tasks other than those specifically described in the Scope of Services shall
not be performed without prior written approval of the City. The Services shall be
performed by Consultant, unless prior written approval is first obtained from the City. ln
the event of conflict or inconsistency between the terms of this Agreement and Exhibit
A, the terms of this Agreement shall prevail.

(b) City shall have the right to request, in writing, changes to the Services.

Any such changes mutually agreed upon by the Parties, and any corresponding
increase or decrease in compensation, shall be incorporated by written amendment to
this Agreement.

(c) Consultant shall perform all Services in a manner reasonably satisfactory

to the City and in a first-class manner in conformance with the standards of quality

normally observed by an entity providing garment and textile rental products and related

services, serving a municipal agency.

(d) Consultant shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws,

regulations and ordinances in the performance of this Agreement, including but not

limited to, the conflict of interest provisions of Government Code Section 1090 and the

Page 1 of 14

RECITALS

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and
conditions herein contained, City and Consultant agree as follows:

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 81

CITY OF SELMA 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

This PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT ("Agreement"), is made and effective 
as of June 3, 2019 ("Effective Date"), between the City of Selma, a municipal 
corporation ("City") and Aramark Uniform & Career Apparel Group, Inc. a Delaware 
corporation ("Consultant"). The City and Consultant are hereinafter collectively referred 
to as the "Parties". 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, City desires to engage Consultant to perform the services described 
herein, and Consultant desires to perform such services in accordance with the terms 
and conditions set forth herein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and 
conditions herein contained , City and Consultant agree as follows: 

1. TERM 

This Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date, and shall remain and 
continue in effect until tasks described herein are completed, but in no event later than June 
3, 2022, unless sooner terminated pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement. 

2. SERVICES 

(a) Consultant shall perform the tasks ("Services") described and set forth in 
Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein as though set forth in full. ("Scope of 
Services"). Tasks other than those specifically described in the Scope of Services shall 
not be performed without prior written approval of the City. The Services shall be 
performed by Consultant, unless prior written approval is first obtained from the City. In 
the event of conflict or inconsistency between the terms of this Agreement and Exhibit 
A, the terms of this Agreement shall prevail. 

(b) City shall have the right to request, in writing , changes to the Services. 
Any such changes mutually agreed upon by the Parties, and any corresponding 
increase or decrease in compensation , shall be incorporated by written amendment to 
this Agreement. 

(c) Consultant shall perform all Services in a manner reasonably satisfactory 
to the City and in a first-class manner in conformance with the standards of quality 
normally observed by an entity providing garment and textile rental products and related 
services, serving a municipal agency. 

(d) Consultant shall comply with all applicable federal , state , and local laws, 
regulations and ordinances in the performance of this Agreement, including but not 
limited to, the conflict of interest provisions of Government Code Section 1090 and the 

Page 1 of 14 



Political Reform Act (Government Code Section 81000 et seg.)). During the term of this
Agreement, Consultant shall not perform any work for another person or entity for whom
Consultant was not working on the Effective Date if both (i) such work would require
Consultant to abstain from a decision under this Agreement pursuant to a conflict of
interest statute or law; and (ii) City has not consented in writing to Consultant's
performance of such work. No officer or employee of City shall have any financial
interest in this Agreement that would violate California Government Code Sections 1090
ef seg. Consultant hereby warrants that it is not now, nor has it been in the previous
twelve (12) months, an employee, agent, appointee, or official of the City. lf Consultant
was an employee, agent, appointee, or official of the City in the previous twelve (12)
months, Consultant warrants that it did not participate in any manner in the forming of
this Agreement. Consultant understands that, if this Agreement is made in violation of
Government Code $1090 ef. seg., the entire Agreement is void and Consultant will not
be entitled to any compensation for Services performed pursuant to this Agreement,
and Consultant will be required to reimburse the City for any sums paid to the
Consultant. Consultant understands that, in addition to the foregoing, it may be subject
to criminal prosecution for a violation of Government Code $ 1090 and, if applicable, will
be disqualified from holding public office in the State of California.

(e) Consultant represents that it has, or will secure at its own expense, all
licensed personnel required to perform the Services. All Services shall be performed by
Consultant or under its supervision, and all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified and licensed to perform such services.

3. MANAGEMENT

City's lnterim City Manager shall represent the City in all matters pertaining to the
administration of this Agreement, review and approval of all products submitted by
Consultant, but shall have no authority to modifo the Services or the compensation due to
Consultant.

4. PAYMENT

(a) The City agrees to pay Consultant monthly, in accordance with the payment
rates and terms and the schedule of payrnent as set forth in Exhibit B ("Rate Schedule"),
attrached hereto and incoporated herein by this reference as though set forth in full, based

upon actual time spent on the above tasks. This amount shall not exceed Fifty Thousand

Dollars ($50,000.00) for the total Term of the Agreement unless addilional payment is

approved as provided in this Agreement.

(b) Consultant shall not be compensated for any services rendered in connection
w1h its performance of this Agreement which are in addition to those set forth herein, unless
such additional services are authorized in advance and in writing by the City. Consultant
shall be compensated for any additional services in the amounts and in the manner as
agreed to by City and Consuftant at the time City's written authorization is given to
Consultant for the performance of said services-

Page 2 ol '14

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 82

Political Reform Act (Government Code Section 81000 et seq.)). During the term of this 
Agreement, Consultant shall not perform any work for another person or entity for whom 
Consultant was not working on the Effective Date if both (i) such work would require 
Consultant to abstain from a decision under this Agreement pursuant to a conflict of 
interest statute or law; and (i i) City has not consented in writing to Consultant's 
performance of such work. No officer or employee of City shall have any financial 
interest in this Agreement that would violate California Government Code Sections 1090 
et seq. Consultant hereby warrants that it is not now, nor has it been in the previous 
twelve (12) months, an employee, agent, appointee, or official of the City. If Consultant 
was an employee, agent, appointee, or official of the City in the previous twelve (12) 
months, Consultant warrants that it did not participate in any manner in the forming of 
this Agreement. Consu ltant understands that, if th is Agreement is made in violation of 
Government Code §1090 et. seq., the entire Agreement is void and Consultant will not 
be entitled to any compensation for Services performed pursuant to this Agreement, 
and Consultant will be required to reimburse the City for any sums paid to the 
Consultant. Consultant understands that, in addition to the foregoing , it may be subject 
to criminal prosecution for a violation of Government Code § 1090 and, if applicable, will 
be disqualified from holding public office in the State of California . 

(e) Consultant represents that it has, or will secure at its own expense, all 
licensed personnel required to perform the Services. All Services shall be performed by 
Consultant or under its supervision , and all personnel engaged in the Services shall be 
qualified and licensed to perform such services. 

3. MANAGEMENT 

City's Interim City Manager shall represent the City in all matters pertaining to the 
administration of this Agreement, review and approval of all products submitted by 
Consultant, but shall have no authority to modify the Services or the compensation due to 
Consultant. 

4. PAYMENT 

(a) The City agrees to pay ConSUltant monthly, in accordance with the payment 
rates and terms and the schedule of payment as set forth in Exhibit B ("Rate Schedule"), 
attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference as though set forth in full , based 
upon actual time spent on the above tasks. This amount shall not exceed Fifty Thousand 
Dollars ($50,000.00) for the total Term of the Agreement unless additional payment is 
approved as provided in th is Agreement. 

(b) Consultant shall not be compensated for any services rendered in connection 
with its performance of this Agreement which are in addition to those set forth herein, unless 
such additional services are authorized in advance and in writing by the City. Consultant 
shall be compensated for any additional services in the amounts and in the manner as 
agreed to by City and Consultant at the time City's written authorization is given to 
Consultant for the performance of said services. 

Page 2 of 14 



(c) Consultant shall submit invoices monthly for actual services performed. lnvoices
shall be submifted on or about the first business day of each month, or as soon thereafter as
practical, for services provided in the previous month. Payment shall be made within thirty
(30) days of receipt of each invoice as to all nondisputed fees. lf the City disputes any of
Consultant's fees it shall give written notice to Consultant within thirty (30) days of receipt of
an invoice of any disputed fees set forth on the invoice. Any final payment under this
Agreement shall be made within 45 days of receipt of an invoice therefore.

5. SUSPENSION OR TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT

(a) The City may at any time, for any reason, with or without cause, suspend or
terminate this Agreement, or any portion hereof, by serving upon the Consuhant at least
thirty (30) days prior written notice. Upon receipt of said notice, the Consultant shall
immediately cease all work under this Agreement, unless the notice provides otherwise. lf
the City suspends or terminates a portion of this Agreement such suspension or termination
shall not make void or invalidate the remainder of this Agreement.

(b) ln the event this Agreement is terminated pursuant to this Seciion, the City shall
pay to Consuftant the actual value of the work performed up to the time of termination,
provided that the work performed is of value to the City. Upon termination of the Agreement
pursuant to this Section, the Consuftant shall submit an invoice to the City pursuant to
Section 4 of this Agreement.

6. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS

(a) Consultant shall maintain complete and accurate records with respect to sales,

costs, expenses, receipts, and other such information required by City that relate to the
performance of services under this Agreement. Consultant shall maintain adequate records

of services provided in sufficient detail to permit an evaluation of services. All such records

shall be maintained in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and shall

be clearly identified and readily accessible. Consultant shall provide free access to the
representiatives of City or its designees at reasonable times to review such books and

records; shall give City the right to examine and audit said books and records; shall permit

City to make transcripts or copies therefrom as necessary; and shall allow inspection of all

work, data, documents, proceedings, and activities related to this Agreement' Such records,

together with supporting documents, shall be maintained for a period of three (3) years after

receipt of final payment.

(b) Upon completion of, or in the event of termination or suspension of this

Agreement, all original documents, designs, drawings, maps, models, computer files,

surveys, notes, and other documents prepared in the course of providing the services to be

performed pursuant to this Agreement shall become the sole property of the City and may

be used, reused, or otherwise disposed of by the city without the permission of the

Consultant. With respect to computer files, Consultant shall make available to the City, at

the Consultant's office, and upon reasonable wriften request by the City, the necessary

computer software and hardware for purposes of accessing, compiling, transferring, copying

and/or printing computer files. Consultant hereby grants to City all right, title, and interest,

Page 3 of 14

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 83

(c) Consultant shall submit invoices monthly for actual services performed. Invoices 
shall be submitted on or about the first business day of each month, or as soon thereafter as 
practical, for services provided in the previous month. Payment shall be made within thirty 
(30) days of receipt of each invoice as to all non-disputed fees. If the City disputes any of 
Consultant's fees it shall give written notice to Consultant within thirty (30) days of receipt of 
an invoice of any disputed fees set forth on the invoice. Any final payment under this 
Agreement shall be made within 45 days of receipt of an invoice therefore. 

5. SUSPENSION OR TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT 

(a) The City may at any time, for any reason, with or without cause, suspend or 
terminate this Agreement, or any portion hereof, by serving upon the Consultant at least 
thirty (30) days prior written notice. Upon receipt of said notice, the Consultant shall 
immediately cease all work under this Agreement, unless the notice provides otherwise. If 
the City suspends or terminates a portion of this Agreement such suspension or termination 
shall not make void or invalidate the remainder of this Agreement. 

(b) In the event this Agreement is terminated pursuant to this Section, the City shall 
pay to Consultant the actual value of the work performed up to the time of termination, 
provided that the work performed is of value to the City. Upon termination of the Agreement 
pursuant to this Section, the Consultant shall submit an invoice to the City pursuant to 
Section 4 of this Agreement. 

6. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS 

(a) Consultant shall maintain complete and accurate records with respect to sales, 
costs, expenses, receipts, and other such information required by City that relate to the 
performance of services under this Agreement. Consultant shall maintain adequate records 
of services provided in sufficient detail to permit an evaluation of services. All such records 
shall be maintained in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and shall 
be clearly identified and readily accessible. Consultant shall provide free access to the 
representatives of City or its designees at reasonable times to review such books and 
records; shall give City the right to examine and audit said books and records; shall permit 
City to make transcripts or copies therefrom as necessary; and shall allow inspection of all 
work, data, documents, proceedings, and activities related to this Agreement. Such records, 
together with supporting documents, shall be maintained for a period of three (3) years after 
receipt of final payment. 

(b) Upon completion of, or in the event of termination or suspension of this 
Agreement, all original documents, designs, drawings, maps, models, computer files, 
surveys, notes, and other documents prepared in the course of providing the services to be 
performed pursuant to this Agreement shall become the sole property of the City and may 
be used, reused, or otherwise disposed of by the City without the permission of the 
Consultant. With respect to computer files, Consultant shall make available to the City, at 
the Consultant's office, and upon reasonable written request by the City, the necessary 
computer software and hardware for purposes of accessing, compiling , transferring, copying 
and/or printing computer files. Consultant hereby grants to City all right, title, and interest, 

Page 3 of 14 



including any copyright, in and to the documents, designs, drawings, maps, models,
computer files, surveys, notes, and other documents prepared by Consultant in the course
of providing the services under this Agreement. All reports, documents, or other written
material developed by Consuftant in the performance of the Services pursuant to this
Agreement, shall be and remain the property of the City.

7. INDEMNIFICATION

Contraclor shall indemnifo, defend, and hold harmless the City, its officers,
employees, agents and volunteers ("City indemnitees"), from and against any and all causes
of action, claims, liabililies, obligations, judgments, or damages, including reasonable legal
counsels'fees and costs of litigation ("claims"), arising out of the Contractor's performance of
its obligations under this agreement or out of the operations conducted by Contractor,
including the City's active or passive negligence, except for such loss or damage arising
from the active negligence or willful misconduct of the City. ln the event the City indemnitees
are made a party to any action, lawsuit, or other adversarial proceeding arising from
Contractor's performance of this agreement, the Contractor shall provide a defense to the
City indemnitees, or at the City's option, reimburse the City indemnitees their costs of
defense, including reasonable legal counsels' fees, incuned in defense of such claims.

(b) DUWTODEFEND. ln the event the City, its officers, employees, agents
and/or volunteers are made a party to any action, claim, lawsuit, or other adversarial
proceeding arising from the performance of the services encompassed by this Agreement,
and upon demand by City, Consuttant shall have an immediate duty to defend the City at
Consultant's cost or at City's option, to reimburse the City for its costs of defense, including
reasonable attomey's fees and costs incurred in the defense of such matters.

Payment by City is not a condition precedent to enforcement of this indemnity. ln the
event of any dispute between Consultant and City, as to whether liability arises from the sole
negligence of the City or its officers, employees, or agents, Consultant will be obligated to
pay for City's defense until such time as a final judgment has been entered adjudicating the
City as solely negligent. Consuhant will not be entitled in the absence of such a
determination to any reimbursement of defense costs including but not limited to attomey's
fees, expert fees and costs of litigation.

(c) Notwithstanding the foregoing or anything in this Agreement to the contrary,
under no circumstances shall either party be liable to the other for any consequential,
special, incidental, indirec{ or punitive losses or damages (including lost profits, interest or
savings), or other similar damages, however denominated, whether or not caused by the
fault or negligence of either party and whether or not either party had knowledge that such
losses or damages might be incurred.

8. INSURANCE

Consultant shall maintiain prior to the beginning of and for the duration of this
Agreement insurance coverage as specified in Exhibit C attached hereto and incorporated
herein by reference.

Page 4 of 14

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 84

including any copyright, in and to the documents, designs, drawings, maps, models, 
computer files , surveys, notes, and other documents prepared by Consultant in the course 
of providing the services under this Agreement. All reports, documents, or other written 
material developed by Consultant in the performance of the Services pursuant to this 
Agreement, shall be and remain the property of the City. 

7. INDEMNIFICATION 

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the City, its officers, 
employees, agents and volunteers ("City indemnitees"), from and against any and all causes 
of action, claims, liabilities, obligations, judgments, or damages, including reasonable legal 
counsels' fees and costs of litigation ("claims"), arising out of the Contractor's performance of 
its obligations under this agreement or out of the operations conducted by Contractor, 
including the City's active or passive negligence, except for such loss or damage arising 
from the active negligence or willful misconduct of the City. In the event the City indemnitees 
are made a party to any action, lawsuit, or other adversarial proceeding arising from 
Contractor's performance of this agreement, the Contractor shall provide a defense to the 
City indemnitees, or at the City's option , reimburse the City indemnitees their costs of 
defense, including reasonable legal counsels' fees, incurred in defense of such claims. 

(b) DUTY TO DEFEND. In the event the City, its officers, employees, agents 
and/or volunteers are made a party to any action, claim, lawsuit, or other adversarial 
proceeding arising from the performance of the services encompassed by this Agreement, 
and upon demand by City, Consultant shall have an immediate duty to defend the City at 
Consultant's cost or at City's option, to reimburse the City for its costs of defense, including 
reasonable attorney's fees and costs incurred in the defense of such matters. 

Payment by City is not a condition precedent to enforcement of this indemnity. In the 
event of any dispute between Consultant and City, as to whether liability arises from the sole 
negligence of the City or its officers, employees, or agents, Consultant will be obligated to 
pay for City's defense until such time as a final judgment has been entered adjudicating the 
City as solely negligent. Consultant will not be entitled in the absence of such a 
determination to any reimbursement of defense costs including but not limited to attorney's 
fees, expert fees and costs of litigation. 

(c) Notwithstanding the foregoing or anything in this Agreement to the contrary, 
under no circumstances shall either party be liable to the other for any consequential , 
special, incidental, indirect or punitive losses or damages (including lost profits, interest or 
savings), or other similar damages, however denominated, whether or not caused by the 
fault or negligence of either party and whether or not either party had knowledge that such 
losses or damages might be incurred. 

8. INSURANCE 

ConSUltant shall maintain prior to the beginning of and for the duration of this 
Agreement insurance coverage as specified in Exhibit C attached hereto and incorporated 
herein by reference. 

Page 4 of 14 



9. INDEPENDENTCONSULTANT

(a) Consultant is and shall at all times remain as to the City a wholly independent
consultant and/or independent contractor. The personnel performing the services under this
Agreement on behalf of Consultant shall at all times be under Consultants exclusive
direction and control. Neither City nor any of its officers, employees, or agents shall have
control over the conduct of Consultant or any of Consultant's officers, employees, or agents,
except as set forth in this Agreement. Consultant shall not at any time or in any manner
represent that it or any of its officers, employees, or agents are in any manner officers,
employees, or agents of the City. Consultant shall not incur or have the power to incur any
debt, obligation, or liability whatever against the City, or bind the City in any manner.

(b) No employee benefits shall be available to Consultant in connection with the
performance of this Agreement. Except for the fees paid to Consultant as provided in the
Agreement, City shall not pay salaries, wages, or other compensation to Consultant for
performing services hereunder for City. City shall not be liable for compensation or
indemnification to Consultant for injury or sickness arising out of performing services
hereunder-

10. LEGALRESPONSIBILITIES

The Consultant shall keep itself informed of State and Federal laws and regulations
which in any manner affect those employed by it or in any way affect the performance of its
service pursuant to this Agreement. The Consultant shall at all times observe and comply
with all such laws and regulations. The City, and its officers and employees, shall not be
liable at law or in equity occasioned by failure of the Consultant to comply with this Section.

11. UNDUE INFLUENCE

Consultant declares and wanants that no undue influence or pressure was used
against or in concert with any officer or employee of the City in connection with the award,
terms or implementation of this Agreement, including any method of coercion, confidential
financial anangement, or financial inducement. No officer or employee of the City has or will
receive compensation, directly or indirectly, from Consultant, or from any officer, employee
or agent of Consultant, in connection with the award of this Agreement or any work to be
conducted as a result of this Agreement. Molation of this Section shall be a material breach

of this Agreement entitling the City to any and all remedies at law or in equity.

12. NO BENEFIT TO ARISE TO LOCAL OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES

No member, officer, or employee of City, or their designees or agents, and no public

official who exercises authority over or responsibilities with respect to the Project during
his/her tenure or for one year thereafter, shall have any interest, direct or indirect, in any
agreement or sub-agreement, or the proceeds thereof, for work to be performed in

connection with the Project performed under this Agreement.

13. RELEASE OF INFORMATION/CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

Page 5 of 14

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 85

9. INDEPENDENT CONSULTANT 

(a) Consultant is and shall at all times remain as to the City a wholly independent 
consultant and/or independent contractor. The personnel performing the services under this 
Agreement on behalf of Consultant shall at all times be under Consultants exclusive 
direction and control. Neither City nor any of its officers, employees, or agents shall have 
control over the conduct of Consultant or any of Consultant's officers, employees, or agents, 
except as set forth in this Agreement. ConSUltant shall not at any time or in any manner 
represent that it or any of its officers, employees, or agents are in any manner officers, 
employees, or agents of the City. ConSUltant shall not incur or have the power to incur any 
debt, obligation, or liability whatever against the City, or bind the City in any manner. 

(b) No employee benefits shall be available to Consultant in connection with the 
performance of th is Agreement. Except for the fees paid to Consultant as provided in the 
Agreement, City shall not pay salaries, wages, or other compensation to ConSUltant for 
performing services hereunder for City. City shall not be liable for compensation or 
indemnification to Consultant for injury or sickness arising out of performing services 
hereunder. 

10. LEGAL RESPONSIBILITIES 

The Consultant shall keep itself informed of State and Federal laws and regulations 
which in any manner affect those employed by it or in any way affect the performance of its 
service pursuant to this Agreement. The Consultant shall at all times observe and comply 
with all such laws and regulations. The City, and its officers and employees, shall not be 
liable at law or in equity occasioned by failure of the Consultant to comply with this Section. 

11. UNDUE INFLUENCE 

Consultant declares and warrants that no undue influence or pressure was used 
against or in concert with any officer or employee of the City in connection with the award, 
terms or implementation of this Agreement, including any method of coercion , confidential 
financial arrangement, or financial inducement. No officer or employee of the City has or will 
receive compensation , directly or indirectly, from Consultant, or from any officer, employee 
or agent of Consultant, in connection with the award of this Agreement or any work to be 
conducted as a result of this Agreement. Violation of this Section shall be a material breach 
of this Agreement entitling the City to any and all remedies at law or in equity. 

12. NO BENEFIT TO ARISE TO LOCAL OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES 

No member, officer, or employee of City, or their designees or agents, and no public 
official who exercises authority over or responsibilities with respect to the Project during 
hislher tenure or for one year thereafter, shall have any interest, direct or indirect, in any 
agreement or sub-agreement, or the proceeds thereof, for work to be performed in 
connection with the Project performed under this Agreement. 

13. RELEASE OF INFORMATION/CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 

Page 5 of 14 



(a) All information gained by Consultant in performance of this Agreement shall be
considered confidential and shall not be released by Consultant without City's prior written
authorization. Consultant, its offcers, employees, agents, or subconsultants, shall not
without written authorization from the City, voluntarily provide declarations, letters of support,
testimony at depositions, response to intenogatories, or other information concerning the
work performed under this Agreement or relating to any project or property located within the
City, unless otherwise required by law or court order. (b) Consultant shall promptly notifo
City should Consultant, its officers, employees, agents, or subconsultants be served with
any summons, complaint, subpoena, notice of deposition, request for documents,
intenogatories, request for admissions, or other discovery request ("Discovery'), court order,
or subpoena from any person or party regarding this Agreement and the work performed

there under or with respect to any project or property located within the City, unless
Consultant is prohibited by law from informing the City of such Discovery, court order or
subpoena. City retains the right, but has no obligation, to represent Consuftant and/or be
present at any deposition, hearing, or similar proceeding as allowed by law. Unless City is a
party to the lawsuit, arbitration, or administrative proceeding and is adverse to Consultant in
such proceeding, Consultant agrees to cooperate fully with the City and to provide the
opportunity to review any response to discovery requests provided by Consuhant. However,
City's right to review any such response does not imply or mean the right by City to control,
direct, or rewrite said response.

,14, NOTICES

Any notices which either party may desire to give to the other pafi under this
Agreement must be in writing and may be given either by (i) personal service, (ii) delivery by
a reputable document delivery service, such as but not limited to, Federal Express, which
provides a receipt showing date and time of delivery, or (iii) mailing in the United States Mail,

certified mail, postage prepaid, retum receipt requested, addressed to the address of the
party as set forth below or at any other address as that party may later designate by notice:

To City: CitY of Selma
1710 Tucker Street
Selma, CA 93662
Attention: City Manager

With a Copy To. Bianca Sparks Rojas, City Attomey
Casso & Sparks, LLP
13200 Crossroads Parlorvay North, Suite 345
City of lndustry, CA 91746

To Consultant: Aramark Uniform & Career Apparel, LLC
3333 N. Sabre Drive
Fresno, CA 93727
Aftention: General Manager

Aramark Uniform & Career Apparel, LLC\A/'rth a mpy to

Page 5 of 14

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 86

(a) All information gained by Consultant in performance of this Agreement shall be 
considered confidential and shall not be released by Consultant without City's prior written 
authorization. Consultant, its officers, employees, agents, or subconsultants, shall not 
without written authorization from the City, voluntarily provide declarations, letters of support, 
testimony at depositions, response to interrogatories, or other information concerning the 
work performed under this Agreement or relating to any project or property located within the 
City, unless otherwise required by law or court order. (b) Consultant shall promptly notify 
City should Consultant, its officers, employees, agents, or subconsultants be served with 
any summons, complaint, subpoena, notice of deposition, request for documents, 
interrogatories, request for admissions, or other discovery request ("Discovery"), court order, 
or subpoena from any person or party regarding this Agreement and the work performed 
there under or with respect to any project or property located within the City, unless 
Consultant is prohibited by law from informing the City of such Discovery, court order or 
subpoena. City retains the right, but has no obligation, to represent Consultant and/or be 
present at any deposition, hearing, or similar proceeding as allowed by law. Unless City is a 
party to the lawsuit, arbitration, or administrative proceeding and is adverse to ConSUltant in 
such proceeding , Consultant agrees to cooperate fully with the City and to provide the 
opportunity to review any response to discovery requests provided by Consultant. However, 
City's right to review any such response does not imply or mean the right by City to control , 
direct, or rewrite said response. 

14. NOTICES 

Any notices which either party may desire to give to the other party under this 
Agreement must be in writing and may be given either by (i) personal service, (ii) delivery by 
a reputable document delivery service, such as but not limited to, Federal Express, which 
provides a receipt showing date and time of delivery, or (iii) mailing in the United States Mail, 
certified mail, postage prepaid , return receipt requested, addressed to the address of the 
party as set forth below or at any other address as that party may later designate by notice: 

To City: 

With a Copy To: 

To Consultant: 

With a copy to: 

City of Selma 
1710 Tucker Street 
Selma, CA 93662 
Attention : City Manager 

Bianca Sparks Rojas, City Attorney 
Casso & Sparks, LLP 
13200 Crossroads Parkway North, Suite 345 
City of Industry, CA 91746 

Aramark Uniform & Career Apparel , LLC 
3333 N. Sabre Drive 
Fresno, CA 93727 
Attention: General Manager 

Aramark Uniform & Career Apparel , LLC 

Page 6 of 14 



1 15 North First Street
Burbank, CA 91502
Aftention: Legal Dept.

15. ASSIGNMENT

The Consultant shall not assign the performance of this Agreement, nor any part

thereof, nor any monies due hereunder, without prior written consent of the Ctty.

Before retaining or contracting with any subconsultant for any services under this
Agreement, Consultant shall provide City with the identity of the proposed submnsuttant, a
copy of the proposed written contract between Consultant and such subconsuhant which
shall include and indemnity provision similar to the one provided herein and identifying City
as an indemnified party, or an incorporation of the indemnity provision provided herein, and
proof that such proposed subconsuttant canies insurance at least equal to that required by
this Agreement or obtain a written waiver from the City for such insurance.

Notwithstanding Consultant's use of any subconsultant, Consultant shall be
responsible to the City for the performance of its sub consultant as it would be if Consultant
had performed the Services itsetf. Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed or construed

to create a contractual relationship between the City and any subcpnsultant employed by

Consultant. Consultant shall be solely responsible for payments to any subconsultants.

Consuhant shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the lndemnified Parties for any claims

arising from, or related to, the services performed by a subconsuftant under this Agreement.

16. GOVERNING LAWATTORNEYS' FEES

The C1y and Consultant understand and agree that the laws of the State of Califomia

shall govem the rights, obligations, duties, and liabilities of the parties to this Agreement and

also govem the interpretation of this Agreement. Any litigation conceming this Agreement

shall take place in the municipal, superior, or federal district court in Los Angeles County,

Califomia. lf any action at law or suit in equity is brought to enforce or interpret the
provisions of this Agreement, or arising out of or relating to the Services provided by

Consultant under this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable

attomeys' fees and all related costs, including costs of expert witnesses and consultants, as

well as costs on appeal, in addition to any other relief to which it may be entitled.

17, ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement contains the entire understanding between the Parties relating to the

obligations of the Parties described in this Agreement. All prior or contemporaneous
agreements, understandings, representations, and statements, oral or written and pertaining

to the subject of this Agreement or with respect to the terms and conditions of this

Agreement, are merged into this Agreement and shall be of no further force or effect. Each
party is entering into this Agreement based solely upon the representations set forth herein

PageT of 14

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 87

15. ASSIGNMENT 

115 North First Street 
Burbank, CA 91502 
Attention: Legal Dept. 

The Consultant shall not assign the performance of this Agreement, nor any part 
thereof, nor any monies due hereunder, without prior written consent of the City. 

Before retaining or contracting with any subconsultant for any services under this 
Agreement, Consultant shall provide City with the identity of the proposed subconsultant, a 
copy of the proposed written contract between Consultant and such subconsultant which 
shall include and indemnity provision similar to the one provided herein and identifying City 
as an indemnified party, or an incorporation of the indemnity provision provided herein, and 
proof that such proposed subconsultant carries insurance at least equal to that required by 
this Agreement or obtain a written waiver from the City for such insurance. 

Notwithstanding Consultant's use of any subconsultant, Consultant shall be 
responsible to the City for the performance of its sub consultant as it would be if Consultant 
had performed the Services itself. Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed or construed 
to create a contractual relationship between the City and any subconsultant employed by 
Consultant. Consultant shall be solely responsible for payments to any subconsultants. 
Consultant shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Indemnified Parties for any claims 
arising from, or related to, the services performed by a subconsultant under this Agreement. 

16. GOVERNING LAW/ATTORNEYS' FEES 

The City and Consultant understand and agree that the laws of the State of Califomia 
shall govem the rights, obligations, duties, and liabilities of the parties to this Agreement and 
also govem the interpretation of this Agreement. Any litigation concerning this Agreement 
shall take place in the municipal, superior, or federal district court in Los Angeles County, 
California. If any action at law or suit in equity is brought to enforce or interpret the 
provisions of this Agreement, or arising out of or relating to the Services provided by 
ConSUltant under this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable 
attomeys' fees and all related costs, including costs of expert witnesses and consultants, as 
well as costs on appeal, in addition to any other relief to which it may be entitled. 

17. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

This Agreement contains the entire understanding between the Parties relating to the 
obligations of the Parties described in this Agreement. All prior or contemporaneous 
agreements, understandings, representations, and statements, oral or written and pertaining 
to the subject of this Agreement or with respect to the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement, are merged into this Agreement and shall be of no further force or effect. Each 
party is entering into this Agreement based solely upon the representations set forth herein 

Page 7 of 14 



and upon each party's own independent investigation of any and all facts such party deems
material.

18. SEVERABILITY

lf any term or provision of this Agreement or the application thereof to any person
or circumstance shall, to any extent, be invalid or unenforecable, then such term or
provision shall be amended to, and solely to, the extent necessary to cure such
invalidity or unenforceability, and in its amended form shall be enforceable. ln such
event, the remainder of this Agreement, or the application of such term or provision to
persons or circumstances other than those as to which it is held invalid or
unenforceable, shall not be affected thereby, and each term and provision of this
Agreement shall be valid and be enforced to the fullest extent permifted by law.

19. COUNTERPARTS

This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, but all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same
instrument.

20, CAPTIONS

The captions appearing at the commencement of the sections hereof, and in any
paragraph thereof, are descriptive only and shall have no significance in the
interpretation of this Agreement.

21. WAIVER

The waiver by City or Consultant of any breach of any term, covenant or
condition herein contained shall not be deemed to be a waiver of such term, covenant
or condition or of any subsequent breach of the same or any other term, covenant or
condition herein contained. No term, covenant or condition of this Agreement shall be
deemed to have been waived by City or Consultant unless in writing.

22 REMEDIES

Each right, power and remedy provided for herein or now or hereafter existing at
law, in equity, by statute, or othegise shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to
every other right, power, or remedy provided for herein or now or hereafter existing at
law, in equity, by statute, or otheMise. The exercise, the commencement of the
exercise, or the forbearance of the exercise by any party of any one or more of such

rights, powers or remedies shall not preclude the simultaneous or later exercise by such
party of any of all of such other rights, powers or remedies.

23. AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE THIS AGREEMENT

The person or persons executing this Agreement on behalf of Consuftant represents

and wanants that he/she has the authority to execute this Agreement on behalf of the

Page 8 of 14

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 88

and upon each party's own independent investigation of any and all facts such party deems 
material. 

18. SEVERABILITY 

If any term or provision of th is Agreement or the application thereof to any person 
or circumstance shall, to any extent, be invalid or unenforceable, then such term or 
provision shall be amended to, and solely to, the extent necessary to cure such 
invalidity or unenforceability, and in its amended form shall be enforceable. In such 
event, the remainder of this Agreement, or the application of such term or provision to 
persons or circumstances other than those as to which it is held invalid or 
unenforceable, shall not be affected thereby, and each term and provision of this 
Agreement shall be valid and be enforced to the fullest extent permitted by law. 

19. COUNTERPARTS 

Th is Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which shall be 
deemed an original, but all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same 
instrument. 

20. CAPTIONS 

The captions appearing at the commencement of the sections hereof, and in any 
paragraph thereof, are descriptive only and shall have no significance in the 
interpretation of th is Agreement. 

21 . WAIVER 

The waiver by City or Consultant of any breach of any term, covenant or 
condition herein contained shall not be deemed to be a waiver of such term, covenant 
or condition or of any subsequent breach of the same or any other term, covenant or 
condition herein contained. No term, covenant or condition of this Agreement shall be 
deemed to have been waived by City or Consultant unless in writing . 

22 REMEDIES 

Each right, power and remedy provided for herein or now or hereafter existing at 
law, in equity, by statute, or otherwise shall be cumulative and shall be in add ition to 
every other right, power, or remedy provided for herein or now or hereafter existing at 
law, in equity, by statute, or otherwise. The exercise, the commencement of the 
exercise, or the forbearance of the exercise by any party of anyone or more of such 
rights, powers or remedies shall not preclude the simultaneous or later exercise by such 
party of any of all of such other rights, powers or remedies. 

23. AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE THIS AGREEMENT 

The person or persons executing this Agreement on behalf of Consultant represents 
and warrants that he/she has the authority to execute th is Agreement on behalf of the 

Page 8 of 14 



Consultant and has the authority to bind Consultant to the performance of its obligations
hereunder.

lN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed
as of the Effective Date.

"ctTY"
City of Selma
LLG

By
Scott Robertson, Mayor

Attest:

By:
Reyna Rivera, City Clerk

Approved as to form:

Bianca Sparks Rojas, City Attorney

"CONSULTANT"
Aramark Uniform & Career Apparel,

By
Darnell Williams, General Manager

By

Attachments: Scope of Services
Rate Schedule
lnsurance Requirements

Exhibit A
Exhibit B
Exhibit C

Page 9 of 14

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 89

Consultant and has the authority to bind Consultant to the performance of its obligations 
hereunder. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed 
as of the Effective Date. 

"CITY" 
City of Selma 
LLC 

By: ~~~ __________________ __ 
Scott Robertson , Mayor 

Attest: 

By: ~ __ ~ __ ~~~~ ________ __ 
Reyna Rivera , City Clerk 

Approved as to form: 

By: ~ __ ~~~~~~~ ____ ___ 
Bianca Sparks Rojas, City Attorney 

"CONSULTANT" 
Aramark Uniform & Career Apparel, 

By: __ ~~~ __ ~ ____ ~ __ _ 
Darnell Williams, General Manager 

Attachments: Exhibit A 
Exhibit B 
Exhibit C 

Scope of Services 
Rate Schedule 
Insurance Requiremel"1ts 

Page 9 of 14 



EXHIBIT A

Consultant shall supply and professionally launder on a weekly basis uniforms, mats, towels,
and cleaning supplies for the following locations:

. CityHall, lTl0TuckerStreet

. A Street Fire Station, 2861 A Street

. West FrontStreet Fire Station, 1927 W.FrontStreet

. Fire Administration Building, 1711 Tucker Street

. Nick Medina Senior Center, 2301 Selma Skeet

. Selma Art's Center, 1935 High Street

. PublicWorks CorporateYard, 1325 NebraskaAve.

. Selma Police Station, 1935 E. Front Street

The following services shall be provided upon request by the City:

. First Aid Program that is ANSI and OSHA compliant and direct purchase

o Direct purchase of any supplies or products available

r Managed restroom services to clean and restock product

Page 10 of 14

SCOPE OF SERVICES

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 90

EXHIBIT A 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

Consultant shall supply and professionally launder on a weekly basis uniforms, mats, towels, 
and cleaning supplies for the following locations: 

• City Hall, 1710 Tucker Street 

• A Street Fire Station, 2861 A Street 

• West Front Street Fire Station, 1927 W. Front Street 

• Fire Administration Building, 1711 Tucker Street 

• Nick Medina Senior Center, 2301 Selma Street 

• Selma Art's Center, 1935 High Street 

• Public Works Corporate Yard, 1325 Nebraska Ave. 

• Selma Police Station, 1935 E. Front Street 

The following services shall be provided upon request by the City: 

• First Aid Program that is ANSI and OSHA compliant and direct purchase 

• Direct purchase of any supplies or products available 

• Managed restroom services to clean and restock product 

Page 10 of 14 



IP Weekly 0.06 .t 4.501',l 5 $0.1530 Work Shirts Orange

VP WEEKLY 0.06 ,t 4.5011 $0.15WORK SHIRT WHITE

WEEKLY 0.06 14-505 $0.13 VPWORK SHIRT LITE BLUE 1'l

WEEKLY 0.06 18.505 $0.17 IPWORK PANTS 11

0.13 27.605 $0.27 UP WEEKLYWORK PANTS JEANS 1'l

32.205 .40 VPPant, Carpenter, Dickies-
Blue Denim

11

40.25.40 vP11Coveralls,65/35
Blend-Navy

3% 0.50s0.08 WEEKLY s0%1s0TURK TOWELS

132.25s00/. N/A$3.50 WKLYMAT STANDARD 3X1O

51.75WKLY 50% N/A18 $2.00MAT STANDARD 3X4

12.'t9WKLY s0% N/A200 $0.50PREMIUM BATH TOWELS

10/. '1.25WKLY s0%80 $0.08DISH TOWELS

218.5050% N/A$5.00 WKLYILOGO MAT 4X6

N/A100% N,/A6 $14.99 WKLYFIRST AID

N/A 109.25WEEKLY 50%2 $2.50LOGO MAT 3X4

12.0450% N/A$1.50 WKLYDUST OP36"

9.2050% N/A$1.00 WKLY2DUST i'OP 24"

N/A 16.10t00%$0.00BAG STAND

14.38N/A1000/.$0.00 WKLY4DUST MOP HANDELS

4.60N/AWKLY 1000k4 $0.00DUST MOP FRAMES

92.00N/A50%WKLY4STANDARD MAT 4X6

WKLY 100%I $5.00SERVICE CHARGE

WKLY 100%1 $10.00INVENTORY MAINTANANCE

GARMENTS AND SERVICES ORDERED:

MERCHANOISE lUMBER OF
ITEMS PER

CHANGES
PERWEE(

FREQUENCY EASYCARE" REPLACEMENT
CHARGE

II

ALLIED MERCHANDISE AND SERVICES ORDERED

ERCHANDISE o NVENTOR REPLACEI(ENT
CHARGE

Page 11 of 14

EXHIBIT B
RATE SCHEDULE

I t rEExLY I o.t6

I 
UVEEKLY 

I 
0.16

6

WKLY

$2.60

t

RATE

MINIMUM BILLEO
PERCENTAGE

OUANTITY

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 91

EXHIBITB 
RATE SCHEDULE 

f''Ji;~ ~'- ' ~~'~- '::':;~;~';" .. " .::- GARMENTS AND SERVICES ORDERED: 
-:jf,~~~~"t.I ' •• ~ ::-_:;"'~~ .... ;j~ .......... ~"'" ~' .. " ~_ If :~. ,,_}; ... :.~ ~ 

-. 
'. , 

'. -
" , ~ ,.,. 

- y' ~,~ • 

~~.- "--.. : '. (.:t.-'f." ~, _4~ ... -. - . -
" t':,':"~ ,-_. ~ .. 

~o of 'JlERCHA"JOISE .... U"'BER OF CHANGES RATE RATE BASIS FREQUENCY EASYCARE REPLACEMENT 
Wl'arers ITEI,I5 PER PER WEEK (per <tern or (per Item per CHARGE 

-~- - _____ !-~.~ .... I'arl'rl change) 
-------- _~ekl _______'" _(P~R~T~\_'I_ 

30 Work Shirts Orange 11 5 SO.15 li P Weekly O.OS 14.50 

WORK SHIRT WHITE 11 5 SO.15 liP WEEKLY O.OS 14.50 

WORK SHIRT LITE BLUE 11 5 SO.13 lIP WEEKLY O.OS 14.50 

WORK PANTS 11 5 SO.17 lIP WEEKLY O.OS 18.50 

WORK PANTS JEANS 11 5 SO.27 lIP WEEKLY 0.13 27.S0 

Pant, Carpenter, Oickies- 11 5 .40 lIP WEEKLY O.lS 32.20 
Blue Denim 
Coveralls, 65135 11 5 .40 liP WEEKLY O.lS 40.25 

Blend·Navy 
TURK TOWELS YELLOW 150 SO.08 WEEKLY 50% 3% 0.50 

MAT STANDARD 3Xl0 2 S3.50 WKLY 50% N/A 132.25 

MAT STANDARD 3X4 18 S2.00 WKLY 50% N/A 51 .75 

PREMIUM BATH TOWELS 200 $0.50 WKLY 50% N/A 12.19 

DISH TOWELS 80 SO.08 WKLY 50% 1% 1.25 

LOGO MAT 4XS 8 S5.00 WKLY 50% N/A 218.50 

FIRST AID S S14.99 WKLY 100% N/A N/A 

ALLIED MERCHANDISE AND SERVICES ORDERED: ~ 

,:.BI~REPl. 
ITEM PERCE'HAGE MAINTENANCE CHARG E 

I 

{PER 'YE") 

- ---------- - --- -- -~---~- -----------
lOGO MAT 3X4 2 S2.50 WEEKLY 50% N/A 109.25 

DUST MOP3S" S S1.50 WKLY 50% N/A 12.08 

DUST MOP 24" 2 Sl .00 WKLY 50% N/A 9.20 

BAG STAND 5 SO.OO WKLY 100% N/A lS.10 

DUST MOP HANDELS 4 SO.OO WKLY 100'/0 N/A 14.38 

DUST MOP FRAMES 4 SO.OO WKLY 100% NIA 4.S0 

STANDARD MAT 4XS 4 S2.60 WKLY 50% NIA 92.00 

SERVICE CHARGE 1 S5.00 WKLY 100% 

INVENTORY MAINTANANCE 1 510.00 WKLY 100% 

Page 11 of 14 



EXHIBIT

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

Without limiting Consultant's indemnification of City, and prior to commen@ment of the
Services, Consultant shall obtiain, provide and maintain at its own expense during the term
of this Agreement, policies of insurance of the type and amounts described below and in a
form satisfactory to the City.

General liability insurance. Consultiant shall maintain commercial general liability
insurance with coverage at least as broad as lnsurance Services ffice form CG 00 01, in
an amount not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence, two million dollars
($2,000,000) general aggregate, for bodily injury, personal injury, and property damage,
including without limitation, blanket contractual liability. Consultant's general liability policies

shall be primary and shall not seek contribution from the City's coverage, and be endorsed
using lnsurance Services Office form CG 20 10 (or equivalent) to provide that City and its
officers, officials, employees, and agents shall be additional insureds undersuch policies.

Automobile liabitity insurance. Consultant shall maintain automobile insurance at least as
broad as lnsurance Services ffice form CA 00 01 covering bodily injury and property

damage for all activities of the Consultant arising out of or in connection with Work to be
performed under this Agreement, including coverage for any owned, hired, non-owned or
rented vehicles, in an amount not less than $1,000,000.00 combined single limit for each

accident.

Workers' compensation insurance. Consuhant shall maintain Workers' Compensation

lnsurance (Statutory Limits) and Employer's Liability lnsurance (with limits of at least

$1,000,000.00).

Consultant shall submil to Crty, along with the certificate of insurance, a Waiver of
Subrogation endorsement in favor of the City, its officers, agents, employees and

volunteers.

Proof of insurance. Consuftant shall provide certificates of insurance to City as evidence of
the insurance coverage required herein, along with a waiver of subrogation endorsement for
workers' compensation. lnsurance certificates and endorsement must be approved by Ctty's

Risk Manager prior to commencement of performance. Cunent certification of insurance

shall be kept on file with City at all times during the term of this contract. City reserves the
right to require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, at any time.

Duration of coverage. Consultant shall procure and maintain for the duration of the
contract insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property, which may

arise from or in connec{ion with the performance of the Services hereunder by Consultant,

his agents, representatives, employees or subconsultants.

Page'|.2 of 14

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 92

EXHIBITC 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

Without limiting Consultant's indemnification of City, and prior to commencement of the 
Services, Consultant shall obtain, provide and maintain at its own expense during the term 
of this Agreement, policies of insurance of the type and amounts described below and in a 
form satisfactory to the City. 

General liability insurance. Consultant shall maintain commercial general liability 
insurance with coverage at least as broad as Insurance Services Office form CG 00 01 , in 
an amount not less than one million dollars ($1 ,000,000) per occurrence, two million dollars 
($2,000,000) general aggregate, for bodily injury, personal injury, and property damage, 
including without limitation, blanket contractual liability. Consultant's general liability policies 
shall be primary and shall not seek contribution from the City's coverage, and be endorsed 
using Insurance Services Office form CG 20 10 (or equivalent) to provide that City and its 
officers, officials, employees, and agents shall be additional insureds under such policies. 

Automobile liability insurance. Consultant shall maintain automobile insurance at least as 
broad as Insurance Services Office form CA 00 01 covering bodily injury and property 
damage for all activities of the Consultant arising out of or in connection with Work to be 
performed under this Agreement, including coverage for any owned, hired, non-owned or 
rented vehicles, in an amount not less than $1,000,000.00 combined single limit for each 
accident. 

Workers' compensation insurance. Consultant shall maintain Workers' Compensation 
Insurance (Statutory Limits) and Employer's Liability Insurance (with limits of at least 
$1 ,000,000.00). 

Consultant shall submit to City, along with the certificate of insurance, a Waiver of 
Subrogation endorsement in favor of the City, its officers, agents, employees and 
volunteers. 

Proof of insurance. Consultant shall provide certificates of insurance to City as evidence of 
the insurance coverage required herein, along with a waiver of subrogation endorsement for 
workers' compensation. Insurance certificates and endorsement must be approved by City's 
Risk Manager prior to commencement of performance. Current certification of insurance 
shall be kept on file with City at all times during the term of this contract. City reserves the 
right to require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, at any time. 

Duration of coverage. ConSUltant shall procure and maintain for the duration of the 
contract insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property, which may 
arise from or in connection with the performance of the Services hereunder by Consultant, 
his agents, representatives, employees or subconsultants. 

Page 12 of 14 



Primary/noncontributing. Coverage provided by Consuftant shall be primary and any
insurance or seJf-insurance procured or maintained by Ctty shall not be required to
contribute with it. The limils of insurance required herein may be satisfied by a combination
of primary and umbrella or ex@ss insurance. Any umbrella or excess insurance shall
contain or be endorsed to contiain a provision that such coverage shall also apply on a
primary and non-contributory basis for the benefit of City before the City's own insurance or
seJf-insurance shall be called upon to protect it as a named insured.

City's rights of enforcement ln the event any policy of insurance required under this
Agreement does not comply with these specifications or is canceled and not replaced, City
has the right but not the duty to obtrain the insurance it deems necessary and any premium

paid by City will be promptly reimbursed by Consuttant, or City will withhold amounts
sufficient to pay premium from Consultant payments. In the altemative, City may cancel this
Agreement.

Acceptable insurers. All insurance policies shall be issued by an insurance company
cunently authorized by the lnsurance Commissioner to transact business of insurance in the
State of Califomia, with an assigned policyholders' Rating of A- (or higher) and Financial

Size Category Class Vl (or larger) in accordance with the latest edition of Best's Key Rating

Guide, unless otherwise approved by the City's Risk Manager.

Waiver of subrogation. All insurance coverage maintained or procured pursuant to this
agreement shall be endorsed to waive subrogation against City, its elected or appointed

officers, agents, officials, employees and volunteers or shall specifically allow Consultant or
others providing insurance evidence in compliance with these specifications to waive their
right of recovery prior to a loss. Consultant hereby waives its own right of recovery against

City, and shall require similar written express waivers and insurance clauses from each of its

subconsultants.

Enforcement of contsact provisions (non estoppel). consultant acknowledges and

agrees that any actual or alleged failure on the part of the City to inform Consultant of non-

compliance with any requirement imposes no additional obligations on the City nor does it

waive any rights hereunder.

Requirements not limiting. Requirements of specific coverage features or limits contained

in this Section are not intended as a limitation on coverage, limib or other requirements, or a

waiver of any coverage normally provided by any insurance. Specific reference to a given

coverage fealure is for purposes of clarification only as it pertains to a given issue and is not

intended by any party or insured to be all inclusive, or to the exclusion of other coverage, or

a waiver of any type. lf the Consultant maintains higher limits than the minimums shown

above, the City requires and shall be entitled to coverage for the higher limits maintained by

the Consultant. Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified minimum limits

of insurance and coverage shall be available to the City.

Notice of cancellation. Consultant agrees to oblige its insurance agent or broker and

insurers to provide to City with a thirty (30) day notice of cancellation (except for

Page 13 of 14

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 93

Primary/noncontributing. Coverage provided by Consultant shall be primary and any 
insurance or self-insurance procured or maintained by City shall not be required to 
contribute with it. The limits of insurance required herein may be satisfied by a combination 
of primary and umbrella or excess insurance. Any umbrella or excess insurance shall 
contain or be endorsed to contain a provision that such coverage shall also apply on a 
primary and non-contributory basis for the benefit of City before the City's own insurance or 
self-insurance shall be called upon to protect it as a named insured. 

City's rights of enforcement In the event any policy of insurance required under this 
Agreement does not comply with these specifications or is canceled and not replaced , City 
has the right but not the duty to obtain the insurance it deems necessary and any premium 
paid by City will be promptly reimbursed by Consultant, or City will withhold amounts 
sufficient to pay premium from Consultant payments. In the altemative, City may cancel this 
Agreement. 

Acceptable insurers. All insurance policies shall be issued by an insurance company 
currently authorized by the Insurance Commissioner to transact business of insurance in the 
State of Califomia, with an assigned policyholders' Rating of A- (or higher) and Financial 
Size Category Class VI (or larger) in accordance with the latest edition of Best's Key Rating 
Guide, unless otherwise approved by the City's Risk Manager. 

Waiver of subrogation. All insurance coverage maintained or procured pursuant to this 
agreement shall be endorsed to waive subrogation against City, its elected or appointed 
officers, agents, officials, employees and volunteers or shall specifically allow Consultant or 
others providing insurance evidence in compliance with these specifications to waive their 
right of recovery prior to a loss. Consultant hereby waives its own right of recovery against 
City, and shall require similar written express waivers and insurance clauses from each of its 
subconsultants. 

Enforcement of contract provisions (non estoppel). Consultant acknowledges and 
agrees that any actual or alleged failure on the part of the City to inform Consultant of non
compliance with any requirement imposes no additional obligations on the City nor does it 
waive any rights hereunder. 

Requirements not limiting. Requirements of specific coverage features or limits contained 
in this Section are not intended as a limitation on coverage, limits or other requirements, or a 
waiver of any coverage normally provided by any insurance. Specific reference to a given 
coverage feature is for purposes of clarification only as it pertains to a given issue and is not 
intended by any party or insured to be all inclusive, or to the exclusion of other coverage, or 
a waiver of any type. If the Consultant maintains higher limits than the minimums shown 
above, the City requires and shall be entitled to coverage for the higher limits maintained by 
the Consultant. Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified minimum limits 
of insurance and coverage shall be available to the City. 

Notice of cancellation. Consultant agrees to oblige its insurance agent or broker and 
insurers to provide to City with a thirty (30) day notice of cancellation (except for 

Page 13 of 14 



nonpayment for which a ten (10) day notice is required) or nonrenewal of coverage for each
required coverage.

Prohibition of undisclosed coverage limitations, None of the coverages required herein
will be in compliance with these requirements if they include any limiting endorsement of any
kind that has not been first submitted to City and approved of in writing.

Separation of lnsureds. A severability of interests provision must apply for all additional
insureds ensuring that Consuhant's insurance shall apply separately to each insured against
whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the insurer's limits of liability.
The policy(ies) shall not contain any crossJiability exclusions.

Pass Through Clause. Consultant agrees to ensure that its subconsuhants,
subcontractors, and any other party involved with the project who is brought onto or involved
in the project by Consultant, provide the same minimum insurance coverage and
endorsements required of Consultant. Consuhant agrees to monitor and review all such
coverage and assumes all responsibility for ensuring that such coverage is provided in
conformity wilh the requirements of this section. Consultant agrees that upon request, all
agreements with consuhants, subcontractors, and others engaged in the project will be
submitted to City for review.

City's right to revise specifications. The City reserves the right at any time during the
term of the contract to change the amounts and types of insurance required by giving the
Consultant nineg (90) days advance wriften notice of such change. lf such change results in
substantial additional cost to the Consultant, the Ctty and Consultant may renegotiate
Consultant's compensation.

Self-insured rctentions. Any setf-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by

the City. The City reserves the right to require that self-insured retentions be eliminated,

lowered, or replaced by a deductible. Self-insurance will not be considered to comply with

these specifications unless approved by the City.

Timely notice of claims. Consultant shall give the Crty prompt and timely notice of claims

made or suits instituted that arise out of or resuh from Consuhant's performance under this
Agreement, and that involve or may involve coverage under any of the required liability
policies.

Additional insurance. Consuhant shall also procure and maintain, at its own cost and

expense, any additional kinds of insurance, which in its own judgment may be necessary for
its proper protection and prosecution of the work.

Page 14 of 14

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 94

nonpayment for which a ten (10) day notice is required) or non renewal of coverage for each 
required coverage. 

Prohibition of undisclosed coverage limitations. None of the coverages required herein 
will be in compliance with these requirements if they include any limiting endorsement of any 
kind that has not been first submitted to City and approved of in writing. 

Separation of Insureds. A severability of interests provision must apply for all additional 
insureds ensuring that Consultant's insurance shall apply separately to each insured against 
whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the insurer's limits of liability. 
The policy(ies) shall not contain any cross-liability exclusions. 

Pass Through Clause. Consultant agrees to ensure that its subconsultants, 
subcontractors, and any other party involved with the project who is brought onto or involved 
in the project by Consultant, provide the same minimum insurance coverage and 
endorsements required of Consultant. Consultant agrees to monitor and review all such 
coverage and assumes all responsibility for ensuring that such coverage is provided in 
conformity with the requirements of this section. Consultant agrees that upon request, all 
agreements with consultants, subcontractors, and others engaged in the project will be 
submitted to City for review. 

City's right to revise specifications. The City reserves the right at any time during the 
term of the contract to change the amounts and types of insurance required by giving the 
ConSUltant ninety (90) days advance written notice of such change. If such change results in 
substantial additional cost to the Consultant, the City and Consultant may renegotiate 
Consultant's compensation. 

Self-insured retentions. Any self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by 
the City. The City reserves the right to require that self-insured retentions be eliminated, 
lowered, or replaced by a deductible. Self-insurance will not be considered to comply with 
these specifications unless approved by the City. 

Timely notice of claims. Consultant shall give the City prompt and timely notice of claims 
made or suits instituted that arise out of or result from Consultant's performance under this 
Agreement, and that involve or may involve coverage under any of the required liability 
policies. 

Additional insurance. Consultant shall also procure and maintain, at its own cost and 
expense, any additional kinds of insurance, which in its own judgment may be necessary for 
its proper protection and prosecution of the work. 

Page 14 of 14 



CHECK REGISTER REPORT

CHECK
DATE

STATUS VENOOR NAME CATEGORY AMOUNT

72670

72671

72672

72673

Printed

Printed

Printed

Printed

US. BANK CC'RFORATE PIVTT SYSTEM

U,S- BANX EQUIPMENT FINANCE

UNITY IT

HECTOR VARGAS VALOEZEXPRESS
TOWING

VALLEY SHREDDING LLC

VANIR CONSTRUCTION

ut25t2019
uD5no19
ut25no19
un5t2019

CALCARD CHARGES 3I2A 41221 1 9

COPY MACHINE LEASE.I'AY 19

MDT MANAGED SERVICES-MAR 19

VEHICLE STORAGE FOR EVIDENCE

89,422.21

1,058.45

2,s56.69

235.00

PARIIAL R

72674

72675

04t25t2019

04t25t2019

Printed

Printed

72676

72677

04t2512019

05/09/2019

WASTE MANAGEMENT-USA WASTE

MARKALVES/ALVES ELECTRIC

BUSINESS LIC OVERPAYMENT REIMB

POLICE OEPT CONSTRUCTION
MANAGEMENT 3/1/,I 9.3,/31/ 19

GARBAGE.MARCH 2019

SHAFER PARKING LOT/PLAYGROUND
LED LIGHTING.HRPP GRANT FUNDED

TELEPHONE.APRIL 2019

PVC'S FOR LLMD 11

PDSA

LINEN/UNIFORM SERVICE-APR 19

PLANNING CONSULTING-MARCH 19

CRIME SCENE INVESTIGATIONS

GIS TELECOMMUNICATION CHARGES-I AR 19

SIGNALS & LIGHTING JAN.MAR 19

OENTAL .12411 9

LEASE FOR SERVERS 5/1-5/31/19

FARMERS MARKET & SELMA CANCER R

SUPPORT EVEiITS
FIRE EXTINGUISHER MAINT.W FRONT & A ST

MEOICAL PREMIUM REIM&MAY 19

MEOICAL PREMIUM REIM&MAY 19

MEDICAL PREMIUM REIMB.MAY 19

POLICE BOOY ARMOR

UTILITIES-APRIL 2019

SCAN 8 UPLOAO NEW PO STATION PDSA
PLANS

BUSINESS LIC OVERPAYMENT REIMB

EXECUTIMSAOVANCED SCHEDULING

DOCUMENT OESTRUCTION

BUSINESS LICENSE REIMBURSEMENT

AIRCARDS 3/1 9/'l 9-4n 8/1 I
ROAD WORK AHEAD SIGNS

LAS VEGAS ICSC RECON 2019 PER DIEM

LAS VEGAS ICSC RECON 2019 PER OIEM

PIONEER VILLAGE WINE TASTING
FUNDRAISER ENTERTAINMENT

RSTP-FLORAL AVE PROJECT& G

STREETS ARTERIAT PROJECT

PRESSURE WASHER MAINTENANCE

SELMA HEALTH CARE OISTRICT SWIM G

2019 SUMMER GRANT

SOCIAL MEDIA ARCHIVE SERVICES

TELEPHONE 4/4/1 9-5/3/1 9

TELEPHONE 4/4/1 9-5/3/1 I
TELEPHONE 4/4/19.5/3N9

TELEPHONE.MDTS 4 I 1 I 1 94 I3OI 19

PIONEER VILLAGE AIR DUCTING REPLACEMENT

COGNITIVE INTERVIEW & FORENSIC

STATEMENT ANALYSIS COURSE

PVC PIPING,ADAPTERS,PIPES-RINGO
PARK
SENIOR TRIP 4/23-25 LAS VEGAS R

SOLAR PERMIT REFUNO 19,0143

G

10.00

2.718.79

113.918.89

12.985.00

715.71

11.377 .U
796.10

70.24

1.992.95

1.553.50

1,y7.37
639.99

246.92
't.170.90

185.78

1,397.68

r,941.70

36,891.64

238.71

94.00

331.25

60.00

50.00

607.95

1,033.69

175.00

200.00

400.00

127.500.00

139.17

7,100.00

72678

72679

726A0

72641

72642

72683

7268/.

72685
726ffi
72647

72688

72689

Pnnted

Printed

Void

Void

Printed

Pdnted

Pdnted

Printed

Printed

Printed

Printed

Printed

05/09/2019

05/09/2019

05/09/2019

05/09/20'19

05/0912019

05/0912019

05/09/2019

05/09/2019

05/09/2019

0s/09/2019

05/09/2019

05t09Do19

CINTAS CORPORATION NO, 2

COLLINS & SCHOETTLER PLANNING

COUNTY OF FRESNO

COUNTY OF FRESNO TREASURER

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

HEALTHEDGE ADMINISTRATORS INC

HEWLETT-PACKARO FINANCIAL

HUB INTERNATIONAL INSURANCE

72690

72691

72692

72693

726p4

72595

72696

05/09/2019

05/09/2019

05/09/2019

05/09/2019

05/09/2019

05/09/2019

05/09/2019

JORGENSEN & COMPANY

MICHAEL KAIN

JEFF KESTLY

STEVEN LEE MCINTIRE

METRO UNIFORM

PG&E

DEVON RICKETTS

AT&T

BENNETT & BENNETT, INC

72697

72694

72700

72701

72702

72703

727U
72705

05/0912019

05/09/2019

05/09/2019

05i09/2019

05/09/2019

05/09/2019

05/16/2019

osh6no19
05/1612019

Pnnted

Printed

Printed

Printed

Printed

Printed

Pdnted

Printed

Printed

SOLAR MAINTENANCE PROS

TYLER TECHNOLOGIES, INC,

VALLEY SHREDDING LLC

SILVIA VENEGAS

VERIZON WIRELESS

ZUMAR INDUSTRIES, INC.

TERESA GALLAVAN

ISAAC MORENO

RICHARD J TUTTRUP

Printed

P.inted

Printed

Printed

Printed

Printed

Printed

72707

72704

05D3t2019
o5t23t2019

Printed

Printed

72709
72710

7271'.|

72712

72713

72714

72715

727cf' 05/16/2019 Printed GATEWAY ENGINEERING INC

o5l23DO19

05123t2019

o5t23t2019

05t23D019

05D3t2019

0st23t2019

05t23t2019

Printed

Printed

Printed

P.inted

Printed

Printed

P.inted

ARCHIVESOCIAL, INC.

AT&T

AT&T

AT&T

AT&T MOBILITY

BENNY BACA,/COOL AIR SPECIALTY

BEHAVIORAL ANALYSIS TR,AINING,

2,388.00

1,390.03

21.99
'16.58

522.07

2.700.00

614.00

72716 Os/23,/2019 Printed BENNETT & BENNETT, INC 171.74

72717

72718

05t23t2019

05t23t2019

Printed

Printed

BEST TOURS & TRAVEL INC

BRIGHT PLANET SOLAR

11,562.00

u.07

CHECX
NUMBER

CHECK DESCRIPTON

Printed

Printed

A&E INDUSTRIAL CLEANING

AMERICAS KIDS IN MOTION

20.05

17.45

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 95

CHECK REGISTER REPORT 

CHECK CHECK 
NUMBER DATE 

STATUS VENDOR NAME CHECK DESCRIPTON CATEGORY AMOUNT 

72670 

72671 

72672 

72673 

72674 

72675 

72676 

72677 

72678 

72679 

04/25/2019 Printed 

0412512019 Printed 
04/2512019 Printed 

04/25/2019 Printed 

0412512019 Printed 

04125/2019 Printed 

0412512019 Printed 

05/09/2019 Printed 

0510912019 Printed 

0510912019 Printed 

72680 0510912019 Void 

72681 05/0912019 Void 

72682 

72683 
72684 

72685 

72686 

72687 

72688 

72689 

72690 

72691 
72692 

72693 

72694 

72695 

72696 

72697 

72698 

72699 

72700 

72701 

72702 

72703 

72704 

72705 

72706 

72707 

72708 

72709 

72710 

72711 

72712 

72713 

72714 

72715 

72716 

72717 

72718 

05/0912019 Printed 

05/0912019 Printed 

05/0912019 Printed 

05/0912019 Printed 

05/0912019 Printed 

05/09/2019 Printed 

05/0912019 Printed 

05/0912019 Printed 

05/0912019 Printed 

05/0912019 Printed 
05/0912019 Printed 

05/0912019 Printed 

05/0912019 Printed 

05/0912019 Printed 

05/0912019 Printed 

0510912019 Printed 

05/0912019 Printed 
05/0912019 Printed 

05/0912019 Printed 

05/09/2019 Printed 

0510912019 Printed 

05/1612019 Printed 

0511612019 Printed 

05/1612019 Printed 

05/16/2019 Printed 

0512312019 Printed 

05/23/2019 Printed 

05/2312019 Printed 
0512312019 Printed 

0512312019 Printed 

0512312019 Printed 

05123/2019 Printed 

05/23/2019 Printed 

05/2312019 Printed 

05/23/2019 Printed 

05/23/2019 Printed 

05/23/2019 Printed 

U.S. BANK CORPORATE PMT SYSTEM CALCARD CHARGES 31231-4122/19 
U.S. BANK EQUIPMENT FINANCE COPY MACHINE LEASE-MAY 19 

UNITY IT MDT MANAGED SERVICES-MAR 19 

HECTOR VARGAS VALDEZlEXPRESS VEHICLE STORAGE FOR EVIDENCE 
TOWING 
VALLEY SHREDDING LLC 

VANIR CONSTRUCTION 
BUSINESS L1C OVERPAYMENT REIMB 

POLICE DEPT CONSTRUCTION 
MANAGEMENT 311119-3/31119 

WASTE MANAGEMENT-USA WASTE GARBAGE-MARCH 2019 

MARK ALVESIALVES ELECTRIC 

AT&T 

BENNETT & BENNETT. INC. 

SHAFER PARKING LOTIPLAYGROUND 
LED L1GHTING-HRPP GRANT FUNDED 
TELEPHONE-APRIL 2019 

PVC'S FOR LLMD 11 

CINTAS CORPORATION NO. 2 L1NENIUNIFORM SERVICE-APR 19 

COLLINS & SCHOETTLER PLANNING PLANNING CONSULTING-MARCH 19 

COUNTY OF FRESNO CRIME SCENE INVESTIGATIONS 

PARTIAL R 

PDSA 

G 

COUNTY OF FRESNO TREASURER GIS TELECOMMUNICATION CHARGES-MAR 19 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION SIGNALS & LIGHTING JAN·MAR 19 

HEALTHEDGE ADMINISTRATORS INC. DENTAL 4124/19 

HEWLETT-PACKARD FINANCIAL 

HUB INTERNATIONAL INSURANCE 

JORGENSEN & COMPANY 

MICHAEL KAIN 
JEFF KESTLY 

STEVEN LEE MCINTIRE 

METRO UNIFORM 

PG&E 

LEASE FOR SERVERS 511-5/31119 

FARMERS MARKET & SELMA CANCER 
SUPPORT EVENTS 
FIRE EXTINGUISHER MAINT-W FRONT & A ST 

MEDICAL PREMIUM REIMB-MAY 19 

MEDICAL PREMIUM REIMB-MAY 19 

MEDtCAL PREMIUM REIMB-MAY 19 

POLICE BODY ARMOR 

UTILITIES-APRIL 2019 

R 

DEVON RICKETTS SCAN & UPLOAD NEW PO STATION 
PLANS 

PDSA 

SOLAR MAINTENANCE PROS 
TYLER TECHNOLOGIES. INC. 

VALLEY SHREDDING LLC 

SILVIA VENEGAS 

VERIZON WIRELESS 

ZUMAR INDUSTRIES. INC. 

TERESA GALLAVAN 

ISAAC MORENO 

RICHARD J TUTTRUP 

GATEWAY ENGINEERING. INC. 

A&E INDUSTRIAL CLEANING 

AMERICA'S KIDS IN MOTION 

BUSINESS L1C OVERPAYMENT REIMB 

EXECUTIMEIADVANCED SCHEDULING 

DOCUMENT DESTRUCTION 

BUSINESS LICENSE REIMBURSEMENT 

AIRCARDS 3/19/19-4/18/19 

ROAD WORK AHEAD SIGNS 

LAS VEGAS ICSC RECON 2019 PER DIEM 

LAS VEGAS ICSC RECON 2019 PER DIEM 

PIONEER VILLAGE WINE TASTING 
FUNDRAISER ENTERTAINMENT 
RSTp·FLORAL AVE PROJECT & 
STREETS ARTERIAL PROJECT 

PRESSURE WASHER MAINTENANCE 

SELMA HEALTH CARE DISTRICT SWIM 
2019 SUMMER GRANT 

ARCHIVESOCIAL. INC. SOCIAL MEDIA ARCHIVE SERVICES 
AT&T TELEPHONE 4/4/19-5/3119 

AT&T TELEPHONE 4/4/19·5/3/19 

AT&T TELEPHONE 4/4/19-5/3/19 

AT&T MOBILITY TELEPHONE-MOTS 4/1119-4/30119 

G 

G 

BENNY BACAICOOL AIR SPECIALTY PIONEER VILLAGE AIR DUCTING REPLACEMENT 

BEHAVIORAL ANALYSIS TRAINING. COGNITIVE INTERVIEW & FORENSIC 
STATEMENT ANALYSIS COURSE 

BENNETT & BENNETT. INC. PVC PIPING,ADAPTERS.PIPES-RINGO 
PARK 

BEST TOURS & TRAVEL INC. 

BRIGHT PLANET SOLAR 

SENIOR TRIP 4/23-25 LAS VEGAS 

SOLAR PERMIT REFUND 19-0143 

R 

89.422.21 
1.058.45 

2.556.69 

235.00 

10.00 

2.718.79 

113.918.89 

12.985.00 

20.05 

17.45 

715.71 

11 .377.34 

796.10 

70.24 

1.992.95 

1.553.50 

1.347.37 

639.99 

246.92 

1.170.90 
185.78 

1.397.68 

1.941.70 

36.891.64 

238.71 

94.00 

331.25 

60.00 

50.00 
607.95 

1.033.69 

175.00 

200.00 

400.00 

127.500.00 

139.17 

7.100.00 

2,388.00 
1,390.03 

21 .99 

16.58 

522.07 

2.700.00 

614.00 

171 .74 

11 ,562.00 

64.07 



CHECK REGISTER REPORT

CHECK
NUMBER

STATUS VENOOR NAME CHECX OESCRIPTON CATEGORY AMOUNT

72719 05/23l20't9 Printed

05t23t2019

05t23t20't9

05t2312019

05t23t2019

0512312019

o5l23no19

05t23t2019

05t23t2019

05D3t2019

JAY WESLEY BROCVTOP OOG
TRAINING CENTER

CALIFORNIA WATER SERVICE

ROD CARSEY

SAM CASEY

CENTRAL SANITARY SUPPLY

COLLECTIBLES MGMT RESOURCES

COMCAST

CORELOGIC SOLUTIONS LLC

COUNTY OF FRESNO

CSULB FOUNDATION

WATER SERVICE.APRIL 2019

PLAN CHECKS.APRIL 2019

LAS VEGAS TRIP REFUND

JANITORIAL SUPPLIES

COLLECTION FEES R

INTERNET SERVICE .MAY 2019

REALOUEST SERVICE-APR 19

RMS/JMS/CAD ACCESS FEES.APR 19

CRIME SCENE INVESTIGATION R

couRSE 6i/3{/4/19
REIMBURSEMEiIT FOR THE NUTTY NUTCRACKER

SERVER UPDATE-FINAL INVOICE AND
NETCARE/ON SITE SUPPORT.MAY
2019

FINGERPRINTS-APRIL 201 9

NEW PD STATION AGREEMENT POSA

SUI OTRLY Pi/rr 1/1/1$.3/3'1/19

CLEAREO OUT FLOOR DRAIN.A ST &
INSTALLED NEW DRINKING FOUNTAIN-
CITY HALL

4TH QUARTER DUES APR-JUN 19

EXAM 19.3542

ACAOEMY INSTRUCTOR COURSE 4/1. R
4/5/19 & TEMPORARY PARKING
PERMITS & REGISTRATION

HMBP FOR CITY YARD

GYM MEMBERSHIP REIMBURSEMENT

2017 ATP PROJECT 17489 G

STARS SERVICES 4TH QUARTER

DENTAL 5/1/19

DENTAL 5/8/19

ADMINISTRATIVE FEES.JUNE 2019

KIOSK MEDICAL WASTE SERVICES

LEASE FOR FIRE ADMIN BLOG 5/186/17l19

FAHRNEY TRAFFIC STUDY-MARCH 19 R

SECOND CHANCE ANIMAL SHELTER SPAY

EMPLOYMENT ADS-PLANNING & PARTIAL G
OEVELOPMENT MANAGER &
RECYCLING GRANT AD

POLICE REVOLVING ACCT

EMPLOYMENT ADS-PLANNING MANAGER

CRIME SCENE INVESTIGATOR R

couRsE PER DIEM 6,/26/14n 9

2014 ASSESSMENT DISTRICT & 2017
GENERALOBLIGATION BONDS

REIMBURSEMENT FOR ROGER
ROCKA'S DINNER THEATER

OFFICE SUPPLIES

UTILITIES.APRIL 2019

TASER HOLSTERS

ROOSEVELT SCHOOL ROUNDABOUT R

ATP PROJECT

COPIER MAINT/COPY AGREEMENT 4/1/194/30/19

MONTHLY SUPPORT PAYMENT JUNE 20,I9

TRANSPORT BRONZE SCULPTURE
FROM LINCOLN PARK TO FRESNO

MONTHLY FREEZER USE-APRIL 2019

WATER SERVICE.PO

EMPLOYEE INSURANCE-JUNE 19

MONTHLY K9 MAINTENANCE

72729

72730

osD3t2019

05t23t20't9

Printed

P.inted

DANCING SCHOOL
DATAPATH LLC

72720

72721

72722

72723

72724

72725

72726

72721

72728

72738

72739

72740

72741

72742

72743

72744

72745

72746

72741

72748

72749

Printed

Printed

Printed

Printed

Printed

Printed

Printed

Printed

Printed

Printed

Printed

Pnnted

Pnnted

Printed

Printed

Printed

Printed

Printed

Printed

Printed

Printed

232.59

18,825.00

447.00

169.00

36,150.00

500.00

3,486.30

1,153.74

777.42

150.00

339.78

,t68.92

139.50

639.08

403.00

97,593.41

515.00

2.140.61

1.039.55

1.000.00

649.00

72731

72732

72733

727U

o5t23t2019

ost23Do19

05t23t2019

05t2312019

Pnnted

Pnnted

Printed

Printed

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

DYSON JANZEN ARCHITECTS. INC,

EMPLOYMENT DEVELOPMENT DEPT

JOEL A FEOOR/FEDOR PLUMBING

72735

72736

72737

05t23t2019

05t2312019

0512312019

Printed

Printed

Printed

ostnno19
05n3t2019
05n3t2019

05D3t2019

05D3t2019

05t23t2019

05t23t2019

05t23t2019
05t23t2019

05t23D019

05t23no19

05t23t2019

FRESNO COUNTY TREASURER

OONOVAN FULLNER

GATEWAY ENGINEERING, INC,

GOVERNMENT REVENUE SOLUTIONS

HEALTHEDGE ADMINISTRATORS INC.

HEALTHEDGE ADMINISTRATORS INC,

HEALTHEDGE ADMINISTRATORS INC,

HEALTHWISE SERVICES. LLC,

HEWLETT-PACKARD FINANCIAT

JLB TRAFFIC ENGINEERING INC

KINGSBURG VETERINARY CLINIC

LEE CENTRAL CALIFORNIA

o5t23t2019

05123t2019

05t23t2019

Pflnted

Printed

Printed

870.51

55.00

,156.00

72753 05/2312019 Printed NHA ADVISORS LLC

72754 05/23/2019 Printed ADRIAN OCEGUERA

't 75 00

142.82

1.492.24

72755

72756,

72757
72758

Printed

Printed

Printed

Printed

OFFICE DEPOT, INC-

PG&E

PROFORCE LAW ENFORCEMENT

R,J. BERRY JR. INC-

RAY MORGAN COMPANY INC

SECONO CHANCE ANIMAL SHELTER

OCTAVIO SIFUENTES

401.82

2't't.89

5,037.58

133,6't 4.46

763.58

6.978.00
1.500.00

72762

72763

727U

o5n3t2019
05D3t2019

o5t23t2019

Printed

Printed

Printed

SOUTH COUNTY VETERINARY

SPARKLETTS

SUN LIFE

CHECK
DATE

FIVE CITIES EDA

FORENSIC NURSE SPECIALIST, INC

FRESNO CITY COLLEGE

METRO UNIFORM

MID VALLEY PUBLISHING,INC.

DANIELA MONTESINOS

180.00

9.564.73

2,951.38

616.00

786'.24

4,056.49

1,485.84

481.25

494.84

724.O0

72750

72751

72752

3.550.00

136.00

05t23t2019

05t2312019

05n3t2019
o5t23no19

72759
72760

72761

05/2312019 Printed

05/2312019 Printed

05/2312019 Printed

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 96

CHECK REGISTER REPORT 

CHECK CHECK 
NUMBER DATE 

STATUS VENDOR NAME CHECK DESCRIPTON CATEGORY AMOUNT 

72719 

72720 

72721 

72722 

72723 

72724 

72725 

72726 

72727 

72728 

72729 

72730 

72731 

72732 

72733 

72734 

72735 

72736 

72737 

72738 

72739 

72740 

72741 

72742 

72743 

72744 

72745 

72746 

72747 

72748 

72749 

72750 

72751 

72752 

72753 

72754 

72755 

72756 

72757 

72758 

72759 

72760 

72761 

72762 

72763 

72764 

0512312019 Printed 

0512312019 Printed 

0512312019 Printed 

0512312019 Printed 

0512312019 Printed 

0512312019 Printed 

05/2312019 Printed 

0512312019 Printed 

0512312019 Printed 

0512312019 Printed 

0512312019 Printed 

0512312019 Printed 

0512312019 Printed 

0512312019 Printed 

0512312019 Printed 

0512312019 Printed 

0512312019 Printed 

0512312019 Printed 

0512312019 Printed 

05/2312019 Printed 

0512312019 Printed 

0512312019 Printed 

0512312019 Printed 

0512312019 Printed 

0512312019 Printed 

0512312019 Printed 

0512312019 Printed 

0512312019 Printed 

0512312019 Printed 

0512312019 Printed 

0512312019 Printed 

05/23/2019 Printed 

05/2312019 Printed 

05/2312019 Printed 

0512312019 Printed 

0512312019 Printed 

0512312019 Printed 

0512312019 Printed 

0512312019 Printed 

05/2312019 Printed 

05/23/2019 Printed 

05/2312019 Printed 

05/2312019 Printed 

0512312019 Printed 

0512312019 Printed 

05123/2019 Printed 

JAY WESLEY BROCKfTOP DOG 
TRAINING CENTER 

CALIFORNIA WATER SERVICE 

ROD CARSEY 

SAM CASEY 

MONTHLY K9 MAINTENANCE 

WATER SERVICE-APRIL 2019 

PLAN CHECKS-APRIL 2019 

LAS VEGAS TRIP REFUND 

CENTRAL SANITARY SUPPLY JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 

COLLECTIBLES MGMT RESOURCES COLLECTION FEES 

COMCAST 

CORELOGIC SOLUTIONS LLC 

COUNTY OF FRESNO 

CSULB FOUNDATION 

INTERNET SERVICE -MAY 2019 

REALQUEST SERVICE-APR 19 

RMSIJMSICAD ACCESS FEES-APR 19 

CRIME SCENE INVESTIGATION 
COURSE 613-614/19 

R 

R 

DANCING SCHOOL 

DATAPATH LLC 

REIMBURSEMENT FOR THE NUTTY NUTCRACKER 

SERVER UPDATE-FINAL INVOICE AND 
NETCAREION SITE SUPPORT-MAY 

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 

DYSON JANZEN ARCHITECTS, INC. 

2019 

FINGERPRINTS-APRIL 2019 

NEW PD STATION AGREEMENT 

EMPLOYMENT DEVELOPMENT DEPT. SUI QTRLY PMT 111119-3131119 

JOEL A FEDOR/FEDOR PLUMBING CLEARED OUT FLOOR DRAIN-A ST & 
INSTALLED NEW DRINKING FOUNTAIN
CITY HALL 

FIVE CITIES EDA 4TH QUARTER DUES APR-JUN 19 

FORENSIC NURSE SPECIALIST, INC EXAM 19-3542 

FRESNO CITY COLLEGE ACADEMY INSTRUCTOR COURSE 4/1 · 
4/5/19 & TEMPORARY PARKING 
PERMITS & REGISTRATION 

FRESNO COUNTY TREASURER 

DONOVAN FULLNER 

HMBP FOR CITY YARD 

GYM MEMBERSHIP REIMBURSEMENT 

GATEWAY ENGINEERING, INC. 2017 ATP PROJECT 17-089 

GOVERNMENT REVENUE SOLUTIONS STARS SERVICES 4TH QUARTER 

HEALTHEDGE ADMINISTRATORS INC. DENTAL 511119 

HEAL THEDGE ADMINISTRATORS INC. DENTAL 518119 

HEALTHEDGE ADMINISTRATORS INC. ADMINISTRATIVE FEES-JUNE 2019 

KIOSK MEDICAL WASTE SERVICES 

LEASE FOR FIRE ADMIN BLDG 5/18-6117119 

FAHRNEY TRAFFIC STUDY-MARCH 19 

SECOND CHANCE ANIMAL SHELTER SPAY 

PDSA 

R 

G 

R 

HEAL THWISE SERVICES, LLC. 

HEWLETI-PACKARD FINANCIAL 

JLB TRAFFIC ENGINEERING INC 

KINGSBURG VETERINARY CLINIC 

LEE CENTRAL CALIFORNIA EMPLOYMENT ADS-PLANNING & PARTIAL G 

METRO UNIFORM 

MID VALLEY PUBLISHING,INC. 

DANIELA MONTESINOS 

NHA ADVISORS LLC 

ADRIAN OCEGUERA 

OFFICE DEPOT, INC. 

PG&E 

PROFORCE LAW ENFORCEMENT 

R.J. BERRY JR. INC. 

DEVELOPMENT MANAGER & 
RECYCLING GRANT AD 

POLICE REVOLVING ACCT 

EMPLOYMENT ADS-PLANNING MANAGER 

CRIME SCENE INVESTIGATOR 
COURSE PER DIEM 612-6114/19 
2014 ASSESSMENT DISTRICT & 2017 
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 
REIMBURSEMENT FOR ROGER 
ROCKA'S DINNER THEATER 

OFFICE SUPPLIES 

UTILITIES-APRIL 2019 

TASER HOLSTERS 

ROOSEVELT SCHOOL ROUNDABOUT 
ATP PROJECT 

R 

R 

RAY MORGAN COMPANY INC COPIER MAINTICOPY AGREEMENT 4/1/19-4/30119 
SECOND CHANCE ANIMAL SHEL TER MONTHLY SUPPORT PAYMENT JUNE 2019 

OCTAVIO SIFUENTES TRANSPORT BRONZE SCULPTURE 
FROM LINCOLN PARK TO FRESNO 

SOUTH COUNTY VETERINARY MONTHLY FREEZER USE-APRIL 2019 

SPARKLETIS WATER SERVICE-PD 

SUN LIFE EMPLOYEE INSURANCE-JUNE 19 

180.00 

9,564.73 

2,951 .38 

616.00 

786.24 

4,056.49 

1,485.84 

481 .25 

494.84 

724.00 

232.59 

18,825.00 

403.00 

97,593.41 

516.00 

2,140.61 

1,039.55 

1,000.00 

649.00 

447.00 

169.00 

36,150.00 

500.00 

3,486.30 

1,153.74 

777.42 

150.00 

339.78 

468.92 

139.50 

639.08 

870.51 

55.00 

456.00 

3,550.00 

136.00 

401.82 

211 .89 

5,037.58 

133,614.46 

763.58 

6,978.00 

1,500.00 

175.00 

142.82 

1,492.24 



CHECK
NUMBER

STATUS VENDOR NAME CATEGORY AMOUNT

72765

72766'

72767

72768

72769

05t23t2019

0s123t2019

o5t23no19
05123t2019

05t23t2019

Printed

Printed

Printed

Printed

Printed

TOWNSEND PUALIC AFFAIRS, INC

TRANS UNION CORPORATION

TYLER TECHNOLOGIES. INC.

TYMCO INC

VANIR CONSTRUCTION

YASH P- VERMA/INDUSTRIAL
HEALTHCARE

WASTE MANAGEMENT-USA WASTE

WENGER CORPORATION

WILLEMS COMMERCIAL PRINTING

ZEE MEOICAL SERVICE CO,

ZUMAR INDUSTRIES, INC,

CONSULTING FEES.MAY 2019

PRE EMPLOYMENT CREDIT CHECK

EXECUTIMUADVANCED SCHEDULING

STREET SWEEPER PAYMENT

POLICE DEPT CONSTRUCTION
MANAGEMENT 4/1/1 9.4/30/1 9

HEP B VACCINATIONS-PW & PRE.
EMPLOYMENT PHYSICALS-PD

GARBAGE-APRIL 2019

AUDIENCE RISERS

WAIT UNTIL DARK POSTERS & POSTCAROS

FIRST AID KITS.PO

OIRECTIONAL SIGNS WITH CITY LOGO

PDSA

3,500.00

13.89

406.25

13,248.72

r,999.05

72770 0512312019 Printed

7277'l

72772

72773

72774

72775

o5n3no19
05t23no19

05t23t20't9

o5t23no19

05t23t2019

P.inted

Printed

Printed

Printed

Printed

G

TOTAL 946,653.48

Grant: G PD Station Bond: PDSB (458) PD State Appropriation: PDSA (457) Reimbursement: R

114,098.43

26.532.45
'140.58

389.15

936.79

WIRE/EFT
05/14l19 STATE OF CALIFORNIA 2018 GEMT QRT 1 & 2 45.060.78

CHECK REGISTER REPORT

CHECK
DATE

CHECK DESCRIPTON

1,172.OO

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 97

CHECK REG ISTER REPORT 

CHECK CHECK 
STATUS VENDOR NAME CHECK DESCRIPTON CATEGORY AMOUNT 

NUMBER DATE 

72765 0512312019 Printed TOWNSEND PUBLIC AFFAIRS, INC. CONSULTING FEES-MAY 2019 3,500.00 

72766 0512312019 Printed TRANS UNION CORPORATION PRE EMPLOYMENT CREDIT CHECK 13.89 

72767 OS/2312019 Printed TYLER TECHNOLOGIES, INC. EXECUTIMEIADVANCED SCHEDULING 406.25 

72768 OS/2312019 Printed TYMCO INC STREET SWEEPER PAYMENT 13,248.72 

72769 OS/2312019 Printed VANIR CONSTRUCTION POLICE DEPT CONSTRUCTION PDSA 1,999.05 
MANAGEMENT 4/1/19-4130/19 

72770 0512312019 Printed YASH P. VERMA/INDUSTRIAL HEP B VACCINATIONS-PW & PRE- 1,172.00 

HEALTHCARE EMPLOYMENT PHYSICALS-PO 

72771 0512312019 Printed WASTE MANAGEMENT-USA WASTE GARBAGE-APRIL 2019 114,098.43 

72772 0512312019 Printed WENGER CORPORATION AUDIENCE RISERS G 26,532.45 

72773 0512312019 Printed WILLEMS COMMERCIAL PRINTING WAIT UNTIL DARK POSTERS & POSTCARDS 140.58 

72774 05/2312019 Printed ZEE MEDICAL SERVICE CO. FIRST AID KITS-PO 389.15 

72775 05/23/2019 Printed ZUMAR INDUSTRIES, INC. DIRECTIONAL SIGNS WITH CITY LOGO 936.79 

T OTAL 946,653.48 

Grant: G PO Station Bond: POSB (458) PO State Appropriation: POSA (457) Reimbursement: R 

W IR E/EFT 

05/1 4/19 STATE OF CALIFORNIA 2018 GEMT aRT 1 & 2 45,060.78 



Date

4/30l20t9
s/3/2019

s/77 /2019

Date

sl3/2079
sh7/2o7e

Date

sl3/2o7e
s/e/2o7e
s/L7l21t9

PAYROLT TRANSACTIONS

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

LL5522

115523-115531

115540-115545

Remittance Checks

Check No.

115532-115539

115546-115551

ACH Payment

Description

PR MAYO319

PR MAYO919

PR MAY1719

Amount

51,46s.72

54,306.78

s 1,866.37

Amount

519,797.24

516,046.67

Amount

S 158,313.s4

S138.83

s168,s46.47

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 98

PAYROLL TRANSACTIONS 

CHECK REGISTER 

Date Check No. Amount 

4/30/2019 115522 $1,465.12 

5/3/2019 115523-115531 $4,306.78 

5/17/2019 115540-115545 $1,866.37 

Remittance Checks 

Date Check No. Amount 

5/3/2019 115532-115539 $19,791.24 

5/17/2019 115546-115551 $16,046.67 

ACH Payment 

Date Description Amount 

5/3/2019 PR MAY0319 $168,313.54 

5/9/2019 PR MAY0919 $138.83 

5/ 17/2019 PR MAY1719 $168,546.47 



o 
o 

rn !o 6 
.{ 

.n @
 ..{ qt .n .! 

o 
o 

o 
o 

{, 
!^ !6 o 

c) or F
- H

 * 
+

 
o 

o 
\l 

d 
<

t !o o 
* 

o 
f 

o 
o 

m
 o 

<
l

qq 
^t n q oc r't n \ 

^t 6! n n dt c\.,) 
\ 

o)I 
qot e q:..lr! 

gq 
n..! 

^1 "_r l.f 
: o o or o.!

uro 
rn.! 

d 
oD

 d 
c) co d 

oo \o !^ .n 6€m
 

<
r <

r.^ 
!n or.{ 

cox.{.n 
.n 6 

.oo\ 
rr {; 

dH
uiF

 
oi ci..

.\r rn (n 
N

 
!n co (o F

.. '.o r-r .\ 
I^ ch .{ 

.! 
F

 
!n F

 
6 

m
 \o H

 =
 

o 
m

 or 
.r 

'-.,1 \o=
N

 
.r 

o.n
r-{ N

 \O
 

.n !{ 
.\r r{ .{ 

\l 
N

 
rn .r)

jjoo 
oo^oooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

oo 
ooxoooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

oo 
ooY

oooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo
; 

./i ddP
ci 

F
.dci 

c; ci ci ci ri ri ci ci dJci,/id 
d ci ci ci d d ci dci 

ci oci 
dd 

ri c;dci6
.r.{ 

!n l..,:i 
u1 !n rn !n !n 

Ln (n rn !i 
i 

(n 16 F
\F

.o.r 
u) r! 

!oo 
rn !n 

Ln fr 
Ln (n 

L,',] o 
I/) st 

r{ 
r-{ rn !6 o 

!n
C

D
 O

l ..,J .n 
': 

r\r a! a! i_r a{ a{ rl 
N

 
O

\ O
r .! 

N
 

<
l 

<
l 

O
1 O

r a\r O
r .\I 

-r 
.lI 

a! 
a{ N

 
6l 

.! 
N

 
!'l 

.! 
.,J O

 
C

n .! 
.{ 

O
r a!

dci 
ci ci P

d 
ci d ci dcici 

cio 
ciod 

ci dci 
ci c;cidcidcictdciodci 

ci ci .'i ci dddc;
..1 .{ 

O
 O

 X
 O

 O
 O

 O
 O

 O
 O

 O
 .l 

.r 
O

 a) O
 O

 .r 
!'r O

 rr O
 O

 O
 O

 O
 O

 O
 O

 O
 O

 () O
 r\r .r 

O
 O

 d 
O

(o\o\D
(oY

roLo\o(o(o\o(o\o@
ro(o(o@

(o(o(oro!oLororo\o(o(o\D
(o(o(o(o@

!-.rto(oro(o(o
o o ; 

; 
n o o ;,n 

; 
; 

; 
; 

; 
;,i' 

d ; 
; 

o d d d d d d d d d d d d d d d d d d d d d
o 

o 
.{ 

..1 :l 
o 

o 
.{ 

.{ 
.{ 

l.\r N
 

N
 

.{ 
N

 
.! 

.{ 
.\r .{ 

o 
o 

o 
o 

o 
o 

o 
o 

o 
c) o 

o 
o 

o 
o 

o 
o 

o 
o 

o 
o 

o
:: 

a{ 
a.J ur .n 

Ln rn 
L,) !n 

1,) !o rn rn !n r^ 
a\r 

N
 

..1 .r 
.r 

!'r 
F

r a\r o 
\o 

a\l d 
a{ 

rn
': 

6! 
ah a{ N

 
a{ a! 

N
 

m
 .{ 

.! 
N

 
a! 

N
.! 

m
 

ra a{ .r 
.\r N

 
r\l c{ 

N
 

N
 

.! 
N

 
N

 
..l 

N
 

c! 
o

d d d d P
 j 

* o o o o o d d d d o o d d d d d d d d d d d d d d o d o o d d d d ";
6o 

o6Y
oooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

.r-r.r.r(o

E

E
 

-, E
 

$-i*
zfr
o 

>
 

I 
E

 
oF

 
=

?;E
p 

G
 

.9(, 
frfr 

E
 

E
 

-- 
=

2 
;o-Y

jr

rc , 
t--q,=

Z
l=

-jE
E

 =
crgua3E

 sF
!=

u-
=

=
s =

rz=
!E

E
ha;ieee ifi=

-*=
s'=

 siE
q.E

=
$

E
;E

;rE
riIrE

E
E

lE
E

gE
;c I=

E
E

E
E

E
E

iE
E

E
E

E
iE

iE
H

$

=
i

(r (r 
tJ 

5 
-

f E
 

-^F
e t 

z

+
+

 
-4459 g 

E
 xs

,u 
m

 
E

114e 0 * 
F

F
 

r5l'g
U

U
 

? 
2 

F
F

 
F

F
 

9 
af 

E
=

U
 

=
 

o 
* 

ob
=

=
 E

 E
 bb bE

 i*=
*i=

=
i=

=
g E

 =
 

E
E

 H
g;E

=

5E
 r;E

;,E
l=

E
E

E
E

E
E

;E
E

*E
cE

cuc=
*;=

irgE
u=

=
E

E
E

E

=
 

O
O

O
O

O
O

^1^oorgt:otr
E

 z z z z z 2 z z z 4 z z z z z z 
t-

zz*do 
ooooooooo=

=
=

=
=

=
 

2
<

r <
r " 

- 
=

 
=

 
=

 
=

 
E

 =
 

E
 =

 
=

 
=

 
=

 
=

 
=

 
=

 
=

6o#f 
skkssssf 

2<
<

<
<

<
<

 
7=

=
=

=
=

=
IF

F
F

F
F

F
F

F
itG

,dddd
L.F

F
F

F
F

F
 

t<
<

<

=
 =

 # * iiii* 
E

 # # # # # s # # * =
 i i i e E

 g g E
 g g e g g I g e x=

a33i
E

 E
 a a b 6 6 6 B

 6 b 6 b b 6 6 a a a d d d d =
 =

 H
 H

 H
 H

 H
 =

 =
 H

 H
 H

 H
 Z

Z
Z

{E
=

=
ttti=

=
=

=
=

=
ts=

=
=

=
=

i<
<

<
<

u
6trO

O
O

o(.)(J-(JaO
O

O
O

O
6O

O
ooooaoooooooooooortrtrtr(,

iiS
S

qS
S

B
S

S
qB

E
B

gB
B

B
B

B
B

E
B

B
B

B
iiE

ifl 3383338333
$+

 $E
s$$$i$$$$ii$$$$B

s3$**;$$$$$i$3s$3**$$

Fzfo=cE
I

lDElzFzlo(,(JL!

-UtatozIFlLa(,)

u,l
6

zo=;^k
zuEF

=2U
J

E!!

orNNslI
ct!

(nN(nlrtt!(,0aIIJo&
,

(JL)GoIJIJozYzcotif

ulEzEoozE
I

June 3, 2019 C
ouncil Packet

99

US BANK INVOICE FOR CALCARD CHARGES: 3/23/19-4/22/19 
TRANSACTION 

EMPLOYEE NAME DATE VENDOR NAME DESCRIPTION OF PURCHASE ACCOUNT NUMBER AMOUNT 
CHRISTIE MOORADIAN 4/3/2019 CALIFORNIA POLICE CHIEF ASSOC WLLE/WOMENS CONFERENCE 100-2200-610.915 .000 1,125 .00 

CHRISTIE MOORADIAN 4/3/2019 CALIFORNIA POLICE CHIEF ASSOC WLLE/WOMENS CONFERENCE 100-2100-610 .915 .000 750.00 

CITY OF SELMA FIRE QRT MST 4/16/2019 FELD FIRE HOSE ROLLER FOR OES 100-25 25-600.250.000 693 .23 

CITY OF SELMA STATION 1 3/26/2019 NAPA AUTO PARTS SPARK PLUG 100-2525-600 .375 .000 2.16 

CITY OF SE LMA STATION 1 4/8/2019 SAVEMART PROPANE REFILL 100-2525-600.250.00 21 .68 

CITY OF SELMA STATION 1 4/15/2019 NAPA AUTO PARTS HEAD LIGHT FOR ENGINE 701-9200-600 .250.000 9.81 

CITY OF SE LMA STATION 1 4/20/2019 SHELL FUEL FOR ENG 111 701-9200-600 .257 .000 51 .33 

CITY OF SE LMA STATION 2 3/23/2019 THE HOME DEPOT TOOK BOX, MASK, CAN 100-2525-600 .250.000 80.18 

CITY OF SELMA STATION 2 3/31/2019 THE HOME DEPOT LOCKS, CABLE FOR 110 100-2 5 25-600 .250.000 68 .72 

CITY OF SE LMA STATION 2 4/6/20149 WALMART PARTS FOR STATION 2, REPAIRS 100-2 5 25-600.250.000 71 .29 

CITY OF SE LMA STATION 2 4/8/2019 THE HOME DEPOT 2 CHAIRS FOR STATIONS 100-2 5 2 5-600 .250.000 68 .23 

CITY OF SELMA STATION 2 4/10/2019 THE HOME DEPOT WATER AND GATORADE FOR ENGINES 100-25 25-600 .250.000 16.12 

CITY OF SELMA STATION 2 4/16/2019 OFFICE MAX TOOLS AND LlGHTS-ST 2 100-25 25-600 .250.000 325.40 

CITY OF SELMA TRAINING DIV 3/21/2019 AMERICAN AIRLINES JEREMY'S FLIGHT TO TRAINING 100-25 25-610 .915 .000 153.30 

CITY OF SELMA TRAINING DIV 3/21/2019 UNITED AIRLINES JEREMY'S FLIGHT TO TRAINING 100-25 25-610 .915 .000 98 .30 

CITY OF SELMA TRAINING DIV 4/17/2019 SP HERO WIPES DECONTAMINATION WIPES 100-25 2 5-600 .250.000 128.70 

CITY OF SELMA TRAINING DIV 4/18/2019 POOL WEB AQUA TECH RESCUE THROW BAGS 100-25 25-600 .250.000 123.36 

CITY OF SELMA TRAINING DIV 4/18/2019 NORTHWE ST RIVER SUPPLIES PERSONAL FLOTATION DEVICES 100-2525-600.476.000 274 .75 

CITY OF SELMA TRAINING DIV 4/19/2019 NORTHWE ST RIVER SUPPLIES PERSONAL FLOTATION DEVICES 100-2525-600.476.000 54 .95 

DAVID LEWIS 3/28/2019 SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY CHAPTER MEMBERSHIP FEE 100-3200-610.900 .000 75 .00 

DAVID LEWIS 3/28/2019 INTERNATIONAL CODE COUNCIL TRAIN ING 100-3200-610.915 .000 85 .00 

DAVID LEW IS 4/10/2019 AMAZON .COM 5 PACK OF 64 GIG 3.0 FLASH DRIVES 100-2 200-600 .250.000 39 .99 

DAVID LEWIS 4/15/2019 ROSALINDA'S MEXICAN RESTAURANT COUNCIL MEETING SUPP LIES 100-1100-610 .920.000 62.37 

DEBBIE GOMEZ 3/25/2019 AMAZON DISPOSABLE COLD PACKS 100-2200-600 .250.000 18.01 

DEBBIE GOMEZ 3/28/2019 OFFICE MAX/DEPOT TONER CARTRIDGES 100-2100-600 .100 .000 493.08 

DEBBIE GOMEZ 3/31/2019 AMAZON FIRST AID SUPPLIES & MICE PATROL 100-2100-600 .250.000 102.34 

DEBBIE GOMEZ 4/5/2019 BLACK BEAR DINER CROWS LANDING LUNCH 100-2100-600 .250.000 35 .20 

DEBBIE GOMEZ 4/5/2019 SHELL GAS FOR UHAUL 100-2100-600 .250.000 95 .00 

DEBBIE GOMEZ 4/5/2019 GALLS TAC GEAR, COMPRESSION 5, PERFORMA 100-2 200-600 .250.000 228 .64 

DEBBIE GOMEZ 4/5/2019 GALLS HANDCUFFS 100-2200-600 .250.000 136.11 

DEBBIE GOMEZ 4/5/2019 UHAUL UHAUL RENTAL CROWS LANDING 100-2100-600 .250.000 239.24 

DEBBIE GOMEZ 4/11/2019 HON KEY REPLACEMENT FILE CABINET 100-2100-600 .250.000 11.26 

DEBBIE GOMEZ 4/11/2019 OFF ICE MAX/DEPOT UTI LlTY TRAYS 100-2100-600 .100.000 14.50 

DEBBIE GOMEZ 4/11/2019 OFFICE MAX/DEPOT FED EX FOR EVIDENCE 18-4029/18-4744 100-2100-600 .250.000 131.98 

DEBBIE GOMEZ 4/12/2019 PROFORCE TASER, CARTRIDGES, BATIERY PACK 100-2200-600.250 .000 1,468.48 

DEBBIE GOMEZ 4/19/2019 GALLS SHIRT, PANT -DEBBIE GOMEZ REVOLVING ACCT 100-0000-123.010 .000 101.14 

FINANCE DEPARTMENT 4/18/2019 CALIFORNIA SOCIETY OF MUNICIPAL INTRODUCTION TO GOVERNMENTAL 100-1600-610.915 .000 225.00 

FRANK SANTILLAN 3/25/2019 CHEVRON SE LMA, CA . PATROL UNIT WASH 100-2200-600.250.000 7.00 

FRANK SANTILLAN 3/25/2019 SIERRA MKT SE LMA, CA. COFFEE/PRISO NER MEALS 100-2100-600.250 .000 19.93 

FRANK SANTILLAN 4/3/2019 CPOA SACRAMENTO, CA . LSP COVERAGE PER MOU 100-2200-610 .900 .000 500.00 

GEORGE SIPEN 4/17/2019 AMAZON .COM GLALAXY/SAMSUNG TAB 603-5500-600.256 .000 331.24 



rn !n ch f\r 6r if 
o 

('l s 
ro o 

\o or ah ch o 
i 

F
 

(o <
r o 

o 
o 

o 
o 

m
'.r1 r^ o 

\o ao r. 
r\ 

cr N
 ot <

l d 
co.n

N
 \O

 <
r .n !n +

 
ur <

) i 
o 

o 
F

- m
 st 6 

!^ (^ F
. m

 o 
o 

!/r o 
o 

c, ro <
l o 

o 
H

 6 
<

 
d 

d 
<

) 6 
r{ l'\ l'\ 

N
.jdirrj 

.j 
^i ^i 

ci ,/i N
 cj cj.id.,i 

+
.nci 

.jd^idF
i.ri;d.iF

oicjctN
ddoi 

d+
dddd

m
:i 

arn 
.n!. 

6r.oC
nO

rN
(o.r 

O
(n.{O

r 
H

 ah.\r Ln !-t r.\ r.\ C
, !-{ (h O

 !i.\r 
O

r O
 4 

r.l O
.rd..l 

.,,r@
N

 
r{ 

r-r (o o.n 
<

l an o.{ 
I 

f! 
a6 art an r/,t 

!"1 !'l !'r a{ .n an rl 
\!l c 

.{.l 
H

 
.\l

jj- 
..i 

i

ooooooooooooooooooooooQ
ooooooQ

Q
9Q

9ooooQ
Q

666oooooooo6666666666oooooooA
aeE

)Q
Q

ooooQ
Q

qqqqqqoqqaqqqqqeqqqqqqescccqqqqqqcqqcqqq
\!, \o ro (o (o \o !o (o \D

 \o o 
Lo !o ro !o \o !o (o \o \D

 o 
o 

o 
o 

o 
(D

 \o io (o (o (o lo E
l I 

o 
o 

o 
(D

 @
 ro

!nrn!n!nt^6 
r'r.n!nr^o!n(^L/1rr,slrn.,'!n!nooooo!,ltn!l,,| 

9Q
ooornr,lln

^t .t ryry.! 
^l 6! f! 6! ..! s..9.! 

^1 .!.! 
^!.1 .!.!9aaaa^!..,1 

.! nn 
1i! 

11c 
n a.!.!..i

oooooooooooooooooQ
oooooooooooooQ

aaaaa9ee
6oooo666666666O

O
ooooooooQ

ooooooqQ
qoooooo

!o(oro(o!o666ro\.l\o\o1.oro!D
!D

\o(o(oro\or!,\oro(o\oroto\o\o\o(o\o(oloLo(o\o\oto
o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o 

<
) o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o q 

q) a a I 
e I

66ooooo66666666O
O

oooooooooooooqQ
Q

Q
oooooo

r^r^!nr^LnI^r^r^lrtr^!nI.lt,l6.n!,t6ln!n!n.nfr!o!nr^rnlrlLrlrn!/rr^rn!nt^!n!nr,,rnr^!,r
g.i rn rn !1 !n rn vl rn ra .a !/t Lat t ) rn r^ !r,r rn rrt !n !n rn qr !/l rn (/1 rn rn !n ur r'r rn tn !n r^ rn rn rn rn !n u)
m

 m
 ao rn rn m

 m
 m

 m
 m

 fn.n 
rY

l m
 m

 ln m
 (n rn m

.n 
rn (Y

t an r'' 
an an ao m

 m
 m

 m
 m

 rn m
 m

 an m
.Y

) m
ij 

ij 
ij 

ij 
6 

o 
o 

o 
o 

o 
o 

o 
o 

o 
o 

o 
o 

o 
o 

o 
o 

o 
o 

o 
o 

o 
o 

o 
o 

o 
o 

o 
o 

o 
o 

o 
q 

e 
a 

e
6 

6 
6 

!o 10 !o !o (o \o @
 6 

(., (!, G
 r5'o 

(. 
G

 (o \o to (o ro \o \o to \o \o (o \o (o ro \o (o \1, \o \o (o lo 
ro

=
oB2tll
ooz
d12
z_=

33.^
s 

ss63 
=

 
uE

,'1 t^ v\,,t -^3 
-u\,,\,^.^ v, 

\,1 t^8 E
 E

 =
 8,,, r, 

? ? r,gg E
 " =

 ir*
E

K
K

E
S

E
 K

 E
E

K
E

F
E

E
K

E
E

E
E

E
E

;S
:S

E
E

E
E

E
E

qqA
E

=
=

E
E

E
E

E
E

S
E

E
 E

 E
E

E
!E

S
E

E
E

E
E

E
E

E
E

E
H

H
:5E

E
E

:E
E

E
E

E
E

S
E

E

d,d.ccG
,G

,d,
E

E
H

E
H

E
E

=
=

3=
n=

=
(J(J(J(J(J(J(JJ

=
=

=
 

E
E

E
999E

E
tH

H
H

,,1v1.'1'/10 0 0 _o a a 
E

 E
 E

 5 5 E
 E

 =
 5 5 =

 =
 E

 E
 4

E
 E

 E
 E

 E
 E

 E
 E

 E
 4 E

 E
 E

 E
 E

 -- -- -- =
 =

 
3 E

 E
 E

 B
 E

 E
 : 3 o o "d p p S

* s s f f s f f s f f f f s f p p p E
 E

 ., ., ., ., ., E
 r r =

 =
 =

 =
 n niE

V
Z

za
E

 5 E
 ! E

 : 5 E
 ! ! 5 E

 E
 ! E

 =
 3 =

 5 5 =
=

=
=

=
2111i ; ; ; E

 E
 E

 E
 E

 E
 E

 :
{ +

 { { { { { { { { { { { { { E
E

E
 e 3 E

iiiE
 

E
 E

 g E
 E

 E
 E

 A
A

A
A

A
A

A
E

a 2 2 2 2 2 2 z z z z z. z z z O
 O

 o z z F
 t- F

 F
 - 

z z z z z z z (, e (J u u r 
r 

(,

$$$$$$$ $$$E
*$E

sE
$$$+

$$ssE
$$$$$E

E
tE

$E
$s$$

z z zz 
zz 

z z z z z z z z z z z 2 z z z z 2 2 z z z z z 2 z z z z z z z z z z
ullJuru 

t!uruu!r'!'!r
E

 E
 E

 4 - g - 4 e 4 o- - 
o- 6- g 6- g C

 q g e q C
 g q g A

 -d C
 +

 +
 +

 +
 +

 C
 C

 o- o- o- +
6 

th 
tJ1 v1 

t1 
tt1 .i.r\ 

ttl 
t\,r\ 

t\ 
tt 

a 
ut 

ttt 
t1 

t/1 th 
th 

\A
 

a 
.r\ 

th 
ttl 

\h 
\h 

a 
.J1 t1 

.t1 th

(9 s O
 o (, (, O

 O
 O

 O
 o o o o o (, (, (9 (, o o (, !9 (9 o (9 o q !2 q I 

M
 

!2 (9 (9 (9 o o (,
d. .. 

* 
a 

d. d. d. c. - 
a 

d. A
 A

 &
. A

. i 
&

 d 
d 

d 
a 

e 
d 

d. c. e 
c 

d 
G

 c 
d 

d 
d. &

 t 
t 

d 
d 

c 
c

ooooooooooO
oO

O
O

6ooooooooooooooooo9oooooo
ln'n 

llJ uJ @
 u 

u 
u 

u 
uJ @

 ln'I' 
l! 

lIl 
tll 

q, 
u 

@
 

LiJ
(,(9(,(,O

O
O

O
O

O
(9oooooou(9(9(9(,(9(,(,(,(,(,(,(9(,(,(,(9(9(,(9(,(,(9

Fzlo=c,trl
c!ElzFzfol,(,ulIG

,
fC

L

ozIFgG
,

(JlrJ6Ezd.o6zgJ

zI;-k
2aclF

E
'

=zoJ4Eul

C
,r

NN<
lI

(D(nN(n1il!(90lIL.,
oG

,

UL)ac
ouJ9ozzcota=

June 3, 2019 C
ouncil Packet

100

US BANK INVOICE FOR CALCARD CHARGES: 3/23/19-4/22/19 
TRANSACTION 

EMPLOYEE NAM E DATE VENDOR NAME DESCRIPTION OF PURCHASE ACCOUNT NUMBER AMOUNT 

GEORGE SIPEN 4/3/2019 NAPA AUTO PARTS AUTO PARTS 603-SS00-600.2S6.000 (231.2S) 

GEORGE SIPEN 4/10/2019 NAPA AUTO PARTS AUTO PARTS 603-5500-600.256 .000 13.65 

GEORGE SIPEN 4/3/2019 NAPA AUTO PARTS AUTO PARTS 603-5500-600 .256.000 16.49 

GEORGE SIPEN 4/11/2019 NAPA AUTO PARTS AUTO PARTS 603-5500-600 .256.000 31.52 

GEORGE SIPEN 4/10/2019 NAPA AUTO PARTS AUTO PARTS 603-5500-600.256.000 32.5 2 

GEORGE SIPEN 4/4/2019 NAPA AUTO PARTS AUTO PARTS 603-5500-600.256.000 42.44 

GEORGE SIPEN 4/5/2019 NAPA AUTO PARTS AUTO PARTS 603-5500-600.256.000 58 .58 

GEORGE SIPEN 4/11/2019 NAPA AUTO PARTS AUTO PARTS 603-5500-600.256.000 65 .09 

GEORGE SIPEN 4/8/2019 NAPA AUTO PARTS AUTO PARTS 603-5500-600.256 .000 97 .14 

GEORGE SIPEN 4/12/2019 NAPA AUTO PARTS AUTO PARTS 603-5500-600.256 .000 98 .06 

GEORGE SIPEN 3/21/2019 NAPA AUTO PARTS AUTOTECH CLASS IN FRESNO 603-5500-600.400 .000 120.00 

GEORGE SIPEN 3/28/2019 NAPA AUTO PARTS AUTO PARTS 603-5500-600.256 .000 161.76 

GEORGE SIPEN 4/18/2019 NAPA AUTO PARTS AUTO PARTS 603-5500-600.256.000 610 .39 

GEORGE SIPEN 3/28/2019 NAPA AUTO PARTS AUTO PARTS 603-5500-600.256 .000 1,005.49 

GEORGE SIPEN 4/4/2019 NAPA AUTO PARTS AUTO PARTS 603-5500-600.256 .000 1,534 .89 

GEORGE SIPEN 3/25/2019 O'REILLY AUTO SUPPLY AUTO PARTS 603-5500-600.256 .000 (412.50) 

GEORGE SIPEN 4/4/2019 O'REILLY AUTO SUPPLY AUTO PARTS 603-5500-600.256.000 390.51 

GEORGE SIPEN 4/4/2019 O'REILLY AUTO SUPPLY AUTO PATS 603-5500-600.256.000 611.77 

GEORGE SIPEN 4/17/2019 NVB EQUIPMENT AUTO PARTS 603-5500-600.256.000 196.36 

GEORGE SIPEN 4/18/2019 NVB EQUIPMENT AUTO PARTS 603-5500-600.256.000 422.04 

GEORGE SIPEN 4/2/2019 TNT TOWING 16 EL DORADO 603-5500-600.400.000 250.00 

GEORGE SIPEN 3/22/2019 TNT TOWING 13 CHEV EXPRESS 603-5500-600.400.000 312.50 

GEORGE 51PEN 3/7/2019 TNT TOWING 2016 EL DORADO 603-5500-600.400 .000 375 .00 

GEORGE SIPEN 2/21/2019 TNT TOW ING 2016 EL DORADO UNIT 189 603-5500-600.400.000 375 .00 

GEORGE SIPEN 3/29/2019 TNT TOW ING 2014 CHEV 4500 BUS 603-5500-600.400.000 500.00 

GEORGE SIPEN 4/18/2019 MICHAEL AUTOMOTIVE CENTER AUTO PARTS 603-5500-600.256.000 11.63 

GEORGE SIPEN 4/16/2019 MICHAEL AUTOMOTIVE CENTER AUTO PARTS 603-5500-600.256 .000 97.45 

GEORGE SIPEN 4/15/2019 MICHAEL AUTOMOTIVE CENTER AUTO PARTS 603-5500-600.256.000 109.05 

GEORGE SIPEN 4/9/2019 MICHAEL AUTOMOTIVE CENTER AUTO PARTS 603-5500-600.256.000 110.00 

GEORGE SIPEN 4/15/2019 MICHAEL AUTOMOTIVE CENTER AUTO PARTS 603-5500-600.256.000 128.16 

GEORGE SIPEN 3/25/2019 MICHAEL AUTOMOTIVE CENTER AUTO PARTS 603-5500-600.256.000 297.58 

GEORGE SIPEN 3/25/2019 M ICHAEL AUTOMOTIVE CENTER AUTO REPAIRS 603-5500-600.256.000 2, 598.15 

GEORGE SIPEN 4/11/2019 COUNTRY TIRE & WHEEL AUTO REPAIRS 603-5500-600.400.000 350.17 

GEORGE SIPEN 3/25/2019 COUNTRY TIRE & WHEEL DISOMOUNT & MOUNT NEW TIRES 603-5500-600.400.000 429.10 

GEORGE SIPEN 4/15/2019 COUNTRY TIRE & WHEEL AUTO PARTS 603-5500-600.400.000 608.07 

GEORGE SIPEN 3/28/2019 COUNTRY TIRE & WHEEL INSTALL NEW TIRES 603-5500-600.400.000 914 .89 

GEORGE SIPEN 4/1/2019 COUNTRY TIRE & WHEEL INSTAL NEW TIRES 603-5500-600.400 .000 1,216.14 

GEORGE SIPE N 4/1/2019 FRONTIER FASTENER AUTO PARTS 603-5500-600 .256.000 116.71 

GEORGE SIPEN 4/15/2019 FRONTIER FASTENER AUTO PARTS 603-5500-600 .256.000 156.78 

GEORGE SIPEN 3/13/2019 CREATIVE BUS SALES AUTO PARTS 603-5500-600.256.000 288 .23 



N
 

O
 

rn O
 

O
 

O
 

N
 

f.\ 
O

 
O

 
O

 
.O

 N
 

<
l 

O
 

O
 

O
 

ra <
t O

 
.n 

F
. O

r (>
 

C
O

 (o r- 
O

 
\O

 O
r ..r ..r O

 
O

I O
 

r. 
€ 

O
 

O
 

e 
O

qq 
qqC

 
C

\ 
{ 

.'-r q C
a 

qqq 
q q r'1 \ 

C
.1 qq 

4.leqqqo! 
q\ 

q.!q 
d.1A

 qq 
qq

o 
!i 

cD
 !^ !n !n .o sf rJl .n @

 rr .{ 
c 

o 
o 

o 
(o 6 

<
t !-r cD

 (oo 
rl 

r-.r o 
l/) o 

(h 6 
rn o 

!-.r N
 F

\ rn i\ 
\o 6 

rn
t\ 

cO
 sf F

\ 6 
6 

rO
 3.n 

@
 \4, <

t .n \O
 O

 O
 O

 N
 

r{ I6.r 
F

..\r 
<

t Q
.{ 

sl rn .n !n ro !n .i 
<

t tO
O

d<
t 

.!rnm
 

N
 r^ r^ ltl 

a! 
..{ 

.n 
ri 

sl

oooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo^Q
ooooc,oo

6 6 6 6 6 o 6 O
 6 6 o o o o O

 O
 O

 O
 O

 O
 O

 O
 O

 O
 O

 O
 O

 O
 O

 O
 O

 <
) X

 O
 O

 O
 O

 q Q
 Q

 q
qqqqqaqqaqqqqqccqcqqqcqcqccqecqqtsqqccqqqq
LO

 !O
 O

 
O

 
O

 
O

 
O

 
O

 
\O

 O
 

O
 

(o 
LO

 O
 

O
 

O
 

O
 

O
 

O
 

O
 

O
 

O
 

c) 
<

>
 <

) O
 

O
 

O
 

O
 

O
 

O
 

O
 

.i 
O

 
F

 
F

'F
 

F
 

r"- F
 

l"
!n r 

O
 

O
 

c) O
 

O
 

O
 

!n O
 

O
 

.rt !n O
 

O
 

O
 

O
 

(A
 !n !n N

 
!,.l ra !,t (n !n rn N

 
rn u) rn rn =

 
=

r rn ln.n 
rn rn l^ 

u)

^! ^! q a I99 
a.! 

a 9n.! 
9qq 

an.! 
n n ^l .! ^l n^l 

6l ol .! ..i .1 .,1 6 q .! .! ..! ..! ..! .! .!
o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o <

) o o o o e) Q
 e' q, Q

 o I 
e e I 

j 
.v) c) c) o o o o o

o o o o o o o o o o o o o o .r .r .r o o o o o o c| Q
 o o li 

o o o o :j 
r! o o o o o o o

ro (o Lo @
 (o ro (o (o ro ro (o (o rE

 (o (o (o ro (D
 rD

 (D
 \o @

 (o \o g g g g g g g g : 
r'r g g g g g p g

dddddddddddd6oooddooooooooaaas,eeA
E

,oo6oooo
o 6 o o o o o o o o o o 

a) o <
, o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o x o o o o o o o o

!n ra !n !n 
rn !n !n r.! !/i 

r^..1 
.r 

.{ 
.r 

H
 

rr 
tr 

r-t !-i.n 
xodd

!n rr) !n !n 
ur 

1,1 N
 

N
.!.{ 

N
.!.{ 

a! N
 

a\l a{ N
 

a{ r! 
Y

 
<

) a\l a! 
a\l a\l a! a\l a{

m
d.ir.ia1 

.nm
 m

.n m
rn,n 

m
"Jioo 

dd 
6dd 

d o 6o 
oo 

o oa 
oto\P

 
od\ 

o\ o! o\ o\ o\ o\
o o o o o o o o 

<
) o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o \o \o x o 

(o (o (o (o @
 lo (o

\o (o \o \o io 
!O

 (o rO
 \O

 (O
 @

 (o 
LO

 (o .r 
.{ 

.\l 
.\l 

.{.{ 
^l

;* 
; 

a

ssE
E

E
E

E
i,E

E
iigE

age=
E

=
;=

iE
E

E
gE

E
3,

zo
.,F

k
=

 
*ii 

4 
-- 

t
!r' 

. 
- 

55 
s

--,ieseas r 
f 5 iep. 

=
 

ee-v 
=

=
5tsS

l3so6 
;9 

U
E

U
 =

 
n<

 f;f e; 
6

s*;ooooo>
>

 
3+

 E
rE

 
d 

=
=

E
aa5r* 

-

;;E
E

E
E

E
E

l=
a;E

;iiE
e;r,E

 9E
E

E
;E

=
;E

=
E

iu=
E

E
E

E
E

5 5 * =
 =

 =
 =

 =
 6 d E

 r; 
u 6 6 3 5I5 

3 t - <
 a z d ., s 6 <

 <
 ., u u >

 >
 u u >

 e

$$$E
$$$E

$$*$$$s$s$$s+
$$$S

$$$$$E
sE

E
*E

*$$$$

9qsssss9qs9
z z z z z z z z z z z z =

 =
 ? ? I 

P
 3 P

 P
 P

 =
 =

 i ; 
P

 - n n *. -* E
 E

 E
 H

 E
 E

 E
 -. E

E
 E

 E
 E

 E
 E

 E
 E

 E
 E

 E
 E

 E
 E

 =
 ? iiiieiiiieiz 

z E
 =

 =
 =

 =
 =

 =
 =

 S
 S

 S
 S

t^ 
t^.r1 

t/\ 
6 

r^ 
(J !l 

(J 
(J (J 

U
 

U
 

Ll 
L) L) l| 

(]| !) 
=

 
=

 
* 

=
=

 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

) 
I 

f 
l

u 
@

 F
 

F
 

F
 

F
 

F
 

F
 

F
 

F
 

F
 

F
 

F
 

F
 

F
 

* 
X

 
>

 
6- 6- o- o- o- o- o- o- o- 6- 

6-

E
 B

 E
 B

 E
 E

 B
 E

 E
 E

 E
 E

 B
 E

 E
 .T

 E
 E

 E
 E

 E
 E

 E
 E

 q E
 E

 E
 E

 E
 E

 E
 E

 E
 E

 E
 E

 g E
 E

 O
---"j;E

:J)!=
=

=
=

=
o rc o (, (9 (9 (9 .9 (9 (, (, o (, (9 o (9 15 u (, (9 s tr r.: 6 O

 (, o 6 6 6 S
 { { 

S
 g E

 { { =
 =

 S

FzfoEg,U
J

toEzF2foUtB
J

Il)G
,

f.Loz9Fa(JU
J

oIIJEzd,oozul

zIE
:

d,F

oNN<
f

or(nNtr!
lrllrJ(,tL)o0c(JI0colr|9ozz@taf

=zulo4=
June 3, 2019 C

ouncil Packet
101

US BANK INVOICE FOR CAlCARD CHARGES: 3/23/19-4/22/19 
TRANSACTION 

EMPLOYEE NAME DATE VENDOR NAME DESCRIPTION OF PURCHASE ACCOUNT NUMBER AMOUNT 

GEORGE SIPEN 4/17/2019 CREATIVE BUS SALES AUTO PARTS 603-5 500-600 .256.000 1,070.97 

GEORGE 51PEN 4/2/2019 CREATIVE BUS SALES AUTO PARTS 603-5500-600 .256.000 1,181.60 

GEORGE SIPEN 4/5/2019 SAFETY-KLEEN SYSTEMS, INC OIL RECYCLING SERVICES 603-5500-600 .400.000 1,449.93 

GEORGE SIP EN 3/19/2019 ALL AMER ICAN GLASS WINSHIELD REPAIR 603-5500-600.400.000 75 .00 

GEORGE SIPEN 4/8/2019 ALL AMERICAN GLASS WINDSHIELD REPAIR 603-5500-600.400.000 85 .00 

GEORGE SIPEN 4/9/2019 ALL AMERICAN GLASS WINDSHIELD REPAIR 603-5500-600.400.000 85 .00 

GEORGE SIPEN 4/2/2019 ALL AMERICAN GLASS INSTALL TEMPERED GLASS 603-5500-600.400.000 268 .77 

GEORGE SIPEN 3/19/2019 ALL AMERICAN GLASS INSTALL NEW WINDSHIELD 603-5500-600.400.000 314.47 

GEORGE SIPEN 4/15/2019 CAL DISTRIBUTING AUTO PARTS 603-5500-600.256.000 1,335 .30 

GEO RGE SIPEN 4/5/2019 QUALITY ALIGNMENT AUTO REPAIRS 603-5500-600.400 .000 85 .00 

GEORGE SIPEN 3/27/2019 LEO'S SMOG SMOG 603-5500-600.400.000 68 .00 

GEORGE SIPE N 4/9/2019 FRESNO CHRYSLER JEEP AUTO PARTS 603-5500-600 .256.000 41.48 

GEO RGE SIPEN 4/10/2019 WESTERN LIGHTHOUSE AUTO PARTS 603-5500-600 .256.000 51 .02 

GEORGE SIPEN 4/9/2019 CELL FIX INC TABLET REPAIR 603-5500-600.400.000 269.94 

GILBERT CANTU 4/1/2019 CALIF PEACE OFFICERS-LSP LDF, MYRON DYCK 100-2100-610.900.000 500.00 

GILBERT CANTU 4/1/2019 CALIF PEACE OFFICERS-LSP LDF, CHRISTIE MOOSADIAN 100-2100-610.900.000 500.00 

GILBERT CANTU 4/1/2019 CALIF PEACE OFFICERS-LSP LDF, GILBERT CANTU 100-2100-610.900.000 500.00 

GILBERT CANTU 4/10/2019 OFFICE MAX llX17 PAPER NEIGBORHOOD Watch BOOKS 100-2100-600.250 .000 26.35 

GILBERT CANTU 4/12/2019 FOOD 4 LESS, SELMA PRSONER MEALS 100-2100-600.250.000 8 .74 

GILBERT CANTU 4/14/2019 CHEVRON CAR WASH, CHIEF UNIT SIKH PARADE 100-2100-600.250 .000 14.00 

GILBERT CANTU 4/15/2016 USPS CE RTIFIELD LETIERS 100-2200-600.120.000 11.15 

GILBERT CANTU 4/16/2019 SAL'S MEXICAN RESTURANT DETAIL LUNCH 100-2100-600. 250 .000 219 .07 

GILBERT CANTU 4/16/2019 WALMART, SELMA DETAIL DRINKS, UTINSILS 100-2100-600.250 .000 16.09 

GILBERT CANTU 4/16/2019 ANN'S DOU NUTS DETAIL BRIEFING 100-2100-600. 250 .000 10.50 

GILBERT CANTU 4/17/2019 ME-N-EDS PIZZA PARLOR DETAIL LUNCH 100-2100-600.250.000 44.48 

GILBERT CANTU 4/17/2019 ME-N-EDS PIZZA PARLOR DETAIL LUNCH 100-2100-600.250.000 181.36 

GILBERT CANTU 4/17/2019 SAVE MART, SELMA DETAIL, DRINKS, WATER 100-2100-600 .250 .000 19.67 

GREG GARNER 4/9/2019 CA POLICE CH IEF'S ASSOCIATION W .L.l.E . CONFERENCE 100-2300-610.920.000 375 .00 

GREG GARNER 4/15/2019 WALMART SWEARING IN RECEPTION 100-2300-600.250 .000 20 .06 

GREG GARNER 4/15/2019 SAVE MART SWEARING IN RECEPTION 100-2300-600.250.000 49 .99 

JACOB PUMAREJO 3/23/2019 AMAZON ACT FLASHLIGHT T&E PER SGT STOKES 269-2100-600.350.000 108.01 

JACOB PUMAREJO 3/24/2019 AMAZON KENWOOD RADIO ACCESSORIES 269-2100-600.350.000 25 .71 

JACOB PUMAREJO 3/25/2019 GOOGLE TV REIMBURSEMENT ATIACHED 800-000-121.000.000 40.00 

JACOB PUMAREJO 3/23/2019 CENTRAL VALLEY GUNS S&W .9MM (REVOLVING ACCOUNT) 100-0000-123.010.000 451 .29 

JACOB PUMAREJO 3/25/2019 CIRCLE K FUEL 269-2100-600 .257 .000 57 .00 

JACOB PUMAREJO 3/26/2019 VALERO FUEL 269-2100-600 .257 .000 57.37 

JACOB PUMAREJO 3/28/2019 VALERO FUEL 269-2100-600 .257 .000 63 .88 

JACOB PUMAREJO 4/2/2019 CIRCLE K FUEL 269-2100-600 .257 .000 57 .00 

JACOB PUMAREJO 4/3/2019 CIRCLE K FUEL 269-2100-600 .257 .000 36.00 

JACOB PUMAREJO 4/8/2019 VALERO FUEL 269-2100-600 .257 .000 48 .08 

JACOB PUMAREJO 4/10/2019 CIRCLE K FUEL 269-2100-600. 25 7 .000 65 .00 



oo600000000000000000000000000000000000000
ooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo
qqqcqqcccqqqqcccqcqqcqcqqqqqqqccqcqqccqq9
o o o N

 o o o o o o o o o o o o o In o o o o o o o c, r^ lo o (o \o \o o \o o o o \o o 
ro r^

rn !,r .r !n r^ !n rn H
 

o l.\ rn !6 o tn |/) rn rrl o (, rrt Ln rn !,,l rn !a rn.rl !t) r/t !n ur rr) o
.!n.!.!nl^!q 

6!.!.!.!c 
q.! 

n^!.! 
a.! 

n q .: .! .! n a 
.'_, n .! ^! ry.!.!.!.! 

n nnn.1 
.!

o o o o o o tn o o o o m
 o o o o \o o o o 

ro o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o
6 6 6 6 o O

 c.,r o o o o N
 ..r o o o N

 o o o .\t o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o 
Q

|.oG
\o\D

!6O
.r\o(.,@

C
,.rro(orE

ro.\r\o\oro.\r!oLo\o10\o\oro\o\o\ororo(orororo\D
@

(o\o
o o o o o o o !n r^ !n ur o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o (, o o o o o o o o o
o o o o o o o 

..r c{ .{ .{ o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o <
, o o o o o o o o o o o o o

.r..r 
6 

rn r^ 
!n .n o 

F
. (r 

l,r !n o 
a{ F

\ F
. o 

F
- d 

d 
d 

a\t ^l 
.! 

^l 
..1 a{ a\r 

a\r .\r N
 

N
.\.l

.{ 
N

 
.\l 

.\,r .{ 
.! 

c, 
.{ 

N
 

.\l 
ft 

o 
<

t <
t <

l 
<

t o 
st 

<
l 

!l 
o 

<
t <

t sf 
..,1 o\ 

or o\ 
or or cn o! 

ch o\ 
01 0r 01 0r o\ 

o\ 
ol

O
 

O
 

O
 

O
r C

h O
 

O
 

O
 

O
 

O
 

O
 

O
 

Q
 

O
 

O
 

O
 

!^ 
O

 
O

 
<

f 'Jr O
 

O
 

.{ 
O

 
.r 

.r 
H

 
!l 

: 
r'{ 

.r
o o o 

(o ro o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o 
<

) <
) o o 

<
) o o o o o o o o

N
 

..a .r 
t-.1 

oO
 .{ 

rr 
.r 

oo.'r.{ 
(o H

 
N

 
N

 
N

 
l'\ 

N
 

l-\ l'\ 
F

\ N
 

F
\ l'\ 

r\ 
F

- F
- l\ 

l'\

rn o o <
) .n ur c{ .n (o F

- sr m
 o rn ( 

.o tlr .o rjt r\ (rr ur <
r sr I6 

46 
6'A

a- 
m

 o.n.Y
r o m

.o.n i\
I4qqo'! 

a C
.! 

e 'J_r..t fl! n qtr!oqa 
a q.r)n 

A
oq a o! a g '.,) .'!qq.'1 

\ 
4o! q.! 

a4 
4

t,O
.tr'-tt 

r!m
O

t^rO
@

6 
9m

@
@

(rl 
.l 

l'\ 
r\ 

<
l 

tn 
!nO

O
6O

 
sl 

.Y
l st 

O
l.\ 

F
\ @

d,€ 
O

<
t 

l'o.\r 
C

N
 

r.r (n \O
 .\.| r.a .tl 

(h st 
<

t 
m

 @
 (n v1 i\ 

.! 
H

 
O

.n 
!n F

- 
.{ 

.\,1 st 
\O

 
d 

d 
f\t 

.\1 .\I 
.n 

m
r.\ 

..r ..r r^ H
 

ol -1 s9 -
* 

.n ag

$s$$$$E
$$E

$$*E
E

E
E

*E
E

$$is$$!$$$$$$$$s8$$$E

oooooo
G

,d,ddddddd,diG
 

2 
z 

z 
z 

z 
z 

z 
z 

z 
2 

2 
z 

z 
z 

z 
z

g =
 E

 3 3 E
' * I N

 D
 u =

-=
-=

-=
=

=
=

=
E

=
=

=
v =

 ? =
 =

 ? =
 ? i i i ? =

 =
 =

 =
 =

=
 

=
 

5 
5 

5 
5 

j 
j 

) 
j 

j 
_-. d. G

. d 
d 

d 
d 

d. d. d. d. G
 

G
_ Z

t (, 
(5 O

 (, 
(, 

(, 
u 

(, 
(9 O

 (9 O
 (9 O

 (, 
(,

- 
- 

-,j 
=

 
=

 
=

 
t 

t 
=

 
=

 
=

 
! 

! 
I 

v 
2 

G
. d. G

. d. G
. G

. d 
d. d. c 

e 
G

 G
 E

 
G

. cE

x 
x 

x 
x 

)..i ;-i - 
::i - 

a 
=

 
1y 

y 
v 

>
z !z Y

 Y
 Y

 Y
 Y

 Y
 :z =

 
6 

(^ l,
I <

 I <
 <

 <
 v g g E

 v g =
 =

 =
 =

 =
 =

 5 =
 =

 =
 =

 =
 i2222222222222222

E
e-

o 
L. 

* 
=

!$lE
H

 
5

E
 =

 
a-,,, E

uE
 Z

#zE
 E

=
I=

=
 *.* 

E

H
H

H
 E

=
E

IE
E

 E
E

E
iigE

E
E

E
E

gE
E

E
iE

gE
E

;E
E

l;fu*gE

oFz<
daaa<

a(

>
 

--- 
3833

u,,,,,,,,d,d 
E

 
oooo

3 
T

=
=

=
=

i=
=

.S
+

f f .E
E

E
E

E
E

E
E

.E
E

E
E

E
E

E
er 

u 
-92922222i;;-;',..S

fffffS
S

S
S

S
S

S
fff

22s 
gU

 
,*6E

g888ff$=
:X

X
X

=
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

ggP
P

P
P

P
P

22tii 
E

 E
 i i =

 i i 
E

 E
 E

 F
 A

#E
*E

E
1,E

#4; 
$ E

 ; i ; E
 ; ; ; ; E

 i

FzloEc,l!C
o

EfzFzfo(J(,T(JG
,

lq.oz9FaIU
J

clU
J

Ezd,oozt!

zo=E
E

c,F

lrJ=zoA=

o1N(\l
<

lI
ct1

tY
t

N(ntiu,t
(,d,EL'o0c

L)(JG
,

oulL'ozYztotal

June 3, 2019 C
ouncil Packet

102

US BANK INVOICE FOR CAlCARD CHARGES: 3/23/19-4/22/19 
TRANSACTION 

EMPLOYEE NAME DATE VENDOR NAME DESCRIPTION OF PURCHASE ACCOUNT NUMBER AMOUNT 

JACOB PUMAREJO 4/16/2019 ANNs DONUTS SELMA DETAIL 100-2100-600.250 .000 28.05 

JACOB PUMAREJO 4/17/2019 ANNs DONUTS SELMA DETAIL 100-2100-600.250.000 10.50 

JACOB PUMAREJO 4/16/2019 sTARBUCKs SELMA DETAIL 100-2100-600.250 .000 33 .90 

JACOB PUMAREJO 4/17/2019 SHElL FUEL 269-2100-600.257 .000 67 .00 

JACOB PUMAREJO 4/18/2019 AMAZON ACT IPAD CHARGER REPLACEMENT 269-2100-600.350.000 24 .93 

JACOB PUMAREJO 4/17/2019 STAR BUCKS SELMA DETAIL 100-2100-600.250.000 12.95 

KELLI TElLEZ 3/29/2019 ADVANTAGE GEAR SH IRT-JEREMY OWENS REVOLVING 100-0000-123.010.000 133.02 

KELLI TElLEZ 4/3/2019 AMAZON LABELS-PUBLIC ED 100-25 25-600. 250 .000 90.25 

KELLI TELLEZ 4/3/2019 AMAZON TONER-PRINTER 100-25 25-600.250.000 45 .86 

KELLI TELLEZ 4/10/2019 WALMART STATION SUPPLIES 100-25 25-600. 250 .000 246 .57 

KELLI TELLEZ 4/12/2019 WALMART WATER 100-2 5 25-600 .250.000 36 .24 

KElLI TELLEZ 4/18/2019 511 TACTICAL PULLOVER-JEREMY OWENS REVOLVING 100-0000-123.010.000 68.33 

MIKAL KIRCHNER 3/22/2019 HYATI REGENCY SACRAMENTO CPRs CONFERENCE - KIRCHNER 100-4700-610.920.000 734.10 

MIKAL KIRCHNER 3/26/2019 FRESNO ECONOMIC SENIOR CENTER LUNCH SUPPLIES 100-4500-600.250.000 53 .65 

MIKAL KIRCHNER 3/26/2019 FRESNO ECONOMIC SENIOR CENTER LUNCH sUPPlIE5 100-4500-600.250.000 178.79 

MIKAL KIRCHNER 3/26/2019 FRESNO ECONOMIC SE NIOR CE NTER LUNCH SUPPLIES 100-4500-600 .250.000 128.28 

MIKAL KIRCHNER 3/26/2019 FRESNO ECONOMIC SE NIOR CE NTER LUNCHES 805-0000-226.200.000 1,519.86 

MIKAL KIRCHNER 3/27/2019 NELSONS HARDWARE SR . CENTER LIGHT REPAIR BURNED OUT 100-4200-600.375 .000 101.48 

MIKAL KIRCHNER 3/28/2019 NELSONS HARDWARE FIELD LIGHT BOX LOCK EXCHANGE 100-4700-600.250.000 57.45 

MIKAL KIRCHNER 3/28/2019 NELSONS HARDWARE BALLFIELD FIELD NEW LOCK KEY IPW) 100-4700-600.250.000 2.92 

MIKAL KIRCHNER 4/9/2019 5MART N FINAL SR . TRIP CANDY 805-0000-226.000.000 54.36 

MIKAL KIRCHNER 4/10/2019 NEL50N's ACE HARDWARE BALLFiElD INFIELO SPRAY/EVENT PAINT 100-4700-600 .250.000 75 .15 

M IKAL KIRCHNER 4/11/2019 NElSON'S ACE HARDWARE ELECTRIC BOX/REC. COOR./PD KEY 100-4100-600 .250.000 5.84 

MIKAL KIRCH NER 4/12/2019 NELSON'S ACE HARDWARE PIONEER VILLAGE CLEAN UP GLOVES 601-4100-600 .2 50.000 10.84 

MYRON DYCK 4/11/2019 NELSON'S ACE HARDWARE KEYS FOR CABINET FOR SERGEANTS 100-2100-600 .250.000 20.44 

NESTOR GALVAN 4/3/2019 QUINN COMPANY TROUBLESHOOT & REPAIR- UNIT "1606 WHEEL 701-9200-600.400.000 3,948 .98 

NESTOR GALVAN 4/11/2019 NAPA AUTO PARTS AC SEAL/CLUTCH, CLNG SYS TEsTER,WRK sTND 701-9200-600.305 .000 12,160.45) 

NESTOR GALVAN 4/8/2019 NAPA AUTO PARTS ALTERNATOR CRDT-UNIT "2600 INV"729943 701-9200-600 .256.000 1224 .08) 

NESTOR GALVAN 4/9/2019 NAPA AUTO PARTS FLEX FORM COOL HOsE-CRDT INV 731417 701-9200-600 .250.000 113.53) 

NESTOR GALVAN 4/18/2019 NAPA AUTO PARTS RETURN GREASE CAP=UNIT 3100 INV732312 701-9200-600 .256.000 14.33) 

NESTOR GALVAN 4/16/2019 NAPA AUTO PARTS CRDT-PR INV"731970-0IL FILTER-UNIT "719 701-9200-600 .256.000 10.03) 

NESTOR GALVAN 4/18/2019 NAPA AUTO PARTS GREASE CAP-UNIT 3100 701-9200-600.256.000 7.03 

NESTOR GALVAN 4/16/2019 NAPA AUTO PARTS 4-UNIVERsAL MOUNTING STUDS 701-9200-600.250.000 7.33 

NESTOR GALVAN 4/15/2019 NAPA AUTO PARTS OIL COOLER GASKET-UNIT "719 701-9200-600.256.000 8.78 

NESTOR GALVAN 4/9/2019 NAPA AUTO PARTS FLEX FORM COOL HOSE-SHOP SUPPLIES 701-9200-600.250.000 13.53 

NESTOR GALVAN 4/1/2019 NAPA AUTO PARTS PURCHASE OIL FILTERS 701-9200-600.250.000 18.93 

NESTOR GALVAN 3/30/2019 NAPA AUTO PARTS PURCHASE ANTI-FREEZE 701-9200-600 .250.000 20.60 

NESTO R GALVAN 4/2/2019 NAPA AUTO PARTS BELT-UNIT 8508 701-9200-600 .256.000 24 .23 

NESTO R GALVAN 4/18/2019 NAPA AUTO PARTS 035 FLUX CORED W IR E 701-9200-600 .250.000 26.48 

NESTOR GALVAN 4/1/2019 NAPA AUTO PARTS REDUCER SLEEVE-UNIT 1006 701-9200-600.256.000 32.53 

NESTOR GALVAN 4/19/2019 NAPA AUTO PARTS BALANCER PULLER/JOINT BALL SEPARATOR 701-9200-600.305 .000 39.57 



cD
 s 

o 
r!, rn m

 <
r ri 

o1 ..o.n 6r a 
o 

o 
cl 

@
 N

 A
6^66'r. 

o 
.n c) rrr @

 m
 @

 .o o 
F

 
!^ @

 !.r lrl
a nc 

atr,t .1 4.1 noq q.!q.!\ 
nqccq 

q\qc\ 
q '/l o)a q49dlq 

o! nl .'!ntqg
o 

!^o 
t 

@
 (n(n 

o.!.{ 
st sl r. 

(h st <
l .n ra.n 

rn F
 

m
rnglrner.{ 

!6.{ 
(n m

..r 
oF

. 
om

m
F

- 
6or.{

<
f !^ ro F

- @
 c,t d 

rn (n rt 
.\r \o @

 ch <
t 6 

L.r !n.,!.^ 
!i 

.n (n (l, N
 N

 
.n .'l <

l sl <
l <

t <
l <

l 
'/1

.\r .\r .! 
.\r { 

N
 

-r o.g---
6.r

ooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooQ
oaee,eaq)e)ee,

o666ooooooooooooooooooooooooooqQ
eeE

)E
'€,e9e9

qqqcqcqqqqqqqqqqqqqqqccqgccqqqqqqqqqqccc9
\o \o !n \o lo \o !0 0 

0 
(o @

 o 
ra o 

!a rn o 
o 

o 
o 

o 
o 

lo lo o 
r 

o 
o 

iD
 o 

\o !^ o 
ro o 

lo o 
o 

lo (o o
!n rn .i 

r/t !n rn !n !n .n !n rn r,r o 
rn o 

o 
o 

o 
o 

o 
rn o 

1/} rn !n u) r,1 o.n 
!n rn rrl rn ur (n .^ 

rn

^! ^l q..t.!.!.! 
n.!.!n.!.i!.1 

.i!.!99aa.:n..!n.!.'!.!.!..,1 
..! ry dl .!.! 

n.'!.! 
^l .!.! 

n!
ooooooooooooooooooooooooooooa9qeQ

9oooooQ
Q

6 6 =
 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 o o o o o O

 o o o o o o o Q
 Q

 q e e e Q
 Q

 o o o o O
 q 

<
)

66(.,(.l!o!oG
ro(oro(oio\o(o(o!o\o(o!o@

\o(o\D
\o\1,ioto(oro@

to\o(D
\E

ro\oro(o(o\oro
oooooooo6o6ooooooooooooooooo9qeeQ

Q
oooooo9

oooo66-666666666000000000000000000000000()
- 

..J .\J N
 N

 N
.r..r 

.!.!..r.1 
.! 

r\l N
.! 

.\r N
.!.{ 

.{ 
.{ 

.! 
.',1 .! 

N
 N

 c{ .!
ot .l1 ('r 01 0tor 

o 
dtdl 

ool 
(lr or crl or <

h ot or or qr 6r <
h or o\ ororooror6 

ch dr ol 0l o\ ot ot ol ot ol 
ot

et 
.r 

.r 
r.l 

!-t 
!-{ 

-l 
t-t 

!_{ i 
r-t 

r.l 
.l 

i 
!'{ 

rl 
.r 

!'l 
!'{ 

r'r 
il

ooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo
N

 
n 

F
 

r. 
F

. F
. F

. F
.N

 
tr 

t'\ 
l.\ 

N
 

F
. l'\ 

N
 

r\ 
i\ 

i\ 
rr 

F
- F

\ N
 

F
\ l'\ 

F
\ r\ 

F
\ F

F
. 

l-- l'\ 
l'\ 

l'\ 
F

\ l'\ 
N

 
l'\ 

F
. F

 
ar

sgF
.

E
t i 

r 
q I . 

;g' 
-i

i; i-5u*rH
i? E

x=
=

 .c.=
4

-E
 tIE

=
3a =

$ E
 E

 
sE

3 ;_. : B
 *frr =

i

E
eIE

=
E

E
E

E
i=

iE
E

eE
E

E
E

E
E

E
E

aE
E

E
E

E
E

iE
E

E
g;E

E
E

E
E

:sE
;*E

raS
H

i:

ddddddddiddddiddddd
F

F
F

F
F

F
F

F
F

F
F

F
d. G

. d. t 
d. t G

 d. n n n J.E
tiE

E
 

E
 E

 E
 Q

gaaaaaeeaaaaaeea 
a e ; ;

o- d d d 6- o- o- o- o- 6- o- o- o- o- o- o- 
|: i 

tr tr tr tr tr tr tr tr tr tr F
 F

 tr tr tr F
 tr tr tr

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

666E
s:???????????????????

iiiiE
{{{rretii4E

=
=

=
=

eeddE
E

#E
#pE

E
d#E

dE
E

E
E

E
,51222rr22=

r112=
ii.1"1"=

 
E

 6b bbbbbbb bbb -o-ob5 5 bb

$$i$S
$ss$$}$$$$i$$$$}H

$$$s$$$$$s$$i$i$s$}

z z z 2 z z z z z z z z z zz 
z z z 2 2 z z z z z z z z z z zz 

z z z 2 2 z z z z

O
 G

 O
 O

 O
 O

 O
 o o o ci o (, o o (J (, o (9 o (, (9 (, (, (, (, (, (9 (, (, (, (9 (, (9 (9 (9 (9 (9 (, (, (9

t 
G

 
d 

G
 

d, d, 
d, d, d 

d 
d 

G
 

d, c, 
d. d, d 

G
 

c 
c 

d, 
t 

n 
d, 

G
 

d 
d 

<
 

d 
E

 
G

 
d 

d 
c 

c 
4 

c 
d 

d 
d 

G
oooo6O

O
O

O
O

ooooooooooooooooooopQ
Q

ga99p9999
E

E
E

F
F

=
F

E
l:F

F
F

F
F

F
F

F
F

F
F

F
F

F
F

F
F

F
F

F
F

F
F

F
F

F
F

F
F

F
F

F
'6 

6 
6 

6 
t\ 

,r\ '.^ 
tr1 ,,^ .t1 v| 

v) 
'a 

lh 
t^ 

.^ 
t^ 

\^ 
t^ 

t^ 
\h 

v\ 
t^ 

t^ 
i^ 

i^ 
6 

a 
v\ 

a 
.h t t 

L^ a 
.h u\ 

t/1
uJ !! 

r!'r 
u 

u 
u 

u 
uJ u 

d 
u.i ri 

ui 
uJ sJ

- -22 
z zzz 

zz 
zzzzzzzz 

zzzz 
zzzzzzzzzz2 

z z z z z z z z

rlE
I

"l;ldl

cn E
l

F
{l

N
I

N
I

fldi 
I

F
{l

R
3l

\- 
D

l

$E
l

$E
l

aE
l

9l3l&
. 

I

olr!l
rr.r 

I
t'r-l
9=

l
zsl
Y

gl
eE

l
62 

I

oP
 

I

=
 E

 E
I

=
.1E

I
<

l

E
I

June 3, 2019 C
ouncil Packet

103

US BANK INVOICE FOR CALCARD CHARGES: 3/23/19-4/22/19 
TRANSACTION 

EMPLOYEE NAM E DATE VENDOR NAME DESCRIPTION OF PURCHAS E ACCOUNT NU MBER AMOUNT 

NESTOR GALVAN 4/16/2019 NAPA AUTO PARTS OIl/AIR FILTER, MOTOR Oil-UNIT "231 701-9200-600.2 S6.000 40.49 

NESTOR GALVAN 3/2S/2019 NAPA AUTO PARTS PURCHASE FUEl/OIL FILTERS-UNIT 391 701-9200-600.2S6.000 55 .28 

NESTOR GALVAN 3/21/2019 NAPA AUTO PARTS AUTO TECH CLASS 701-9200-610 . 91S .000 60.00 

NESTOR GALVAN 4/1S/2019 NAPA AUTO PARTS OIL PAN/OIL FILTER/MOTOR OIL-UNIT "719 701-9200-600 .2S6.000 74 .36 

NESTOR GALVAN 4/1/2019 NAPA AUTO PARTS SPARK PLUG BOOT-UNIT 175 701-9200-600.256.000 86.3S 

NESTOR GALVAN 4/3/2019 NAPA AUTO PARTS MOTOR OIL,OIL/AIR FILTER-UNIT "227 701-9200-600 .256.000 93 .13 

NESTOR GALVAN 4/4/2019 NAPA AUTO PARTS SPARK PLUG WIRE KIT-UNIT 224 701-9200-600 .256.000 113.S4 

NESTOR GALVAN 4/4/2019 NAPA AUTO PARTS GRAYPMED TOOL STORAGE TRAY 701-9200-600 .250.000 130.15 

NESTOR GALVAN 4/9/2019 NAPA AUTO PARTS BLADES FOR X-MARK MOWERS 701-9200-600 .250.000 132.12 

NESTOR GALVAN 4/2/2019 NAPA AUTO PARTS BATTERY - UNIT "2600 701-9200-600 .256.000 172.88 

NESTOR GALVAN 3/21/2019 NAPA AUTO PARTS ALTERNATOR-UNIT 2600 701-9200-600 .256 .000 224 .08 

NESTOR GALVAN 3/26/2019 NAPA AUTO PARTS BLADES-UNIT UNIT "3205,3204,3206 701-9200-600 .250 .000 264 .25 

NESTOR GALVAN 3/28/2019 NAPA AUTO PARTS THREAD REPAIR KIT 701-9200-600.305 .000 287 .09 

NESTOR GALVAN 4/8/2019 NAPA AUTO PARTS HARDWARE KIT FOR EXMARK WHEELS 701-9200-600.250 .000 299 .26 

NESTOR GALVAN 4/18/2019 NAPA AUTO PARTS GREASE GUN 701-9200-600.305.000 444 .73 

NESTOR GALVAN 4/11/2019 NAPA AUTO PARTS LEAK LOCATOR,LABSCOPE,HVY DUTY 701-9200-600.305.000 8,284 .19 

NESTOR GALVAN 3/26/2019 ARMANDOS SMOG SMOG UNIT "915 701-9200-600.400.000 55 .00 

NESTOR GALVAN 3/26/2019 ARMANDOS SMOG SMOG UNIT #313 701-9200-600.400.000 55 .00 

NESTOR GALVAN 3/26/2019 ARMANDOS SMOG SMOG UNIT "503 701-9200-600.400.000 55 .00 

NESTOR GALVAN 3/26/2019 ARMANDOS SMOG SMOG UNIT "502 701-9200-600.400.000 55 .00 

NESTOR GALVAN 3/14/2019 TIFCO INDUSTRIES 4 BOXES FLAT HEAD MACHINE SCREWS 701-9200-600 .250.000 117.66 

NESTOR GALVAN 3/18/2019 TIFCO INDUSTRIES RESP IRATOR FILTERS, DIS COVERALLS,GLOVES 701-9200-600.2S0.000 1,033 .72 

NESTOR GALVAN 4/2/2019 O'REILLY AUTO SUPPLY BATTERY RETURN-UNIT #2110 701-9200-600.256.000 (133 .02) 

NESTOR GALVAN 4/15/2019 O'REI LLY AUTO SUPPLY CORE RETURN 701-9200-600.256.000 (65 .09) 

NESTOR GALVAN 3/2S/2019 O'REILLY AUTO SUPPLY CAMSHAFT SENSOR-RETURN 701-9200-600.250.000 (2S .70) 

NESTOR GALVAN 3/27/2019 O'REILLY AUTO SUPPLY COMPRESSOR RETURN 701-9200-600 .305.000 (21.68) 

NESTOR GALVAN 3/25/2019 O'REILLY AUTO SUPPLY ORIFICE TUBE-UNIT 175 701-9200-600. 2S0 .000 1.57 

NESTOR GALVAN 4/11/2019 O'REILLY AUTO SUPPLY FIREPOWER LIG HTER 701-9200-600 .250 .000 5.96 

NESTOR GALVAN 4/8/2019 O'REILLY AUTO SUPPLY AIR FILTER-UNIT "224 701-9200-600.256 .000 l1.4S 

NESTOR GALVAN 3/27/2019 O'REILLY AUTO SUPPLY PURCHASE GORILLA GLUE 701-9200-600.250 .000 13 .00 

NESTOR GALVAN 3/28/2019 O'REILLY AUTO SUPPLY FUel CAP - UNIT "804 701-9200-600.256 .000 13.5S 

NESTOR GALVAN 3/27/2019 O'REILLY AUTO SUPPLY TOOL SPRING COMPRESSOR 701-9200-600.30S.000 21 .68 

NESTOR GALVAN 3/29/2019 O'REILLY AUTO SUPPLY TIRE FOAM 701-9200-600.250 .000 30 .33 

NESTOR GALVAN 4/8/2019 O'REILLY AUTO SUPPLY AD ACTUATOR-UNIT 224 701-9200-600.2S6.000 37.28 

NESTOR GALVAN 3/2S/2019 O'REILLY AUTO SUPPLY PURCHASE PAG REFRIGERANT OIL 701-9200-600.250 .000 40.96 

NESTOR GALVAN 4/1/2019 O'RE ILLY AUTO SUPPLY SPARK PLUGS-UNIT "175 701-9200-600.256.000 43 .30 

NESTOR GALVAN 4/11/2019 O'REILLY AUTO SUPPLY WATHER STIPING 701-9200-600.2S0.000 43 .37 

NESTOR GALVAN 4/16/2019 O'RE ILLY AUTO SUPPLY NITR ILE GLOVES 701-9200-600.250.000 47.15 

NESTOR GALVAN 3/27/2019 O'RE ILLY AUTO SUPPLY PURCHASE ANCHOR POINT-UNIT 722 701-9200-600 .256.000 48.78 

NESTOR GALVAN 4/3/2019 O'REILLY AUTO SUPPLY OIl/AIR FILTER, WIPER BLADES-UNIT #227 701-9200-600.256 .000 49.61 

NESTOR GALVAN 4/11/2019 O'REILLY AUTO SUPPLY FUEL MIX FOR 2CYCLE 701-9200-600.250 .000 52.05 



rn..r 
(o.\r 

N
 vr o 

@
 <

) cn 6 
r/'r .r 

a 
co c) o 

o 
o 

o 
o 

o 
o 

o 
(o dr .n !/r a 

6 
F

6'.\r 
cr (o .r 

<
t d) m

 or o
n,4 q q q 4 n nl ..! 'J_r ut .t qoqIcqqqq 

qq.t 
no9.,!n 

gq 
cn\ 

nn.!u) 
otn 

09 Iq
.noom

rn<
<

to\D
(odr(ooaF

.c,.nlo\or'\oooo!-{N
.rrooF

-!-rorn.rtm
.l!^m

rr<
lm

ulF
-lrr.nm

+
<

l(or{l'\C
tt.l\O

(O
@

N
.n<

lslO
.{!n.rrrn.n@

loF
-N

!'r!'rN
<

lr{rnl'\t!l'\
i 

!i 
!-{ N

 
\t:+

- 
.! 

<
l 

.rr rn .n 
<

 
.{ 

m
 

o- tr 
t-r t-{.n 

\t 
6---
a{

O
 

O
 

O
 

O
 

O
 

O
 

O
 

O
 

O
 

O
 

O
 

O
 

O
 

O
 

O
 

O
 

O
 

O
 

O
 

O
 

O
 

o 
O

 
O

 
O

 
O

 
O

 
O

 
O

 
O

 
e) N

 
i\ 

F
 

F
\ l'\ 

O
 

F
\ O

 
O

 
O

6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 o 6 6 6 6 6 o o o o o o o o o o o 
E

) c! ry q! .'r ..r o'''r 
o Q

 Q
aqqqqqqqqqqeqqqqqqqqcqqqqcqcqscqcceqeqqqq
\o !^ u) \o !o @

 !o o 
(o o 

!o (0 !o \o @
 <

) o 
o 

o 
o 

o 
o 

o 
o 

o 
r^ o 

\o (n (/1 o 
o 

o 
o 

Q
 Q

 o 
o 

o 
Q

 o
!n o 

o 
!n r. 

!n rr] 6 
!,) !^ 6 

1/1 !n r^ (^ 6 
c) 6 

6 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

rr) o 
rJi !n !-r c, In sl t 

<
l <

l sl la st <
l o 

ln
.!--n.!nni.!.!n^t 

^! ^t .!9a99aalq.'1 
.1 .1 .l 

^l o).1 6! 4 
U

) 'r') u) 'J).'! n '4 a.!
o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o 

q) \o @
 (o Lo Lo o 

ro (o o o
6 6 6 6 - 

6 o c| 6 6 6 cl 6 o o o o o o o o o o o o c) c) c) .{ O
 Q

 14 A
'4r rn r^ c, Ln 6 c, c,

G
!oLl,G

i-o\-oroF
.(o\D

(o\o\oro@
ro\oro(o(olo(D

\D
(olororo(o\o\o\o(o\9(9(olololotorolo

JaJJA
JadJJaA

JA
ddddJ6dddddddddddddddadeaee

6 
6 

6 
6 

6 
6 

6 
6 

6 
6 

6 
6 

6 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

c) o 
o 

o 
() O

 O
 O

 O
 O

 O
 O

 O
- 

^ 
- 

N
 - 

- 
- 

N
 N

 ..l ^ 
N

 ..r N
 N

 ..r ..r.{.!.\ 
.! 

.! 
.! 

.\t .l 
.! 

.n .n .n .n .n m
 m

 m
 rn m

.rr
o\ o 

ol o\ or o! ch or o\ oro\o)o 
oo6t 

(h 6t d1 d1 0r o'\ or o'\ or o'\ ct'l ol o\ or sl st sl <
l st <

l <
l st <

t st 
<

t
.l 

.r 
ri 

r'r .r 
t'{ rn .n in ra (n r^ r/.l .,1 l^ !n rn

o 
o 

o 
o 

<
: o 

o 
o 

o 
o 

o 
o 

o 
o 

o 
o 

o 
o 

o 
o 

o 
o 

o 
o 

o 
o 

o 
o 

o 
o 

Q
 c, q 

q 
o 

o 
o 

q 
Q

 Q
 Q

-F
.r.r.F

nF
-n-nF

-F
.F

.F
.F

.r.F
r.F

.F
.arr'\r'\F

N
F

-F
\F

.N
N

(o\o\ololO
\D

(D
(o\O

lO
@

r p 
" 

B
i E

 
*

=
 i 

H
 E

 
=

=
5 3 

2

l.s 
=

r=
,gE

a5eE
E

=
*E

 uE
.*2 

3i*

fu I ; fu ; l IE
 lE

iE
gE

 ; gggE
gl E

 E
 l la g lg g E

 E
 gE

 E
 E

 E
 E

 E

zzzzzzzzzzz
H

H
H

H
B

B
H

H
H

H
H

G
nG

,d,G
,G

,d.d,d,d,G
z zz 

zzzzz 
zzzzzzzz 

222 
z zz 

zz 
z zzz 

zz**X
 

* X
X

 *=
 

=
 X

 X
i >

 t - - =
 =

 =
 >

 - -: 
=

 =
:: - - t i -:::: 

t: t z =
 ? ? iieeieeei

666666666666666666666666666666i*E
E

H
E

E
E

E
E

E
E

 E
 E

 E
 E

 E
 E

 E
 E

 E
 E

 E
 E

 E
 E

 E
 E

 E
 E

 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 ! -i E
 ! E

 E
 -h E

 E
 ! !

hhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhE
hhhhhhE

hhhhE
h9S

gsssssS
S

9
z z z z z z z 2 z z z z z z z z z z z z2 

z z z z z z z z z z z z z zz 
z z z z 2

$$i$$$$$*$E
is$fi$$E

i$*[s$sE
$$$$s[$E

E
E

$s$$$

FzloEG
,

coElzFzloIIEIclozIFo-aIlrJ=zG
,

oozlrl

zo=;_k
c,F

cll

NN<
fI

olaY
!

N(nthlr,l
(9G

,

IIr]G
,

(JL'toE
l

9ozz@thf

=zoE
L

E

EB

- - -2222 
zzzzz 

0
rrroooo 

=
---- 

z
r-prrtrtrtr 

O
O

O
O

q 
=

:ttaaa\a222=
5=

5 
(J9999 

6-
{q{{qqqqg9H

dddd 
F

F
E

F
E

 E
E

 
F

 
F

sssss11sgggppippE
n*n-frE

833333fi65 trt
55555555R

P
P

f 
<

<
<

=
E

=
--E

E
F

F
T

T
T

E
;2 

F
F

 
?2?,,

a=
;=

r i r ; Z
IZ

I-E
 i E

srrrE
 B

s H
 gH

 gH
E

lZ
aaE

 E
E

B
v=

 E
 aE

s s s 5 5 5 5 5 ii?*=
H

 
H

 H
 3 3 3 3 3 3 =

 i i i i i E
 e * : : i i 3 =

 5 =
 3 i 

=

June 3, 2019 C
ouncil Packet

104

US BANK INVOICE FOR CALCARD CHARGES: 3/23/19-4/22/19 
TRANSACTION 

EMPLOYEE NAM E DATE VENDOR NAME DESCRIPTION OF PURCHASE ACCOUNT NUMBER AMOUNT 

NESTOR GALVAN 4/1/2019 O'REILLY AUTO SUPPLY CAM SYNCHRONIZER-UNIT 291 701-9200-600.256 .000 53.15 

NESTOR GALVAN 4/1/2019 O'REILLY AUTO SUPPLY A/ C VALVE CORE SET 701-9200-600.305.000 70 .51 

NESTOR GALVAN 3/22/2019 O'REILLY AUTO SUPPLY PURCHASE EXHAUST FLUID 701-9200-600.305 .000 130 .06 

NESTOR GALVAN 4/2/2019 O'REILLY AUTO SUPPLY BATTERY-UNIT 2110 701-9200-600.256.000 133.02 

NESTOR GALVAN 4/2/2019 O'REILLY AUTO SUPPLY PURCHASE BATTERY-UNI Tn2110 701-9200-600.256.000 133.02 

NESTOR GALVAN 4/11/2019 O'REILLY AUTO SUPPLY BATTERY-UNIT 1518 701-9200-600.256.000 244 .55 

NESTOR GALVAN 4/16/2019 O'RE ILLY AUTO SUPPLY BATTERY - UNIT #8653 701-9200-600.256.000 444 .10 

NESTOR GALVAN 3/26/2019 O'RE ILLY AUTO SUPPLY PURCHASE 9.2 BRAKE LATHE 701-9200-700.200.000 11,460.38 

NESTOR GALVAN 3/27/2019 NELSON'S POWER CENTER VALVE COVER, HEAD CYLINDERS-UNIT #3205 701-9200-600 .256 .000 16.20 

NESTOR GALVAN 4/11/2019 NELSON'S POWER CENTER 4 CASES OF STIHL MOTOMIX 701-9200-600 .250.000 276.59 

NESTOR GALVAN 3/26/2019 NELSON'S POWER CENTER VALVE COVER, HEAD GASKET-UNIT 3205 701-9200-600 .256.000 493 .58 

NESTOR GALVAN 3/21/2019 FIRE APPARATUS SOLUTIONS WIPER ARMS/BLADES-UNIT 8508 701-9200-600.256.000 216.25 

NESTOR GALVAN 4/4/2019 FIRE APPARATUS SOLUTIONS CABLE PUMP/LINK PUMP-UNIT 8508 701-9200-600.256.000 360 .61 

NESTOR GALVAN 4/1/2019 FIRE APPARATUS SOLUTIONS YELLOW FED ID TAG-UNIT 8508 701-9200-600.256.000 368 .80 

NESTOR GALVAN 3/25/2019 FIRE APPARATUS SOLUTIONS GASKET/PHEUMATIC SHIFT-UNIT 8508 701-9200-600.256.000 467 .68 

NESTOR GALVAN 4/2/2019 CAMACHO TIRES REPAIR FLAT TIRE-UNTI #1401 701-9200-600.400.000 20 .00 

NESTOR GALVAN 4/15/2019 CAMACHO TIRES REPAIR FLAT- UNIT #110 701-9200-600.400.000 35 .00 

NESTOR GALVAN 3/22/2019 CAMACHO TIRES INSTALL/BALANCE 2 NEW TIRES-UNIT 717 701-9200-600.400.000 46.00 

NESTOR GALVAN 3/21/2019 CAMACHO TIRES INSTALL/BALANCE 2 NEW TIRES-UNIT 1101 701-9200-600.400.000 46.00 

NESTOR GALVAN 3/25/2019 CAMACHO TIRES INSTALL/BALANCE 4 TIRES-UNIT #175 701-9200-600.400.000 107.00 

NESTOR GALVAN 3/22/2019 CAMACHO TIRES INSTALL NEW TIRE-UNIT 185 701-9200-600.400.000 310.00 

NESTOR GALVAN 3/27/2019 CAMACHO TIRES PURCHASE/INSTALL 4 NEW TIRES-UNIT #727 701-9200-600.400.000 1,050 .00 

NESTOR GALVAN 4/4/2019 LAWRENCE TRACTOR CO INC PURCHASE APRON CHAPS 701-9200-600 .300.000 130.20 

NESTOR GALVAN 4/4/2019 LAWRENCE TRACTOR CO INC PURCHASE CORDURA CHAPS 701-9200-600 .300.000 130.20 

NESTOR GALVAN 4/4/2019 LAWRENCE TRACTOR CO INC PURCHASE 2 PROTECTIVE HELMET 701-9200-600.250.000 151.86 

NESTOR GALVAN 3/26/2019 LAWRENCE TRACTOR CO INC PURCHASE 4 GAL TRU-FUEL 701-9200-600.305 .000 362.39 

NESTOR GALVAN 4/16/2019 LAWRENCE TRACTOR CO INC PURCHASE 4-1 GAL TRU FUEL 701-9200-600.250.000 461 .13 

NESTOR GALVAN 4/15/2019 FAST UNDERCAR DISC PAD SET-UNIT 719 701-9200-600.256.000 76.05 

NESTOR GALVAN 4/3/2019 MOBILE AIR CONDITIONING SOCIETY SECTION 609 CERTIFICATION ONLINE EXAM 701-9200-610 .915 .000 20.00 

NESTOR GALVAN 4/10/2019 SNAP-ON INDUSTRIAL BATTERY SYSTEM TESTER 701-9200-600 .305 .000 2,817 .08 

NICOLETTE ANDERSEN 3/27/2019 AMAZON COSTUME CREDIT FOR GG 605-4300-600.250.000 111.17) 

NICOLETTE ANDERSEN 3/27/2019 AMAZON GG COSTUME CREDIT 605-4300-656 .540.027 120.79) 

NICOLETTE ANDERSEN 3/28/2019 SAVEMART GG SNACK BAR SUPPLIES 605-4300-656 .540.027 45 .12 

NICOLETTE ANDERSE N 3/29/2019 SAVEMART GG SNACK BAR SUPPLIES 605-4300-656 .540.027 15.10 

NICOLETTE ANDERSEN 3/30/2019 WALMART GG SNACK BAR & PROPS 605-4300-656 .540.027 53 .26 

NICOLETTE ANDERSEN 3/29/2019 THE HOME DEPOT GG BATTERIES FOR M ICS 605-4300-656.540.027 71.53 

NICOLETTE ANDERSEN 4/2/2019 GUITAR CENTER SPEAKER REPLACEMENT FOR SAC 605-4300-600 .250.000 185 .94 

NICOLETTE ANDERSE N 4/4/2019 THE HOME DEPOT GG BLACK PAINT FOR STAGE 605-4300-656.540.027 73 .13 

NICOLETTE ANDERSE N 4/9/2019 WALMART WUD FOLDERS FOR REHEARSAL 605-4300-656.540.030 5.83 

NICOLETTE ANDERSE N 4/9/2019 AMAZON AMAZON PRIME MEMBERSHIP 605-4300-600.400.000 14.09 

NICOLETTE ANDERSEN 4/10/2019 WALMART GARBAGE BAGS 605-4300-600 .250.000 13.80 



osl 
o 

ora 
r/! !,l ^r6 

roo 
ln \o <

r ot \o sl .n <
t !^ l^rn 

01 m
 r-r \o @

6r.n 
N

(o 
oorN

.{(o 
o 

F
r o\trn

!'! a q a n n n e .: .t o) o: 4 I 
\ 

e q 
oq ut 4 .l q q .! q n 4 a q a \ 

q c a I 
\ 

q q 
oq a 

..1
d) rn o 

or .n r,r 6 
l-- <

f .{ 
r\r r'\ !/r (o ro .\| f\ 

N
 r'\ .r1 N

 a{ F
\ s.n.r 

oo!-r 
l^\o 

c) rn <
t st(D

 
6o 

\l 
r- 

sl
!n rn L,] .r 

.-r tr 
F

\ t 
\o 6(., 

o 
F

. a\ m
 ?,,r F

 
\t 

i 
fn r-i.r 

N
rn 

ri.n 
N

 rn t-r !-l (o rl 
9N

 
F

. r/l i.lm
 

i\ 
r\F

rn ..l 
r-{ (o 

N
 

N
 

rY
' .n d 

ut 
-l 

,t1 .1

N
 

r.\ N
 

O
 

O
 

O
 

O
 

O
 

O
 

O
 

O
 

O
 

O
 

.\ 
F

\ a\ 
F

\ N
 

r.\ O
 

O
 

O
 

<
) <

) <
) r'\ 

O
 

O
 

O
 

O
 

O
 

O
 

O
 

O
 

O
 

O
 

O
 

<
) O

 
O

 
c)

.! .! .\ o o o o o o o o o o .{ .\ 
.\r .r .{ .\r (, o o o 

<
) o .! o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o

cccqqcqqqqqqqcccqccg9eqqcqqqcqqcqcqqqqcqq
o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o tn 0 0 rn ln
+

{+
6|^!n!n!nra!n.a1^!^st<

l<
t<

t<
<

trjtlnrn!nr^!ost!al^L'rutrn<
).{r-r..rN

..r.{!n!.r-.
,1 "1 { 

i.t.! 
^t.!.:.! 

n..i.!,.4 
4 4,r-r ',!,./t ^t.!.:.!n.! 

utnn..j 
^! .! 

o) ol ao!q 
ol ol .!q 

o)
(o \o \o o o o o o o o o o o (o ro \o ro \o (o o o o o o o \o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o
ul ./,t !n () O

 O
 O

 O
 O

 O
 O

 O
 O

 1,r !/) lrl rn ul rn Q
 O

 O
 O

 O
 O

 rr, O
 O

 O
 O

 O
.r 

t"r H
 O

 O
 

O
(o\o!!,\o@

(.,(.lLo(.lroro{o\D
\oro(o(o@

\o'o(ot5roto(oto\o\E
toto\o\o(o(o(olo(oto(o@

ro
o 

o 
o 

o 
o 

o 
o 

o 
o 

o 
o 

o 
o 

o 
o 

o 
o 

o 
o 

o 
o 

a 
o 

o 
o 

o 
o 

o 
o 

o 
o 

o 
o 

o 
o 

q 
6 

e, (n 6 
ln

6 
6 

6 
6 

6 
o 

O
 o 

o 
o 

o 
o 

o 
o 

o 
o 

o 
o 

o 
o 

o 
o 

o 
o 

o 
o 

o 
o 

o 
o 

o 
o 

o 
o 

o 
o 

..l o 
l"{ .{ 

.l
^l .{ 

N
 .\l N

 
arr a\l a! a\r rY

l m
 m

 
av.| rn an a! a\l c{ a{ r\l a\ m

 a! a{ r\ 
.! 

(O
 l'\ 

rn rn !n .n 
ral

<
t sl <

t <
l l"1 .1 .! 

.\r ..,J .r,t f{ 
.r 

.\r <
l <

t n 
{ 

sl \l 
\l 

<
t <

l <
l \t 

sl \t 
sl <

t <
t <

t -r ..r .{ 
.! 

.{ 
N

 .rl N
 

c\r c{ .\l
rn ra !n rn o 

6 
o 

o 
o 

o 
o 

O
 O

 !^ tn r^ !^ .^ !^ C
) o 

o 
o 

O
 O

 .n O
 O

 o 
o 

o 
o 

o 
o 

o 
o 

o 
o 

o 
q, e)

6 
d 

o 
o 

6 
6 

6 
6 

6 
6 

6 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

<
) o 

o
o(o@

@
 

t-{ ro (o @
 ro to ro ?,r 

.r 
\o !r.{

E

=
E

;.
\)2
E

 
T

 
E

U
E

 E
 

E
E

 
E

 
_E

U

€ =
 

aH
; 

I 
dr?-?, E

E
 ..3 E

E
f

E
lE

E
E

E
'E

E
E

aggggE
E

lE
E

' E
E

E
gE

E
E

l,=
E

=
*E

E

p3 
iz 

; 
gg

: 
6 

5d 
=

 
aa

3 E
 

i3 
h 

aa
; 

+
 

=
=

 
5h 

i<
- 

=
 

,.E
E

 
2<

 i--
E

nr*--,-55 gr 
xx 

zz

E
E

*;=
E

fi E
ps=

if :=
gE

re=
cg*s=

gE
=

s=
=

 =
*=

=
;c;E

E
E

F
F

F
F

F
F

F
F

F
F

F
F

F
F

F
F

F
3G

A
=

3=
=

tA
lA

rtA
A

=
tA

F
F

F
F

 
F

 
F

F
F

F
F

F
F

F
t':tF

t:
d 

e 
d, d, d, 

d, G
, G

 
d, 

d, c, 
d, c 

d, 
c, 

c, 
.z 

<
<

<

922r222222229 B
E

 E
 E

E
 3E

 E
3 B

3 E
B

 E
 E

 3 E
 o o <

 5 S
 =

 ? -2.??e
aa 

aA
 F

F
F

F
F

F
F

F
 

t 
zzz 

zzzzzzzzzzzzzz4(*666 
gH

-*H
p p p p ft * ft t ft t t 

fr ft 99 
og 

o9oQ
 

o 99 
oQ

 o 99 
9;;; 

E
 r- ' 

i! 
irJ i! i! i!

E
 E

 E
 E

 E
 E

 E
 E

 E
 E

 E
 E

 q E
 E

 E
 E

 E
 E

 * g g E
 * e E

 p * A
|Z

Z
S

 E
 * t E

 E
 E

 E
 E

qqIE
dddddddddH

U
B

H
H

H
H

H
B

H
H

B
H

H
H

H
H

iiigee66666
zzzz6-o-6-o-6-6-6-o-d-ddtd,d,d,d,e,d,d,c,dl.d,d,d,d,ctd,d,d,d,d.dd.dt

.n ch 6r <
h (h ch cn ch ch cD

 -(h 
ch 01 ch or (h or or or o 

or o\ ch^ 
^ 

or o\ oro 
('1 ql ^ 

^^dl 
or 01 ol or or

s333333333i8338533633333ii353533iiX
338338

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

T
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

**S
S

S
S

S
;!**S

S
S

S
S

S
+

 +
 +

 +
 ; ; ; - 

--' ;' <
- +

 +
 ; ; ; ; - - - }. }. ; ; 

d d i i i i. ;' --' { 
<

i q i} ; ;' ; ; ;

rlrlel"l r!lrol

=
l

zlf,lol
!l

chl
F

{l
l\rl
.\rl
slct]lF

{l

{=
l

sE
l

$E
l

aE
l

9lslo. 
I

olr!l
rrl
tu-l
9=

l
zsl
Y

2l
esl
62 

I

,zr9 
I

=
 E

E
I

rl

I

E
I

=
l

E
I

June 3, 2019 C
ouncil Packet

105

US BANK INVOICE FOR CALCARD CHARGES: 3/23/19-4/22/19 
TRANSACTION 

EMPLOYEE NAM E DATE VENDOR NAM E DESCRIPTION OF PURCHASE ACCOUNT NUMBER AMOUNT 

NICOLETIE ANDERSEN 4/12/2019 CALIFORNIA DRY CLEANERS DRYCLEANING GG COSTUMES 60S-4300-656.540.027 58 .50 

NICOLETIE ANDERSEN 4/12/2019 OFFICE DEPOT FEDEX SCRIPT RETURN 605-4300-656 .540.027 53.44 

NICOLETIE ANDERSEN 4/12/2019 PAYPAL HYPOTHEATRICAL5 DAKOTA SIMPSON VOCAL DIRECTION 605-4300-656.540.027 350.00 

NICOLETIE ANDERSEN 4/14/2019 DREAMHOST SAC WEBSITE HOSTING 605-4300-600.400.000 119.40 

POLICE DEPT NO 1 3/25/2019 WALMART TARP FOR K-9 KENNEL 100-2 200-600 .250.000 15.15 

POLICE DEPT NO 1 3/25/2019 WALMART TARP FOR K-9 KENNEL 100-2200-600 .250.000 15.15 

POLICE DEPT NO 1 3/25/2019 PET5MART DOGHOUSE 100-2200-600 .250.000 178.15 

POLICE DEPT NO 1 3/25/2019 TRACTOR SUPPLY KENNEL AND KE NNEL SHADE 100-2200-600 .250.000 647 .82 

POLICE DEPT NO 1 3/25/2019 TRACTOR SUPPLY CORRECT KENNEL AND SHADE 100-2 200-600. 250 .000 64 .78 

POLICE DEPT NO 1 3/25/2019 LOWE'S FLOOR TILE FOR K-9 KENNEL 100-2 200-600 .250 .000 182.26 

POLICE DEPT NO 2 4/4/2019 ELM AVE FEED K9 FOOD, BEN 100-2 200-600 .250.000 62.90 

POLICE DEPT NO 2 4/10/2019 PET SUPPLIES K9 FOOD, PASCO 100-2 200-600 .250.000 107.93 

POLICE DEPT NO 2 4/15/2019 PETSMART K9 FOOD, COLLAR ONYX 100-2200-600.250.000 75 .56 

RECREATION DEPARTMENT 3/22/2019 WALMART GG SNACK BAR SUPPLIES 605-4300-656.540.027 126.64 

RECREATION DEPARTMENT 3/24/2019 WALMART GG SNACK BAR SUPPLIES 605-4300-656.540.027 36.79 

RECREATION DEPARTMENT 3/23/2019 5AVEMART GG SNACK BAR SUPPLIES 605-4300-656 .540.027 12.36 

RECREATION DEPARTMENT 3/22/2019 THE HOME DEPOT GG SUPPLIES EXTENSION CORDS 605-4300-656.540.027 77 .94 

RECREATION DEPARTMENT 3/22/2019 THE HOME DEPOT GG SUPPLIES BULBS 605-4300-656.540.027 42 .83 

RECREATION DEPARTMENT 3/23/2019 RITE AID GG MICTAPE 605-4300-656.540.027 17.54 

RECREATION DEPARTMENT 3/26/2019 WALMART SR. CENTER SNACK BAR SUPPLIES 100-4200-600.250.000 33 .55 

RECREATION DEPARTMENT 3/29/2019 AMAZON FOOD THERMOMETER FOR SR . CENTER 100-4200-600.250.000 12.25 

RECREATION DEPARTMENT 3/29/2019 SMART AND FINAL COFFEE SUPPLIES FOR SR . CE NTE R 100-4200-600 .250.000 112.03 

RECREATION DEPARTMENT 3/30/2019 SMART AND FINAL POPCORN FOR SR . CENTER 100-4200-600.250.000 27.99 

RECREATION DEPARTMENT 3/30/2019 AMAZON VOLLEYBALL NET FOR SR. CENTER 100-4200-600 .250.000 54 .23 

RECREATION DEPARTMENT 4/3/2019 WALMART MISe. SUPPLIES 100-4200-600.250.000 15.01 

RECREATION DEPARTMENT 4/6/2019 HOME DEPOT PAINT 605-4300-656.540.027 31.16 

RECREATION DEPARTMENT 4/16/2019 SMART AND FINAL SR. CENTER SNACK BAR SUPPLIES 100-4200-600.250.000 220.58 

RECREATION DEPARTMENT 4/17/2019 WALMART SR. CENTER SNACK BAR SUPPLIES 100-4200-600 .250.000 30.42 

RECREATION DEPARTMENT 4/18/2019 AMAZON POPCORN BAGS 100-4200-600 .250.000 11.95 

RECREATION DEPARTMENT 4/19/2019 WALMART ICE CREAM FOR SR . CE NTER 100-4200-600.250.000 15.42 

REYNA RIVERA 3/22/2019 WALMART.COM DOCUMENT SCANNER REPLACEMENT PARTS 100-1600-600 .250.000 66.76 

REYNA RIVERA 3/25/2019 IIMC-INTL INSTITUE OF MUNI CLERK ANNUAL MEMBERSHIP 100-1700-610.900.000 210 .00 

REYNA RIVERA 4/1/2019 SALS MEXICAN RESTAURANT COUNCIL MEETING SUPPLIES 100-1100-610.920.000 45 .09 

RICHARD FIGUEROA 4/9/2019 HOLIDAY INN TASER INST. COURSE-DET FIGUEROA 100-2100-610.910.000 374.42 

RICHARD FIGUEROA 4/9/2019 HOLIDAY INN TASER INST. CO URSE-FlO PEARCE 100-2100-610.910.000 374.42 

RICHARD FIGUEROA 4/22/2019 HOLIDAY INN SOCIAL MEDIA INVEST. 100-2100-610.920.000 158.76 

ROBERT PETERSEN 3/23/2019 ENDEAVOR BUSINESS MEDIA FIRE HOUSE CONFERENCE 100-2525-610.915 .000 519.00 

ROBERT PETERSEN 3/24/2019 SAVE N GO SELMA FUEL FOR TRAVEL 100-2500-610.920 .000 30 .01 

ROBERT PETERSEN 3/26/2019 ELIDE FIRE USA EXTINGUISHERS 100-25 25-600 .250 .000 174.80 

ROBERT PETERSE N 3/28/2019 FIGUEROA HOTEL LOS ANGELES HOTEL FOR CONFERENCE 100-2525-600 .915 .000 1,377.44 

ROBERT PETERSEN 3/28/2019 FIGUEROA HOTEL LOS ANGELES HOTEL FOR CO NFERENCE 100-25 25-600 .915 .000 1,174.25 



(o C
)N

 
m

.i 
N

.ir{ 
m

r\ 
C

D
.{o'tO

601 
01 ro o 

C
h o 

o 
o 

(rr <
l or o! c) .{ 

rl 
9Q

Q
N

ll 
o\eO

 
O

O
!q

q q.1 .'t 9 n ot f't eoq q oc .''! a\ 
qe 

nq'.,)q 
qa.1 

ndl 4oqqc 
eocq,J! qr: 

qc 
A

!a 
o)

.1 
rn !l 

tl 
ta@

6(h 
O

m
 

r.r !!, (, 
ch N

N
.n 

C
h ah.t 

$ 
F

\.n1^<
tq.n\9 

Iq}lrl@
@

I(oO
tO

vrN
!"rO

o 
o 

- 
- 

a 
F

{ N
 

N
 

a{ $ 
(.| N

 
F

- € 
O

 
F

{ i 
<

l 
\O

 r.o (n th 
.n 

<
h .n (h F

\ 01 o\ l'- 
(o l'. 

F
 

<
t m

.n 
o

a@
 

N
N

 
<

l 
6/r^1F

.F
 

.! 
m

E
s.E

sstg.i*E
e,lirre,;g-E

=
-E

gE
p.

rE
g iggE

E
iE

IgggE
gE

giIiE
iE

E
lE

E
galE

gE
E

agE
 

E

o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o I 
Q

 Q
 q) o o o o o €r o

6 6 6 o o o o o o o o 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o <
) o

66666666665-oooooooo66o66666O
oooooooooooo

-; 
-; 

-- 
-o- 

o6d 
da 

dd 
6d 

dd66 
6d 

dcjoo 
ci {',4,4 

{i dci 
cj; 

cjcj 
9,,i

!n.{!nrn!nrnlrlrn1,}Ln./)t,,!nrnLrlr,1!ntn!n!nt^|nrnrnlrlrnrtlrn!noooor..lr^!aci!nt/lQ
!{

^t e - 
- 

-- 
-^!.t 

^!.t.!.!.! 
^! r! 6!^!.!.!.!.!.!n 

c! .! 6!.!.!.'! 
F

_l r'l rr) o) 6!.! 
dl .r ^!1q

o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o Q
 I 

E
) E

, Q
, Q

, €, o o o o o o o o
6 =

 6 6 6 6 5 6 6 6 o o o o o 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 O
 O

 O
 O

 o o o o o o o .r o a Q
 o o Q

'-r
ro (o 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 

(o (o \o (o \D
 i6 tE

 16 \b G
 t! (o \D

 !o \o \O
 (o (o Lo \D

 ro \o (o (o (o (o (o @
 ro ro \o

o r^ o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o 6 o o o o o o o o Q
 a I 

e I 
Q

 I 
o o o o o 

q) o
6 ^i 6 5 6 6 5 6 6 - 

6 o o o o o 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 O
 6 o Q

 o o Q
 Q

 q o o o o o cl o
(^ l^ .n m

 - 
- 

- 
m

 +
 .! ln .6 - 

.o - 
.n - 

- 
- 

- 
- 

<
 a m

 +
 .n m

 I 
sr m

 m
 m

 O
 {l .n q <

r st $ q .!
d ; d,{ . 

d d, .i 6 i 
3 n J "i d .i .i d dl .l o o d .i d 6 d o d d e e, e d d d d d d 4 a

6 
or 6 o o 6 o o =

 o 6 o o o o o o =
 o o 6 =

 =
 o a O

 o - 
.r o o o o o o .r .'r !"r F

r o 
c,

=
 ij 

=
 X

 X
 =

 X
t.\lt 

=
 r- - 

F
- .{ F

 r- N
 r. r- i 

..r c.r F
...r.r.r..l 

r'r t'r r{ N
 N

.{.\ 
F

r rr

dztr 
o 

?f
$ 

5 
99

E
 

cr c-r c.r o I 
oo!!!!

E
E

v.zpH
E

".E
E

aE
E

E
p.E

au.E
 

e 
=

zzz' 
P

8668
.^-3=

3E
3=

3338B
3=

=
3=

=
83 

=
 

Y
Z

Z
Y

; =
=

;333
>

_6222222?222222222?2e 
r 

6566:
t.o-- 

sl----i; 
addd(E

=
i=

 
!lI>

 
-.1

=
=

P
P

P
?3?k??3H

???Y
33??gppP

P
kssiiiE

:B
E

E
E

;8S
=

1222222222222222222?6 
3B

E
 3=

 =
=

Y
z2: 0E

 =
 : H

I=
 3

=
*A

gB
 8 8 I I I E

 I I 8 8 E
 I q B

 I q E
 =

 : : : E
 E

 E
 s E

 E
 3 # =

 : a""az
=

Y
u 

lrJ 
uJ z 

(J (J 
LJ Lr (J o 

O
 

<
 

<
 

<
 

<
E

JF
F

F
F

dI!
<

 
a, 

Z
 

Z
 

Z
 

Z
 

z 
2 

Z
 

Z
 

Z
 

Z
 

z 
z 

2 
Z

 
Z

 
Z

 
Z

 
Z

 
2 

<
 

T
 

T
 

I 
I 

(,, ; 
i 

I 
I 

J 
I 

(a 6- o- 6- i, 
i, 

r 
(J

E
$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$****$$+

sss*E
$$$$$*

zz 
z

=
-a=

=
=

=
) 

J)J4.
trrr!@

l

=
 

- 
d. 

d 
d 

G
 

d 
d, 

oE
 d, 

c. 
d 

&
, 

d. 
cz 

d, 
d, 

d, 
d, 

d, 
d, 

d, 
G

, 
d, 

d, 
d 

d, 
d 

G
 

d 
G

 
G

 
d 

d 
G

 
G

 
4 

4 
q 

--a ^
i! 

i 
A

 
G

 
e. 

t 
d, 

c, 
G

 
t 

G
 

G
, 

E
 

d, 
d, 

d, 
c 

d, 
d 

G
, 

d, 
d, 

d, 
d, 

d, 
d 

G
 

n 
d 

d 
G

 
&

 
G

 
d 

d, 
d, 

c 
c, 

G
 

<
 

=
4q44G

_-
d.d.!Ju 

trr 
nJ 

lrJ 
!, 

rl 
! 

'! 
>

>
u s 2 2 z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z 2 2 z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z 1 1 1 ii'd.
ooiiiiiriiitrr-rrrrrr:E

rrrr-rrrrr=
rrr-rrsr

t 
- 

6 
6 

6.667- 
'r\ 

a 
tr\ t^ 

ul 
t^ 

t/'' tt 
a 

u\ ul 
u1 

tlt^ 
t^ 

t^ 
t^ 

\r1 vt 
t^ 

\r\ a 
v\t 

t

FzloEEl!.o= fzFzfoU(JTIJc,lo.o29FAG
,

(JU
J

oU
J

=zc,oz

zoE;-k
zt)
EF

lrl=zB
J

oILE

oF
l

NNt
I

o)tY
t

N(Y
t

tllr,l
(,0cIUooc(JIJd,ol!Ioz2@lif

June 3, 2019 C
ouncil Packet

106

US BANK INVOICE FOR CAlCARD CHARGES: 3/23/19-4/22/19 
TRANSACTION 

EMPLOYEE NAM E DATE VENDOR NAM E DESCRIPTION OF PURCHAS E ACCOUNT NUMBER AMOUNT 

ROBERT PETERSEN 3/29/2019 ALL VALLEY PRINTING DEPARTMENT FLAGS 100-2500-600 .250.000 402 .06 

ROBERT PETERSEN 4/13/2019 DIGITAL COMBUSION SIMULATION TRAIN ING PROGRAM 295-25 25-610.915 .000 895 .00 

SHANE FERRELL 4/12/2019 NELSON'S ACE HARDWARE CLAMPS - PARKS 100-5300-600.250.000 4.32 

SHANE FERRELL 4/1/2019 NELSON'S ACE HARDWARE DOOR STOP - CH 702-9300-600.250.000 4.33 

SHANE FERRELL 4/12/2019 NELSON'S ACE HARDWARE 2" COUPLER, CUT KEY-UNIT 1006 701-9200-600.250.000 5.41 

SHANE FERRELL 4/1/2019 NELSON'S ACE HARDWARE PAINT BRUSHES-SHAFER PARK 100-5300-600.250.000 6.12 

SHANE FERRELL 4/12/2019 NELSON'S ACE HARDWARE ADAPTER SOCKET, HARDWARE-CITY YARD 702-9300-600.250.000 8.93 

SHANE FERRELL 4/12/2019 NELSON'S ACE HARDWARE WIRE CONNECTION-FIRE DEPT (A STREET) 702-9300-600.250 .000 9.32 

SHANE FERRELL 4/1/2019 NELSON'S ACE HARDWARE LAWN/GARDEN LD FOR STREET LIGHTS 210-5400-600 .250 .000 10.83 

SHANE FERRELL 4/12/2019 NELSON'S ACE HARDWARE RECEPTACLE,BOX HANDY,WALLPATE-PD 701-9200-600.250 .000 13 .87 

SHANE FERRELL 4/1/2019 NELSON'S ACE HARDWARE SWVL MNT LIGHT CONTROL-RINGO PARK 100-5300-600.250 .000 21 .69 

SHANE FERRELL 4/1/2019 NELSON'S ACE HARDWARE IMPACT DRIVER, SPLIT BOLT-CH 702-9300-600.250 .000 26.81 

SHANE FERRELL 4/1/2019 NELSON'S ACE HARDWARE CEMENT, LlGHTS,HARDWARE-SHAVER PARK 100-5300-600.250.000 29.39 

SHANE FERRELL 4/12/2019 NELSON'S ACE HARDWARE TEST PLUG,GLOGBUSTER, BULB-PO 702-9300-600.250.000 49.40 

SHANE FERRELL 4/12/2019 NELSON'S ACE HARDWARE BATIERY, HOG RING-PARKS 100-5300-600.250 .000 62 .78 
SHANE FERRELL 4/1/2019 NELSON'S ACE HARDWARE TOILET SEAT, LIGHT CONTROL -SENIOR CENTER 702-9300-600.250 .000 72.09 

SHANE FERRELL 4/1/2019 NELSON'S ACE HARDWARE PADLOCK PROTECTOR,PAINT-CiTY HALL 702-9300-600.250 .000 73 .89 

SHANE FERRELL 4/12/2019 NELSON'S ACE HARDWARE ELBOW,COUPLE/CEMENT-STREET 210-5400-600.250.000 89.56 
SHANE FERRELL 4/1/2019 NELSON'S ACE HARDWARE LIGHT CNTRL, BLADE SET,PAINT-SALAZAR 702-9300-600.250.000 109.00 
SHANE FERRELL 4/1/2019 NELSON'S ACE HARDWARE ADHESIVE,QUIK FIX CPLNG,SWITHC-ClTY HALL 702-9300-600.250.000 112.59 

SHANE FERRELL 4/12/2019 NELSON'S ACE HARDWARE KEYS,LlNK CHAIN, LIGHT CONTROL-PARKS 100-5300-600 .250.000 114.00 
SHANE FERRELL 4/18/2019 AMAZON.COM (2) NP7-12 12V 7AH LEAD ACID BATIERIES 210-5400-600.250.000 47 .98 

SHANE FERRELL 4/11/2019 HOME DEPOT SUPPLIES FOR DOWNTOWN LANDSCAPING 210-5400-600.250.000 63 .80 
SHANE FERRELL 3/27/2019 HOME DEPOT SENSOR SUPPLIES - CITY HALL RESTROOM 702-9300-600 .250.000 65 .19 
SHANE FERRELL 3/27/2019 HOME DEPOT SUPPLIES FOR PARKING LOT REPAIRS 210-5400-600.250.000 234 .14 

SHANE FERRELL 3/27/2019 HOME DEPOT UMBRELLAS FOR POCKET PARK TABLES 100-5300-600 .250.000 299 .39 
SHANE FERRELL 4/11/2019 CONSOLIDATED METAL FABRICATING, FLAT BAR FOR PARK RESTROOMS 100-5300-600 .250.000 33.59 
SHANE FERRELL 4/9/2019 1000 BULBS 1000W MOGUL BASE BULBS 210-5400-600 .250.000 96.89 
SHANE FERRELL 4/10/2019 1000 BULBS 1500W MOGUL BASE BULBS 210-5400-600 .250.000 434 .62 
SHANE FERRELL 4/4/2019 LAWRENCE TRACTOR CO INC PURCHASE HOSE/CONNECTION FOR PUMP 100-5300-600 .305 .000 293 .01 
SHANE FERRELL 4/4/2019 LAWRENCE TRACTOR CO INC PURCHASE HONDA WATER PUMP 100-5 300-600 .305.000 57S .04 
SHANE FERRELL 4/4/2019 LAWRENCE TRACTOR CO INC PURCHASE 2 POLE PRUNERS 100-5300-600 .305 .000 1,198.80 
SHANE FERRELL 4/4/2019 LAWRENCE TRACTOR CO INC PURCHASE 3 BACK PACK BLOWERS 100-5300-600.305 .000 1,798.08 
SHANE FERRELL 3/22/2019 SHERATON GRAND SACRAMENTO RESERVATIONS- ATIENDED CPRS SACRAMENTO 100-5300-610.920.000 770.52 
SHANE FERRELL 3/28/2019 PUMP PRODUCTS CORD & FLOAT ASSEMBLY FOR SKATE PARK 100-5300-600.250.000 66.92 
SHANE FERRELL 4/1/2019 PTI PAVEMENT REPAIR PRODUCTS ROAD REFLECTOR ADHESIVE 210-5400-600.250.000 70.79 
SHANE FERRELL 4/8/2019 PTI PAVEMENT REPAIR PRODUCTS CARTRIDGE GUN FOR ADHESIVE{REFLECTORS) 210-5400-600.305 .000 76 .60 
SHANE FERRELL 4/3/2019 STATE CHEMICAL SOLUTIONS PURCHASE AEROSOL GRAFFIT REMOVER (2) 210-5400-600.250.000 45 .00 
SHANE FERRELL 4/3/2019 STATE CHEMICAL SOLUTIONS PURCHASE GRAFFITI WIPES (6) 210-5400-600.250 .000 232 .20 
TERESA GALLAVAN 4/3/2019 FRAN K LI NCOV EYP RO 0 UCTS PUBLICATIONS 100-1600-600.100.000 51.43 
TERRY REID 3/23/2019 CENTRAL VALLEY GUNS TRAINING AMMUNITION 100-2200-610.915 .000 1,309.96 



r!<
t

O
t

or^l^<
t.r 

l.\601 
o 

ost@
r.r.\l.{o

cotaqqeqn9qnaoqaeq
.\l 

(o (o rn F
. f{ 

11l er o 
.,l 

o 
N

 
o 

F
 

o<
l

N
Jt-!-{.nr{m

<
@

(or\tan
!n.n.nm

N
N

.im

E
=

u 
or

n 
49fr

=
 

E
f U

x
--s 

P
9[=

E
E

=
 

fr 
z'pZ

E
uu(, 

.! :J 
izZ

<
oozLU

uJr 
2*

;;E
66tr 

*i 
'^9o6.-

'-td*P
F

 
) 

.-! 
d.Z

>
J

g=
3=

=
E

 9* e33=
-Q

sB
E

:ee *=
H

;!38?e
22A

t**t 
?E

q:irE
6Z

asS
E

E
hE

E
E

H
=

[4H
tE

9eil5555!E
e5Y

gH
53

oooooooooooooooo
oooooooooooooooo
qcqqqqgccqccqqqq
oooooooornooc)oooo
rn !n o 

o 
o 

o 
r^ 

r^ 
!.{ c) 1/] !n u) .r 

!.{ !{
.!.! 

Q
 q cq.!61 

q q.!.!.: 
c cq

O
 

O
 

.r.r 
-l 

-r 
O

 
O

 
O

 
r. 

O
 

O
 

O
 

m
 m

 
O

C
) O

 
c! 

N
.{ 

N
 

O
 

O
.r 

a{ O
 

O
 

O
 

N
 

r{.{
(O

 lO
 rt 

t-r t-.t r.l 
(O

 (O
 \O

 !-.r tO
 (., <

) r"t rl 
(O

oooooooooooooooo
ooooooooooo<

)oooo
d H

 o o o o <
t.{.r 

o.!.r 
.r o o.{

.\J r\r o o o o .r 
c.r N

 o N
 c.l N

 o oi..l
oooooooooooooooc?
ooo(roooooooooooo
.r 

..1 oO
 oO

 @
 cO

 F
r ..l 

d 
6 

rr 
sr

B
3

or-
ssa
- 

,- 
9J

E
 

E
, 

ee:r,
L 

=
@

 
A

A
=

9 
t- 

=
", 

}-ooF
2U

* 
I 

E
3,:*R

iE
B

Q
O

E
cznn 

^oa*,eX
rr!,J

tE
H

E
E

E
E

T
E

:E
=

E
E

P
q

=
<

Y
a<

<
*E

dF
=

<
e;ft=

=
;6dH

t<
3i>

>
u

an ah c! dr ch or ol ch - 
(h or or ch or o\ ol

el .r 
t'r F

r !i 
rr '{ 

r{
c,oooooc)o=

ooooooo
N

 
N

 
a..l .\ 

!i 
.\J 

r\r 
a! 

N
 

N
 

.{ 
.rJ

s-\\\
:' 

r'r 
.r 

i
<

r <
r-<

r-<
r 

<
r sr m

.n 
\ 

<
. +

 
<

. <
t $ 

st 
<

f

zzzzzzzzzz
^^oooooooooo

zzzz
auJ<

=
=

=
=

=

-* -* -d -d A
 A

 <
, a 

(J LJ u 
(J (J u 

L) (J

frfifrfrffff8>
=

=
=

=
=

E
=

=
F

F
F

F
F

F
F

F
F

F
F

F
F

F
I_F

FzloEEIIJtofzFzlo(J(JlrJ-UG
,

f.Loz9FAd.
(JE

I
ozG

,
o6zul

zoEgE2ac,F

C
'1

NN<
fI

oltnNmah]U(9G
,

rL.,
o0clJIJd,oE

l
9ozz@tif

EzE
I

oo-E
I

June 3, 2019 C
ouncil Packet

107

US BANK INVOICE FOR CALCARD CHARGES: 3/23/19-4/22/19 
TRANSACTION 

EMPLOYEE NAME DATE VENDOR NAME DESCRIPTION OF PURCHASE ACCOUNT NUMBER AMOUNT 

TERRY RE ID 4/16/2019 ANN'S DONUTS FOOD FOR ENFORCEMENT DETAIL 100-2100-600.250 .000 22.00 

TERRY RE ID 4/16/2019 STARBUCKS COFFEE #29382 FOOD FOR ENFORCEMENT DETAIL 100-2100-600.250 .000 16.9S 

TERRY REID 4/18/2019 EP IC SERIES EXPLORER OBSTACLE/STRENGTH COURSE 800-0000-121.000.000 576.45 

TERRY RE ID 4/12/2019 WAYFAIR CRED IT FOR FRAUD CHARGE 800-0000-121.000.000 (315 .94) 

TERRY RE ID 4/12/2019 WAYFAIR CRED IT FOR FRAUD CHARGE 800-0000-121.000.000 (357 .91) 

TERRY REID 4/12/2019 WAYFAIR CRED IT FOR FRAUD CHARGE 800-0000-121.000.000 (311 .87) 

TESLA NASON 3/22/2019 OFFICE DEPOT SHREDDER 100-1400-600.250 .000 235 .38 

TIM CANNON 3/2S/2019 ELITE K9 LEATHER LEAD, K9 100-2200-600.250.000 41 .19 

TIM CAN NON 4/5/2019 SERRATO TRAINING DETECTIVE TRA INING CO URSE 100-2100-610.915.000 80 .00 

TIM CAN NON 4/13/2019 PET MEDICAL CE NTER K9 BOARDING, SCEC K9 SUPPLI ES 800-0000-121.000.000 265 .00 

TIM CANNON 4/13/2019 AUTOZO NE CAR WAS H SUPPLIES 100-2200-600.250.000 20 .14 

TIM CANNO N 4/13/2019 WALMART HOSE FOR SALLY PORT 100-2100-600. 250 .000 32.48 

TIM CAN NON 4/13/2019 HOME DEPOT BRASS WATER VALVE FOR SALLY PORT 100-2100-600.250.000 10.81 

TIM CANNON 4/16/2019 METRO UNIFORMS SERGEANT STRI PES, CANNON REVO LVING ACCT 100-0000-123.010 .000 17.42 

TIM CANNON 4/16/2019 METRO UNIFORMS UNIFORMS, CANNON REVOLVING ACCOUNT 100-0000-123.010 .000 120.82 

TIM CANNON 4/18/2019 COLLEGE OF THE SEQUIOAS POST TRAINING COURSE (3) ATTENDEES 100-2 200-610.910 .000 324 .00 

89,422 .21 



CITY MANAGER'S / STAFF'S REPORT
REGULAR CffY COI.INCIL MEETING DATE:

ITEMNO:

SUBJECT: Consideration of an Emergency Medical Services ("EMS)
Agreement with Fresno County to provide ambulance services
in the G zone

BACKGROIJND, The Fresno County Department of Public Health has been designated as

the Local EMS Agency of the County of Fresno with the authority to plan, implement and

evaluate an emergency medical services system for and within Fresno County pursuant to
Califomia Health and Safety Code Secrions 1797 .200 and 179'1 .204. Agencies acknowledge

that the Local EMS Agenry has implemented County of Fresno EMS Policy #200, attached

hereto as Exhibit E and incorporated herein by reference (Authorization of Ambulance
Provider Agencies in Fresno County).

DISCUSSION: The current EMS Provider Agreement w.ith Fresno County was approved

in 2017 and covered the 2017 / l8 and 2018 / 19 fiscal years, with the original agreement

dated 1986.

RECOMMENDATION: Approve the contract for Emergency Medical Services with
Fresno County though lune 2022.

S 3O4q
Robert P n, Fire Chief Date

Teresa van, City Manager Date

June 3, 2019

Attached is the new contract, which was prepared by the County and Ieviewed by City staff
and legal, allowing for a 3-year contract through lvrre 2022.

This contract authorizes the City of Selma to provide emergency medical services within the

boundaries of the City, along with certain portions ofFresno County, together known as

Fresno County Ambulance Service Zone G. Please refer to Exhibit "A" located within the

contract for further description of Zone G.

Within the EMS Provider Agreement, there is a provision allowing the City of Selma to

subcontract with American Ambulance to provide emergency medical seryices in Fresno

County Ambulance Zone G.

fl{A:-
t--3/-/?

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 108

CITY MANAGER'SISTAFF'S REPORT 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE: 

ITEM NO: 

June 3, 2019 

SUBJECT: Consideration of an Emergency Medical Services ("EMS") 
Agreement with Fresno County to provide ambulance services 
in the G zone 

BACKGROUND: The Fresno County Department of Public Health has been designated as 
the Local EMS Agency of the County of Fresno with the authority to plan, implement and 
evaluate an emergency medical services system for and within Fresno County pursuant to 
California Health and Safety Code Sections 1797.200 and 1797.204. Agencies acknowledge 
that the Local EMS Agency has implemented County of Fresno EMS Policy #200, attached 
hereto as Exhibit E and incorporated herein by reference (Authorization of Ambulance 
Provider Agencies in Fresno County). 

DISCUSSION: The current EMS Provider Agreement with Fresno County was approved 
in 2017 and covered the 2017/18 and 2018119 fiscal years, with the original agreement 
dated 1986. 

Attached is the new contract, which was prepared by the County and reviewed by City staff 
and legal, allowing for a 3-year contract through June 2022. 

This contract authorizes the City of Selma to provide emergency medical services within the 
boundaries of the City, along with certain portions of Fresno County, together known as 
Fresno County Ambulance Service Zone G. Please refer to Exhibit "An located within the 
contract for further description of Zone G. 

Within the EMS Provider Agreement, there is a provision allowing the City of Selma to 
subcontract with American Ambulance to provide emergency medical services in Fresno 
County Ambulance Zone G. 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve the contract for Emergency Medical Services with 
Fresno County through June 2022. 

Ro~rt P te sen, Fire Chief 

c.........., ........... ~~/-7~ 
Date 

reynar
Typewritten Text
2.



L

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

1l-

t2

13

!4

15

t6

17

18

19

20

2L

22

23

24

25

26

27

2A

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this _ day of 2019, by

and between the COUNry OF FRESNO, a Political Subdivision of the State of Califomia, hereinafter

referred to as'COUNTY,'and the CITY OF SELMA" a Municipal Corporation, whose address is '1710

Tucker, Selma, California, 93662, hereinafter refened to as "CONTRACTOR'and collectively referred

to as the "Parties.'

WITNESSE TH

WHEREAS, COUNTY, through its Department of Public Health, has been designated as the

local EMS Agency of the County of Fresno pursuant to Califomia Health and Safety Code Section

1797.20O; and

WHEREAS, CONTRACTOR is capable of providing emergency ambulance services to

persons needing such services within the boundaries of Fresno County Ambulance Zone G; and

WHEREAS, CONTRACTOR is contracting hereunder prehospital emergency medical

services pursuant to the terms of this Agreement within said Zone G.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows:

1. The Parties acknowledge that the COUNTY's Department of Public Health has been

designated as the Local EMS Agency of the COUNTY with the authority to plan, implement and

evaluate an emergency medical services system for and within Fresno County pursuant to California

Health and Safety Code Sections 1797.200 and 1797 .204. The Parties also acknowledge that the

Local EMS Agency has implemented COUNTY EMS Policy #200, attached hereto as Exhibit E and

incorporated herein by reference (Authorization of Ambulance Provider Agencies in Fresno County).

The Parties further acknowledge that the EMS Medical Director of COUNTY's Department of Public

Health has the authority set forth in Health and Safety Code Section 1798. CONTRACTOR agrees

that it shall operate its emergency medical care program in conformity with the medical policies,

procedures and standards issued and amended by the Local EMS Agency (hereinafter collectively

referred to as the "COUNTY EMS Policies and Procedures,' and individually refened to as "COUNW

EMS Policy #"). Neither the fact that this Agreement is entered into nor anything contained in this

Agreement shall be construed as an admission by either Party hereto restricting CONTRACTOR's

1 CO{'NTY OF FRESNO
Fresno, CAJune 3, 2019 Council Packet 109

1 EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

2 THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this __ day of _______ , 2019, by 

3 and between the COUNTY OF FRESNO, a Political Subdivision of the State of Califomia, hereinafter 

4 referred to as ·COUNTY," and the CITY OF SELMA, a Municipal Corporation, whose address is 1710 

5 Tucker, Selma, California, 93662, hereinafter referred to as ·CONTRACTOR" and collectively referred 

6 to as the ·Parties." 

7 WIT N E SSE T H: 

8 WHEREAS, COUNTY, through its Department of Public Health, has been designated as the 

9 local EMS Agency of the County of Fresno pursuant to California Health and Safety Code Section 

10 1797.200; and 

11 WHEREAS, CONTRACTOR is capable of providing emergency ambulance services to 

12 persons needing such services within the boundaries of Fresno County Ambulance Zone G; and 

13 WHEREAS, CONTRACTOR is contracting hereunder prehospital emergency medical 

14 services pursuant to the terms of this Agreement within said Zone G. 

15 NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows: 

16 1. The Parties acknowledge that the COUNTY's Department of Public Health has been 

17 designated as the Local EMS Agency of the COUNTY with the authority to plan, implement and 

18 evaluate an emergency medical services system for and within Fresno County pursuant to California 

19 Health and Safety Code Sections 1797.200 and 1797.204. The Parties also acknowledge that the 

20 Local EMS Agency has implemented COUNTY EMS Policy #200, attached hereto as Exhibit E and 

21 incorporated herein by reference (Authorization of Ambulance Provider Agencies in Fresno County). 

22 The Parties further acknowledge that the EMS Medical Director of COUNTY's Department of Public 

23 Health has the authority set forth in Health and Safety Code Section 1798. CONTRACTOR agrees 

24 that it shall operate its emergency medical care program in conformity with the medical policies, 

25 procedures and standards issued and amended by the Local EMS Agency (hereinafter collectively 

26 referred to as the ·COUNTY EMS Policies and Procedures," and individually referred to as ·COUNTY 

27 EMS Policy tf'). Neither the fact that this Agreement is entered into nor any1hing contained in this 

28 Agreement shall be construed as an admission by either Party hereto restricting CONTRACTOR's 

- 1 - COUNTY OF FRESNO 
Fresno, CA 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

I
9

10

11

12

13

74

l-5

15

t7

L8

L9

20

2t

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

COI'NTY OF FRESNO
Fresno, CA

legal authority, if any, to plan, implement, and operate within or without its corporate boundaries a

system of emergency medical services (including, but not limited to, ambulance services)

independent of COUNTYS authorization or approval.

2. DUTIESOFCONTRACTOR

A. CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for fumishing services, equipment and

materials, as hereinafter set forth, in order to provide emergency medical services to persons in need

thereof within the incorporated boundaries of the City of Selma and that certain portion of the

unincorporated area of Fresno County, together known as Fresno County Ambulance Service Zone

G, as shown in Exhibit "A,'attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.

B. CONTRACTOR shall maintain automatic vehicle locators in each authorized

emergency ambulance unit and authorized disaster response unit.

C. CONTRACTOR shall assure that all calls received by the City of Selma PSAP

(Public Safety Answering Point) for medical assistjance are transfened directly to the COUNTY's

centralized ambulance dispatch facility.

D. CONTRACTOR agrees to meet performance standards and requirements as

further discussed in Section 6 of this Agreement.

3. DUTIESOFCOUNTY

A. COUNW shall operate a central dispatching facility and shall, on a non-

exclusive basis, provide the primary dispatch of all calls for emergency medical care and ambulance

services within the area set forth in Exhibit'A' to the CONTRACTOR in accordance with COUNTY

EMS Policies and Procedures.

1) COUNTY will assist CONTRACTOR in developing, implementing, and

maintaining an intemal field supervision system to provide evaluation of CONTRACTOR's personnel

providing service under this Agreement according to the standards established by the COUNTY EMS

Policies and Procedures.

2) COUNTY will do periodic and annual inspections of CONTRACTOR's

emergency ambulance services personnel certifications, records, vehicles, equipment, and facilities

required by law and this Agreement.

-2-
June 3, 2019 Council Packet 110

1 legal authority, if any, to plan, implement, and operate within or without its corporate boundaries a 

2 system of emergency medical services (including, but not limited to, ambulance services) 

3 independent of COUNTY's authorization or approva l. 

4 2. DUTIES OF CONTRACTOR 

S A. CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for furnishing services, equipment and 

6 materials, as hereinafter set forth , in order to provide emergency medical services to persons in need 

7 thereof within the incorporated boundaries of the City of Selma and that certain portion of the 

8 unincorporated area of Fresno County, together known as Fresno County Ambulance Service Zone 

9 G, as shown in Exhibit "A," attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. 

10 B. CONTRACTOR shall maintain automatic vehicle locators in each authorized 

11 emergency ambulance unit and authorized disaster response unit. 

12 C. CONTRACTOR shall assure that all calls received by the City of Selma PSAP 

13 (Public Safety Answering Point) for medical assistance are transferred directly to the COUNTY's 

14 centralized ambulance dispatch facility. 

lS D. CONTRACTOR agrees to meet performance standards and requirements as 

16 further discussed in Section 6 of this Agreement. 

1 7 3. DUTIES OF COUNTY 

18 A. COUNTY shall operate a central dispatching facility and shall , on a non-

19 exclusive basis, provide the primary dispatch of all calls for emergency medical care and ambulance 

20 services within the area set forth in Exhibit "A" to the CONTRACTOR in accordance with COUNTY 

2 1 EMS Policies and Procedures. 

22 1) COUNTY will assist CONTRACTOR in developing, implementing, and 

23 maintaining an internal field supervision system to provide evaluation of CONTRACTOR's personnel 

24 providing service under this Agreement according to the standards established by the COUNTY EMS 

2 S Policies and Procedures. 

26 2) COUNTY will do periodic and annual inspections of CONTRACTOR's 

27 emergency ambulance services personnel certifications, records, vehicles, equipment, and facilities 

28 required by law and this Agreement. 

- 2 - COUNTY OF FRESNO 
Fresno , CA 



L

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

72

13

r4

15

15

t7

18

19

20

27

22

23

24

25

25

27

2A

B. Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of Subsection 3.A. of this Agreement,

COUNW is nol restricted by reason of this Agreement from entering into an agreement for services

that are the same as or similar to these provided by CONTRACTOR pursuant to this Agreement with

an entity other than CONTRACTOR for the provision of emergency medical services within the same

geographic area as described in Exhibit "A.' COUNW shall notify CONTRACTOR of any proposal to

enter inlo such an agreement with any other entity prior to award of such agreement.

C. The COUNW shall provide the following for CONTRACTOR'S use during the

term of this Agreement:

1) The use of COUNTY communications infrastructure for EMS Med

Channels, as provided herein.

2) COUNTY shall allow for continued use of previously provided Portable

(Handheld) Radios, Pagers, and ln-Vehicle Radios, however, the maintenance and replacement of

these radios previously provided by COUNTY shall be the responsibility of CONTRACTOR. Such

communications equipment shall be retumed to COUNTY by CONTRACTOR at the time of

replacement.

4. QUALIFICATION OF CONTRACTOR

CONTRACTOR shall at all times meet the requirements set forth by the California

Highway Patrol, the California Vehicle Code, the State Department of Health, the California Health

and Safety Code, the California Code of Regulations, the COUNTY's Department of Public Health

with respect to medical standards, and any other applicable statute or regulation with respect to the

services, equipment, and materials which are the subject matter of this Agreement. ln the event of

conflicting statutes or regulations, the statute or regulation setting forth lhe most stringent

requirements shall be adhered to by CONTRACTOR. ln the event of a conflict between the terms of

this Agreement and any resolution or regulation of the COUNW, the terms of this Agreement shall

prevail.

5. AREASERVED

CONTRACTOR shall provide emergency medical services, on a non-exclusive basis,

upon dispatch by COUNTY and/or upon direct call to Selma's Fire or Police Department to any

-3- COUNIY OF FRESNO
Fresno, CAJune 3, 2019 Council Packet 111

1 B. Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of Subsection 3.A. of this Agreement, 

2 COUNTY is not restricted by reason of this Agreement from entering into an agreement for services 

3 that are the same as or similar to these provided by CONTRACTOR pursuant to this Agreement with 

4 an entity other than CONTRACTOR for the provision of emergency medical services within the same 

5 geographic area as described in Exhibit "A." COUNTY shall notify CONTRACTOR of any proposal to 

6 enter into such an agreement with any other entity prior to award of such agreement. 

7 C. The COUNTY shall provide the following for CONTRACTOR'S use during the 

8 term of this Agreement: 

9 1) The use of COUNTY communications infrastructure for EMS Med 

10 Channels, as provided herein. 

11 2) COUNTY shall allow for continued use of previously provided Portable 

12 (Handheld) Radios, Pagers, and In-Vehicle Radios, however, the maintenance and replacement of 

13 these radios previously provided by COUNTY shall be the responsibility of CONTRACTOR. Such 

14 communications equipment shall be returned to COUNTY by CONTRACTOR at the time of 

15 replacement. 

1 6 4. QUALIFICATION OF CONTRACTOR 

1 7 CONTRACTOR shall at all times meet the requirements set forth by the California 

18 Highway Patrol , the California Vehicle Code, the State Department of Health, the California Health 

1 9 and Safety Code, the California Code of Regulations, the COUNTY's Department of Public Health 

20 with respect to medical standards, and any other applicable statute or regulation with respect to the 

21 services, equipment, and materials which are the subject matter of this Agreement. In the event of 

22 conflicting statutes or regulations , the statute or regulation setting forth the most stringent 

23 requirements shall be adhered to by CONTRACTOR. In the event of a conflict between the terms of 

24 this Agreement and any resolution or regulation of the COUNTY, the terms of this Agreement shall 

25 prevail. 

2 6 5. AREA SERVED 

2 7 CONTRACTOR shall provide emergency medical services, on a non-exclusive basis, 

28 upon dispatch by COUNTY and/or upon direct call to Selma's Fire or Police Department to any 

- 3 - COUNTY OF FRESNO 
Fresno, CA 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

t2

13

74

15

l-6

t7

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

25

27

28

location or incident within the tenitory of Fresno County Ambulance Service Zone Area G (herein

"Area G") as shown in Exhibit'A." ln addition, upon request of the COUNW EMS Communications

Center, or other appropriate dispatching/requesting agency (as defined by COUNTY EMS Policies

and Procedures), CONTRACTOR shall, to the extent consistent with its primary responsibility to

provide emergency medical services on a non-exclusive basis, in the area of Exhibit'A,' render all

reasonable prehospital "mutual aid' to those providers of emergency medical services operating

within the adjacent Service Zone Areas in order to ensure that timely emergency medical services are

rendered to persons in need of such services within those areas.

6. SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED AND PERFOR MANCE STANDARDS

A. CONTRACTOR shall provide appropriate ambulance, paramedic, and medical

equipment and personnel in order to furnish 'Advanced Life Supporf (ALS) and 'Basic Life Support'

(BLS) services to persons within Area G on a non-exclusive, on-call basis, twenty-four (24) hours per

day, seven (7) days per week.

"Advanced Life Support' services shall mean special services designed to

provide definitive emergency medical care, including, but not limited to, cardiopulmonary

resuscitation, cardiac monitoring, cardiac defibrillation, advanced airuvay management, intravenous

therapy, administration of specified drugs and other medical preparations, and other specified

techniques and procedures administered by authorized personnel under direct supervision of a base

station hospital or according to approved written protocols.

"Basic Life Support' services shall mean emergency first aid and

cardiopulmonary resuscitation procedures which, as a minimum, includes recognizing respiratory and

cardiac anest and starting the proper application of cardiopulmonary resuscitation to maintain life

without invasive techniques until the patient may be transported or until advanced life support is

available.

B. Response Areas and Performance Standards:

1) Metrooolitan Response Area

The Metropolitan Response Area is defined as that area within the

corporate limits of the City of Selma as now or hereafter amended plus an area within one (1)

4 COUNTY OF FRESNO
Fresno, CAJune 3, 2019 Council Packet 112

1 location or incident within the territory of Fresno County Ambulance Service Zone Area G (herein 

2 "Area G") as shown in Exhibit "A. " In addition, upon request of the COUNTY EMS Communications 

3 Center, or other appropriate dispatching/requesting agency (as defined by COUNTY EMS Policies 

4 and Procedures), CONTRACTOR shall , to the extent consistent with its primary responsibility to 

5 provide emergency medical services on a non-exclusive basis, in the area of Exhibit "A: render all 

6 reasonable prehospital "mutual aid" to those providers of emergency medical services operating 

7 within the adjacent Service Zone Areas in order to ensure that timely emergency medical services are 

8 rendered to persons in need of such services within those areas. 

9 6. SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED AND PERFORMANCE STANDARDS 

10 A. CONTRACTOR shall provide appropriate ambulance, paramedic, and medical 

11 equipment and personnel in order to furnish "Advanced Life Support" (ALS) and "Basic Life Support" 

12 (BLS) services to persons within Area G on a non-exclusive, on-call basis, twenty-four (24) hours per 

13 day, seven (7) days per week. 

14 "Advanced Life Support" services shall mean special services designed to 

15 provide definitive emergency medical care, including, but not limited to, cardiopulmonary 

16 resuscitation, cardiac monitoring, cardiac defibrillation, advanced airway management, intravenous 

17 therapy, administration of specified drugs and other medical preparations, and other specified 

18 techniques and procedures administered by authorized personnel under direct supervision of a base 

19 station hospital or according to approved written protocols. 

20 "Basic Life Support" services shall mean emergency first aid and 

21 cardiopulmonary resuscitation procedures which, as a minimum, includes recognizing respiratory and 

22 cardiac arrest and starting the proper application of cardiopulmonary resuscitation to maintain life 

23 without invasive techniques until the patient may be transported or until advanced life support is 

24 available. 

25 B. Response Areas and Performance Standards: 

26 1) Metropolitan Response Area 

27 The Metropolitan Response Area is defined as that area within the 

28 corporate limits of the City of Selma as now or hereafter amended plus an area within one (1) 

- 4 - COUNTY OF FRESNO 
Fresno, CA 



1

2

3

4

5

5

7

I
9

10

11

t2

13

t4

15

15

77

l-8

19

20

27

aa

23

24

25

26

27

28

statutory mile of said corporate limits, which is initially described in Exhibit "B', attached hereto and

incorporated herein by this reference.

Rural Response Area

[he Rural Response Area is defined as that area beyond the

Metropolitan Response Area limits, which is described in Exhibit "C", attached hereto and

incorporated herein by this reference.

3) Tim Performance Standn

Response time standards for the abovementioned areas are defined in Exhibit "D", attached hereto

and by this reference inmrporated herein.

4) The required response times under this Agreement are measured from

the time CONTRACTOR is alerted for a response to the time that CONTRACTOR anives at scene of

the incident with a fully staffed and equipped emergency ambulance unit. COUNTY provides

CONTRACTOR with significant flexibility in CONTRACTOR's methods of providing said services in

order to achieve minimum results required under this Agreement. This is based upon

CONTRACTOR'S commitment to perform to the response time standards required under this

Agreement. Therefore, a deficiency or an error by CONTRACTOR in one or more phases of its

operations (e.9., vehicle deployment plan and basing model, and vehicle maintenance) shall not be

the basis for the EMS Agency granting an exception to CONTRACTOR for its performance in another

phase of its operation (e.9., response time performance). Required response times shall be

measured in minutes and semnds, and shall be time stamped by the EMS Agency's computer aided

dispatch (CAD) system consistent with the requirements herein.

COUNTY and the EMS Agency recognizes that dispatch operalions are

not a responsibility or under the control of CONTRACTOR. COUNTY and the EMS Agency

acknowledge that CONTRACTOR is not to be held responsible for delays that may occur due to

dispatching, and the CONTRACTOR acknowledges that the COUNTY EMS Communications Center

requires adequate time to process each request (e.9., time from request received to the time of unit

alert). COUNTY agrees to monitor the COUNTY EMS Communications Center to ensure that its

dispatch performance remains within the standards developed by COUNTY and the local EMS

5 COUNTY OF FRESNO
Fresno, cAJune 3, 2019 Council Packet 113

1 statutory mile of said corporate limits, which is initially described in Exhibit ' 8", attached hereto and 

2 incorporated herein by this reference. 

3 2) Rural Response Area 

4 The Rural Response Area is defined as that area beyond the 

5 Metropolitan Response Area limits, which is described in Exhibit ' C", attached hereto and 

6 incorporated herein by this reference. 

7 3) Response Time Performance Standards 

8 Response time standards for the abovementioned areas are defined in Exhibit ' D", attached hereto 

9 and by this reference incorporated herein. 

1 0 4) The required response times under this Agreement are measured from 

11 the time CONTRACTOR is alerted for a response to the time that CONTRACTOR arrives at scene of 

12 the incident with a fully staffed and equipped emergency ambulance unit. COUNTY provides 

13 CONTRACTOR with significant flexibility in CONTRACTOR's methods of providing said services in 

14 order to achieve minimum results required under this Agreement. This is based upon 

15 CONTRACTOR's commitment to perform to the response time standards required under th is 

16 Agreement. Therefore, a deficiency or an error by CONTRACTOR in one or more phases of its 

17 operations (e.g. , vehicle deployment plan and basing model, and vehicle maintenance) shall not be 

18 the basis for the EMS Agency granting an exception to CONTRACTOR for its performance in another 

19 phase of its operation (e.g., response time performance). Required response times shall be 

20 measured in minutes and seconds, and shall be time stamped by the EMS Agency's computer aided 

21 dispatch (CAD) system consistent with the requirements herein. 

22 COUNTY and the EMS Agency recognizes that dispatch operations are 

23 not a responsibility or under the control of CONTRACTOR. COUNTY and the EMS Agency 

24 acknowledge that CONTRACTOR is not to be held responsible for delays that may occur due to 

25 dispatching , and the CONTRACTOR acknowledges that the COUNTY EMS Communications Center 

26 requires adequate time to process each request (e.g., time from request received to the time of unit 

27 alert). COUNTY agrees to monitor the COUNTY EMS Communications Center to ensure that its 

28 dispatch performance remains within the standards developed by COUNTY and the local EMS 

- 5 - COUNTY OF FRESNO 
Fresno, CA 



L

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

1l-

72

13

t4

15

l-5

t7

18

19

20

2L

22

23

24

25

26

27

2A

Agency.

Ihe EMS Agency may grant exemptions from response time

performance requirements stated herein, on case-by-case basis, for calls where weather conditions,

multi-casualty incidents, or other situations beyond the Contractor's control cause unavoidable delay.

All such calls shall be individually examined by the EMS Agency as to system status plan and staffing

levels, dispatch and in-service times, and other influencing factors (e.9., weather conditions), and if the

circumstances warrant, the EMS Agency may authorize the exclusion of such calls when measuring

performance requirements under Section 6.8, herein- Exclusion of a call under this paragraph means

that a late call which has received approval for an appeal will not count as an on-time response.

Therefore, it is excluded from the database for the purpose of fractite performance calculation (r'.e.,

performance measured by fractions of a minute or hour).

ln order to be eligible for such exemption, the Contractor shall notify the

EMS Agency within a reasonable amount of time of the occurence. Equipment failure, personnel

error, or lack of a nearby ambulance does not constitute grounds for exemption from response time

performance requirements.

a) Failure to 'At Scene'

ln instances when emergency ambulance units fail to

report "at scene,' the time of the next communications by those units with the COUNTY EMS

Communications Center shall be used as the 'at scene' time. However, CONTRACTOR may appeal

such instances when it can document the actual anival time through another means (e.9., non-

CONTRACTOR first responder communication recording and automatic vehicle locato|.

b) Unit Cancelled Prior to Arrival "At Scene"

Required response time standards do not apply to

instances where CONTRACTOR is cancelled prior to anival at scene.

i) 'At Scene"

Shall be defined as the moment when the assigned

emergency ambulance unit is physically at or within one hundred (100) feet of the scene. ln

instances where the emergency ambulance unit responds to a location other than the scene (e.9.,

6 COI'MTY OF' FRESNO
Fresno, CAJune 3, 2019 Council Packet 114

1 Agency. 

2 The EMS Agency may grant exemptions from response time 

3 performance requirements stated herein, on case-by-case basis, for calls where weather conditions, 

4 multi-casualty incidents, or other situations beyond the Contractor's control cause unavoidable delay. 

5 All such calls shall be individually examined by the EMS Agency as to system status plan and staffing 

6 levels, dispatch and in-service times, and other influencing factors (e.g., weather conditions), and if the 

7 circumstances warrant, the EMS Agency may authorize the exclusion of such calls when measuring 

8 performance requirements under Section 6.B, herein. Exclusion of a call under this paragraph means 

9 that a late call which has received approval for an appeal will not count as an on-time response. 

10 Therefore, it is excluded from the database for the purpose of fractile performance calculation (i.e., 

11 performance measured by fractions of a minute or hour). 

12 In order to be eligible for such exemption, the Contractor shall notify the 

13 EMS Agency within a reasonable amount of time of the occurrence. Equipment failure, personnel 

14 error, or lack of a nearby ambulance does not constitute grounds for exemption from response time 

15 performance requirements. 

16 a) Failure to Report " At Scene" 

17 In instances when emergency ambulance units fail to 

18 report "at scene: the time of the next communications by those units with the COUNTY EMS 

19 Communications Center shall be used as the "at scene" time. However, CONTRACTOR may appeal 

20 such instances when it can document the actual arrival time through another means (e.g., non-

21 CONTRACTOR first responder communication recording and automatic vehicle locator). 

22 b) Unit Cancelled Prior to Arrival " At Scene" 

23 Required response time standards do not apply to 

24 instances where CONTRACTOR is cancelled prior to arrival at scene. 

25 i) "At Scene" 

26 Shall be defined as the moment when the assigned 

27 emergency ambulance unit is physically at or within one hundred (100) feet of the scene. In 

28 instances where the emergency ambulance unit responds to a location other than the scene (e.g., 

- 6 - COUNTY OF FRESNO 
Fresno, CA 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

o

9

10

l_1

L2

13

74

15

t5

t7

l-8

1,9

20

21

aa

21

24

25

26

27

28

staging area), anival "at scene'shall be the time such unit anives at, or is within one hundred (100)

feet of, the designated staging location.

5) Performance lndicators for Alertino and lnitiatino ResDonse

The following performance indicators shall be used to evaluate the

timeliness of CONTRACTOR'S field operations (from time of unit alert to time 'at scene") in response

to requests that require an immediate dispatch (Priorities 1 and 2) or an urgent dispatch (Priorities 3

and 4). Such performance indicators are not used as standards for enforcing CONTRACTOR's

compliance with required response time standards under this Agreement. Rather, they are utilized as

a means of determining whether CONTRACTOR meets the criteria for an exception to response time

standards and for evaluating the need for more in-depth Quality lmprovement review by the EMS

Agency and/or CONTRACTOR of CONTRACTOR's services.

a) Crew Resoonse Phase (Priorities 1. 2, 3 and 4)

For requests for immediate responses (Priorities 1 and 2) and urgent responses (Priorities 3

and 4), the "Chute Time" is the measurement of elapsed time from "unit alert" to the time that all

crewmembers are in the ambulance unit, begin response, and report on radio to the COUNTY EMS

Communications Center of "unit enroute.' For CONTRACTOR's primary ambulance units, the

maximum permissible Chute Time shall be one hundred twenty (120) seconds or less. This

performance indicator is a performance measurement of CONTRACTOR's performance separate from

any other performance standard in this Agreement.

D "Unit Alert"

Shall be defined as the moment the COUNry EMS

Communications Center alerts CONTRACTOR's emergency ambulance unit for a response.

6) Ambulances shall be staffed and equipped atthe appropriate response

level for the response incident (Advanced Life Support or Basic Life Support). The Contractor may

utilize its own discretion on resource management with regard to advanced life support (paramedic)

ambulance units. The Contractor may operate a singleliered sysfem - utilizing advanced life support

(paramedic) ambulance units for all responses or the Contractor may operate a multi-tiered system -

staffing different types of units with different staffing levels in order to service the various types of

'7 COIJNTY OF FRESNO
Fresno, CAJune 3, 2019 Council Packet 115

1 staging area), arrival "at scene' shall be the time such unit arrives at, or is within one hundred (100) 

2 feet of, the designated staging location. 

3 5) Performance Indicators for Alerting and Initiating Response 

4 The following performance indicators shall be used to evaluate the 

5 timeliness of CONTRACTOR's field operations (from time of unit alert to time "at scene' ) in response 

6 to requests that require an immediate dispatch (Priorities 1 and 2) or an urgent dispatch (Priorities 3 

7 and 4). Such performance indicators are not used as standards for enforcing CONTRACTOR's 

8 compliance with required response time standards under this Agreement. Rather, they are utilized as 

9 a means of determining whether CONTRACTOR meets the criteria for an exception to response time 

10 standards and for evaluating the need for more in-depth Quality Improvement review by the EMS 

11 Agency and/or CONTRACTOR of CONTRACTOR's services. 

12 a) Crew Response Phase (Priorities 1. 2. 3 and 4) 

13 For requests for immediate responses (Priorities 1 and 2) and urgent responses (Priorities 3 

14 and 4), the "Chute Time' is the measurement of elapsed time from "unit alert" to the time that all 

15 crewmembers are in the ambulance unit, begin response, and report on radio to the COUNTY EMS 

16 Communications Center of "unit enroute.' For CONTRACTOR's primary ambulance units, the 

1 7 maximum permissible Chute Time shall be one hundred twenty (120) seconds or less. This 

18 performance indicator is a performance measurement of CONTRACTOR's performance separate from 

19 any other performance standard in this Agreement. 

20 i) "Unit Alert' 

21 Shall be defined as the moment the COUNTY EMS 

22 Communications Center alerts CONTRACTOR's emergency ambulance unit for a response. 

23 6) Ambulances shall be staffed and equipped at the appropriate response 

24 level for the response incident (Advanced Life Support or Basic Life Support). The Contractor may 

25 utilize its own discretion on resource management with regard to advanced life support (paramedic) 

26 ambulance units. The Contractor may operate a single-tiered system - utilizing advanced life support 

27 (paramedic) ambulance units for all responses or the Contractor may operate a multi-tiered system -

28 staffing different types of units with different staffing levels in order to service the various types of 

- 7 - COUNTY OF FRESNO 
Fresno, CA 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

I
9

10

1l-

t2

r-3

r4

15

15

l7
18

19

20

2t

22

23

24

25

25

27

2A

responses. The Contractor has the operational flexibility to operate under either model in order to

provide a cost-effective slatem. However, the Contracto/s obligation to perform its minimum

performance requirements under this Agreement to the reasonable satisfaction of the County and the

EMS Agency shall not be lessened if Contractor elects to operate a multi-tiered system - that is, the

Contractor shall in any event be responsible to provide an appropriately stafied and equipped

ambulance unit to one-hundred percent (100%) requests for services, as defined in the EMS Agency

Policy and Procedures.

The EMS Agency requirement for minimum staffing of advanced life support

(paramedic) units is one (1) cunently Califomia-licensed and locally-accredited paramedic and one (1)

cunently trained and locally certified EMT. The minimum staffing for a BLS unit is two (2) locally

certified EMTs.

The utilization of BLS ambulan@s as a part of a multi-tiered system, and, in the

case of incidents which require the response of an advanced life support (paramedic) ambulance unit,

the Contractor utilizes BLS ambulances in conjunction with non{ransport advanced life support

(paramedic) units, the following standards shall apply:

a) Rendezvous between BLS ambulance units and advanced life support

(paramedic) units shall be initiated according to the standards

described in EMS Policy #510; and

b) Such BLS ambulance personnel shall adhere to EMS Agency Policy

and Procedures regarding treatment and the urgency of transport.

Patient transport shall not be inappropriately delayed, mntrary to EMS

Agency Policy and Procedures, in order to wait for the ani\€l of a non-

transport advanced life support (paramedic) unit in order to prevent the

levy of liquidated damages regarding a BLS response.

c) BLS level ambulances for seMces under this Agreement shall be

equipped and staffed at the BLS{efibrillation level.

7) CONTRACTOR shall make (and shall maintain for 180 days) a tape-

recorded copy of all requests for medical aid through the designated

public seMce answering point.

8 COIJNTY OF FRESNO
Presrto, CAJune 3, 2019 Council Packet 116

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

responses. The Contractor has the operational flexibility to operate under either model in order to 

provide a cost-effective system. However, the Contractor's obligation to perform its minimum 

performance requirements under this Agreement to the reasonable satisfaction of the County and the 

EMS Agency shall not be lessened if Contractor elects to operate a mufti-tiered system - that is, the 

Contractor shall in any event be responsible to provide an appropriately staffed and equipped 

ambulance unit to one-hundred percent (100%) requests for services, as defined in the EMS Agency 

Policy and Procedures. 

The EMS Agency requirement for minimum staffing of advanced life support 

(paramedic) units is one (1) currently California-licensed and locally-accredited paramedic and one (1) 

currently trained and locally certified EMT. The minimum staffing for a BLS unit is two (2) locally 

certified EMTs. 

The utilization of BLS ambulances as a part of a mufti-tiered system, and, in the 

case of incidents which require the response of an advanced life support (paramedic) ambulance unit, 

the Contractor utilizes BLS ambulances in conjunction with non-transport advanced life support 

(paramedic) units, the following standards shall apply: 

a) Rendezvous between BLS ambulance units and advanced life support 

(paramedic) units shall be initiated according to the standards 

described in EMS Policy #510; and 

b) Such BLS ambulance personnel shall adhere to EMS Agency Policy 

and Procedures regarding treatment and the urgency of transport. 

Patient transport shall not be inappropriately delayed, contrary to EMS 

Agency Policy and Procedures, in order to wait for the arrival of a non

transport advanced life support (paramedic) unit in order to prevent the 

levy of liquidated damages regarding a BLS response. 

c) BLS level ambulances for services under this Agreement shall be 

equipped and staffed at the BLS-defibrillation level. 

7) CONTRACTOR shall make (and shall maintain for 180 days) a tape

recorded copy of all requests for medical aid through the designated 

public service answering point. 

- B - COUNTY OF FRESNO 
Fresno, CA 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

r2

13

74

15

16

77

18

19

20

2l
22

23

24

25

26

27

2A

8) CONTRACTOR shall, consistent with COUNW EMS Policies and

Procedures, develop, collect, maintain and transmit to COUNry data regarding its delivery of

services hereunder.

9) CONTRACTOR shall notify the COUNTY EMS Communications Center

immediately upon receipt of calls for medical aid and/or transportation, and attempt to foruard

medical 911 calls to the COUNW EMS Communications Center to allow for telephone medical pre-

arrival instructions.

10) CONTRACTOR shall make and maintain a contact with the COUNTY

EMS Communications Center on the COUNTY EMS Med-Net System for the purpose of tracking and

data collection.

11) CONTRACTOR agrees to provide an intemal quality improvement

program, which adheres to the COUNTY EMS Policies and Procedures.

7. EQUIPMENT AN D PERSONNEL

CONTRACTOR shall fumish, operale, maintain and replace, as necessary, any and all

items of equipment, apparatus and supplies, whether real, personal, or otherwise, and qualified

personnel as may be necessary to futfill its obligations under this Agreement. As between the

COUNTY and CONTRACTOR, title to all such equipment, apparatus and supplies furnished by

CONTRACTOR, shall remain at all times in CONTRACTOR, and personnel assigned to the

performance of this Agreement are and shall remain employees or contractors of the CONTRACTOR.

8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

ln order to establish that COUNW is not a co€mployer of CONTRACTOR's officers,

agents or employees, the Parties agree to the provisions of this Section 8.

ln performance of the work, duties, and obligations assumed by CONTRACTOR under

this Agreement, it is mutually understood and agreed that CONTRACTOR, including any and all of

CONTRACTOR's officers, agents, employees, and independent contractors, will at all times be acting

and performing as an independent contractor, and shall act in an independent capacity and not as an

officer, agent, servant, employee, joint venturer, partner, or associate of the COUNTY, regardless of

the nature and extent of the acts performed by them. COUNTY shall not assume any liability under

9 COUNTY OF FRESNO
Presno, CAJune 3, 2019 Council Packet 117

1 8) CONTRACTOR shall , consistent with COUNTY EMS Policies and 

2 Procedures, develop, collect, maintain and transmit to COUNTY data regarding its delivery of 

3 services hereunder. 

4 9) CONTRACTOR shall notify the COUNTY EMS Communications Center 

5 immediately upon receipt of calls for medical aid and/or transportation, and attempt to forward 

6 medical 911 calls to the COUNTY EMS Communications Center to allow for telephone medical pre-

7 arrival instructions. 

8 10) CONTRACTOR shall make and maintain a contact with the COUNTY 

9 EMS Communications Center on the COUNTY EMS Med-Net System for the purpose of tracking and 

10 data collection. 

11 11) CONTRACTOR agrees to provide an internal quality improvement 

12 program, which adheres to the COUNTY EMS Policies and Procedures. 

13 7. EQUIPMENT AND PERSONNEL 

14 CONTRACTOR shall furnish, operate, maintain and replace, as necessary, any and all 

15 items of equipment, apparatus and supplies, whether real , personal, or otherwise, and qualified 

16 personnel as may be necessary to fulfill its obligations under this Agreement. As between the 

17 COUNTY and CONTRACTOR, title to all such equipment, apparatus and supplies furnished by 

18 CONTRACTOR, shall remain at all times in CONTRACTOR, and personnel assigned to the 

19 performance of this Agreement are and shall remain employees or contractors of the CONTRACTOR. 

20 8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

21 In order to establish that COUNTY is not a co-employer of CONTRACTOR's officers, 

22 agents or employees, the Parties agree to the provisions of this Section 8. 

23 In performance of the work, duties, and obligations assumed by CONTRACTOR under 

24 this Agreement, it is mutually understood and agreed that CONTRACTOR, including any and all of 

25 CONTRACTOR's officers, agents, employees, and independent contractors, will at all times be acting 

26 and performing as an independent contractor, and shall act in an independent capacity and not as an 

27 officer, agent, servant, employee, joint venturer, partner, or associate of the COUNTY, regardless of 

28 the nature and extent of the acts performed by them. COUNTY shall not assume any liability under 

- 9 - COUNTY OF FRESNO 
Fresno. CA 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

l- l-

t2

13

t4

15

15

t7

18

19

20

2t

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

any employer's liability law or any other law on account of any act of CONTRACTOR'S officers,

agents, employees and independent contractors performing any activity in connection with this

Agreement or traveling to or lrom hospital sites (as the case may be). COUNTY shall retain the right

to administer this Agreement so as to verify that CONTRACTOR is performing its obligations in

accordance wilh the terms and conditions thereof. CONTRACTOR and COUNTY shall comply with

all applicable provisions of law and the rules and regulations, if any, of governmental authorities

having jurisdiction over matters the subject thereof.

Because of its status as an independent contractor, CONTRACTOR shall have

absolutely no right to employment rights and benefits available to COUNTY employees.

CONTRACTOR shall be solely liable and responsible for providing to, or on behalf of, its employees

all legally-required employee benefits. ln addition, CONTRACTOR shall be solely responsible and

save COUNW harmless from all matters relating to payment of CONTRACTOR's employees,

including compliance with Social Security, withholding, and all other regulations governing such

matters. lt is acknowledged that during the term of this Agreement, CONTRACTOR may be providing

services to others unrelated to the COUNTY or to this Agreement.

9. CONSIDERAIION

A. COUNW shall not be obligated to raise taxes, or to adopt or approve any tax

measures to provide funds, in order to compensate CONTRACTOR in connection with this

Agreement. COUNTY shall have no obligation to compensate CONTRACTOR for services

performed under this Agreement other than as stated in this Section 9. The only compensation

payable by COUNTY to CONTRACTOR for CONTRACTOR's performance of services under this

Agreement is as follows:

B. COUNTY shall provide both monetary and non-monetary compensation to

CONTRACTOR for the satisfactory performance of its seMces as provided, herein.

1) Monetarv oensation

COUNTY shall pay to CONTRACTOR a monthly lump-payment of One Thousand One Hundred

Twenty-five and No/1OO Dollars ($1,125.00) for estimated dry runs and uncollectible charges. The total

- 10 - COT]NTY OF FRESNO
Fre6no, CAJune 3, 2019 Council Packet 118

1 any employer's liability law or any other law on account of any act of CONTRACTOR'S officers, 

2 agents, employees and independent contractors performing any activity in connection with this 

3 Agreement or traveling to or from hospital sites (as the case may be). COUNTY shall retain the right 

4 to administer this Agreement so as to verify that CONTRACTOR is performing its obligations in 

5 accordance with the terms and conditions thereof. CONTRACTOR and COUNTY shall comply with 

6 all applicable provisions of law and the rules and regulations, if any, of governmental authorities 

7 having jurisdiction over matters the subject thereof. 

8 Because of its status as an independent contractor, CONTRACTOR shall have 

9 absolutely no right to employment rights and benefits available to COUNTY employees. 

1 0 CONTRACTOR shall be solely liable and responsible for providing to, or on behalf of, its employees 

11 all legally-required employee benefits. In addition, CONTRACTOR shall be solely responsible and 

1 2 save COUNTY harmless from all matters relating to payment of CONTRACTOR's employees, 

1 3 including compliance with Social Security, withholding, and all other regulations governing such 

14 matters. It is acknowledged that during the term of this Agreement, CONTRACTOR may be providing 

1 5 services to others unrelated to the COUNTY or to this Agreement. 

1 6 9. CONSIDERATION 

17 A. COUNTY shall not be obligated to raise taxes, or to adopt or approve any tax 

1 8 measures to provide funds, in order to compensate CONTRACTOR in connection with this 

19 Agreement. COUNTY shall have no obligation to compensate CONTRACTOR for services 

2 0 performed under this Agreement other than as stated in this Section 9. The only compensation 

2 1 payable by COUNTY to CONTRACTOR for CONTRACTOR's performance of services under this 

22 Agreement is as follows: 

23 B. COUNTY shall provide both monetary arid non-monetary compensation to 

24 CONTRACTOR for the satisfactory performance of its services as provided, herein. 

2 5 1) Monetary Compensation 

26 COUNTY shall pay to CONTRACTOR a monthly lump-payment of One Thousand One Hundred 

27 Twenty-five and No/100 Dollars ($1 ,125.00) for estimated dry runs and uncollectible charges. The total 

28 

- 10 - COUNTY OF FRESNO 
Fresno. CA 



maximum monetary compensation payable under this agreement for each fiscal year shall not exceed

Thirteen Thousand Five Hundred and No/100 Dollars ($13,500.00).

a) The total maximum monetary compensation payable under the

Agreement, for the period of July 1 , 2019 through June 30, 2024, shall not exceed Sixty-seven

Thousand Five Hundred and No/100 Dollars ($67,500.00).

b) ln consideration for such monetary compensation,

CONTRACTOR shall completely, unconditionally and irrevocably assign all of its 'uncollectible

accounts'to COUNW. 'Uncollectible accounts'shall be defined as those accounts receivable for

authorized runs which CONTRACTOR has been unable to collect payment upon after they become

past due or delinquent in accordance with CONTRACTOR's customary and usual practices as set

forth in COUNTY EMS Policy #205, and which accounts came into existence due to

CONTRACTOR's performance of this Agreement or as a result of CONTRACTOR's rendering of

emergency ambulance service, or both. The Parties agree that CONTRACTOR will follow the

billings, cotlections, and account write-off practices and procedures outlined in COUNTY EMS Policy

#205, for purposes of this Subsection 9.8., of this Agreement. COUNTY shall have the discretion to

pursue any and all collection efforts for the compromise and settlement of such accounts. COUNTY

shall retain any and all revenues it receives on such accounts and shall have no obligation to pay to

CONTRACTOR any portion of such revenues collected.

c) COUNTY shall have no obligation to compensate CONTRACTOR for services under

this Agreement other than as stated above. The Parties agree that the amounts stated above are

inclusive of and fulfill any obligation COUNTY may have, if any, presently or at any time during each

annual period (fiscal year) during the term of this Agreement, to compensate, reimburse, or otherurise

pay CONTRACTOR for emergency medical seMces provided to medically-indigent persons.

10. AUDITING

COUNW shall have the right to review any and all books, accounts, financial and

accounting records, bills and the like of CONTRACTOR relating to services provided under this

Agreement. CONTRACTOR shall retain and make available for inspection by COUNTY for at least a

three (3) year period from final payment under this Agreement, all of the documents and records

- 11, - COT]NTY OF FRESNO
FresDo, CA

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

I
9

10

11

72

13

t4

15

15

77

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 119

1 maximum monetary compensation payable under this agreement for each fiscal year shall not exceed 

2 Thirteen Thousand Five Hundred and No/100 Dollars ($13,500.00). 

3 a) The total maximum monetary compensation payable under the 

4 Agreement, for the period of July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2024, shall not exceed Sixty-seven 

5 Thousand Five Hundred and No/100 Dollars ($67,500.00). 

6 b) In consideration for such monetary compensation, 

7 CONTRACTOR shall completely, unconditionally and irrevocably assign all of its "uncollectible 

8 accounts· to COUNTY. "Uncollectible accounts" shall be defined as those accounts receivable for 

9 authorized runs which CONTRACTOR has been unable to collect payment upon after they become 

10 past due or delinquent in accordance with CONTRACTOR's customary and usual practices as set 

11 forth in COUNTY EMS Policy #205, and which accounts came into existence due to 

12 CONTRACTOR's performance of this Agreement or as a result of CONTRACTOR's rendering of 

13 emergency ambulance service, or both. The Parties agree that CONTRACTOR will follow the 

14 billings, collections, and account write-off practices and procedures outlined in COUNTY EMS Policy 

15 #205, for purposes of this Subsection 9.B., of this Agreement. COUNTY shall have the discretion to 

1 6 pursue any and all collection efforts for the compromise and settlement of such accounts. COUNTY 

17 shall retain any and all revenues it receives on such accounts and shall have no obligation to pay to 

18 CONTRACTOR any portion of such revenues collected. 

19 c) COUNTY shall have no obligation to compensate CONTRACTOR for services under 

20 this Agreement other than as stated above. The Parties agree that the amounts stated above are 

2 1 inclusive of and fulfill any obligation COUNTY may have, if any, presently or at any time during each 

22 annual period (fiscal year) during the term of this Agreement, to compensate, reimburse, or otherwise 

23 pay CONTRACTOR for emergency medical services provided to medically-indigent persons. 

24 10. AUDITING 

25 COUNTY shall have the right to review any and all books, accounts, financial and 

26 accounting records, bills and the like of CONTRACTOR relating to services provided under this 

27 Agreement. CONTRACTOR shall retain and make available for inspection by COUNTY for at least a 

28 three (3) year period from final payment under this Agreement, all of the documents and records 

- 11 - COUNTY OF FRESNO 
Fresno, CA 



L

2

3

4

5

6

7

I
9

l-0

11

1_2

13

14

15

15

77

t8

r.9

20

2t

22

23

24

25

26

27

2A

described above.

lf this Agreement exceeds Ten Thousand and No/100 Dollars ($10,000.00),

CONTRACTOR shall be subject to the examination and audit of the State Auditor for a period of three

(3) years after final payment under contract (Government Code Section 8546.7)-

11, INSURANCE

Without limiting the COUNTYs right to obtain indemnification from CONTRACTOR or

any third parties, CONTRACTOR, at its sole expense, shall maintain in full force and effect the

following insurance policies or a program of seJf-insurance, including but not limited to, an insurance

pooling anangement or Joint Powers Agreement (JPA) throughout the term of this Agreement:

A. Commercial General Liability

Commercial General Liability lnsurance with limits of not less than One Million

Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per occurrence and an annual aggregate of Two Million Dollars

($2,000,000.00). This policy shall be issued on a per occulrence basis. County may require specific

coverage including completed operations, product liability, contractual liability, Explosion-Collapse-

Underground (XCU), fire legal liability or any other liability insurance deemed necessary because of

the nature of the contract.

B. AutomobileLiabilitv

Comprehensive Automobile Liability lnsurance with a combined single

limit of not less One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per accident. Coverage should include owned and

non-owned vehicles used in connection with this Agreement.

C. Professio lLiabilitv

Professional Liability lnsurance (Enors and Omissions) with limits of not less

than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per occurence, Three Million Dollars ($3'000,000.00)

annual aggregate.

D. Worker'sCompensation

A policy of Workeds Compensation insurance as may be required by the

California Labor Code.

E. Cvber Liabilitv

-t2- COI'NTY OF FRESNO
Fresno, CAJune 3, 2019 Council Packet 120

1 described above. 

2 If this Agreement exceeds Ten Thousand and No/100 Dollars ($10,000.00), 

3 CONTRACTOR shall be subject to the examination and audit of the State Auditor for a period of three 

4 (3) years after final payment under contract (Government Code Section 8546.7). 

5 11. INSURANCE 

6 Without limiting the COUNTY's right to obtain indemnification from CONTRACTOR or 

7 any third parties, CONTRACTOR, at its sole expense, shall maintain in full force and effect the 

8 following insurance policies or a program of self-insurance, including but not limited to, an insurance 

9 pooling arrangement or Joint Powers Agreement (JPA) throughout the term of this Agreement: 

10 A. Commercial General Liability 

11 Commercial General Liability Insurance with limits of not less than One Million 

12 Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per occurrence and an annual aggregate of Two Million Dollars 

13 ($2,000,000.00). This policy shall be issued on a per occurrence basis. County may require specific 

14 coverage including completed operations, product liability, contractual liability, Explosion-Collapse-

15 Underground (XCU), fire legal liability or any other liability insurance deemed necessary because of 

16 the nature of the contract. 

17 B. Automobile Liability 

18 Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance with a combined single 

19 limit of not less One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per accident. Coverage should include owned and 

20 non-owned vehicles used in connection with this Agreement. 

21 C. Professional Liability 

22 Professional Liability Insurance (Errors and Omissions) with limits of not less 

23 than One Million Dollars ($1 ,000,000.00) per occurrence, Three Million Dollars ($3,000,000.00) 

24 annual aggregate. 

25 D. Worker's Compensation 

26 A policy of Worker's Compensation insurance as may be required by the 

27 California Labor Code. 

28 E. Cyber Liability 

- 12 - COUNTY OF FRESNO 
Fresno, CA 



1

2

3

4

5

5

7

8

9

10

11

t2

13

14

15

15

t7

18

19

20

2r

22

23

24

25

25

27

28

Cyber Liability lnsurance, with limits not less than $2,000,000 per occurrence or

claim, $2,000,000 aggregate. Coverage shall be sufficiently broad to respond to the duties and

obligations as is undertaken by CONTRACTOR in this agreement and shall include, but not be limited

to, claims involving infringement of intellectual property, including but not limited to infringemenl of

copyright, trademark, trade dress, invasion of privacy violations, information theft, damage to or

destruction of electronic information, release of private informalion, alteration of electronic

information, extortion and network security. The policy shall provide coverage for breach response

costs as well as regulatory fines and penalties as well as credit monitoring expenses with limits

suflicient to respond to these obligations.

Additional Reouireme Relatino to lnsurance

CONTRACTOR shall obtain endorsements to the Commercial General Liability

insurance naming the County of Fresno, its officers, agents, and employees, individually and

collectively, as additional insured, but only insofar as the operations under this Agreement are

concemed. Such coverage for additional insured shall apply as primary insurance and any other

insurance, or self-insurance, maintained by COUNTY, its officers, agents and employees shall be

excess only and not contributing with insurance provided under CONTRACTOR's policies herein.

This insurance shall not be cancelled or changed without a minimum of thirty (30) days advance

written notice given to COUNry.

CONTRACTOR hereby waives its right to recover from COUNTY, its officers, agents,

and employees any amounts paid by the policy of worker's compensation insurance required by this

Agreement. CONTRACTOR is solely responsible to obtain any endorsement to such policy that may

be necessary to accomplish such waiver of subrogation, but CONTRACTOR's waiver of subrogation

under this paragraph is effective whether or not CONTRACTOR obtains such an endorsement.

Within thirty (30) days from the date CONTRACTOR signs this Agreement,

CONTRACTOR shall provide certificates of insurance and endorsement as stated above for all of the

foregoing policies, as required herein, to the County of Fresno, Department of Public Health, P.O.

Box 1 '1867, Fresno, CA 93775, Attn: Contracts Section - 6s Floor, stating that such insurance

coverage have been obtained and are in full force; that the County of Fresno, its officers, agents and

-13- COI'NTY OF FRESNO
Fregno, CAJune 3, 2019 Council Packet 121

1 Cyber Liability Insurance, with limits not less than $2,000,000 per occurrence or 

2 claim, $2,000,000 aggregate. Coverage shall be sufficiently broad to respond to the duties and 

3 obligations as is undertaken by CONTRACTOR in this agreement and shall include, but not be limited 

4 to, claims involving infringement of intellectual property, including but not limited to infringement of 

5 copyright, trademark, trade dress, invasion of privacy violations, information theft, damage to or 

6 destruction of electronic information, release of private information, alteration of electronic 

7 information, extortion and network security. The policy shall provide coverage for breach response 

8 costs as well as regulatory fines and penalties as well as credit monitoring expenses with limits 

9 sufficient to respond to these obligations. 

10 Additional Requirements Relatinq to Insurance 

11 CONTRACTOR shall obtain endorsements to the Commercial General Liability 

12 insurance naming the County of Fresno, its officers, agents, and employees, individually and 

13 collectively, as additional insured, but only insofar as the operations under this Agreement are 

14 concerned. Such coverage for additional insured shall apply as primary insurance and any other 

15 insurance, or self- insurance, maintained by COUNTY, its officers, agents and employees shall be 

16 excess only and not contributing with insurance provided under CONTRACTOR's policies herein. 

17 This insurance shall not be cancelled or changed without a minimum of thirty (30) days advance 

18 written notice given to COUNTY. 

19 CONTRACTOR hereby waives its right to recover from COUNTY, its officers, agents, 

20 and employees any amounts paid by the policy of worker's compensation insurance required by this 

21 Agreement. CONTRACTOR is solely responsible to obtain any endorsement to such policy that may 

22 be necessary to accomplish such waiver of subrogation, but CONTRACTOR's waiver of subrogation 

23 under this paragraph is effective whether or not CONTRACTOR obtains such an endorsement. 

24 Within thirty (30) days from the date CONTRACTOR signs this Agreement, 

25 CONTRACTOR shall provide certificates of insurance and endorsement as stated above for all of the 

26 foregoing policies, as required herein, to the County of Fresno, Department of Public Health, P.O. 

27 Box 11867, Fresno, CA 93775, Attn: Contracts Section - 6th Floor, stating that such insurance 

28 coverage have been obtained and are in full force; that the County of Fresno, its officers, agents and 

- 13 - COUNTY OF FRESNO 
Fresno, CA 



1

2

3

4

5

5

7

8

9

10

1l-

r2

13

!4

15

75

t'1

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

25

27

28

employees will not be responsible for any premiums on the policies; that for such worker's

compensation insurance the CONTRACTOR has waived its right to recover from the COUNTY, its

officers, agents, and employees any amounts paid under the insurance policy and that waiver does

not invalidate the insurance policy; that such Commercial General Liability insurance names the

County of Fresno, its officers, agents and employees, individually and collectively, as additional

insured, but only insofar as the operations under this Agreement are concerned; that such coverage

for additional insured shall apply as primary insurance and any other insurance, or self-insurance,

maintained by COUNTY, its officers, agents and employees, shall be excess only and not contributing

with insurance provided under CONTRACTOR's policies herein; and that this insurance shall not be

cancelled or changed without a minimum of thirty (30) days advance, written notice given lo

COUNTY.

ln the event CONTRACTOR fails to keep in effect at all times insurance coverage as

herein provided, the COUNTY may, in addition to other remedies it may have, suspend or terminate

this Agreement upon the occurence of such event.

All policies shall be with admitted insurers licensed to do business in the State of

California. lnsurance purchased shall be purchased from companies possessing a cunent A.M. Best,

lnc. rating of A FSC Vll or better.

The insurance requirements of this Section 1 1 shall apply to CONTRACTOR's

personnel during their performance of any activity which is the subject of this Agreement, or any

amendment hereto, including, but not limited to, their participation in clinical education programs and

prehospital experience while assigned to a separate paramedic ground ambUlance provider.

12. MUTUAL INDEMNIF ICATION

A. CONTRACTOR agrees to protect, defend, indemnify and hold harmless

COUNTY, its elective and appointive boards, officers, agents, employees, local EMS Agency, and

EMS Medical Directo(s), from any and all claims, suits, liabilities, expenses, costs, damages, and

judgments of any nature, including attomey fees and court costs, for injury to, and death of, any

person, and for injury to any property, including consequential damages of any nature resulting

therefrom, arising out of, or in any way connected with any acts or omissions by, or on behalf of

-14- COI'NTY OF FRESNO
Fresno, CAJune 3, 2019 Council Packet 122

1 employees will not be responsible for any premiums on the policies; that for such worker's 

2 compensation insurance the CONTRACTOR has waived its right to recover from the COUNTY, its 

3 officers, agents, and employees any amounts paid under the insurance policy and that waiver does 

4 not invalidate the insurance policy; that such Commercial General liability insurance names the 

5 County of Fresno, its officers, agents and employees, individually and collectively, as additional 

6 insured, but only insofar as the operations under this Agreement are concerned ; that such coverage 

7 for additional insured shall apply as primary insurance and any other insurance, or self-insurance, 

8 maintained by COUNTY, its officers, agents and employees, shall be excess only and not contributing 

9 with insurance provided under CONTRACTOR's policies herein; and that this insurance shall not be 

1 0 cancelled or changed without a minimum of thirty (30) days advance, written notice given to 

11 COUNTY. 

12 In the event CONTRACTOR fails to keep in effect at all times insurance coverage as 

13 herein provided, the COUNTY may, in addition to other remed ies it may have, suspend or terminate 

14 this Agreement upon the occurrence of such event. 

1 5 All policies shall be with admitted insurers licensed to do business in the State of 

1 6 California. Insurance purchased shall be purchased from companies possessing a current A.M. Best, 

1 7 Inc. rating of A FSC VII or better. 

18 The insurance requirements of this Section 11 shall apply to CONTRACTOR's 

1 9 personnel during their performance of any activity which is the subject of this Agreement, or any 

20 amendment hereto, including, but not limited to, their participation in clinical education programs and 

21 prehospital experience while assigned to a separate paramedic ground ambulance provider. 

22 12. MUTUAL INDEMNIFICATION 

23 A. CONTRACTOR agrees to protect, defend, indemnify and hold harmless 

24 COUNTY, its elective and appointive boards, officers, agents, employees, local EMS Agency, and 

25 EMS Medical Director(s), from any and all claims, suits, liabilities, expenses, costs , damages, and 

26 judgments of any nature, including attorney fees and court costs, for injury to, and death of, any 

27 person, and for injury to any property, including consequential damages of any nature resulting 

28 therefrom, arising out of, or in any way connected with any acts or omissions by, or on behalf of 

- 14 - COUNTY OF FRESNO 
Fresno, CA 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

I
9

10

11

72

13

74

15

15

77

18

79

20

2t

22

23

24

25

26

27

2A

CONTRACTOR, its officers, employees, agents or contractors (specifically including American

Ambulance as further discussed in Section 18 of this Agreement) in performing or failing to perform

any services or functions provided for or refened to or in any way connected with any work, services,

or functions to be performed by CONTRACTOR, its officers, employees, agents, or contractors

(including American Ambulance) under this Agreement. The foregoing clause shall in no way

obligate the CONTRACTOR to provide such protection, indemnification, or defense to the extent of

acts or omissions by the COUNTY, its officers, employees, agents, or contraclors.

B. COUNry agrees to protect, defend, indemnify and hold harmless

CONTRACTOR, its elective and appointive boards, officers, agents and employees from any and all

claims, suits, liabilities, expenses, costs, damages, and judgments of any nature, including reasonable

attorney's fees and court costs, for injury to, and death of, any persons, and for injury to any property,

including consequential damages of any nature resulting therefrom, arising out of, or in any way

connected with the acts or omissions by, or on behalf of COUNry, its officers, employees, agents or

contractors in performing or failing to perform any services or functions provided for or refened to or in

any way connected with any work, seMces, or functions to be performed by COUNTY, its officers,

employees, agents or contractors under this Agreement. The foregoing clause shall in no way obligate

the COUNW to provide such protection, indemnification, or defense to the extent of acts or omissions

by the CONTRACTOR, its officers, employees, agents, or contractors.

C. COUNTY agrees to protect, defend, indemnify and hold harmless the

CONTRACTOR, its elective and appointive boards, officers, agents and employees, from claims, suits,

liabilities, expenses, costs, damages, and judgments of any nature, including attorney's fees and

court costs, brought by persons CONTRACTOR transports at the request of a peace officer or

individual authorized by Welfare and lnstitutions Code Section 5150 to cause a person to be taken into

custody, but only insofar as those claims are based on acts inherent in carrying out the detention of the

person as requested by the peace officer or authorized individual- This indemnity shall not extend to

claims for negligence in the provision of transportation orto any medical care provided during transport.

This section shall in no way obligate the COUNW to provide such protection, indemnification, or

defense to the extent of negligent or wrongful acts or omissions by the CONTRACTOR, its officers,

-15- COI'NTY OP PRESNO
Freslo, CAJune 3, 2019 Council Packet 123

1 CONTRACTOR, its officers, employees, agents or contractors (specifically including American 

2 Ambulance as further discussed in Section 18 of this Agreement) in performing or failing to perform 

3 any services or functions provided for or referred to or in any way connected with any work, services, 

4 or functions to be performed by CONTRACTOR, its officers, employees, agents, or contractors 

5 (including American Ambulance) under this Agreement. The foregoing clause shall in no way 

6 obligate the CONTRACTOR to provide such protection, indemnification , or defense to the extent of 

7 acts or omissions by the COUNTY, its officers, employees, agents, or contractors. 

8 B. COUNTY agrees to protect, defend, indemnify and hold harmless 

9 CONTRACTOR, its elective and appointive boards, officers, agents and employees from any and all 

1 0 claims, suits, liabilities, expenses, costs, damages, and judgments of any nature, including reasonable 

1 1 attorney's fees and court costs, for injury to, and death of, any persons, and for injury to any property, 

12 including consequential damages of any nature resulting therefrom, arising out of, or in any way 

1 3 connected with the acts or omissions by, or on behalf of COUNTY, its officers, employees, agents or 

14 contractors in performing or failing to perform any services or functions provided for or referred to or in 

1 5 any way connected with any work, services, or functions to be performed by COUNTY, its officers, 

16 employees, agents or contractors under this Agreement. The foregoing clause shall in no way obligate 

1 7 the COUNTY to provide such protection, indemnification, or defense to the extent of acts or omissions 

18 by the CONTRACTOR, its officers, employees, agents, or contractors. 

1 9 C. COUNTY agrees to protect, defend, indemnify and hold harmless the 

20 CONTRACTOR, its elective and appointive boards, officers, agents and employees, from claims, suits , 

21 liabil ities, expenses, costs, damages, and judgments of any nature, including attorney's fees and 

22 court costs, brought by persons CONTRACTOR transports at the request of a peace officer or 

23 individual authorized by Welfare and Institutions Code Section 5150 to cause a person to be taken into 

24 custody, but only insofar as those claims are based on acts inherent in carrying out the detention of the 

25 person as requested by the peace officer or authorized individual. This indemnity shall not extend to 

26 claims for negligence in the provision of transportation or to any medical care provided during transport. 

27 This section shall in no way obligate the COUNTY to provide such protection, indemnification, or 

28 defense to the extent of negligent or wrongful acts or omissions by the CONTRACTOR, its officers, 

- 15 - COUNTY OF FRES NO 
Fresno . CA 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

72

13

!4

15

15

l7
18

19

20

27

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

employees, agents, or contractors except as explicitly stated above.

D. The aforesaid indemnity and hold harmless clauses by CONTRACTOR and

COUNTY shall apply to all damages and claims for damages of every kind suffered, or alleged to

have been suffered by the party to be indemnified, including but not limited to attomey fees and court

costs, by reason of the aforesaid operations of the indemnifying party, regardless of whether or not

the insurance policies or Risk Management Authority Program or self-insurance of the indemnifying

party shall have been determined to be applicable to any such damages or claims for damages.

13. TERM OF AGREEMENT

The term of this Agreement shall be for a period of three (3) years, commencing on July

1, 2019 through and including June 30, 2022. This Agreement may be extended for two (2) additional

consecutive twelve ( 12) month periods upon written approval of both parties no later than thirty (30)

days prior to the first day of the next twelve (12) month extension period. The Director of the

Department of Public Health or his or her designee is authorized to execute such written approval on

behalf of COUNTY based on CONTRACTOR'S satisfactory performance.

14. TERMINATION F AGREEMENT

ln the event of termination, each Party shall be responsible for complying with all laws

applicable to them, if any, respecting reduction or termination of medical services.

A. Non Allo of Funds: The terms of this Agreement, and the services to be

provided hereunder, are contingent on the approval of funds by the appropriating government

agency. Should sufficient funds not be allocated, the services provided may be modified, or this

Agreement terminated, at any time by giving the GoNTRACTOR thirty (30) days advance written

notice.

B. Breach of Contract: The COUNTY may immediately suspend or terminate this

Agreement in whole or in part, where in the determination of the COUNW there is:

1) An illegal or improper use of funds;

2) A failure to comply with any term of this Agreement;

3) A substantially incorrect or incomplete report submitted to the COUNTY;

4) lmproperly performed service.

COI'NTY OF FRESNO
Fresno, CA

- 15 -
June 3, 2019 Council Packet 124

1 employees, agents, or contractors except as explicitly stated above. 

2 D. The aforesaid indemnity and hold harmless clauses by CONTRACTOR and 

3 COUNTY shall apply to all damages and claims for damages of every kind suffered, or alleged to 

4 have been suffered by the party to be indemnified, including but not limited to attorney fees and court 

5 costs, by reason of the aforesaid operations of the indemnifying party, regardless of whether or not 

6 the insurance policies or Risk Management Authority Program or self-insurance of the indemnifying 

7 party shall have been determined to be applicable to any such damages or claims for damages. 

8 13. TERM OF AGREEMENT 

9 The term of this Agreement shall be for a period of three (3) years, commencing on July 

1 0 1, 2019 through and including June 3D, 2022. This Agreement may be extended for two (2) additional 

11 consecutive twelve (12) month periods upon written approval of both parties no later than thirty (30) 

12 days prior to the first day of the next twelve (12) month extension period. The Director of the 

13 Department of Public Health or his or her designee is authorized to execute such written approval on 

14 behalf of COUNTY based on CONTRACTOR'S satisfactory performance. 

15 14. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT 

16 In the event of termination, each Party shall be responsible for complying with all laws 

1 7 applicable to them, if any, respecting reduction or termination of medical services. 

18 A. Non Allocation of Funds: The terms of this Agreement, and the services to be 

19 provided hereunder, are contingent on the approval of funds by the appropriating government 

20 agency. Should sufficient funds not be allocated, the services provided may be modified , or this 

2 1 Agreement terminated, at any time by giving the CONTRACTOR thirty (30) days advance written 

22 notice. 

23 B. Breach of Contract: The COUNTY may immediately suspend or terminate this 

24 Agreement in whole or in part, where in the determination of the COUNTY there is: 

25 1) An illegal or improper use of funds; 

26 2) A failure to comply with any term of this Agreement; 

27 3) A substantially incorrect or incomplete report submitted to the COUNTY; 

28 4) Improperly performed service. 

- 16 - COUNTY OF FRESNO 
Fresno, CA 



L

2

3

4

5

5

7

8

9

L0

11

72

13

t4

l-5

16

t7

18

19

20

21-

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

ln no event shall any payment by the COUNry constitute a waiver by the COUNW of

any breach of this Agreement or any default which may then exist on the part of the CONTRACTOR.

Neither shall such payment impair or prejudice any remedy available to the COUNTY with respect to

the breach or default.

The COUNTY shall have the right to demand of the CONTRACTOR the repayment to

the COUNTY of any funds disbursed to the CONTRACTOR under this Agreement, which in the

judgment of the COUNW were not expended in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. The

CONTRACTOR shall promptly refund any such funds upon demand.

C. Without Cause Under circumstances other than those set forth above, this

Agreement may be terminated by COUNTY upon the giving of thirty (30) days advance written notice

of an intention to lerminate to CONTRACTOR.

D. The CONTRACTOR may terminate this Agreement with or without cause, upon

thirty (30) days advance written notice of an intention to terminate to COUNTY.

,I5. FORCE MA'EURE

A. lf either Party hereto is rendered unable, wholly or in part, by Force Majeure to

carry out its obligations under this Agreement, that Party shall give to the other Party hereto prompt

written notice of the Force Majeure with full particulars relating thereto. Thereupon, the obligation of

the Party giving the notice, so far as they are affected by the Force Majeure, shall be suspended

during, but no longer than, the continuance of the Force Majeure, except for a reasonable time

thereafter required to resume performance.

B. During any period in which either Party hereto is excused from performance by

reason of the occurence of an event of Force Majeure, the Party so excused shall promptly,

diligently, and in good faith take all reasonable action required in order for it to be able to promptly

commence or resume performance of its obligations under this Agreement. Without limiting the

generality of the foregoing, the Party so excused from performance shall, during any such period of

Force Majeure, take all reasonable action necessary to terminate any temporary restraining order or

preliminary or permanent injunctions to enable it to so commence or resume performance of its

obligations under this Agreement.

-L7 - COI'NTY OF PRESNO
Fresno, CAJune 3, 2019 Council Packet 125

1 In no event shall any payment by the COUNTY constitute a waiver by the COUNTY of 

2 any breach of this Agreement or any default which may then exist on the part of the CONTRACTOR. 

3 Neither shall such payment impair or prejudice any remedy available to the COUNTY with respect to 

4 the breach or default. 

5 The COUNTY shall have the right to demand of the CONTRACTOR the repayment to 

6 the COUNTY of any funds disbursed to the CONTRACTOR under this Agreement, which in the 

7 judgment of the COUNTY were not expended in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. The 

8 CONTRACTOR shall promptly refund any such funds upon demand. 

9 C. Without Cause Under circumstances other than those set forth above, this 

10 Agreement may be terminated by COUNTY upon the giving of thirty (30) days advance written notice 

11 of an intention to terminate to CONTRACTOR. 

12 D. The CONTRACTOR may terminate this Agreement with or without cause, upon 

13 thirty (30) days advance written notice of an intention to terminate to COUNTY. 

14 15. FORCE MAJEURE 

15 A. If either Party hereto is rendered unable, wholly or in part, by Force Majeure to 

16 carry out its obligations under this Agreement, that Party shall give to the other Party hereto prompt 

17 written notice of the Force Majeure with full particulars relating thereto. Thereupon, the obligation of 

18 the Party giving the notice, so far as they are affected by the Force Majeure, shall be suspended 

19 during, but no longer than, the continuance of the Force Majeure, except for a reasonable time 

20 thereafter required to resume performance. 

21 B. During any period in which either Party hereto is excused from performance by 

22 reason of the occurrence of an event of Force Majeure, the Party so excused shall promptly, 

23 diligently, and in good faith take all reasonable action required in order for it to be able to promptly 

24 commence or resume performance of its obligations under this Agreement. Without limiting the 

25 generality of the foregoing, the Party so excused from performance shall, during any such period of 

26 Force Majeure, take all reasonable action necessary to terminate any temporary restraining order or 

27 preliminary or permanent injunctions to enable it to so commence or resume performance of its 

28 obligations under this Agreement. 

- 17 - COUNTY OF FRESNO 
Fresno, CA 



1

2

3

4

5

5

7

I
9

10

11

t2

L3

74

15

15

L7

18

r-9

20

2t

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

C. The Party whose performance is excused due to the occurrence of an event of

Force Majeure shall, during such period, keep the other Party hereto notified of all such actions

required in order for it to be able to @mmence or resume performance of its obligations under this

Agreement.

D. "Force Majeure' is defined as an Act of God, act of public enemy, war, and other

extraordinary causes not reasonably within the control of either of the Parties hereto.

16. GOVERNING LAW

For the purposes of venue, performance of this Agreement shall be in Fresno County,

Califomia. The rights and obligations of the Parties and all interpretation and performance of this

Agreement shall be governed in all respects by the laws of the State of California-

17. ENTIRE AGREE MENT

The Parties agree that all of the terms of this Agreement shall be binding upon them,

and their successors-in-interest, assigns and legal representatives, and that together these terms

constitute the entire agreement of the Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof. This

Agreement supersedes all previous negotiations, proposals, commitments, writings, understandings

and agreements of any nature whatsoever conceming the subject matter hereof unless expressly

included in this Agreement.

18. WAVER

The waiver by COUNTY or CONTRACTOR of any breach of any term, covenant or condition herein

contained shall not be deemed to be a waiver of such term, covenant or condition or of any

subsequent breach of the same or any other term, covenant or condition herein contained. No term,

covenant or condition of this Agreement shall be deemed to have been waived by COUNTY or

CONTRACTOR unless in writing.

19. SUBCONTRACTORS

For the existing term of this Agreement, CONTRACTOR may subcontract with

American Ambulance for provision of non-exclusive emergency medical services in Fresno County

Ambulance Zone G. CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for such subcontractor's performance, and

CONTRACTOR shall remain the sole point of contact in the provision of services under this

- 18 - COU]fIY OF FRESNO
Fresno, CAJune 3, 2019 Council Packet 126

1 C. The Party whose performance is excused due to the occurrence of an event of 

2 Force Majeure shall, during such period, keep the other Party hereto notified of all such actions 

3 required in order for it to be able to commence or resume performance of its obligations under this 

4 Agreement. 

5 D. "Force Majeure" is defined as an Act of God, act of public enemy, war, and other 

6 extraordinary causes not reasonably within the control of either of the Parties hereto. 

7 16. GOVERNING LAW 

8 For the purposes of venue, performance of this Agreement shall be in Fresno County, 

9 California. The rights and obligations of the Parties and all interpretation and performance of this 

10 Agreement shall be governed in all respects by the laws of the State of California . 

11 17. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

12 The Parties agree that all of the terms of this Agreement shall be binding upon them, 

13 and their successors-in-interest, assigns and legal representatives, and that together these terms 

14 constitute the entire agreement of the Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof. This 

15 Agreement supersedes all previous negotiations, proposals, commitments, writings, understandings 

16 and agreements of any nature whatsoever conceming the subject matter hereof unless expressly 

17 included in this Agreement. 

1 8 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

2 4 

25 

26 

27 

28 

18. WAIVER 

The waiver by COUNTY or CONTRACTOR of any breach of any term, covenant or condition herein 

contained shall not be deemed to be a waiver of such term, covenant or condition or of any 

subsequent breach of the same or any other term, covenant or condition herein contained. No term, 

covenant or condition of this Agreement shall be deemed to have been waived by COUNTY or 

CONTRACTOR unless in writing. 

19. SUBCONTRACTORS 

For the existing term of this Agreement, CONTRACTOR may subcontract with 

American Ambulance for provision of non-exclusive emergency medical services in Fresno County 

Ambulance Zone G. CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for such subcontractor's performance, and 

CONTRACTOR shall remain the sole point of contact in the provision of services under this 

- 18 - COUNTY OF FRESNO 
Fresno, CA 



t-

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

L2

13

t4

15

L5

l7
18

l_9

20

27

22

23

24

25

26

27

2A

Agreement. CONTRACTOR shall continue to be responsible for all obligations, duties, requirements

and performance standards under this agreement. CONTRACTOR assumes all risks of American

Ambulance's performance of the agreement, and that CONTRACTOR will defend, indemnify, and

hold County harmless, in accordance with Section 12 of the Agreement, from any and all claims,

suits, liabilities, expenses, costs, damages and judgments of any nature, including attorney fees and

court costs resulting from American Ambulance's performance. CONTRACTOR shall not subcontract

with any subcontractors except for American Ambulance as indicated herein, without the prior written

consent of the COUNTY, which shall not be unreasonably withheld.

20, CONFIDENTIALITY

All services performed by CONTRACTOR underthis Agreement shall be in strict

conformance with all applicable Federal, State of Califomia and/or local laws and regulations relating

to confidentiality, including all Health lnsurance Portability Accounting Act (HIPAA) regulations.

21. E[.98: The persons and their addresses having authority to give and receive

notices under this Agreement include the following:

COUNTY
Director, County of Fresno
Department of Public Health
P.O. Box 11867
Fresno, CA 93775

ctw
City of Selma
Attn: Fire Chief
171 1 Tucker St.
Selma, CA 93662

- 19 - COIJNTY OF FRESNO
Fresno, CA

All notices between the couNTY and ooNTRACTOR provided for or permitted under this

Agreement must be in writing and delivered either by personal service, by firslclass United States

mail, by an overnight commercial courier service, or by telephonic facsimile transmission- A notice

delivered by personal service is effective upon service to the recipient. A notice delivered by firs!

class United States mail is effective three COUNTY business days afier deposit in the United States

mail, postage prepaid, addressed to the recipient. A notice delivered by an overnight commercial

courier service is effective one COUNTY business day after deposit with the overnight commercial

courier service, delivery fees prepaid, with delivery instructions given for next day delivery, addressed

to the recipient. A notice delivered by telephonic facsimile is effective when transmission to the

recipient is completed (but, if such transmission is completed outside of COUNTY business hours,

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 127

1 Agreement. CONTRACTOR shall continue to be responsible for all obligations, duties, requirements 

2 and performance standards under this agreement. CONTRACTOR assumes all risks of American 

3 Ambulance's performance of the agreement, and that CONTRACTOR will defend, indemnify, and 

4 hold County harmless, in accordance with Section 12 of the Agreement, from any and all claims, 

5 suits, liabilities, expenses, costs, damages and judgments of any nature, including attorney fees and 

6 court costs resulting from American Ambulance's performance. CONTRACTOR shall not subcontract 

7 with any subcontractors except for American Ambulance as indicated herein, without the prior written 

8 consent of the COUNTY, which shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

9 20. CONFIDENTIALITY 

10 All services performed by CONTRACTOR under this Agreement shall be in strict 

11 conformance with all applicable Federal, State of California and/or local laws and regulations relating 

12 to confidentiality, including all Health Insurance Portability Accounting Act (HIPAA) regulations. 

13 21. NOTICES: The persons and their addresses having authority to give and receive 

14 notices under this Agreement include the following: 

15 

16 

17 

18 

COUNTY 
Director, County of Fresno 
Department of Public Health 
P.O. Box 11867 
Fresno, CA 93775 

CITY 
City of Selma 
Attn: Fire Chief 
1711 Tucker St. 
Selma, CA 93662 

19 All notices between the COUNTY and CONTRACTOR provided for or permitted under this 

20 Agreement must be in writing and delivered either by personal service, by first-class United States 

21 mail, by an overnight commercial courier service, or by telephonic facsimile transmission. A notice 

22 delivered by personal service is effective upon service to the recipient. A notice delivered by first-

23 class United States mail is effective three COUNTY business days after deposit in the United States 

24 mail, postage prepaid, addressed to the recipient. A notice delivered by an overnight commercial 

25 courier service is effective one COUNTY business day after deposit with the overnight commercial 

26 courier service, delivery fees prepaid, with delivery instructions given for next day delivery, addressed 

27 to the recipient. A notice delivered by telephonic facsimile is effective when transmission to the 

28 recipient is completed (but, if such transmission is completed outside of COUNTY business hours, 

- 19 - COUNTY OF FRESNO 
Fresno, CA 



1

3

4

5

6

I
9

10

11

!2

l-3

t4

r.5

15

t7

18

19

20

2l
22

23

24

25

25

27

28

then such delivery shall be deemed to be effective at the next beginning of a COUNTY business day),

provided that the sender maintains a machine record of the completed transmission. For all claims

arising out of or related to this Agreement, nothing in this seclion establishes, waives, or modifies any

claims presentation requirements or procedures provided by law, including but not limited to the

Government Claims Act (Division 3.6 of Title 1 of the Government Code, beginning with section 810).

22. MODIFICATION Any matters of this Agreement may be modified from time to time by

the written consent of all the parties without, in any way, affecting the remainder

23. NON ASSIGNMENT Neither party shall assign, transfer or sub conlract lhis

Agreement nor their rights or duties under this Agreement without the prior written consent of the

other party.

24, SEVERABILITYThE provisions of this Agreement are severable. The invalidity or

unenforceability of any one provision in the Agreement shall not affect the other provisions.

25. COUNTERPARTS

This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an

original, but all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

26, CAPTIONS

The captions appearing at the commencement of the sections hereof, and in any paragraph

thereof, are descriptive only and shall have no significance in the interpretation of this Agreement.

27, REMEDIES

Each right, power and remedy provided for herein or now or hereafter existing at law, in equity,

by statute, or otheruise shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other right, power, or

remedy provided for herein or now or hereafter existing at law, in equity, by statute, or otherwise. The

exercise, the commencement of the exercise, or the forbearance of the exercise by any party of any

one or more of such rights, powers or remedies shall not preclude the simultaneous or later exercise

by such party of any of all of such other rights, powers or remedies.

-20- COTJNTY OF FRESNO
Fresno, CAJune 3, 2019 Council Packet 128

1 then such delivery shall be deemed to be effective at the next beginning of a COUNTY business day), 

2 provided that the sender maintains a machine record of the completed transmission . For all claims 

3 arising out of or related to this Agreement, nothing in this section establishes, waives, or modifies any 

4 claims presentation requirements or procedures provided by law, including but not limited to the 

5 Government Claims Act (Division 3.6 of Title 1 of the Government Code, beginning with section 810). 

6 22. MODIFICATION Any matters of this Agreement may be modified from time to time by 

7 the written consent of all the parties without, in any way, affecting the remainder. 

8 23. NON ASSIGNMENT Neither party shall assign, transfer or sub contract this 

9 Agreement nor their rights or duties under this Agreement without the prior written consent of the 

10 other party. 

11 24. SEVERABILITY The provisions of this Agreement are severable. The invalidity or 

12 unenforceabi lity of anyone provision in the Agreement shall not affect the other provisions. 

13 25. COUNTERPARTS 

14 This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an 

15 original , but all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same instrument. 

1 6 26. CAPTIONS 

17 The captions appearing at the commencement of the sections hereof, and in any paragraph 

18 thereof, are descriptive only and shall have no significance in the interpretation of this Agreement. 

19 27. REMEDIES 

20 Each right, power and remedy provided for herein or now or hereafter existing at law, in equity, 

21 by statute, or otherwise shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other right, power, or 

22 remedy provided for herein or now or hereafter existing at law, in equity, by statute, or otherwise. The 

23 exercise, the commencement of the exercise, or the forbearance of the exercise by any party of any 

24 one or more of such rights, powers or remedies shall not preclude the simultaneous or later exercise 

25 by such party of any of all of such other rights, powers or remedies. 

26 

2 7 

28 

- 20 - COUNTY OF FRESNO 
Fresno , CA 



1

2

3

4

5

5

7

8

9

10

11

!2

13

t4

15

15

r7

18

t9

20

27

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

By: Scott Robertson, Mayor

Attest:

By: Reyna Rivera, City Clerk

Approved as to form:

By: Bianca Sparks Rojas, City Attorney

FOR ACCOUNTING USE ONLY:

Fund:
Subclass:
ORG:
Account:

Nathan Magsig Chairman of the Board of
Supervisors of the County of Fresno

ATTEST:
Bemice E. Seidel
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors
Coung of Fresno, State of California

Deputy
By:

-2L- COUNTY OF PRESNO
Fresno, CA

lN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the day and

year first hereinabove written.

CITYOFSELMA COUNTYOFFRESNO

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 129

1 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the day and 

2 year first hereinabove written. 

3 CITY OF SELMA 

4 

5 

6 By: Scott Robertson, Mayor 

7 Attest: 

8 
I~-----------------------9 By: Reyna Rivera, City Clerk 

1 0 
Approved as to form: 

11 

12 I~--------------------------
By: Bianca Sparks Rojas, City Attomey 

13 

14 

1 5 

16 

17 

18 

19 
FOR ACCOUNTING USE ONLY: 

20 
Fund: 

21 Subclass: 
ORG: 

22 Account: 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

COUNTY OF FRESNO 

Nathan Magsig Chairman of the Board of 
Supervisors of the County of Fresno 

ATTEST: 
Bemice E. Seidel 
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 
County of Fresno, State of California 

By: __________ ~~~-----------
Deputy 

- 2 1 - COUNTY OF FRESNO 
Fresno, CA 



Exhibit A

Fresno County Ambulance Service Area
Zone G

Description

I . Beginning at the intersection of E. American Avenue and State Highway 99.

2. Proceed south along State Highway 99 to the intersection of State Higlrway 99 and E.

Adams Avenue.

3. Proceed west along E. Adams Avenue to the intersection of E. Adams Avenue and S.

Maple Avenue.

4. Proceed south along S. Maple Avenue to the intersection of S. Maple Avenue and E'

South Avenue.

5. Proceed east along E. South Avenue to the intersection of E. South Avenue and S. East

Avenue.

6. Proceed south along S. East Avenue to the intersection ofS. East Avenue and E. Elkhom

Avenue.

7 Proceed east along E. Elkhom Avenue to the intersection ofE. Elkhom Avenue and S.

Clovis Avenue.

8. Proceed north along S. Clovis Avenue to the intersection ofE. Conejo Avenue.

9. Proceed east along E. Conejo Avenue to the intersection ofE. Conejo Avenue and S.

McCall Avenue.

10. Proceed north along S. McCall Avenue to the intersection of S. McCall Avenue and E.

Mt. View Avenue.

I l. Proceed east along E. Mt. View Avenue to the intersection of E. Mt. View and S. Smith

Avenue.

12. Proceed north along S. smith Avenue to the intersection of S. Smith Avenue and E.

Floral Avenue.

13. Proceed west along E. Floral Avenue to the intersection ofE. Floral Avenue and S.

Mendocino Avenue.

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 130

Exhibit A 

Fresno County Ambulance Service Area 
ZoneG 

Description 

I. Beginning at the intersection of E. American Avenue and State Highway 99. 

2. Proceed south along State Highway 99 to the intersection of State Highway 99 and E. 

Adams A venue. 

3. Proceed west along E. Adams Avenue to the intersection ofE. Adams Avenue and S. 

Maple Avenue. 

4. Proceed south along S. Maple Avenue to the intersection of S. Maple Avenue and E. 

South A venue. 

5. Proceed east along E. South Avenue to the intersection ofE. South Avenue and S. East 

Avenue. 

6. Proceed south along S. East Avenue to the intersection of S. East Avenue and E. Elkhorn 

Avenue. 

7. Proceed east along E. Elkhorn Avenue to the intersection of E. Elkhorn Avenue and S. 

Clovis Avenue. 

8. Proceed north along S. Clovis Avenue to the intersection of E. Conejo Avenue. 

9. Proceed east along E. Conejo Avenue to the intersection ofE. Conejo Avenue and S. 

McCall A venue. 

10. Proceed north along S. McCall Avenue to the intersection ofS. McCall Avenue and E. 

Mt. View Avenue. 

II . Proceed east along E. Mt. View Avenue to the intersection of E. Mt. View and S. Smith 

Avenue. 

12. Proceed north along S. Smith Avenue to the intersection of S. Smith Avenue and E. 

Floral A venue. 

13. Proceed west along E. Floral Avenue to the intersection ofE. Floral Avenue and S. 

Mendocino A venue. 



14. Proceed north along S. Mendocino Avenue to the intersection ofS. Mendocino Avenue

and E. Adams Avenue.

15. Proceed west along E. Adams Avenue to the intersection of E. Adams Avenue and S.

McCall Avenue.

16. Proceed north along S. McCall Avenue to the intersection of S. McCall Avenue and E.

American Avenue.

17. Proceed west along E. American Avenue to the point oforigin.

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 131

14. Proceed north along S. Mendocino Avenue to the intersection of S. Mendocino Avenue 

and E. Adams Avenue. 

I s. Proceed west along E. Adams Avenue to the intersection of E. Adams Avenue and S. 

McCall A venue. 

16. Proceed north along S. McCall Avenue to the intersection ofS. McCall Avenue and E. 

American Avenue. 

17. Proceed west along E. American Avenue to the point of origin. 



E
xh

ib
it 

A
F

re
sn

o 
C

ou
nt

y 
A

m
bu

la
nc

e 
R

es
po

ns
e 

A
re

a
Z

nn
eG

IE

9 E

i ;
K

E
N

N
E

-T
H

6H
E

S
T

N

,

I
;-

r
B

E
-T

h
f

g

E

I

,r
n

p
-9

M
C

L

t

F

C
E

i

Z

g

!

on
G

/-
)

C
E

LO
 C

A
r,

r
j

Jr
rn

ee
no

r-
-- s$

nH

1l

cr
ov

rs

O
€L

 R
E

Y

O
E

L 
F

xD
ra

xd
la

 
-

I 7A s6 N C
,

5

I I

E
IM z

+

,-
l

*-
-*

sF
.r

 : iP lo 'i

T
O

IL
E

N

,g
 r

 i
-:

-E
-t

E
 ii

0

R
E

E
N

W
O

O
O

#

l1
qr

^E

5

D
O ,

9

-+

-l lF
o

I
F LE

i

.l

o

xE
LS

O
fl B

F

l I
-=

rls
!

t

il T
t- o G
I !! C
L

fr

R
E

Y

iI

Ju
ne

 3
, 2

01
9 

C
ou

nc
il 

Pa
ck

et
13

2

~ 
" '" '" 8-
~ c.: 
" <:"0 

.';:: ~ " 

.0:::; '" 
~~~ 

.0 
§ 
o 
u 
8 
~ 
"'-

--I- ~ I ~~ f!;.'l" Gi-j
, ...l ::J --1

CEN

l-""lT ~ I ~1 1 'r ~~ ~~r ( ,~_ GOOPFELlOW NTRAl'ROpA'1~~"\;j1 ~ • lA.A ~ I I "I ~ ERICAN I _~ ~ .. . t:l ._ _ "\ 
-; .... fA·· ~, S U L ,,: ~ '" F.NT' 1;1 r- .~ I" ,' , EFFERSO ~ ,~E so~ -t- .u:~!~ l n -,U'COl' >--'" - ~" >-- 0 , ' L , cOl" m 0 

I/) JE FER ON ~; I '" 1;~ CLAYT" ' > 

~,-" 1) ' CLAYTON "-'" :(l JOY UJ COL. YTON 11 0 r-; __ '" ~~ - ClAYTO '" ~ ~ GO . E ~ 0 AD ... _ ~ 
IJ:+..I-,-3.- r-I-~ ' -T - ~ ,~ , ' ~ER ~ ! ~j ~ 5 UTH ~ " SUTH Q 

' ,. ~.'" ~ 0' , . , 0 , . _'" , 
~ :1 r-- > ~ 'I ~l . '"'' r' +j' ~ z __ z ~ r-' . , "T ' .. '", Me", ~ ' _,_; • • , 
m ~ m z '. '"""' ~W[ • Tz '" .. _ I I 

1- ~ ~,2 jj .... "". ffi ~r t ~ ~L ~INU . '" 1 ~ r-rl 
- 1- ~ e a ~ 1 .PR" . "," ~ "(\., ~.~~J UN MAN t-

U .. ,- 0 '" ~ OM I' '''' ''1 ' Ji[ MO<. 0 ' , +-~ 9A t" : I~ HU T,,,,H ,-'.rit> -. ~ ! 1 ' ~ . ~ J ~ ~ -"'- " .. . 0 • " J 
n= ""', '< , '0"' ' ." -'. .".,., ! , r ... 1 ~ I O\j! - •• " ... ~r--JO NSON I RO S ~l z - k1 SA()IN,tW F4 I 

,

-+ ,"'. AS .Ji!( r . '''' ~ I W - SAGINIIW _~ 1 ~",~",- ,"",UNT." V,"W I 

j

HE. -"''! s lS Q t z , _ .... ~_l'\. L...-eARUTHERS 

! _.- , '1 ! .. ' 0 I !I, " ." ~~ l ARU THER j ~M1 'I 
IT . 0 " ,1 , .~ 1 0 8, 'I" $(, -I."'''. I CA ±;.;. ~ ~~ENCEAU-i 6 ~~"~. ~ ~ -~~~ . ~Iihrr~ ~ ~" dr- - • 'l ~ '" _ 

STROUD :s u: z I - KLE PER ~ ~ ...Ii __ ~ ~ ~ 
~ w ~"EJO i 1 z 

~ UNNAMEO . CLARKSON . ~ ~ S~AH SON "",.No -:~ " [ g 
0" ~ ~$. _,-

~ ElKHOi" I) ~I ~T ~ I ~, -~~J OA=V'~' -- -r ~ ~. 
d ~ t ., 

[T 

Legend 

,bJlEIMH a:: 

CER INI~n 
r-~ B RREn-
1 -.L ~ 

Streets 

o Response Zane G ._, 
-L"""';" , ' j 



Exhibit B

Fresno County Ambulance Service Area
Znne G

Metropolitan Response Area Description

I . Beginning at the intersection of E. Parlier Avenue and S. DeWolf Avenue.

2. Proceed south along S. DeWolf Avenue to the intersection of S. DeWolf Avenue and E.

Manning Avenue.

3. Proceed west along E. Manning Avenue to the intersection of E. Manning Avenue and S.

Tonperance Avenue.

4. Proceed south along S. Temperance Avenue to the intersection of S. Temperance Avenue

and E. Rose Avenue.

5. Proceed east along E. Rose Avenue to the intersection of E. Rose Avenue and S. DeWolf

Avenue.

6. Proceed south along S. DeWolf Avenue to the intersection of S. DeWolf Avenue and E.

Saginaw Avenue.

7. Proceed east along E. Saginaw Avenue to the intersection ofE. Saginaw Avenue and the

S. Leonard Avenue alignment.

8. Proceed south along the S. I-eonard Avenue alignment to the intersection ofS. [.eonard

Avenue alignment and E. Caruthers Avenue.

9. Proceed east along E. Caruthem Avenue to the intersection of E. Caruthers Avenue and S.

McCall Avenue.

10. Proceed north along S. McCall Avenue to the intersection of S. McCall Avenue and E.

Mt. View Avenue.

I l. Proceed east along E. Mt. View Avenue to the intersection of E. Mt. View Avenue and S.

Bethel Avenue.

12. Proceed north along S. Bethel Avenue to the intersection ofS. Bethel Avenue and E.

Manning Avenue.

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 133

Exhibit B 

Fresno County Ambulance Service Area 
ZoneG 

Metropolitan Response Area Description 

I. Beginning at the intersection ofE. Parlier Avenue and S. DeWolf Avenue. 

2. Proceed south along S. DeWolf Avenue to the intersection ofS. DeWolf Avenue and E. 

Manning Avenue. 

3. Proceed west along E. Manning Avenue to the intersection ofE. Manning Avenue and S. 

Temperance Avenue. 

4. Proceed south along S. Temperance Avenue to the intersection ofS. Temperance Avenue 

and E. Rose Avenue. 

S. Proceed east along E. Rose Avenue to the intersection ofE. Rose Avenue and S. DeWolf 

Avenue. 

6. Proceed south along S. DeWolf Avenue to the intersection ofS. DeWolf Avenue and E. 

Saginaw A venue. 

7. Proceed east along E. Saginaw Avenue to the intersection ofE. Saginaw Avenue and the 

S. Leonard Avenue alignment. 

8. Proceed south along the S. Leonard Avenue alignment to the intersection of S. Leonard 

Avenue alignment and E. Caruthers Avenue. 

9. Proceed east along E. Caruthers Avenue to the intersection ofE. Caruthers Avenue and S. 

McCall A venue. 

10. Proceed north along S. McCall Avenue to the intersection of S. McCall A venue and E. 

Mt. View Avenue. 

I I. Proceed east along E. Mt. View Avenue to the intersection of E. Mt. View Avenue and S. 

Bethel Avenue. 

12. Proceed north along S. Bethel Avenue to the intersection of S. Bethel Avenue and E. 

Manning A venue. 



13. Proceed west along E. Manning Avanue to the intersection of E. Manning Avenue and S.

Del Rey Avenue.

14. Proceed north along S. Del Rey Avenue to the intersection ofS. Del Rey Avenue and E.

Parlier Avenue.

15. Proceed west along E. Parlier Avenue to the point oforigin.

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 134

13. Proceed west along E. Manning Avenue to the intersection ofE. Manning Avenue and S. 

Del Rey A venue. 

14. Proceed north along S. Del Rey Avenue to the intersection of S. Del Rey Avenue and E. 

Parlier Avenue. 

15. Proceed west along E. Parlier Avenue to the point of origin. 



Exhibit B

Fresno County Ambulance Service Area
ZoneG

Metropolitan Response Area

nr
ll GlElo
No 338 a
o..
=g

:)

I

:

z
i

l8 oe.

ETH EL

I

I,lE

.

Il

a

6

CE

9

?

!x
:

a

i
s

:

:

!^DsEll j
:

F

i

a

rtr

:

d
e

9

9

D

oliSo!

!!9-!N

/.
OI] KE

lt

I

I

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 135

Me CAlL 
~.,----

I 
I 

, 

o 
% 
~ 
o 

0 
N 
0 
~ 

" Gl 
~ 
!P-
Ol 
;0 

" ~ 
" 0 
~ 
~ 

" 

'" q 

" " 0; 

LOCA' 

'Tl'lOMPS 

r- 0 

~ ~ 
cc C 

" ~ 
r 
m 

::J • 
C-

o 

I 

Exhibit B 

Fresno County Ambulance Service Area 
ZoneG 

Metropolitan Response Area 

. ~ 
c 
% • % 

s 
~ !:.wE"" 

=:J • > 
0 

" t 
ROSS 

r 



Exhibit C

Fresno County Ambulance Service Area
7'oneG

Rural Response Area Description

The Rural Response Area includes the area within the Fresno County Ambulance Service

Area Zone G (Exhibit A), excluding the area identified as the Mehopolitan Response Area

(Exhibit B).

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 136

Exhibit C 

Fresno County Ambulance Service Area 
ZoneG 

Rural Response Area Description 

The Rural Response Area includes the area within the Fresno County Ambulance Service 

Area Zone G (Exhibit A), excluding the area identified as the Metropolitan Response Area 

(Exhibit B). 



Exhibit C

Fresno County Ambulance Service Area

ZnneG

Rural Response Area

r[ ,5
N I@ f39;; o.

-nj9 r.rd9
I@
3G)

4

-,fi

R!!Gr0!T

: gllllH

t€L iEv i i
tl

i{ o !^x oi^-?
I

oo

6-

E

!-

z
E

HaLSOl

, Eo"

,H,

!
E

i
E

IGH

,.^$

J

E

e

t

tlrre,

7
2

c

J

EAST

Iah9

B
tr

9
6
1

;
i

I

lct{vto

,+

ETH

I'"

KENiETH

.E
2i

ioflro!i

EOI'^FD

ircrL iD

E
a
LGI{

>F

IENrg
5

.9
rE

q,E!riur

z

I

crovts

Ei

i

LACJAC

ZEDIKEF

,/1

E

F; '
* Loc4lf

,rtrow : *tuqit
E vaaso!

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 137

Exhibit C 

Fresno County Ambulance Service Area 

ZoneG 

Rural Response Area 

10 .... --1 C» 
co 

J C» 
N ;u (J) ::J , 

~~""'!'o 0 " q Q. " '" " ~ " "C " -;-
~ OJ 0 in 

" • ~ '" ~ 

" Q 
~ N g RlVERBEND i3 0 

" " ;u " 

~~-" OJ 
'" "C 
0 

" iii 



Exhibit D - Response Time Performance Standards

Zone Priority Minimum
Response Time

Cumulative
Standard

Frequency

Metro Zone 1&2 10 minutes 95% Monthly

Metro Zone 3&4 20 minutes 95% Monthly

5 30 minutes 95% Monthlv

Rural Zone | &.2 20 minutes 95% Quarterly

Rural Zone 3&4 30 minutes Quarterly

Rural Zone 5 40 minutes 95% Quarterly

Metro Zone

95%

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 138

Exhibit D - Response Time Performance Standards 

Zone Priority 
Minimum Cumulative 

Frequency 
Response Time Standard 

Metro Zone 1&2 10 minutes 95% Monthly 

Metro Zone 3 &4 20 minutes 95% Monthly 

Metro Zone 5 30 minutes 95% Monthly 

Rural Zone 1& 2 20 minutes 95% Quarterly 

Rural Zone 3&4 30 minutes 95% Quarterly 

Rural Zone 5 40 minutes 95% Quarterly 



Exhibit E
1of16

Cnnrul Cil,monr.ilA
Eunncnxcv Mrorcar, Snnvtcns
A Divhion of the Fftsno County Depaitment ol Public Health

POLICY

Ambulance Provider Agencies operating within Fresno County will be authorized by the EMS Agency and Fresno

County for the appropriate level of service in accordance with established policy and procedures.

B

Ambulance DispatcLecllql - The Fresno County EMS Communications Center is the dispatch center

authorized by the EMS Agency to provide ambulance dispatch services for Fresno County.

Ambulance Provider Agency/Provider Agency - A private or public entity, or individual utilizing any

ground, water, or air vehicle specifically designed, constructed, modified, equipped, arranged, maintained,

operated, used or staffed, including vehicles specifically licensed or operated pursuant to California Vehicle

Code Section 2416, for the purpose of transporting sick, injured, invalid, convalescent, infirm, or otherwise

incapacitated persons and which has met all license and other requirernents in applicable Federal, State, and

local taw and regulation (Section 5l 15l.l of Title 22 ofthe California Code of Regulations and Section

I 100.2(a) of Title l3 of the California Code of Regulations).

Ambulance Service Arca - A specific geographic area within Fresno County established in EMS Policy and

Procedure and within the provider agency's written agreement with lhe County of Fresno (Attachment A).

Exclusive np Area (EC)A) - An exclusive operating area is an area defined by the County Emergency

Medicat Services Plan for which the EMS agency, upon the recommendation of the County and pursuant to
Division 2.5 ofthe Health and Safety Code, restricts operations to one or more providers of emergency

ambulance s€rvice, limited advanced life support services, or advanced life support services.

Provider (EOA Provider) - The ambulance provider contracted for the provision

of emergency ambulance and advanced life support ambulance senices for a designated exclusive operating

area

F. Non-Exclusive ns Area (Non-EOA) - A non-exclusive operating area is an area defined by the

County Emergency Medical Services Plan for which the EMS agency does noa restrict operations to one or
more providers ofemergency ambulance service or advanced life support services (paramedic) ambulance

service.

Approved By
Daniel J. Lynch
(Signature on File at EMS Agency)

Revision

vtD0l8

EMS Medical Director
Jim Andr€ws, M.D.

(Signature on File at EMS Agency)

C

D

Exclusive Ooeratin g Area

Policy
Number 20O

Page I of4
Subject Authorization ofAmbulance Provider Agencies in Fresno County

Relerences Division 2.5 ofCalifornia Health & Safety Code,

California Vehicle Code;
Fresno County Ambulance Ordinance and Resolutions;

Title I 3 of the California Code of Regulations; and
Tide 22 of the California Code of Regulations

Effective
ouov97

Manual
Emergency Medical Services

Administrative Policies and Procedures

II. DEFINITIONS

E.

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 139

C ENTRAL C ALIFORNIA 

E MERGENCY M EDICAL S ERVICES 
A Division of the Fresno County Department of Public Health 

Manual 
Emergency Medical Services 

Administrative Policies and Procedures 

Subject Authorization of Ambulance Provider Agencies in Fresno County 

References Division 2.5 of California Health & Safety Code, 
California Vehicle Code; 

Fresno County Ambulance Ordinance and Resolutions; 
Title 13 of the California Code of Regulations; and 

Title 22 of the California Code of Regulations 

I. POLICY 

Policy 
Number 200 

Page I of 4 

Effective 

Exhibit E 
t of 16 

01/01/97 

Ambulance Provider Agencies operating within Fresno County will be authorized by the EMS Agency and Fresno 
County for the appropriate level of service in accordance with established policy and procedures. 

TI . DEFINITIONS 

A. Ambulance Dispatch Center - The Fresno County EMS Communications Center is the dispatch center 
authorized by the EMS Agency to provide ambulance dispatch services for Fresno County. 

B. Ambulance Provider AgencylProvider Agency - A private or public entity, or individual utilizing any 
ground, water, or air vehicle specifically designed, constructed, modified, equipped, arranged, maintained, 
operated, used or staffed, including vehicles specifically licensed or operated pursuant to California Vehicle 
Code Section 2416, for the purpose of transporting sick, injured, invalid, convalescent, infirm, or otherwise 
incapacitated persons and which has met all license and other requirements in applicable Federal, State, and 
local law and regulation (Section 51151 .1 of Title 22 of the California Code of Regulations and Section 
1100.2(a) of Title 13 of the California Code of Regulations). 

C. Ambulance Service Area - A specific geographic area within Fresno County established in EMS Policy and 
Procedure and within the provider agency's written agreement with the County of Fresno (Attachment A). 

D. Exclusive Operating Area (EOA) - An exclusive operating area is an area defined by the County Emergency 
Medical Services Plan for which the EMS agency, upon the recommendation of the County and pursuant to 
Division 2.5 of the Health and Safety Code, restricts operations to one or more providers of emergency 
ambulance service. limited advanced life support services, or advanced life support services. 

E. Exclusive Operating Area Provider (EOA Provider) - The ambulance provider contracted for the provision 
of emergency ambulance and advanced life support ambulance services for a designated exclusive operating 
area. 

F. Non-Exclusive Operating Area (Non-EOA) - A non-exclusive operating area is an area defined by the 
County Emergency Medical Services Plan for which the EMS agency does not restrict operations to one or 
more providers of emergency ambulance service or advanced life support services (paramedic) ambulance 
service. 

Daniel J. Lynch Revision 
Approved By (Signature on File at EMS Agency) 

Jim Andrews, M.D. 
111/2018 

EMS Medical Director (Signature on File at EMS Agency) 



Policy
Number 200

Subject Authorization of Ambulance Provider Agencies in Fresno County

III

P e2of4

PROCEDIJRE

A. Exclusive Operating Areas

1. The Fresno County Exclusive Operating Ar€a - The EOA is composed of the northem portion of the

geographic area of Fresno County as specified in Attachments B-1 and B-2. The EOA includes the

cities ofFresno, Clovis, Firebaugh, Kerman, Mendota and San Joaquin.

2. The Reedley Exchrstr4oOpel4ilcalga - This EOA is located in the South-East area of Fresno

County as specified in Attachments C-l and C-2. The EOA includes the Cities of Reedley, Parlier,
and Orange Cove, the communities of Squaw Valley, Dunlap, and Portions of Kings Canyon

National Park. It is designated the Reedley EOA and is Ambulance Zone J.

B Non-Exclusive Operating Areas

The following non-exclusive areas are the only geographic areas in Fresno County not initially included as

part of the Fresno County or Reedley EOAs:

. Coalinga/Huron Service Area - Zone C;
o Selma/Fowler Service Area - Zone G;
. Sanger/Pine Flat Reservoir Service Area - Znne l;
. Kingsburg Service Area - Zone K; and

The potential exists that, during the term of the County's exclusiye operating agreement with the Fresno

County EOA Provider for the provision of emergency ambulance services, one or more of the cunent non-

exclusive provider agencies may discontinue or significantly reduce the scope and scale of its operation. In
any such case, the County and EMS Agency may require the Fresno County EOA Provider to implement

non-exclusive emergency ambulance services within such area(s).

Ftst Responder Services

The County and EMS Agency reserve th€ right to allow providers, other than ambulance providels, to

operate enhanced first responder services for 911 responses, including, but not limited to, advanced life
support (paramedic), advanced EMT, or Bls{efibrillation hrst responder services, within Fresno County.

D Air Amhulance / Air Rescue Services

The County and EMS Agency reserve the right to allow proYiders, other than ambulance providers, to

operate advanced life support air ambulance and/or air rescue services within the Fresno County, including

the EOAs. This includes flights and air transportation within Fresno County from air providers responding

from outside of Fresno County. Unless the air ambulance./air rescue provider is based within Fresno

County, no agreemeni or licensure is requted. Dispatch for helicopter air ambulaDce/air rescue services

shall be provided consistent with EMS Agency Policies and Procedures.

E Non-Emergency Transpons

The County or EMS Agency do not restrict the proyision of non-emergency transportation services in EOAS

or Non-EOAs that may be provided by entities other than an emergency ambulance service and which do

not require vehicles equipped with emergency lights and siren pursuant to Califomia Vehicle Code Section

24 I 6, including, but not limited to, services provided by wft eel chair or lifter van services. However,
providers using ambulance type vehicles for non-emergency medical transportation must remove and/or

cover their light-bar and emergency lights if operating within Fresno County.

Ambulance Dispatch Center - The County of Fresno operates a county-wide and centralized ambulance

disparch center through the Fresno County EMS Communications Center. All ambulances in Fresno County

C

F

Exhibit E
2o116

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 140

Subject Authorization of Ambulance Provider Agencies in Fresno County Policy 
Number 200 

Exhibit E 
2 of 16 

Page 20f4 

Ill. PROCEDURE 

A. Exclusive Operating Areas 

I. The Fresno County Exclusive Operating Area - The EOA is composed of the northern portion of the 
geographic area of Fresno County as specified in Attachments B-1 and B-2. The EOA includes the 
cities of Fresno, Clovis, Firebaugh, Kerman, Mendota and San Joaquin. 

2. The Reedley Exclusive Ooerating Area - This EOA is located in the South-East area of Fresno 
County as specified in Attachments C-I and C-2. The EOA includes the Cities of Reedley, Parlier, 
and Orange Cove, the communities of Squaw Valley, Dunlap, and portions of Kings Canyon 
National Park. It is designated the Reedley EOA and is Ambulance Zone J. 

B. Non-Exclusive Operating Areas 

The following non-exclusive areas are the only geographic areas in Fresno County not initially included as 
part of the Fresno County or Reedley EOAs: 

• Coalinga/Huron Service Area - Zone C; 
• SelmaIFowler Service Area - Zone G; 
• SangerlPine Flat Reservoir Service Area - Zone I; 
• Kingsburg Service Area - Zone K; and 

The potential exists that, during the term of the County's exclusive operating agreement with the Fresno 
County EOA Provider for the provision of emergency ambulance services, one or more of the current non
exclusive provider agencies may discontinue or significantly reduce the scope and scale of its operation. In 
any such case, the County and EMS Agency may require the Fresno County EOA Provider to implement 
non-exclusive emergency ambulance services within such area(s). 

C. First Responder Services 

The County and EMS Agency reserve the right to allow providers, other than ambulance providers, to 
operate enhanced first responder services for 911 responses, including, but not limited to, advanced life 
support (paramedic), advanced EMT, or BLS-defibrillation first responder services, within Fresno County. 

D. Air Ambulance I Air Rescue Services 

The County and EMS Agency reserve the right to allow providers, other than ambulance providers, to 
operate advanced life support air ambulance andlor air rescue services within the Fresno County, including 
the EOAs. This includes flights and air transportation within Fresno County from air providers responding 
from outside of Fresno County. Unless the air ambulancelair rescue provider is based within Fresno 
County, no agreement or licensure is required. Dispatch for helicopter air ambulance/air rescue services 
shall be provided consistent with EMS Agency Policies and Procedures. 

E. Non-Emergency Transports 

The County or EMS Agency do not restrict the provision of non-emergency transportation services in EOAs 
or Non-EOAs that may be provided by entities other than an emergency ambulance service and which do 
not require vehicles equipped with emergency lights and siren pursuant to California Vehicle Code Section 
2416, including. but not limited to, services provided by wheel chair or litter vall services. However, 
providers using ambulance type vehicles for non-emergency medical transportation must remove andlor 
cover their light-bar and emergency lights if operating within Fresno County. 

F. Ambulance Dispatch Center - The County of Fresno operates a county-wide and centralized ambulance 
dispatch center through the Fresno County EMS Communications Center. All ambulances in Fresno County 



Policy
Number 200

Subject Authorization of Ambulance Provider Agencies in Fresno County

Exhibit E
3of16

shall receive the primary dispatch of medical incidens from the Fresno County EMS Communications
Center.

Limited Exceptions to the Ambulance Service Areas (including EOAs)

Sewices provided to Ambulance Service Areas (including EOAs) shall encompass the operation ofall
ground emergency ambulance services with the following exceptions:

3of7

G.

Disaster Assistance - Ambulances providing assistance at the County's request during disaster

incidents may operate within the EOA.

Instant Aid/Mutual Aid - The provision of ambulance services pursuant to and requested in
accordance with EMS Agency Policies and Procedures andtror under formal instant aid and mutual

aid agreements betwe€n the ambulance provider and a thtd party that has been reviewed and

approved by the EMS Agency, shatl be an excePtion to the service area.

Contracted Specialty Care Units - Ambulance services providing specialty interfacility care and

transportation (e.g., neonatavpediatric transpon or critical care transport) utilizing a registered

nurse and/or physician staffing, may utilize ambulance vehicles equipped with red emergency

warning tight and siren only for interfacility transports. Such vehicles and personnel may not be

utilized for prehospital responses and such units may not be staffed by paramedics in the place of
registered nurses and/or physicians. This includes neonalal and pediatric transport services under

contract to Valley Children's Hospital.

Veteran's Administration (VA) Contract Ambulance Services - Ambulance services opemting
pursuant to a federal contract for direct purchase of ambulance services for the Veteran's

Administration shall be exempt from the EOA solely for the purpose of servicing that contract.

Note: For the purposes of this policy and the exclusive operating areas, Medicare and Medicaid (Medi-

Cal) authorizations or other arrangemenls for reimbu$ement for services shall be considered a

reimbursement arr-angement - not a federal or slate contract for direct purchase of ambulance services.

H. Ambulance Service Areas

Ambulance seryice area boundaries, as established by th€ local EMS Agency Policies and Procedures, shall

be used in determining the dispatching of ambulances within Fresno County. These ambulance service area

boundaries include the exclusive operating area and non-exclusiye operating areas within Fresno County

(see Attachment A). Ambulance response zones within these ambulance service areas have been designated

by the EMS Agency through EMS Policy which defines the geographic areas for data collection and

identification of the primary ambulance unit and any applicable back-up ambulance units.

Approved Ambulance Provider Agencies

l. Fresno County EOA - The EMS Agency, in conjunction with Fresno County has designated a

single provider agency -- American Arnbulance - for the provision of emergency ambulance

services within the Fresno County exclusive oPerating area. which includes all emergency

ambulance services, 9-l-1 emergency responses, 7-digit emergency responses, advanced life
support ambulance, all critical care transport services, advanced life support interfacility
transports, and stand-by services with transport authorization. Therefore, no other ground

ambulance proyider agencies witl be designated for services which are within the geographic area

and scope of the exclusive operating area (See Attachment B).

2. Reedley EOA - The EMS Agency, in conjunction with Fresno County has designated a single

provider agency - Sequoia Safety Council -- for the provision of emergency ambulance services

within the Reedley exclusive operating area, which includes 9-t-l and Tdigit resPonse, stand-by

2.

3

4

I,

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 141

Subject Authorization of Ambulance Provider Agencies in Fresno County Policy 
Number 200 

Exhibit E 
3 of 16 

Page 3 of7 

shall receive the primary dispatch of medical incidents from the Fresno County EMS Communications 
Center. 

G. Limited Exceptions to the Ambulance Service Areas (including EOAs) 

Services provided to Ambulance Service Areas (including EOAs) shall encompass the operation of all 
ground emergency ambulance services with the following exceptions: 

I. Disaster Assistance - Ambulances providing assistance at the County' s request during disaster 
incidents may operate within the EOA. 

2. Instant AidlMutual Aid - The provision of ambulance services pursuant to and requested in 
accordance with EMS Agency Policies and Procedures andlor under formal instant aid and mutual 
aid agreements between the ambulance provider and a third party that has been reviewed and 
approved by the EMS Agency, shall be an exception to the service area. 

3. Contracted Specialty Care Units - Ambulance services providing specialty interfacility care and 
transportation (e.g., neonataVpediatric transport or critical care transport) utilizing a registered 
nurse and/or physician staffing, may utilize ambulance vehicles equipped with red emergency 
warning light and siren only for interfacility transports. Such vehicles and personnel may not be 
utilized for prehospital responses and such units may not be staffed by paramedics in the place of 
registered nurses and/or physicians. This includes neonatal and pediatric transport services under 
contract to Valley Children's Hospital. 

4. Veteran's Administration (V A) Contract Ambulance Services - Ambulance services operating 
pursuant to a federal contract for direct purchase of ambulance services for the Veteran's 
Administration shall be exempt from the EOA solely for the purpose of servicing that contract. 

Note: For the purposes of this policy and the exclusive operating areas, Medicare and Medicaid (Medi-
Cal) authorizations or other arrangements for reimbursement for services shall be considered a 
reimbursement arrangement - not a federal or state contract for direct purchase of ambulance services. 

H. Ambulance Service Areas 

Ambulance service area boundaries, as established by the local EMS Agency Policies and Procedures, shall 
be used in detennining the dispatching of ambulances within Fresno County. These ambulance service area 
boundaries include the exclusive operating area and non-exclusive operating areas within Fresno County 
(see Attachment A). Ambulance response zones within these ambulance service areas have been designated 
by the EMS Agency through EMS Policy which defines the geographic areas for data collection and 
identification of the primary ambulance unit and any applicable back-up ambulance units. 

1. Approved Ambulance Provider Agencies 

I. Fresno County EOA - The EMS Agency, in conjunction with Fresno County has designated a 
single provider agency -- American Ambulance -- for the provision of emergency ambulance 
services within the Fresno County exclusive operating area, which includes all emergency 
ambulance services, 9-1-1 emergency responses, 7 -digit emergency responses, advanced life 
support ambulance, all critical care transport services, advanced life support interfacility 
transports, and stand-by services with transport authorization. Therefore. no other ground 
ambulance provider agencies will be designated for services which are within the geographic area 
and scope of the exclusive operating area (See Attachment B). 

2. Reedley EOA - The EMS Agency, in conjunction with Fresno County has designated a single 
provider agency -- Sequoia Safety Council -- for the provision of emergency ambulance services 
within the Reedley exclusive operating area, which includes 9-1-1 and 7-digit response, stand-by 



Policy
Number 2(X)

Subject Authorization of Ambulance Provider Agencies in Fresno County

Exhibit E
4of16

4of7

service with transport authorizalion. Therefore, no other ground ambulance Provider agencies will
be designated for services which are within the geographic area and scope of the exclusive
operating area (See Attachment C).

Non-Exclusive Ambulance Providers - The EMS Agency, in conjunction with Fresno County has

designated the following non-exclusive providers for the provision ofemergency ground

ambulance services within Fresno County:

P

3

Ambulance Zone
Zone C
Znre C
Znne I
Tmre K

Zone Descriotion
Coalinga / Huron Area
Selma / Fowler Area
Sanger / Pine Flat Area
Kingsburg Area

Provider
Coalinga Fire Dept
Selma Fire Dept
Sanger Fire Dept
Kingsburg Fire Dept

Anyone desiring to provide ground or air ambulance service within a particular service area shall

comply with all relevant sections of the Fresno County Ambulance Ordinance and Resolutions and

obtain an ambulance provider agreement with the tocal EMS Agency (unless the air ambulance/air

rescue provider is responding from ouside of Fresno County, in which case the provider is exempt

from the agreement requirement in accordance with Section [I.D.). As apPlicable, such services

would be for non-exclusive operating areas within the County of Fresno or for services which are

outside the scope of the exclusive operating area.

Ambulance operations within Fresno County shall be conducted in strict accordance with all
applicable Federal, State, and local codes and regulations including the Provisions of the California
Health and Safety Code, Title l3 and Title 22 of the California Code of Regulations, the California
Vehicle Code, local municipal and county codes and regulations, including Fresno County
Ambulance Provider Agreements and local EMS Agency policies and procedures.

6.

4.

5.

The local EMS Agency shall be notified in writing no less then sixty (60) days prior to an

ambulance provider agency changing their level of service (i.e., ALS to BLS), or of their intent to

discontinue providing ambulance service within a service area(s).

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 142

Subject Authorization of Ambulance Provider Agencies in Fresno County Policy 
Number 200 

ExhiM E 
4 of 16 

Page 4 of7 

service with lranspon authorization. Therefore, no other ground ambulance provider agencies will 
be designated for services which are within the geographic area and scope of the exclusive 
operating area (See Auachment C). 

3. Non-Exclusive Ambulance Providers - The EMS Agency, in conjunction with Fresno County has 
designated the following non-exclusive providers for the provision of emergency ground 
ambulance services within Fresno County: 

Ambulance Zone 
ZoneC 
ZoneG 
Zone! 
Zone K 

Zone Description 
Coalinga I Huron Area 
Selma I Fowler Area 
Sanger I Pine Flat Area 
Kingsburg Area 

Provider 
Coalinga Fire Dept 
Selma Fire Dept 
Sanger Fire Dept 
Kingsburg Fire Dept 

4. Anyone desiring to provide ground or air ambulance service within a panicular service area shall 
comply with all relevant sections of the Fresno County Ambulance Ordinance and Resolutions and 
obtain an ambulance provider agreement with the local EMS Agency (unless the air ambulance/air 
rescue provider is responding from outside of Fresno County, in which case the provider is exempt 
from the agreement requirement in accordance with Section IlI.D.). As applicable, such services 
would be for non-exclusive operating areas within the County of Fresno or for services which are 
outside the scope of the exclusive operating area. 

5. Ambulance operations within Fresno County shall be conducted in strict accordance with all 
applicable Federal, State, and local codes and regulations including the provisions of the California 
Health and Safety Code, Title 13 and Title 22 of the California Code of Regulations, the California 
Vehicle Code, local municipal and county codes and regulations, including Fresno County 
Ambulance Provider Agreements and local EMS Agency policies and procedures. 

6. The local EMS Agency shall be notified in writing no less then sixty (60) days prior to an 
ambulance provider agency changing their level of service (i .e., ALS to BLS), or of their intent to 
discontinue providing ambulance service within a service area(s). 



;

&
d

d
vd

0a

o)E
''

q,

I

outt
( 

rr.r
F

U
z<yfr
-aE

u
Lz<

5:fo=

I.IJ @

!oL!

3

;
lr

L---,L

.,

\
v1-

n-ac

t!

2
2

,
d,d

tr

Q
oc.r<
E

-sg3=
a

e?eB
x*E

-e,ihE
E

,e
;S

.=
tsir.l

.rJ E
'€ 

6 
(E

 6
E

E
E

,+
E

P
E

o.=
oruG

<
ovoo.n

June 3, 2019 C
ouncil Packet

143

ATTACHMENT A 
AMBULANCE SERVICE AREAS 

W02 

Exhibit E 

N 

A 

Legend 

DAm erican Ambulance 

• Coalinga Fire Dept 

D Kingsburg Fire Dept 

• Sequoia Safety Council 

D Selma Fire Dept 

• Sanger Fire Dept 



h'

o

z
(Eo,

&(,,
c'-sIt)o.0)

6Tul 
ur

- 
d.,

u5
<

gP
P

E
g

$Eoo
.22

E
,3m

6,f;$
gE

[

,bfi
F

 
>

).
=

,y
ut=
=

5
-UH

e
?oE

#

6

E
F

June 3, 2019 C
ouncil Packet

144

ATTACHMENT 8-1 
Fresno County EOA 

79.02 

~ 

78.02 

75 

T1 74 

6 of 16

N 

A 
84.02 

114.03 

Legend 

D Exclusive operaHng Area (EOA) 

D Areas Not I ncluded I n the Exclusive Operating Area 



E.xhibit E
7of16

L

I

Attachment B-2
Exclusive Operating Area - Description

Attachment B-2 is based upon the 2010 Census Tracts.

The following Census Tracts comprise the Fresno County Exclusive Operating Area:

Census Tracl Description

Census Tract # I lncludes all of census tract

Census Tract # 2 lncludes all of census lract

Census Tract # 3 lncludes all ol census tract

Census Tract # 4 lncludes all ol census tract

Census Tract # 5.01 lncludes all of census tract

Census Tract # 5.02 lncludes all of census tract

Census Tract # 6 lncludes all ol census tract

Census Tract # 7 lncludes all of census tract

lncludes all ol census tract

Census Tract # 9.01 lncludes all ol census tract

Census Tract # 9.02 lncludes all ol census tract

lncludes all of census tract

CensusTract#11 lncludes all ol census tract

Census Tract # 12.01 lncludes all ol census tract

Census Tract # 12.02 lncludes all of census tract

Census Tract # I3.01 lncludes all of census tract

Census Tract # 13.03 lncludes all of census tract

Census Tract # 13.04 lncludes all of census tract

Census Tract # 14.07 lncludes all ol census tract

Anachment B-2

Census Tract # 8

Census Tract # 10

Census Tract # 14.08 lncludes all ol census tract

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 145

Attachment B-2 
Exclusive Operating Area - Description 

I. Attachment B-2 is based upon the 2010 Census Tracts. 

ll. The following Census Tracts comprise the Fresno County Exclusive Operating Area: 

Census Tract Description 

Census Tract # 1 Includes all of census tract 

Census Tract # 2 Includes all of census tract 

Census Tract # 3 Includes all of census tract 

Census Tract # 4 Includes all of census tract 

Census Tract # 5.01 Includes all of census tract 

Census Tract # 5.02 Includes all of census tract 

Census Tract # 6 Includes all of census tract 

Census Tract # 7 Includes all of census tract 

Census Tract # 8 Includes all of census tract 

Census Tract # 9.01 Includes all of census tract 

Census Tract # 9.02 Includes all of census tract 

Census Tract # 10 Includes all of census tract 

Census Tract # 11 Includes all of census tract 

Census Tract # 12.01 Includes all of census tract 

Census Tract # 12.02 Includes all of census tract 

Census Tract # 13.01 Includes all of census tract 

Census Tract # 13.03 Includes all of census tract 

Census Tract # 13.04 Includes all of census tract 

Census Tract # 14.07 Includes all of census tract 

Census Tract # 14.08 Includes all of census tract 

Attachment B-2 

Exhibit E 
7 of 16 



Exhibit E
8 of 16

Attachment B-2
Description - Fresno County EOA

Page2

Census Tract # 14.09 lncludes all of census tract

Census Tract # 14.1 lncludes all of census tract

Census Tract # 14.'l I lncludes all ol census tract

Census Tract # 14. 
,l2 lncludes all of census tract

Census Tract # 14.1 3 lncludes all ol census tract

Census Tract # 14.14 lncludes all ol census tracl

Census Tract # 15 lncludes all ol census tract

Census Tracl # .16 lncludes the area NORTH of American Avenue and
WEST of DeWoll Avenue

lncludes the area NORTH ol South Avenue and
WEST o, Maple Avenue; and includes the area
NORTH of Adams Avenue and WEST ol Highway 99
(lncluding SOUTH BOUND lanes of Highway 99 to
Adams Ave)

Census Tract # l8 lncludes all of census tract

Census Tract # 19 lncludes all ol census tract

Census Tract # 20

Census Tract # 21 lncludes all ol census tract

Census Tract # 22 lncludes all ol census tract

Census Tract # 23 lncludes all of census tract

Census Tract # 24 lncludes all of census lract

Census Tract # 25.01 lncludes all of census tract

Census Tract # 25.02

Census Tract # 26.01 lncludes all of census tract

Census Tract # 26.02 lncludes all of census tract

Census Tract # 27.01 lncludes all ol census tract

Census Tract # 27.02 lncludes all ol census tract

lncludes all ol census tract

Attachment B-2

Census Tracl # 17

lncludes all of census tract

lncludes all of census tract

Census Tracl # 28

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 146

Census Tract # 14.09 

Census Tract # 14.1 

Census Tract # 14.11 

Census Tract # 14.12 

Census Tract # 14.13 

Census Tract # 14.14 

Census Tract # 15 

Census Tract # 16 

Census Tract # 17 

Census Tract # 18 

Census Tract # 19 

Census Tract # 20 

Census Tract # 21 

Census Tract # 22 

Census Tract # 23 

Census Tract # 24 

Census Tract # 25.01 

Census Tract # 25.02 

Census Tract # 26.01 

Census Tract # 26.02 

Census Tract # 27.01 

Census Tract # 27.02 

Census Tract # 28 

Exhibit E 
8 of 16 

Attachment B-2 
Description - Fresno County EOA 

Page 2 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes the area NORTH of American Avenue and 
WEST of DeWolf Avenue 

Includes the area NORTH of South Avenue and 
WEST of Maple Avenue; and includes the area 
NORTH of Adams Avenue and WEST of Highway 99 
(Including SOUTH BOUND lanes of Highway 99 to 
Adams Ave) 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Attachment B-2 



Exhibit E
9 of '16

Attachment B-2
Description - Fresno County EOA

Page 3

Census Tract # 29.03

Census Tract # 29.04 lncludes all of census tract

lncludes all ol census tract

Census Tract # 29.06 lncludes all of census tract

Census Tract # 30.01 lncludes all ol census tract

lncludes all ol census tract

Census Tract # 30.04 lncludes all of census tract

Census Tract # 31 .02 lncludes all of census tract

Census Tract # 31 .03 lncludes all ol census tract

Census Tract # 31 .04 lncludes all ol census tract

Census Tract # 32.01 lncludes all ol census tract

Census Tract # 32.02 lncludes all ol census tract

Census Tract # 33.01 lncludes all ol census tract

lncludes all of census tract

Census Tract # 34 lncludes all ol census tract

Census Tract # 35 lncludes all of census tract

Census Tract # 36 lncludes all of census tract

Census Tract # 37.01 lncludes all ol census tract

Census Tract # 37.02 lncludes all ol census tract

lncludes all of census tract

Census Tract # 38.04 lncludes all of census tracl

Census Tract # 38.05 lncludes all ol census tract

Census Tract # 38.07 lncludes all ol census tract

Census Tract # 38.08 lncludes all ol census tract

Census Tract # 38.09 lncludes all ol census tract

Attachment B-2

lncludes all of census tract

Census Tract # 29.05

Census Tract # 30.03

Census Tract # 33.02

Census Tract # 38.03

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 147

Census Tract # 29.03 

Census Tract # 29.04 

Census Tract # 29.05 

Census Tract # 29.06 

Census Tract # 30.01 

Census Tract # 30.03 

Census Tract # 30.04 

Census Tract # 31 .02 

Census Tract # 31 .03 

Census Tract # 31.04 

Census Tract # 32.01 

Census Tract # 32.02 

Census Tract # 33.01 

Census Tract # 33.02 

Census Tract # 34 

Census Tract # 35 

Census Tract # 36 

Census Tract # 37.01 

Census Tract # 37.02 

Census Tract # 38.03 

Census Tract # 38.04 

Census Tract # 38.05 

Census Tract # 38.07 

Census Tract # 38.08 

Census Tract # 38.09 

Exhib~ E 
9 of 16 

Attachment B-2 
Description - Fresno County EOA 

Page 3 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Attachment B-2 



Exhibit E
10 of 16

Attachment B-2
Description - Fresno County EOA

Page 4

Census Tract # 38.1 lncludes all ol census tract

Census Tract # 39 lncludes all ol census tract

Census Tract # 40.01 lncludes all of census tract

Census Tract # 40.02 lncludes all of census tract

Census Tract # 41

Census Tract # 42.05 lncludes all ol census tract

Census Tract # 42.07 lncludes all ol census tract

Census Tract # 42.08 lncludes all ol census tract

Census Tract # 42.1 lncludes all of census tract

Census Tract # 42.11 lncludes all of census tract

Census Tract # 42.12 lncludes all oJ census tract

Census Tract # 42.14 lncludes all ol census tract

Census Tract # 42. 1 5 lncludes all ol census tract

Census Tract # 42.16 lncludes all of census tract

lncludes all ol census tract

Census Tract # 43.02 lncludes all of census tract

Census Tract # 43.03 lncludes all ol census tract

Census Tract # 44.04 lncludes all ol census tract

Census Tract # 44.05 lncludes all ol census tract

Census Tract # 44.06 lncludes all o, census tract

Census Tract # 44.08 lncludes all of census tract

Census Tract # 44.09 lncludes all ol census tract

Census Tract # 45.03 lncludes all ol census tract

Census Tract # 45.04 Includes all ol census tract

Attachment B-2

lncludes all ol census tract

Census Tract # 42.13 lncludes all ol census tract

Census Tract # 43.01

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 148

Census Tract # 38.1 

Census Tract # 39 

Census Tract # 40.01 

Census Tract # 40.02 

Census Tract # 41 

Census Tract # 42.05 

Census Tract # 42.07 

Census Tract # 42.08 

Census Tract # 42.1 

Census Tract # 42.11 

Census Tract # 42.12 

Census Tract # 42.13 

Census Tract # 42.14 

Census Tract # 42.15 

Census Tract # 42.16 

Census Tract # 43.01 

Census Tract # 43.02 

Census Tract # 43.03 

Census Tract # 44.04 

Census Tract # 44.05 

Census Tract # 44.06 

Census Tract # 44.08 

Census Tract # 44.09 

Census Tract # 45.03 

Census Tract # 45.04 

Exhib~ E 
100116 

Attachment 8·2 
Description - Fresno County EOA 

Page 4 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Attachment 8 ·2 



Exhibit E
'l'l of 16

Attachment B-2
Description - Fresno County EOA

Census Tract # 45.05

lncludes all ol census tracl

Census Tract # 46.01 lncludes all of census tract

Census Tract # 47.01 lncludes all ol census tract

lncludes all ol census tractCensus Tract # 47.03

Census Tract # 47.04 lncludes all of census tract

Census Tract # 48.01 lncludes all ol census tract

Census Tract # 48.02 lncludes all ol census tract

lncludes all ol census tractCensus Tracl # 49.01

lncludes all ol census lractCensus Tract # 49.02

lncludes all of census lract

lncludes all ol census tractCensus Tract # 51

lncludes all of census tractCensus Tract # 52.02

lncludes all of census tractCensus Tract # 52.03

Census Tract # 52.04 lncludes all of census tract

Census Tract # 53.01

lncludes all ol census tractCensus Tract # 53.02

lncludes all of census tract

lncludes all of census tractCensus Tract # 53.05

Census Tract # 54.03 lncludes all of census tract

lncludes all ol census tractCensus Tract # 54.05

lncludes all of census tractCensus Tract # 54.06

Census Tract # 54.07 lncludes all ol census tract

Census Tract # 54.08 lncludes all of census tract

Census Tract # 54.09 lncludes all of census tract

Attachment B-2

lncludes all ol census tract

Census Tract # 45.06

Census Tract # 50

lncludes all ol census tract

Census Tract # 53.04

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 149

Census Tract # 45.05 

Census Tract # 45.06 

Census Tract # 46.01 

Census Tract # 47.01 

Census Tract # 47.03 

Census Tract # 47.04 

Census Tract # 48.01 

Census Tract # 48.02 

Census Tract # 49.01 

Census Tract # 49.02 

Census Tract # 50 

Census Tract # 51 

Census Tract # 52.02 

Census Tract # 52.03 

Census Tract # 52.04 

Census Tract # 53.01 

Census Tract # 53.02 

Census Tract # 53.04 

Census Tract # 53.05 

Census Tract # 54.03 

Census Tract # 54.05 

Census Tract # 54.06 

Census Tract # 54.07 

Census Tract # 54.08 

Census Tract # 54.09 

Exhib~ E 
11 of 16 

Attachment B-2 
Description - Fresno County EOA 

Page 5 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Attachment B-2 



Exhibit E
12 of 16

Attachment B-2
Description - Fresno County EOA

Page 6

Census Tract # 54.1 lncludes all of census lract

Census Tract # 55.03 lncludes all of census lract

Census Tract # 55.04 lncludes all ol census tract

Census Tract # 55.05 lncludes all of census tract

Census Tract # 55.07 lncludes all ol census lract

lncludes all of census tract

Census Tract # 55.09 lncludes all of census tract

Census Tract # 55. 1 lncludes all of census tract

Census Tract # 55.12 lncludes all ol census tract

Census Tract # 55.13 lncludes all of census tract

Census Tracl # 55. 14 lncludes all ol census tract

Census Tract # 55.1 5 lncludes all of census kact

Census Tract # 55.16 lncludes all ol census tracl

lncludes all of census tract

Census Tract # 55.18 lncludes all of census tract

Census Tract # 55.2 lncludes all of census tract

Census Tract # 55.22 lncludes all of census tract

Census Tract # 55.24 lncludes all of census tract

Census Tract # 55.25 lncludes all of census tract

lncludes all ol census tract

Census Tract # 56.05 lncludes all ol census tract

Census Tract # 56.06 lncludes all ol census tract

Census Tract # 56.07

Census Tract # 56.08 lncludes all of census tract

Census Tract # 57.01 lncludes all ol census tract

Anachment B-2

Census Tract # 55.08

Census Tract # 55. 17

Census Tract # 56.02

lncludes all ol census tract

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 150

Census Tract # 54.1 

Census Tract # 55.03 

Census Tract # 55.04 

Census Tract # 55.05 

Census Tract # 55.07 

Census Tract # 55.08 

Census Tract # 55.09 

Census Tract # 55.1 

Census Tract # 55.12 

Census Tract # 55.13 

Census Tract # 55.14 

Census Tract # 55.15 

Census Tract # 55.16 

Census Tract # 55.17 

Census Tract # 55.18 

Census Tract # 55.2 

Census Tract # 55.22 

Census Tract # 55.24 

Census Tract # 55.25 

Census Tract # 56.02 

Census Tract # 56.05 

Census Tract # 56.06 

Census Tract # 56.07 

Census Tract # 56.08 

Census Tract # 57.01 

ExhiM E 
12 of 16 

Attachment B-2 
Description - Fresno County EOA 

Page 6 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Attachment B-2 



Exhibit E
13 of 16

Attachment B-2
Description - Fresno County EOA

Page 7

Census Tract # 57.02 lncludes all of census tract

lncludes all of census tract

Census Tract # 57.04 lncludes all of census tract

Census Tract # 58.01 lncludes all of census tract

Census Tract # 58.02 lncludes all ol census tract

Census Tract # 58.04 lncludes all of census tract

Census Tract # 58.05

Census Tract # 59.04
lncludes all ol the area NORTH ol Kings Canyon
Road; and includes the area WEST of DeWolf
Avenue

Census Tract # 59.05 lncludes the area NOBTH of Ashlan Avenue

Census Tracl # 59.06
lncludes the area NORTH of Ashlan Avenue and
WEST ol Watts Valley Road

Census Tract # 59.07 lncludes all ol census tract

Census Tract # 59.09 lncludes all of census tract

Census Tract # 59.11 lncludes all of census tract

Census Tract # 59.1 2 lncludes all of census tract

lncludes all of census tract

Census Tract # 64.03 lncludes all of census tract

Census Tract # 64.04

Census Tract # 64.05 lncludes all ol census tract

lncludes all ol census tract

Census Tract # 65.02

Census Tract # 73 lncludes all of the area WEST ol East Avenue

Census Tract # 57.03

lncludes all of census tract

Census Tract # 64.02

lncludes the all ol the area NORTH ol the lollowing
boundary - a straight line lrom the intersection of
Watts Valley Road and the Friant Kern Canal EAST lo
the intersection ol Trimmer Springs Road and
Sunnyslope Road and then following Trimmer Springs
Road EAST to the intersection ol Trimmer Springs
Road and Balch Camp Road

Census Tract # 65.01

lncludes all ol census tract

Anachment B-2

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 151

Census Tract # 57.02 

Census Tract # 57.03 

Census Tract # 57.04 

Census Tract # 58.01 

Census Tract # 58.02 

Census Tract # 58.04 

Census Tract # 58.05 

Census Tract # 59.04 

Census Tract # 59.05 

Census Tract # 59.06 

Census Tract # 59.07 

Census Tract # 59.09 

Census Tract # 59.11 

Census Tract # 59.12 

Census Tract # 64.02 

Census Tract # 64.03 

Census Tract # 64.04 

Census Tract # 64.05 

Census Tract # 65.01 

Census Tract # 65.02 

Census Tract # 73 

ExhiM E 
130116 

Attachment B-2 
Description - Fresno County EOA 

Page 7 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of the area NORTH of Kings Canyon 
Road ; and includes the area WEST of DeWolf 
Avenue 

Includes the area NORTH of Ashlan Avenue 

Includes the area NORTH of Ashlan Avenue and 
WEST of Watts Valley Road 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes the all of the area NORTH of the following 
boundary - a straight line from the intersection of 
Watts Valley Road and the Friant Kern Canal EAST to 
the intersection of Trimmer Springs Road and 
Sunnyslope Road and then following Trimmer Springs 
Road EAST to the intersection of Trimmer Springs 
Road and Balch Camp Road 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of the area WEST of East Avenue 

Attachment B-2 



Exhibit E
14 of 16

Attachment B-2
Description - Fresno County EOA

Page 8

Census Tract # 74 Includes all of the area WEST of Highway 43

Census Tract # 75 lncludes all of census tract

Census Tract # 76 lncludes all of census tract

Census Tract # 77 lncludes all of census tract

Census Tract # 78.02

lncludes all ol the area NORTH ol the lollowing
boundary - A line f rom the intersection ol Mt. Whitney
and Colusa Avenue SOUTHEAST to the intersection
of Fresno-Coalinga Road and Butte Avenue, then
EAST to the intersection olGoldenrod and Paige, and
then SOUTHEAST to the intersection ol Jameson
Avenue and Oakland Avenue and thethen EAST to
the boundary of Lemoore Naval Air Station
(Dickenson Avenue and Oakland Avenue)

Census Tract # 82 lncludes all ol census tracl

Census Tract # 83.01 lncludes all of census tract

Census Tract # 83.02 lncludes all oI census tract

Census Tract # 84.01 lncludes all of census tract

Census Tract # 84.02 lncludes all of census tract

Attachment B-2

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 152

Census Tract # 74 

Census Tract # 75 

Census Tract # 76 

Census Tract # 77 

Census Tract # 78.02 

Census Tract # 82 

Census Tract # 83.01 

Census Tract # 83.02 

Census Tract # 84.01 

Census Tract # 84.02 

Exhib~ E 
14 of 16 

Attachment B-2 
Description - Fresno County EOA 

Page 8 

Includes all of the area WEST of Highway 43 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of the area NORTH of the following 
boundary - A line from the intersection of Mt. Whitney 
and Colusa Avenue SOUTHEAST to the intersection 
of Fresno-Coalinga Road and Butte Avenue, then 
EAST to the intersection of Goldenrod and Paige, and 
then SOUTHEAST to the intersection of Jameson 
Avenue and Oakland Avenue and thethen EAST to 
the boundary of Lemoore Naval Air Station 
(Dickenson Avenue and Oakland Avenue) 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Includes all of census tract 

Attachment B-2 



# i9

-{

I

!I

U
Er<zoHH
2.*

i(
Fr

t!
!
u.l

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 153



Exhibit E
16 of 16

Exhibit C-2
Description of Reedley EOA

Ambulance Zone "J"

The following Census Tracts (Year 2000 Census Tracts) and descriptions comprise the Rural

Response Area of Ambulance Znne J:

Census Tract #63 - Includes all of the area SOUTHEAST of the following boundary -
from the intersection of the Cameron Slough and the Kings River, NORTHEAST
along the Cameron Slough to the intersection of Reed Avenue and the Cameron

Slough and then SOUTH on REED Avenue to Kings Canyon Road and then

EAST on Kings Canyon Road to the Friant-Kern Canal.

Census Tract #64.03 - Includes all of the area SOUTH of Kings Canyon Road and

WEST of Cove Road.

Census Tract #65 - Includes all of Census Tract.

Census Tract #68.01 - Includes all of the area EAST of Mendocino Avenue and NORTH
of Floral Avenue.

Census Tract #68.02 - lncludes all of the area WEST of Smith Road, except for the arca

SOUTH of Floral Avenue.

Census Tract #69 - Includes all of the area SOUTIIEAST of the Cameron Slough.

Census Tract #64.02 - Excluding all ofthe area SOUTH of Kings Canyon Road and

WEST of Cove Road.

Attachment C-2

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 154

Exhibit C-2 
Description of Reedley EOA 

Ambulance Zone "J" 

Exhibtt E 
16 of 16 

The following Census Tracts (Year 2000 Census Tracts) and descriptions comprise the Rural 
Response Area of Ambulance Zone J: 

Census Tract #63 - Includes all of the area SOUTHEAST of the following boundary
from the intersection of the Cameron Slough and the Kings River, NORTHEAST 
along the Cameron Slough to the intersection of Reed Avenue and the Cameron 
Slough and then SOUTH on REED Avenue to Kings Canyon Road and then 
EAST on Kings Canyon Road to the Friant-Kern Canal. 

Census Tract #64.03 - Includes all of the area SOUTH of Kings Canyon Road and 
WEST of Cove Road. 

Census Tract #65 - Includes all of Census Tract. 

Census Tract #68.0 I - Includes all of the area EAST of Mendocino Avenue and ORTH 
of Floral A venue. 

Census Tract #68.02 - Includes all of the area WEST of Smith Road, except for the area 
SOUTH of Floral Avenue. 

Census Tract #69 - Includes all of the area SOUTHEAST of the Cameron Slough. 

Census Tract #64.02 - Excluding all of the area SOUTH of Kings Canyon Road and 
WEST of Cove Road. 

Attachment C-2 



Selma Police Department

POLICE DEPARTMENT
BI.WEEKLY COUNCIL UPDATE

(s/3/19 - s/30/19)

over the 28-day period referenced in this report, total reported crime in the city of Selma fell
by L7%,lrom lorly-eight (48) reported crimes the previous 28{ay period to fofi (40). Of
note, during this period, there was a 300% increase in reported domestic violence, going from
one (11 such report the previous 28 days to four (4) during this reporting period.. Property

crime fell by twenty-five percent (25%), with vehicle burglary, on the rise in the last reporting
period, falling by sixtytne percent (61%).

on o5l29l!9, al approximately 9:25pm, officers were disPatched to 3815 Mccall Avenue
(Selma Smoke Shop), in regards to a male subject physically fighting with an employee and the
owner of this establishment. Upon office/s arrival, the suspect was actively resisting and in
possession of a "frying pan." K-9 Officer J. Holt, deployed his K-9 Pasco and the susPect was

apprehend and subdued by the K-9. Prior to officers' arrival, the suspect entered the business

and began vandalizing the shop, breaking glass displays and throwing items within the
business. At one point the suspect, when confronted by the business owner, struck the owne.
in the face with a closed fist. Video surveillance provided by the owner confirmed the victim's
account of the incident.

G,
"1'.] '

i

Crime Trends

SIGNIFICANT CALLS FOR SERVICE

o on 5lL!119, at approximately 6:45pm, acting on a notification from the Kingsburg Police

Department regarding a vehicle involved in a shooting in that city, officers located a vehicle

matchinS the description in the Carl's Jr. parking lot. Officerc attempted to pull the vehicle

over, but the suspect drove out of the lot at a high rate of speed. A Pursuit ensued, with the
suspect abandoning his vehicle near Thompson @ Whitson, and ran. Officers apprehended

the suspect a short distance away, notified KPD, who took custody of the prisoner

On05l17lL9, at approximately 7:30pm, officers were dispatched to the area ofthe 2800 block

of C Street, in regards to shots fired. Upon arrival, witnesses stated a white sedan with tinted
windows (possibly Hyundai) drove by their residence and an unknown passenger shot several

rounds at their residence from this vehicle. The witnesses said the vehicle was occupied with
four occupants and one of the occupants was wearing red clothing. A vehicle parked in the
victims' driveway was struck with shotgun rounds (12 gauge bird shot) and a second vehicle
parked in the victim's neighbo/s driveway, was struck with a 12 Sauge shotgun slu8. Two

spent 12 gauge shot gun shell casings wete located in the roadway. officers also recovered the

"slug" from one of the two vehicles. Video surveillance shows a white vehicle fleeing the area

at a high rate of speed east bound on Floral Avenue, towards Orange Street. Detectives wete

briefed about this ongoinB investigation.

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 155

\/1 " 
Selma Police Department 

Crime Trends 

POLICE DEPARTMENT 
BI-WEEKLY COU CIL UPDATE 

(5/3/19 - 5/30/19) 

• Over the 28-day period referenced in this report, total reported crime in the city of Selma fell 
by 17%, from forty-eight (48) reported crimes the previous 28-day period to forty (40). Of 
note, during this period, there was a 300% increase in reported domestic violence, going from 
one (1) such report the previous 28 days to four (4) during this reporting period .. Property 
crime fell by twenty-five percent (25%), with vehicle burglary, on the rise in the last reporting 
period, falling by sixty-one percent (61%). 

SIGNIFICANT CALLS FOR SERVICE 

• On 5/13/19, at approximately 6:4Spm, acting on a notification from the Kingsburg Police 
Department regarding a vehicle involved in a shooting in that city, officers located a vehicle 
matching the description in the Carl's Jr. parking lot. Officers attempted to pull the vehicle 
over, but the suspect drove out of the lot at a high rate of speed. A pursuit ensued, with the 
suspect abandoning his vehicle near Thompson @ Whitson, and ran . Officers apprehended 
the suspect a short distance away, notified KPD, who took custody of the prisoner 

• On 05/17/19, at approximately 7:30pm, officers were dispatched to the area of the 2800 block 
of C Street, in regards to shots fired . Upon arrival, witnesses stated a white sedan with tinted 
windows (possibly Hyundai) drove by their residence and an unknown passenger shot several 
rounds at their residence from this vehicle. The witnesses said the vehicle was occupied with 
four occupants and one of the occupants was wearing red clothing. A vehicle parked in the 
victims' driveway was struck with shotgun rounds (12 gauge bird shot) and a second vehicle 
parked in the victim's neighbor's driveway, was struck with a 12 gauge shotgun slug. Two 
spent 12 gauge shot gun shell casings were located in the roadway. Officers also recovered the 
"slug" from one of the two vehicles. Video surveillance shows a white vehicle fleeing the area 
at a high rate of speed east bound on Floral Avenue, towards Orange Street. Detectives were 
briefed about this ongoing investigation. 

• On OS/29/19, at approximately 9:25pm, officers were dispatched to 3816 McCall Avenue 
(Selma Smoke Shop), in regards to a male subject physically fighting with an employee and the 
owner of this establishment. Upon officer's arrival, the suspect was actively resisting and in 
possession of a "frying pan." K-9 Officer J. Holt, deployed his K-9 Pasco and the suspect was 
apprehend and subdued by the K-9. Prior to officers' arrival, the suspect entered the business 
and began vandalizing the shop, breaking glass displays and throwing items within the 
business. At one point the suspect, when confronted by the business owner, struck the owner 
in the face with a closed fist. Video surveillance provided by the owner confirmed the victim's 
account of the incident. 

reynar
Typewritten Text



Selma Police Department

Personnel

Please see attached Personnel Status Report

Communiw Events

Bringing Broken Neighborhoods Back to Life held its first "Bringing Neighbors Togethe/'
community event on Saturday, May 18 at the Adventist Hospital grounds. Over 300 people

were in attendance. Our next event, hosted my Adventist Health on theit campus on Rose

Avenue, is scheduled for Saturday, June8th.

1. April 13 - Lincoln Park
2. May 18 - Adventist Hospital grounds

3. June8-SMARTCenter
4. July 25 (Thursdayl - Lincoln Park

5, August 24- Ringo Park
5. September 28 (March for Jesus) - TBA

*\1:r,
',,.,.

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 156

~/I"" 
Selma Police Department 

Personnel 

• Please see attached Personnel Status Report 

Community Events 

• Bringing Broken Neighborhoods Back to Life held its first " Bringing Neighbors Together" 
community event on Saturday, May 18 at the Adventist Hospital grounds. Over 300 people 
were in attendance. Our next event, hosted my Adventist Health on their campus on Rose 
Avenue, is scheduled for Saturday, June8'h. 

1. April 13 - Lincoln Park 
2. May 18 - Adventist Hospital grounds 
3. June 8 - SMART Center 
4. July 25 (Thursday) - Lincoln Park 
5. August 24 - Ringo Park 
6. September 28 (March for Jesus) • TBA 



Status as of: 6-3-19

*Reserve Officer

Auth Vac Filled W H AA o W H AA o Total
Chief 0 1 L 1

Lieutenant 2 0 2 1 1 2

Sergeant 5 0 5 2 3 5

Officer 27 0 27 5 15 2 2 1 27

Res. Off.* NA NA 1 I 7

ESD 7 0 7 2 3 2 7

cso 2 0 2 L 1 2

Records 0 2 1 1 2

Property 1 0 1 1 1

ES,D=Emergency
Services Dispatcher
CSO=Community Service
Officer
W=Ca ucasian

H=H ispa n ic

Arq=[f1]66n American
0=Other

SELMA POLICE DEPARTMENT PERSONNEL STATUS REPORT

Job Class Status Male Female

1

2

TOTAL 47 0 48 L2 2t 2 8 5 48

ITT

T [-T--I-

H

_l[-T--t--

KEY

June 3, 2019 Council Packet 157

SELMA POLICE DEPARTMENT PERSONNEL STATUS REPORT 

Status as of: 6-3-19 

Job Class Status Male Female 
Auth Vac Filled W H AA 0 W H AA 0 Total 

Chief 1 0 1 1 1 
Lieutenant 2 0 2 1 1 2 
Sergeant S 0 S 2 3 S 
Officer 27 0 27 6 16 2 2 1 27 

Res. Off. * NA NA 1 1 1 

ESD 7 0 7 2 3 2 7 
CSO 2 0 2 1 1 2 

Records 2 0 2 1 1 2 
Property 1 0 1 1 1 

TOTAL 47 0 48 12 21 2 8 5 48 

* Reserve Officer 

KEY 

ESD=Emergency 
Services Dispatcher 

CSO=Community Service 
Officer 

W=Caucasian 

H=Hispanic 

AA=African American 

O=Other 


	1.a. minutes
	1.b. LHMP 
	1.c. Crime Analyst
	1.d. SUSD VROP
	1.e. Gateway Engineering CMAQ Alley paving
	1.f. Aramark Uniform 
	1.e. Check Register
	2. EMS Agreement
	PD report



